
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              December 14, 2021 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

December 14, 2021 - 10:00 A.M. 

  
 

 1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  2. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

  3. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

 4. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new Sheriff's Office employees will be introduced 
to the Board: Cora Crespo Garcia, Cook: and Gabrielle Rinker, Public Safety 
Dispatcher. 

  
 

  5. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 6. County Counsel - Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo 
and Christian Milovich for provision of professional services as the Assistant County 
Counsel at a monthly salary of $12,365, effective January 13, 2022, and authorize 
the County Administrator to sign.   

  
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom signed 
Assembly Bill 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency that suspends certain requirements 
of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, and the 
Board will be conducting its meetings online. 

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at 
https://zoom.us/j/868254781. Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to 
access the videoconference. Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following 
generic, non-functioning address to gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers:  (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 
215-8782; (929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. 

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are 
limited to three minutes. Written public comment, limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant 
Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments 
will be made a part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to 
comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              December 14, 2021 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; approval 
recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

 7. Assessor - Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the contract between the 
County of Inyo and Erik Endler for the provision of professional services relating to 
the creation of a valuation model for purposes of training appraisal staff and the use 
in property tax assessments related to income-producing properties, specifically 
geothermal properties, to extend the end date from December 31, 2021 to June 30, 
2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 8. County Administrator - Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Eva S. Wasef, MD of Pasadena, CA, increasing the 
contract to an amount not to exceed $125,000, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign. 

  
 

 9. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board approve 
Amendment No. 2 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Navigating 
Preparedness Associates, LLC of Layfayette, CA extending the term end date from 
December 31, 2021 to June 30, 2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 10. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board review the proposed 
Fiscal Year 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Program 
Application and, if deemed acceptable: A) approve the submittal of the Fiscal Year 
2021 EMPG Program Application and authorize the County Administrator, as the 
designated Authorized Agent, to sign the grant application, as well as any and all 
accompanying documents, by approving the "Governing Body Resolution No. 2021-
53," and B) authorize the Chaiperson to sign the resolution addendum letter. 

  
 

 11. County Administrator - Information Services - Request Board: A) declare Pitney 
Bowes of Pittsburgh, PA a sole-source provider of postage processing machines and 
postage; B) approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Pitney Bowes of 
Pittsburgh, PA for the provision of mail metering rental and service lease agreement 
in an amount not to exceed $21,861.60 for the period of 60 months, contingent upon 
the Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) authorize Senior Budget Analyst 
Denelle Carrington to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

  
 

 12.  County Counsel - Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 that: A) the 
Board reconsidered the circumstances of the existing State of Emergency issued on 
March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and B) local officials 
continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing, and/or the state of 
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in 
person. 

   
 

 13. Public Works - Request Board approve the Use License Agreement between the 
County of Inyo and United Airlines for a non-exclusive, nontransferable, fully 
revocable license for use of a portion of the Bishop Airport property, located at 703 
Airport Road, Bishop, CA, for the period of December 19, 2021 to December 3, 2024, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. 

  
 

 14. Public Works - Request Board authorize a correction to Amendment No. 2 to the 
contract with LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc., of Tahoe City, CA, increasing the 
contract's not-to-exceed amount from $159,742 to $178,887, contingent upon the 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              December 14, 2021 

Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  

 

 15. Sheriff - Request Board review the proposed Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Homeland 
Security Grant (HSGP) Application and, if deemed acceptable: A) approve the 
submittal of the application and authorize the County Administrator, as the 
designated Authorized Agent, to sign the grant application, as well as any and all 
accompanying documents, by approving the "Governing Board Resolution No. 2021-
54;" and B) authorize the Chairperson to approve the resolution and sign the 
addendum letter. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 16. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board: A) conduct a 
workshop with members from local Fire Safe Councils to discuss their recent letter to 
the Board requesting continued support in furthering fire safe policies, management 
and advocacy; and B) provide any follow-up direction to staff as necessary. 

  
 

 17. County Administrator - Request Board hear a presentation regarding the American 
Rescue Plan Act funds allocated to Inyo County and discuss potential uses of the 
funding. 

  
 

 18.  Public Works - Request Board waive further reading of  proposed Ordinance 1277 
titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, 
Repealing Certain Portions of Ordinance No. 1167 (2011) and Setting Rates for 
Vehicle Parking at the Bishop Airport," and schedule enactment for Tuesday, 
September 21, 2021 in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative 
Center, Independence. 

 
 

 19. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-55, titled, "A 
Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Stating Its 
Intent to Become the Governing Board of the Tecopa Cemetery District," and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.) 

  
 

 20. 11:05 a.m. - County Counsel - Request Board: A) conduct a noticed hearing as part 
of the 2021 redistricting process; and B) approve Resolution No. 2021-56, titled, "A 
Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 
Setting the Boundaries of the Supervisorial Districts Following the 2020 Census," and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 21. 1 p.m. - Board of Equalization - The Board will recess and reconvene as the Inyo 
County Board of Equalization (separate agenda). 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  22. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 

 



County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  John Vallejo
 
SUBJECT:  Assistant County Counsel Employment Agreement
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Christian Milovich for provision of 
professional services as the Assistant County Counsel at a monthly salary of $12,365, effective January 13, 
2022, and authorize the County Administrator to sign.  
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On November 9, 2021, your Board authorized the hiring of one Deputy County Counsel I-IV,  one Chief Deputy 
County Counsel, or one Assistant County Counsel based on qualifications. The ensuing recruitment process 
resulted in Ms. Milovich being rated the top candidate for the position. She possesses the education, experience, 
skills, and qualities that warrant appointing her as the Assistant County Counsel.  

The position of Assistant County Counsel is excluded from the County's Personnel Merit System by Section 
2.80.055 of the Inyo County Code, making the position an "at-will" position. The contract proposed for the 
Assistant County Counsel is the same contract your Board approved for the Assistant County Administrator, and 
both are essentially the same contract that your Board executes with its appointed department heads. The 
contract serves to better define the position's "at-will" status by specifying the contract may be terminated by the 
County "without cause, and at will, for any reason" by providing 90 days' written notice of such intent to terminate. 
The contract also serves to clarify the position (Assistant County Counsel) is a contract position, and serves as 
an at-will employee for purposes of applying the Personnel Rules and Regulations. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could decide not to approve this employment agreement. That is not recommended as it is critical 
that the County Counsel's Office fill its vacant attorney position, and Ms. Milovich has the skills and experience to 
make an immediate contribution to the Office and the County. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

N/A
 
FINANCING:
There is sufficient funding for the position in the remainder of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 County Counsel Budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Assistant County Counsel Contract
 
APPROVALS:
John Vallejo Created/Initiated - 12/6/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/6/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/7/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/7/2021
John Vallejo Final Approval - 12/7/2021



















County of Inyo

Assessor
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  David Stottlemyre
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment 2 to Erik Endler Professional Services Contract
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Erik Endler for the 
provision of professional services relating to the creation of a valuation model for purposes of training appraisal 
staff and the use in property tax assessments related to income-producing properties, specifically geothermal 
properties, to extend the end date from December 31, 2021 to June 30, 2022, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The original agreement, under the direction of the County Assessor, is providing for the creation of a valuation 
model for purposes of deriving an assessment for geothermal property. It is also serving to train the Assessor's 
office appraisal staff in the process of valuing geothermal property. With properly trained staff, future outside 
services can be minimized. An extension of the contract is requested so that the contractor may complete the 
Scope of Work and allow for any unanticipated occurrences to be appropriately addressed.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
On May 11, 2021, your Board approved a contract between the County of Inyo and Erik Endler for the provision 
of professional services relating to the creation of a valuation model for purposes of training appraisal staff and 
the use in property tax assessments related to income-producing properties, specifically geothermal properties, 
for the period of June 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021 in an amount not to exceed $50,000. On September 21, 
2021 your Board approved a contract extension from September 30, 2021 to December 31, 2021 in an amount 
not to exceed $50,000.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may choose to not approve this contract amendment. Doing so would leave the contractor's work 
unfinished, and require the Assessor's appraisal staff to perform the valuation with the limited experience they 
have with this type of project.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
The expense for the original contract is budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Assessor Budget (010600) in the 
Professional Services Object Code (5265). This amendment does not change the amount of the agreement.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Erik Endler Contract Amendment 2
2. Erick Endler Contract Amendment 1
3. Erick Endler Original Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/3/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/3/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/3/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/3/2021
David Stottlemyre Final Approval - 12/3/2021











In the Rooms of the Board of Supenrisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the I I'h day of May 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Assessor-
Erik Endler
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve the contract
between the County of lnyo and Erik Endler for the provision of professional services relating to
the creation of a valuation model for purposes of training appraisal staff and the use in property
tax assessments related to income producing properties, specifically geothermal properties, for
the period of June 1,2021 to September 30, 2021 in an amount not to exceed $50,000,
contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2A21-2022 Budget, and authorize the
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried
unanimously.

ILITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this I I'h

oay of Mql 2021

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

fu"##*.

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
ofheri Assessor

DATE: May 12,2021

By:



4tr II

County of Inyo

Assessor

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: May 1 1,2021

FROM: David Stottlemyre

SUBJECT: Professional Services Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of lnyo and Erik Endler for the provision of professional
services relating to the creation of a valuation model for purposes of training appraisal staff and the use in
property tax assessments related to income producing properties, specifically geothermal properties, for the
period of June 1,20211o September 30, 2021 in an amount not to exceed $50,000, contingent upon the Board's
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

This agreement, under the direction of the County Assessor, will provide for the creation of a valuation model for
purposes of deriving an assessment for geothermal property. lt will also serve to train the Assessor's office
appraisal staff in the process of valuing geothermal property. With properly trained staff, future outside services
can be minimized.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS :

N/A

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
Your Board may choose to not approve this contract. Doing so would require the Assessor's appraisal staff to
perform the valuation with the limited experience they have with this type of project.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A

FINANGING:
This expense will be budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Assessor Budget (010600) in the Professional
Services object code (5265).

ATTACHMENTS:



Page2

1. Edk Endler Contract

APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis
David Stottlemyre
John Vallejo
Sue Dishion
Clint Quilter
Amy Shepherd
David Stottlemyre

Created/lnitiated - 412812021
Approved - 412812021
Approved - 51412021

Approved - 51512021

Approved - 51512021

Approved - 51612021

Final Approval - 51612021



NFCFNES

ApR 2I 2a2,t

AGREEMENT BETWEEN INYO COUNTY
AND Erik Endler

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVIGES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as
"County") may have the need for the profes sional services of Erik Endler

hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the mutual
promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in Attachment A,
attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by County to the Contractor to pedorm under
this Agreement will be made by the Assessor
Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be peformed under this Agreement will be based upon
County's need for such services. County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level
or amount of seruices or work will be requested of the Contractor by County under this Agreement. County by
this Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or
work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at County's request under this Agreement will be performed in
a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state, County, and
municipal laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordindnces, regulations, and resolutions
include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. INTIAL TERM AND OPTIONS.

The initial term of this Agreement shall be from 0610112021 to_0913012021__unless
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

From NA through
throughFrom NA

County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions as stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees (set forth
as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Aftachment A which are performed by Contractor at
COUNW'S request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for the travel expenses or per diem
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work under this Agreement.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall not
be entifled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or other type
of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not be entifled, by
virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of oveftime, health insurance benefits, retirement benefits,

a.
b.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.155
(lndependent Contractor - Professional Services)

Page 'l of 10 a712612019



disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type
or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit uoon amount payable under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by County to
Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem expenses, if
any, shall not exceed fifty thousand dollars and zero cents Dollars ($ 50,000

-) 

(hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or
reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in
excess of the contract limit

E. Billinq and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized statement of
all hours spent by Contractor in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the
County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month.
The statement to be submifted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and
including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the hours were
worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

F. Federaland State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state income
taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.
(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this Agreement
to non-Califomia resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual payments to
Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00).
(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from sums
paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such
sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contractor's taxes or assessments.
(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-California
residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise
Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to County an lnternal Revenue
Service (lRS) Form W-9, upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in Aftachment A
which are requested by County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work
will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to
ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be performed within the time
frame set fofih by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, GERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, County, municipal governments,
for contractor to provide the services and work described in Aftachment A must be procured by Contractor and
be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required. Further, during the
term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect.
Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or
certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in
force by Contractor at no expense to County. Conlractor will provide County, upon execution of this Agreement,
with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to perform the services
identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor and County as to what licenses,
certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right
to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by anyfederal department
or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving federal funds as listed

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.155
(lndependent Contractor - Professional Servi ces)

Page 2 of 10 0712612A19



in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs issued by the
General Services Ad m i n istration avai lable at: http ://wrrvrv. sa m. gov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and telephone
service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this Agreement.
County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in
procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in
providing and maintaining items not specifically set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment B), is the sole
responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Propertv of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety
devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are,
and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. Contractor will use
reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's
possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which
is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual
properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or
manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this
Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. At the termination of the Agreement, Contractor
will convey possession and tifle to all such propefties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this Agreement,
shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of County. Contractor,
by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of County. Except as
expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or power
vested in County. No agent, officer, or employee of Contractor is to be considered an employee of County. lt is
understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be construed
or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A' Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and services to
be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in this
Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's control with
respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.155
(lndependent Contractor- Professional Services)

Page 3 of 10 0712612019



10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees from and
against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including iitigation costs
and aftorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of this Agreement by
Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold
County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or alleged personal injury, death, or
damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use. Contractor's obligation under
this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other costs which is caused in whole or in
part by any act or omission of the Contractor, its agents, employees, suppliers, or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or omissions any of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless
under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this Agreement for
Gontractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its agents,
officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other
costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the active negligence, or
wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

11. RECORDSANDAUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions of this
Agreement, and federal, state, County, and municipal laws, ordinances, regulations, and directions. Contractor
shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this
Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by substitute
photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any books,
documents, papers, and records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which County
determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor. Further, County has
the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenivise evaluate the work performed or being performed
under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents, officers,
and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code
section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the Califomia Code of
Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all
amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to Contractor
thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement without
cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel to
County.

14. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not assign

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.155
(lndependent Contractor - Professional Servi ces)

Page 4 of 10 0712612019



or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County. Further,
Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written
consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by County in a
timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by County, County
may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to
Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to Contractor for
services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any subsequent
default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or
subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless this
Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and County laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by Contractor
in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential.
Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such confidential,
privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written consent of the
County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the Counh/s written consent is solely and
exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, and
Sections 'l 0850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. For
the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to beneficiaries shall be
protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would
con'llict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT.

_ Gontractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained from
County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal Uenetit, gain, or
enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement, not to
seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the term of this
Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with County, or who has been an adverse parly in litigation
with County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this Agreement has gained access to County's
confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared invalid
by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or County statute,
ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, shill not be

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.155
(lndependent Contractor- Professional Services)

Page 5 of 10 07126t2019



invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this Agreement are
severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources. ln the
event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the option to
cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying Contractor of the
cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of this Agreement
made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent
of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same formalities as
this Agreement, and aftached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including change of
address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required, or may
desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first class mail to, the
respective parties as follows:

INYO COUNW:
Assessor Department

Address
City and Statendeoendence CA

CONTRAGTOR:
Frik Fnclle Name

Address
City and State

30345 Mission St

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenruise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil ilil

Hiohlanrl eA O2?AA

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.155
(l ndependent Contractor - Professional Servi ces)

Page 6 of 10 07t2612019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN INYO GOUNTY
AND Erik Endler

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVI cEs

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

-DAY 
OF 

-,

INYO COUNTY CONTRACTOR

Dated

ur,U5,-oA
En,'L d/<-r

.Print or Tvoe Name

Dated: q - /?-zDzL

Co

APPROVED AS TO
LEGALITY:

APPROVED AS TO I

AS TO ACCOUNTI

PERSONNEL IREMENTS:

IREMENTS:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.155
(lndependent Contractor - Professional Services)

Page 7 of 10 0712612019

11th May 2021

05/11/2021



ATTACHMENT A

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN INYO COUNTY

Erik Endler
FOR THE PROVISION OF IONAL SERVICES

TERM:

FROM 0610112021 TO:0913012021

SCOPE OFWORK:

Under the direction of the County Assessor, create a valuation model(s) for the purpose of property tax assessments for
change-of-ownership and regular ongoing assessments of geothermal power plant properties within lnyo County, and
assist and advise the County Assessor and staff in the creation and understanding of same.

CONFIDENTIALITY
Contractor agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, regulations, and ordinances
providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by Contractor in tfre course of providing services
and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confldential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential, all
such privileged, restricted or confidential information and records obtained in the course of providing the work and services
under this Agreement. Disclosure of such information or records shall be made by Contractor onty wittr the express written
consent of the County.

Contractor shall also maintain the confidentiality of all records, information and data of any form or description related to
any assessee that is obtained in performance of this Agreement, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 408, 45l,
441, and 481 of the Revenue and Taxation Code ("Confidential lnformation"). Such Confidential lnformation includes, but
is not limited !9, change of ownership statements, property tax returns, income tax returns, annual business property
statements, all information obtained by an Assessor pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code Sections 441(d) through and
including 470, purchaseisale agreements, purchase/sale cash flow statements and any other confidential pioperty owner
information obtained by Contractor. Contractor shall provide all services, advice and representation rendered' under this
Agreement exclusively to the lnyo County Assessor. All records, data and Confidential lnformation coming into
Contractor's possession and all knowledge gained during the course of Contractor's performance of services hereunder
shall be and remain the property of the County and shall be maintained by Contractor in strictest confidence while in
Contractor's possession. Contractor shall never show, discuss or provide Confidential lnformation, taxpayer information or
records in Contractor's possession to any third party and shall take all necessary steps to protect Confidential lnformation.
lf source data, work product or any other Confidential lnformation, prepared by or in ihe possession of Contractor, are
subject to a request for discovery during any assessment appeal or other administrative or judicial proceeding, Contractor
shall assert the individual Assessor's privilege against disclosure of this information and noiity tfre Assessor oJ the
discovery request. Contractor and the Assessor shall also assert the confidentiality privilege against disclosure and the
confidentiality requirements of Revenue and Taxation Code Sections aOB(e), 441, 4i1, and 481.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.155
(lndependent Contractor - Professional Services)

Page 8 of 10 0712612019



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN INYO COUNTY
AND Erik

FOR THE PROVISION OF IONAL SERVICES

TERM:

FROM 06ta1t2021 TO= 0913012021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Contractor shall be paid g2S0 per hour for work performed.

Contractor shall be reimbursed for direct expenses incurred by contractor to secure valuation data required to fulfill the
scope of work.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.1b5
(lndependent Contractor - Professional Services)

Page 9 of 10 07t26t2019



ATTACHMENT C

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN INYO COUNTY

Erik Endler
FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVIGES

FROM 06t01t2021

TERM:

TO:0913012021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.15b
(lndependent Contractor - Professional Services)

Page 10 of 10 7126120't9



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Amendment No. 1 for the Contract between the County of Inyo and Eva S. Wasef, MD 
for Autopsy Services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Eva S. Wasef, MD of 
Pasadena, CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $125,000, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Dr. Eva Wasef's original contract amount for the period of July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2022 was $85,000. This 
increase of $40,000 to the contract will allow Dr. Wasef to complete additional autopsies, as required, through the 
end of the contract period. The cases in the Coroner's Office have increased substantially in the past two years 
and this contract increase is needed to fulfill the Coroner duties in Inyo County.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve this amendment, which would impact the job of the Coroner, and not 
allow him to move forward appropriately to fulfill his duties as Coroner.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
There are sufficient funds in the Coroners Budget #023500, in the Professional Services object code #5265 to 
cover this increase.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Wasef Contract Amendment No. 1
2. Wasef Contract - Original
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 12/2/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/2/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 12/2/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/2/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/2/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/6/2021







In tlte Rooms of tlte Boatd of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the l6th dayof JUNE 2020an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO - Eva S.
Wasef Sole-Source
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to: A) declare Eva S. Wasef,
M.D. a sole-source provider of autopsy services in lnyo County; and B) approve the contract
with Eva S. Wasef, M.D. for autopsy services for the term of July 1,2020 through June 30,
2022 for a total contract amount not to exceed $85,000, contingent upon the Board's adoption
of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

ITITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this I 6th

Day of JUNE, 2020

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board ofSupemisors

&Abi*
By:

Routing

CC:
Purchasing
Personnel

Auditor
CAO:

Other:

DATE: June 19,2020



#tl

County of Inyo

County Administrator

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: June 16,2020

FROM: Denelle Carrington

SUBJECT: Approval of Contract for Autopsy Services

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Eva S. Wasef, M.D. a sole-source provider of autopsy services in lnyo County; and B)
approve the contract with Eva S. Wasel M.D. for autopsy services for the term oi July 1 ,2020 t-hrougn June 30, 

'
2022 for a total contract amount not to exceed $85,000, contingent upon the Board's bdoption of futu"re budgets,
and authorize the Chairperson to sign.

SU MMARY/JUSTIFIGATION :

Dr' Eva Wasefs current contract expires June 30, 2020. She has graciously worked with the Coroner's Office for
the past several years as the Coroner's autoply surgeon. She is ipatholojist at Northern lnyo Hospital and is
currently the only pa-thologist in lnyo County. There is no one with her e*pjrtise and laboratory avaiiability to
assist the Coroner' She is able to provide microscopic studies and immediate toxicology serviies when needed
to determine the cause of death. Her services are a tremendous benefit to the County. 

-

The Sole Source justification is warranted based on her expertise, lower expense and her local proximity to the
Coroners' Office.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS:

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve this contract, which would impact the job of the Coroner, and not allow
him to move forward appropriately and furfiil his duties as coroner.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

FINANCING:
This expense will be budgeted in the Coroner's Budget (023500) each year in professional Services (5265)

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Wasef Contract 2020-2022



)Page2

APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington
Darcy Ellis
Denelle Carrington
Sue Dishion
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd

Created/ln itiated - 61212020
Approved - 61212020
Approved -61312020
Approved -61312020
Approved - 61312020
Finaf Approval - 61412020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Eva S. Wasef, M.D,

FOR THE PROVISION OF

The term of this Agreement shall be from 07101!-2020 
--,terminated as provided below.

SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for the
Autopsv services of Eva S. Wasef, M.D. of

Pasadena, CA (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the
mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made bv

Coroner
Jason Molinar

whose title is Requests to the Contractor for
work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such
services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of
services or work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this
Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or
work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this
Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
pefformed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, county, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations,
and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

to 0613012022 unless sooner

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comnensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment C) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. T.rave!.q.nd pgr diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or
per diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No additional co4sideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit uoon amounl oavable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

County of Inyo Standard Coutt'rlct
(lndependent Contrnctor' - l)hysicians ll)

Page I Modified Contlaot No. I 16

03t720t6



$85,000
Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").

County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for
services or work pedormed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billino and oavment, Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all seryices and work described in attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted willcover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon
timely receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor
on the last day of the month.

F. Federal and Statetaxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State Income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine
dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor, County has no responsibility or
liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the
California State Franchise Tax Board. To lacilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and
submit to the County an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Fu{her, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid iicenses, certificates and
permlts which are required to perform the services identified in attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinaiions for purposes of
this Agreement.

Couuty oflnyo Standard Contract
(lndependent Contractor - Physicians ll)

page 2 Modified Contract No, ll6
031720r6



B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http:/Ailww.sam.oov.

6. OFFTCE SPACE, SUppLlES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Gontractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement, County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation
of Contractor.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Property of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage lo such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Prod.ucts of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, repofts, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are-the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $'1,000,000 per occurrence for ail employees engJgeC in seryices or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees lnalt be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and the provisions specified in that attachment.

1O- STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as age-nts, officers, or employees of
County. C_ontractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or'incur any obligation oh O-enalt of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contlactor has no authority 6r responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and bounty that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee re'iationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

County ollnyo Standard Contract
(lndependent Contractor - Physicians II)

Page 3 Modified (hntlrrct No I l(r
03t720t6



A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
seryices to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County,

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFTCATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance oi
this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to
defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or
alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss
of use. Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, iiabitity, expense, or
other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, its agents,
employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose alts or
omissions any of them may be liable,

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or iesulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

12. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A, Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the teimination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such recordi.

F lnsoections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
looks' documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial reiords of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such recoids are to be mainta-ined by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenrvise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

- Duling the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employeel oi applicant for
employment, or person receiving seruices under this Agreement, beciuse of race, 

'retigion, 
coloi, nalional

origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex, Contractor and its agents
officers, and employeeg sh{! comply with the provisions of ihe Fair Employment and tousin! Rct
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations primutgateO thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civit nigdis Act of 1964 (p.1. ss-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules ind regulations issuel pursuant to said act.

County ol'luyo Standnrd Contracl
(lndcpcrrdent Contrflctor - Plrysicians ll)

Pagc 4 Modified Contract No. I l6
03t720t6



14. CANGELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thitty (30) days written notice of such inient to cancel, Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or faits to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, ol fai]s in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, C_ounty may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay [o Contractor all amounts-owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-three (23) below,

18. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinanc_es providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessi'ble by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such inforiration and records. Disc]osure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only w1h the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information 

'by 
Contractor without the County's written

consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractoi in all respects.

. Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidenlial and are to be protected from unauthoriied disclosuie in accordancjwith Tile 45,
Code_of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portabitity and Accountabitity Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adofted pur.r"ni
thereto. .For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and olta elements perlaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLICTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

C_ontractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providinj services and work under this Agriement, for any perionat benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two yeari after the terminliion of this

County oflnyo Standard Controct
(lndependent Colltractor. Physicians ll)

Page 5 Modified Contrnct No. I l6
03t720t6



Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information,

21. SEVERABILITY

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION,

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
o-f this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
three (23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractoi or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective pafties as follows:

Countv of lnvo:
Coron'er Department

Address
City and State

325 West Elm Street

Contractor:

Eva S, Wasef, M.D. Name
Address
City and State

5UU Madellne Drive

Ersnop, uA gJc14

F/asaoena, L;A 91 105

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties nol embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived',
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties heret6.

tlil iltt

County oflnyo Stnndard Contract
(lndependent ContrBctor - Physicians II)

Page 6 Modified ConlractNo. I l6
031720t6



a4/21 /2020 8:35Al{ FAX 78087."r.13?

ANO s.
FOR TI{E OF

COUNTY OFINYO:

(. tg

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND !teoAuty:
i\--=aff-.-

AS TO FORM:

REQUIREMENTS:

of Personnel

TO

County Risk

s;County
r.1 10

DAy r+l 
w]tUF t f .Sfl'l'il^$:. t.^t: HAVE sET THE'R HANDs AND sEALs rHr$

BRUNE I'I0RTUARV @000i/0010

COUMTY OF INYO

CONTRACTOR:

SERVICES

OT

Modilicd Con|nct No. I t6
01 I 7201 6

2o

AS

,, Cortnly rrf flyp $rnrrdAnl Contraut
(rnocFndont Cnnlt0cto,, llry.ricirns I)

pugc 7



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND EVA S. WASEf M.D.

FORTHE PROVISION OF

TERM;

FROM a7l0'U2020 06130t2022

SCOPE OF WORK:

Autopsy Services

County oflnyo Strndard Contract
(lndependent Contraotor - Physicians ll)

Page 8

SERVTCES

Modified ContractNo. I 16

03t720t6



AND

ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
Eva S, Wasef, M.D,

FORTHE PROVISION OF Autopsy

TERM

ppgg; 07/01/2020 19. 0613012o22

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

External examination and review of medical records to determine the cause of death.,.,...,....S 600.00

Transcripti 60.00

Processlng

Reimbursement of microscopic tests required to determine the cause of death.,,.,,.,,...,..,.,....,..s 300.00

County oflnyo Standard Contract
(lndependent Contraotor - Physicians II)

Page 9

SERVICES

Modified Contract No. I 16

031720t6



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Eva S. Wasef, M.D,

FOR THE PROVISION OF Aulnncv

TERM:

07t0'U2020 06t3012022

SEE ATTACHED INSUMNCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract
(lndependent Contractor- Physioians ll)

Page l0

ES

Modified Contract No. I l6
03172016



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Kelley Williams
 
SUBJECT:  Request Board approve Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC Amendment No. 2
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Navigating 
Preparedness Associates, LLC of Layfayette, CA extending the term end date from December 31, 2021 to June 
30, 2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On May 1, 2020, Inyo County entered into a contract agreement with Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC 
(NPA), to provide consulting services to update the Inyo County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) and its 
annexes.  
 
When the contract came before your Board for consideration, noted within the Agenda Request 
Summary/Justification language was the comment “Update of the EOP and annexes, and completion of the 
validation workshop, are currently scheduled to be complete by August 31, 2021.  If the COVID-19 Pandemic 
event should cause delay in some of the stakeholder meetings and collaboration efforts, it may become 
necessary to amend the contract by extending the term.”
 
The last 20 months have been very difficult for everyone.  The COVID event continues to challenge the 
Department Heads and their staff, the community, and the nation as a whole.   Departmental staff shortages 
have led to adjustments being made to the EOP annex review timeline, which has resulted in a delayed project 
completion date.
 
The EOP update project manager continues to meet regularly with the contractor to coordinate the base plan and 
annex editing.  As time has allowed, departments have been reviewing and editing their assigned annexes and 
returning them to the project manager upon completion.
 
On August 3, 2021, your Board approved Amendment No. 1 to the NPA contract, extending the term date from 
August 31, 2021 to December 31, 2021.  With the rapid spike of Inyo COVID cases that began in late August, it 
has become apparent that a contract extension is once again necessary to make sure appropriate time remains 
on the NPA contract to ensure CalOES, Departments and the Planning team all have an adequate amount of 
time to thoroughly review the final draft EOP and annexes before it is presented to your Board for adoption.  
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

At this time, no increase in the contract amount is found to be necessary.    
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approving this amendment will cause additional stress on Departments and stakeholders, whom all continue 
to be challenged with COVID related impacts.  Additional time for completion of the EOP Update Project would 
be the appropriate action to take at this time.  As mentioned in the Summary, the COVID event is still evolving 
and the impacts that may occur over the next few months are still unknown.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
The amount of the contract will remain the same.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. NPA Contract Amendment No. 2
2. NPA Contract Amendment No. 1
3. NPA Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams Created/Initiated - 11/15/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/15/2021
Kelley Williams Approved - 11/17/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 11/18/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/18/2021
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 12/9/2021



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No ____ 
Page 1 

 04/30/2020   

  

AMENDMENT NUMBER  _2__   
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
________Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC_____  

FOR _______________Consulting_____________SERVICES 
 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and __Navigating 
Preparedness Associates, LLC_____________(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into 
an Agreement for the Provision of Independent Contractor  Services dated  _May 1, 2020____________ , 
on County of Inyo Standard Contract No._113__, for  the term from  _May 1, 2020________ through 
_August 31, 2021__________. 
 
 WHEREAS,  County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set 
forth below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:  
 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be from _May 1, 2020________ to 
_June 30, 2022__________, unless sooner terminated as provided below.  
 

 
 
 

///  NOTHING FOLLOWS \\\ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is  ________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER  __2__  



Page 2 

04/30/2020

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
______________Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC__________________  

FOR ___________Consulting____________SERVICES  

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
______  DAY OF  _________________________,  __________. 

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 

By: ____________________________________       By: __________________________________ 
    Signature  

Dated:_________________________________ 
      ___________________________________ 

    Type or Print 

Dated: ________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

________________________________________ 
County Counsel  

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:  

_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 

__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  

Lee Rosenberg

11/17/2021



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Superwisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 3'd day of August 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Emergency Seryices

- Navigating
Preparedness
Contract
Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Totheroh and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment
No. 1 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Navigating Preparedness Associates,
LLC of Layfayette, CA, extending the term end date from August 31,2021to December 31,

2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being
obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CA) EmergencyServhes
Other:

DATE: August 9, 2021

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 3,d

Doy of4t4&;!,2_84

LESLIE CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

fd*X u'tA+4^a,"
By:



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: August 3,2021

FROM: Kelley Williams

SUBJEGT: Request Board approve Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC Amendment No. 1

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Navigating
Preparedness Associates, LLC of Layfayette, CA, extending the term end date from Augusl31,2021 to
December 31,2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being
obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

On April 28,2020,1nyo County entered into a contract agreement with Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC
(NPA), to provide consulting services to update the lnyo County Emergency Operations Plan and its annexes.

When the contract came before your Board for consideration, noted within the Agenda Request
Summary/Justification language was the comment "Update of the EOP and annexes, and completion of the
validation workshop, are currently scheduled to be complete by August 31 ,2021. lf the COVID-19 Pandemic
event should cause delay in some of the stakeholder meetings and collaboration efforts, it may become
necessary to amend the contract by extending the term."

The COVID-19 Pandemic event has made the last 16 months extremely difficult for everyone, globally. The
duration of this event (which stillcontinues) has really challenged the Department Heads and their staff, the
community, and the nation as a whole. Departments struggled with reduced staffing; employees found it
necessary to adapt to an out of office work environment that sometimes proved to be awkward and difficult; work
assignments were focused on COVID related response activities while normal day to day work activities and
projects were put on hold until time permitted.

Allof these challenges, and the continuous evolvement of the COVID event status, has led to a delay in the EOP
project timeline and project completion date.

The lnyo County assigned EOP Update Project Manager has been meeting monthly with NPA to finalize the draft
base plan and collaborate on the edit/review of all of the drafted annexes. As time permits, assigned
Departments will continue with their task of reviewing the annexes that detail their specific responsibilities.

Though the contract does not expire until August 31 , 2021, it has become apparent that a contract extension is



Agenda Request
Page 2

necessary to make sure an appropriate timeline is remaining to ensure Departments and stakeholders have an
adequate amount of time to thoroughly review the final draft before it is presented to your Board for finalization

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approving this amendment will cause additional stress on Departments and stakeholders, whom all continue
to be challenged with COVID related impacts. Additionaltime for completion of the EOP Update Project would be
the appropriate action to take at this time. As mentioned in the Summary, the COVID event is still evolving and
the impacts that may occur over the next few months are unknown.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

FINANCING:
The amount of the contract will remain the same.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. NPA - Signed Amendment #1

APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams
Kelley Williams
Darcy Ellis
Kelley Williams
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Sue Dishion
Leslie Chapman

Created/l n itiated - 7 I 1 I 12021

Approved - 711912021
Approved -711912021
Approved -712012021
Approved - 712012021
Approved - 712112021

Approved - 712112021

Final Approval - 7 129 12021



AMENDMENTNUMBER 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Navioatino Preoaredness Associates. LLC

FOR Consultinq SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Naviqatinq
Preparedness Associates. LLC (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into
an Agreement for the Provision of lndependent Contractor Services dated Mav 1.2020
on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 113 , for the term from Mav 1, through
Auoust 31 2021

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set
forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. The term of this Ag reement shall be from Mav 1. 2020 to
December 31 2021 unless sooner terminated as provided below

/// NOTHING FOLLOWS \\

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

AMENDMENTNUMBER 1

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No _
Page 1

04t30t2020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Naviqatlns Preoarednass Associates, LLG

FOR Consultinq SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THISgth DAY OF Auoust 2021

COUNTY OF IN CONTRACTOR

By: By: t.
Signature

Lee Rosenbero
Type or Print

Dated: 7l'1912021

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

APPROVED AS TO RISK NT:

County Risk

Page 2

04t30t2020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
n

FOR Consulfino ERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By: By:
,) ./

:l

Dated
Signature

leeR ro
Type or Print

Dated: 711912021

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

/+-
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

nnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASS MENT:

County Risk

:-4 t

Page 2

04t30/2020



In the Rooms of the Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 28'h day of Lpril 2020 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO-Emergency
Servrces -
NPA LLC Contract

Moved by Supervisor Totheroh and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to declare Navigating
Preparedness Associates, LLC, of Lafayette, CA, the successful respondent to lnyo County
RFP NO. OES-2020-02-01 lnyo County Emergency Operations Plan & Annexes Update; B)
authorize a contract be entered into with Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC in an
amount not to exceed $77,100 for the term of May 1, 2020 through August 31, 2021,
contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to
sign the contract, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried
unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 28th

oay of APRIL, 2020

CLINT G, QUILTER
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors/ .-

/ . I r, \/il a,l v-t l_(F'<J Eri;>=*

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor

CAO: Emergency Seruices
Other
DATE: May 6,2020

By:



*\/ 1l o\r\I

*tt"

County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: April28,2020

FROM: Kelley Williams

SUBJECT: Request Board approve a contract with Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC for consulting
services to update the lnyo County Emergency Operation! Plal and FunctionalAnnexes

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC, of Lafayette, CA, the successful
respondent to lnyo County RFP NO. OES-2020-02-01 lnyo County Emergency Operations plan & Annexes
Update; B) authorize a contract be entered into with Navigating Preparediess Associates, LLC in an amount not
to exceed $77'100 for the term of May 1 , .2020 through nugusist , )021, contingent upon the Board's adoption of
future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to iign tn1 contract, contingeit upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

Qlfebruary 1,2020, the.County of lnyo office of Emergency Services advertised Request For proposal No.
OES-2020-02-01, for contract consulting services to updlte t"he lnyo County ir"ig"n.y Operations plan and
Annexes.

Three (3) proposals were received by the submittal due date of March 6,2020. An evaluation panel consisting ofthe lnyo County Administrative Officer/Director of Emergency Services, ihe lnyo County Sheriff and the lnyo
County Emergency Services Manager, reviewed and raied all three of ine proposals.

The proposal submitted on behalf of Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC (NpA) was determined to be theproposal that could best address and fulfill the needs of lnyo County in the successfuf completion of an approveo
EOP.

NPA's proposaladdressed all of the requirements that were stipulated in the RFp, they had excelent references
and their proposal was also the lowest. As an added option, upon completion of the u[date of the EOp and
Annexes, NPA offered to conduct an EOP validation workshop. Tne validation workshop will require additional
funds, but the total cost of the EOP update and the validation workshop, is still under the estimated preliminary
budget for this project' The validation workshop will be a great opportunity to test and review the new EOp and
the functional annexes.

Update of the EoP and annexes, and completion of the validation workshop, are currenly scheduled to be
complete by August 31 , 2021. lf the COVID-19 Pandemic event should cauie Oetiy in some of the stakeholder
meetings and collaboration.efforts, it may become necessary to amend the contrait by extending the term.
However, the not to exceed amount will not change.



Agenda Request
Page 2

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS

APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams
Darcy Ellis
Kelley Wlliams
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Jeffrey Hollowell
Clint Quilter

Created/lnitiated - 41812020
Approved - 41812020
Approved - 411212020
Approved - 411312020
Approved - 411312020
Approved - 411412020
Final Approval - 41 1 512020

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this consulting contract with Navigating preparedness Associates, LLCto update the County of lnyo's Emergency Operations Plan. This action w6uH iot be in the best interest of the
County. This project has been identified a:.T gpqrgved project within the 2018 Homeland Security Grant
Program' A portion of the non matching 2018 HSGP funds have already been allocated to this project.

lf these allocated 2018 HSGP funds are not used before the end of the grant program performance period of May
2021, these allocated funds will revert back to the State.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Cal OES

FINANCING:
Funding for this contract is included in Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Board Approved Budget. $35,000 is included in
the 2018 Homeland Se.curity gFnt (Budget #623718) Professionat Services (Onjeci cooe +bzos) and gso,ooo is
included in the General Relief (Budget #010205) Professional Services lgbjett iode #5265)

ATTACHMENTS:
1. NPA-Emergency Operations plan Update Contract No. 113



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Navi Preparedness Associates, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF

The term of this Agreement shall be ftom
terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDEMTION

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter refened to asConsulting services
"County") has the need for the

of Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC

Consu cEs

of
Lavfavette. California hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the

mutual promises, corcnants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, those services and work set forth in Attachment A, attached hereto
and by reference incorporated herein.

Senices and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be performed in
a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state, and County laws,
ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not
limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and in Exhibit A-1.

2. TERM

May 1,2020 to August 31,2021

A.
Seventy seven

Compensation. Countv s
lhoGnci-one hundr6d

Contractor for all services and work to be

unless sooner

um total of

The total sum of all payments made by the County to
under this Agreement shall not exceed

no/100********************** cgnts
77 1 00. 00*************************************************** for performance of all of the services and completion of all of

the work described in Attachment A.
B. Tralel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for tralel expenses or per diem which

Contractor incurs in proVding services and work under this Agreement.
C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall not be

entitled to, nor receire, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or other type of
remuneration for seruices rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not be entitled, by virtue of this
Agreement, to consideration in the form of or,ertime, health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement
benefits, sick leate, \acation time, paid holidays, or other paid leales of absence of any type or kind whatsoerer.

D. Limit Upon Amount Payable Under Agreement.

seven thousand one hundred and no/1 00*******************
77 1 00, 00************************************************** (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly

resenes the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which
is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and Payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, upon completion of allservices and work
set forth in Attachment A, an itemized statement of all ser.vices and work performed by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement. This statement will identiff the date on which the services were performed and describe the natureof the

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1

Itlodified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



services and work which was performed on each day. Upon receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth)day of the month,
County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the month.

F. Federal and State Taxes.

(1) Except as proMded in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security fom any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes fom payments made under this Agreement
to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Contractor under
this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth abote, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums
is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or
assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld ftom payments to non-
Califomia residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lntemal Revenue Service and the Califomia State Franchise
Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an lnternal Rerenue Senrice
(lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in Attachment A. lt
is understood by Contractor that the performance of these seruices and work will require a r,aried schedule. Contractor
will anange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by
County under this Agreement will be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal gor,emments
for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by Contractor and be lalid
at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otheruyise may be required. Further, during the term of this
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses,
certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, drileds licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and
business licenses. Such licenses, certifcates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no
expense to the County. Contractor will provide County, upon execution of this Agreement, with eMdence of current and
lalid licenses, ce(ificates and permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where
there is a dispute between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to pedorm
the services identified in Attachment A, County resenes the right to make such determinations for purposes of this
Agreement.

B. Contractor wanants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or loluntarily excluded from participation in corered transactions by any federal department or agency.
Contractor also wanants that it is not suspended or debaned from receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties
Excluded ftom Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration
awilable at: http://www.sam.gov. Contractorfurtherwarrants and agrees to all provisions in Exhibit A-1,112.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC

Contractor shall proVde such offce space, supplies, equipment, rehicles, reference materials, and telephone
service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this Agreement. County is
not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 2
Modified Contract No. 1 13

01t03t2020



such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining such items
is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7 COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Propedv of Countv. Any personal propefty such as, but not limited to, protectile or safety
devices, badges, identifcation cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and
at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusile property of County. Contractor will use reasonable
care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's possession. Contractor will be
financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's
negligence.

B. Products of Contracto/s Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs,
specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer programs, computer
disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-Vsual presentations, exhibits,
reports, studies, works of art, inrentions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which
are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or
work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusire property of the
County. At the termination of the Agreement, Contractor will con\ey possession and title to all such properties to
County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall proVde Statutory California Worke/s Compensation co\erage and Employer's Liability co\erage
for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services oroperations underthis Agreement.
The County of lnyo, its agents, offcers and employees shall be named as additional insured orawairerof subrogation
shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and amount
specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, offcers, and employees, relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall
be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, offcers, oremployees of County. Contractor, byvirtueof
this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of County. Except as expressly prouded in
Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No
agent, offcer, or employee of the County is to be considered an employee of Contractor. lt is understood by both
Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an
employer-employee relationship or a joint r,enture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and services to be
proVded by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in this
Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's controlwith respect
to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, offcers, and employees are, and at all times duringtheterm of this Agreement
shall, represent and conduct themsehes as independent contractors, and not as employees of County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFIGATION.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3
Modified Contract No. 1 13

01t03t2020



Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemni$ County and its offcers, offcials, employees and
rolunteers fom and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without limitation costs and
fees of litigation) of ewry nature arising out of or in connection with Contracto/s performance of work hereunder or its
failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the agreement, except such loss or damages which was
caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the County.

12. RECORDS AI{D AJDIT.

A' Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the larious provisions of this
Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions, including the provisions set forth
in Exhibit A-1, 11 7. Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or
completion of this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B' lnsoections and Audits. Any authorized representatire of County shall hale access to any books,
documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which County determines to
be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, eraluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts
during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor. Further, County has the right, at all reasonable
times, to audit, inspect, or otheruise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this Agreement. Additional
rights of access and audit are agreed to as specified in Exhibit A-1, flil6 and 7.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not unlavyftrlly
discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or Contractor for employment, or
person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical
handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents, offcers, and employees shall
comply with the proVsions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12gOO, et seq.), and the
applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the
Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. S8-352) and all amendments thereto, and all administratire rules and regulations
issued pursuant to said act. Contractor further agrees to comply with all laws, rules and regulations set forth in Exhibit
A-1.

14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giMng to Contractor
thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement without cause, and at
will, for any reason whatsoerer by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel to Cou nty.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, experience,
and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not assign or subcontract
this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County. Further, Contractor shall not assign
any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by County in a
timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by County, County may
declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to Contractor. Upon

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 4
Modified Contract No. 1 13

0110312020



such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to Contractor for services and work
satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waircr of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be wailer of any subsequent
default' Wailer or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a wairer ol'any other or
subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless this
Agreement is modified as proVded in paragraph twentythree (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor further agrees to comply with the rarious provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by Contractor in the
course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential. Contractor
agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such confidential, privileged, or protected
information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written consent of the County. Any disclosure of
confidential information by Contractor without the County's written consent is solely and exclusirely the legal
responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social services
are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Tlfle 45, Code of Federal
Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, and Sections 10850 and
14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. For the purpose of this
Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to beneficiaries shall be protected by the proVder from
unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained from the
County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or
enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the
term of this Agreement, has had an adrerse or confficting interest with the County, or who has been an adlerse party in
litigation with the County, and conceming such, Contractor by Mrtue of this Agreement has gained access to the
County's confi dential, privi leged, protected, or proprietary i nformation.

21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared inr,alid by
a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contrarention of any federal, state, or county statute, ordinance, or
regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereot shall not be inralidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and efiect to the extent that the provisions of this
Agreement are sererable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 5
Modified Contract No. 1 13

0110312020



The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon arailable funding from r,arious sources. ln the elent
that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, ftom one or more sources, County has the option to cancel, reduce,
or modifi7 this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifiTing Contractor of the cancellation,
reduction, or modifcation of awilable funding. Any reduction or modification of this Agreement made pursuant to this
proVsion must comply with the requirements of paragraph twentythree (23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of
the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same formalities as this
Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including change of
address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required, or may desire,
to make, shall be in writing and may be personally sened, or sent by prepaid first class mail to, the respectile parties
as follows:

County of lnyo
Administration Department

Address
City and State

P-O. Drawer N

Name
Address
City and State

lndenendence cA 93526

Contractor:

Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC
3245 Driftwood Drive
Lafayette, CA 94549

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, promises,
or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by reference, shall be of any
force or efiect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, wailed, discharged, or terminated, unless the
same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

##

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 6
lModified Contract No. 1 13

0110312020



AGREEi'ENT BETWEEI{ COUT{TY OF INYO
AND

FOR THE PROVISION OF

IN WITNESS THEREOF, TTIE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SETTIIEIR HANDS AND SEALS TTIIS
DAY 

-,

t

nt Neme

Dated s I 94

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Co

APP

CountyArditor

DAS REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel SeMces

APPROVEDAS TO NC RE ENTS

CONTRACTOR

By

Lee Rosenberq
TlDe or Ptint Name

Datea: 411812020

County R k

s:CountyCounsoyOontracts/Msc/EIrlRi Trainingi.l3

Countyof lnp Strandard Contract- EOP and AnnexUpdab Serr,ices
(lndependont Co ntractor)

Page 7
ttihdifiod Conbact No. 113

01t032020



ATTAGHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO
AND Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF Consulting SERVTCES

TERM:

FROM May 1,2020 August 31,2021

SCOPE OF WORK:

The Scope of Work includes the following, which are all incorporated into this agreement:

o All Contract Documents
o lnyo County Emergency Operations Plan & Annexes Update RFP No. OES-2020-02-01. Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC response to the Request for Proposals

Countyof lnp Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 8
Modified Contract No. 113

01t03t2020



EXHIBIT A.1

1. ProofofAuthority

The Applicant will obtain written authorization from the city council, golerning board, or authorized body in
support of this project. This written authorization must specifiy that the Applicant and the city council, gorerning
board, or authorized body agree:

(a) To proMde all matching tunds required for the grant project and that any cash match will be
appropriated as required;

(b) nny liability arising out of the peformance of this agreement shall be the responsibility of the Applicant
and the city council, gorerning board, or authorized body;

(c) Grant funds shall not be used to supplant expenditures controlled by the city council, goreming board,
or authorized body, and

(d) fne offcial executing this agreement is, in fact, authorized to doso.

This Proof of Authority must be maintained on f le and readily arailable upon request.

2. Period of Peformance

The Applicant will initiate work after approral of the award and complete all work within the period of performance
specified in the grant.

3. Lobbying and Potitical Activities

As required by Section 1352, lltle 31 of the United States Code (U.S.C.), for persons entering into a contract,
grant, loan, or cooperatire agreement ftom an agency or requests or receir,es ftom an agency a commitment
proVding for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the Applicant certifies that:

(a) No federal appropriated funds hare been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an oftcer or employee of an agency, a Member
of Congress, an offcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of
any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperatire agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(b) lf any funds other than federal appropriated funds hare been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an offcer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
offcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperatire agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions.

(c) ne undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents
for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperatire agreements) andthat all subrecipients shall certiff and disclose accordingly.

The Applicant will also comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. SS 1501-1508 and SS 7324-7328)
which limit the politlcal actiVties of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in
part with federalfunds.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 9
Modified Contract No. 1 13

01t03t2020



Finally, the Applicant agrees that federal funds will not be used, directly or indirectly, to support the enactment,
repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation or policy without the express written approlal from the
California Gorernods Offce of Emergency Services (Cal OES) orthe federal awarding agency.

4. Debarment and Suspenslon

As required by Executire Orders 12549 and 12689, and 2 C.F.R. S 200.213 and codified in 2 C.F.R. part 1g0,
Debarment and Suspension, the Applicant will provide protection against waste, faud, and abuse by debaning
or suspending those persons deemed irresponsible in their dealings with the federal gorernment. The Applicant
certifies that it and its principals, subgrantees, recipients or subrecipients:

(a) nre not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or loluntarily
excluded ftom corered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) Hare not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract
under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or
receiVng stolen property;

(c) Are not presently indicted for or othenrvise criminally or civilly charged by a gorernmental entity (federal,
state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (2)(b) of this
ceftification; and

(d) Hare not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transaction
(federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the Applicant is unable to certiff to any of the statements in this certification, he or she shall attach an
explanation to this application.

5. Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Oppoftunity

The Applicant will comply with all federal statutes relating to non-discrimination. These include, but are not limited
to, the following:

(a) titte Vl of the ciMl Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law (P.1.) 88-352 and 42 U.S.C. S 2OOOd et. seq.) which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin and requires that recipients of
federal financial assistance take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited
English proficiency (LEP) to their programs and services;

(b) Titte lX of the Education Amendments of 1972, (20 U.S.C. SS 1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in any federally funded educational program or actiMty;

(c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. S 794), which prohibits discrimination against
those with disabilities or access and functionalneeds;

(d) Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disabitity
and requires buildings and structures be accessible to those with disabilities and access and
tunctional needs (42 U.S.C. gg 12101-12213);

(e) nge Discrimination Act of 1975, (42 U.S.C. SS 6101-6107), which prohibits discriminationonthebasis
ofage;

(f) euOtic Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. SS 290 dd-2), retating to confidentiatity of patient records
regarding substance abuse treatment;

(g) lltle Vlll of the civl Rights Act of 1968 (42 u.s.c. s 3601 et seq.), retating to nondiscrimination in the
sale, rental or financing of housing as implemented by the Department of Housing and Urban

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract- EOP and AnnexUpdate SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 10

Mo d ifi ed 
"" 

t o"it 
|."rrll1



Derelopment at 24 C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the
requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units-i.e., the public and
common use areas and indiVdual apartment units (all units in buildings with elerators and ground-floor
units in buildings without elelators)- be designed and constructed with certain accessible features
(See 24 C.F.R. S 100.201);

(h) Executirc Order 11246, which prohibits federal contractors and federally assisted construction
contractors and subcontractors, who do owr $'10,000 in Gor,ernment business in one year from
discriminating in employment decisions on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identification or national origin;

(i) Executir,e Order 11375, which bans discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identification, or national origin in hiring and employment in both the United States
federal workforce and on the part of gor,emment contractors;

0) California Public Contract Code S 10295.3, which prohibits discrimination based on
domestic partnerships and those in same sex marriages;

(k) DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations, under which all
applicants and recipients must comply with equal treatment policies and requirements contained
in 6 C.F.R. Part 19;

(l) Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for federal
assistance is being made; and

(m) The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the
application.

ln addition to the items listed in (a) through (m), the Applicant will comply with Califomia's Fair Employment
and Housing Act (FEHA). FEHA prohibits harassment and discrimination in employment because of
ancestry, familial status, race, color, religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices), sex
(which includes pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding and medical conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth or
breastfeeding), gendel gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin,
ancestry, mental and physical disability, genetic information, medical condition, age, pregnancy, denial of
medical and family care leare, or pregnancy disability leare (California Goremment Code SS1294O, 12945,
12945.2), military and reteran status, and/or retaliation for protesting illegal discrimination related to one of
these categories, or for reporting patient abuse in tax supported institutions.

6. Drug-Free Workptace

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 19S8 (41 U.S.C. $ 701 et seq.), the Applicant certifies that it will
maintain a drug-free workplace and a drug-free awareness program as outlined in the Act.

7. Environmentat Standards

The Applicant will comply with state and federal environmental standards, which may be prescribed pursuant to
the following, as applicable:

(a) Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (California Public Resources Codegg 21OOO-21177),to
include coordination with the city or county planning agency;

(b) CEOA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, DiVsion 6, Chapter3, SS 15000- 15387);
(c) Federat Clean Water Act (CWA) (33 U.S.C. S 1251 et seq.), which estabtishes the basic structure

for regulating discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality
standards for surface waters;

(d) Federal Clean Air Act of 1955 (42 U.S.C. S 7401) which regulates air emissions fom
stationary and mobile sources;

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1 1

Modified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



(e) lnstitution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA) of 1969 (P.L. 91-190); the Council on EnVronmental Quality Regulations for lmplementing the
Procedural Provisions of NEPA; and Executire Order 12898 which focuses on the environmental and
human health effects of federal actions on minority and low-income populations with the goal of
achieMng enMronmental protection for all communities;

(f) Eraluation of flood hazards infloodplains in accordance with Executire Order 11988;
(g) Executir,e Order 11514 which sets forth national enVronmentalstandards;
(h) Executire Order 11738 instituted to assure that each federal agency empowered to enter into

contracts for the procurement of goods, materials, or services and each federal agency empowered to
extend federal assistance by way of grant, loan, or contract shall undertake such procurement and
assistance actiMties in a mannerthat will result in effectire enforcement of theCleanAirActandthe
FederalWater Pollution ControlAct Executile Order 11990 which requires presenation of wetlands;

(i) The Safe Drinking WaterAct of 1974, (p.L.93-523);

0) fhe Endangered Species Act of 1973, (P.1. 93-205);
(k) Assurance of project consistency with the approled state management program deleloped under the

Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. SS1451 et seq.);
(l) Conformity of Federal Actions to State (Glear Air) lmplementation Plans under Section 176(c) of

the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. SS7401 et seq.);
(m) Wild and Scenic Riwrs Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. S 1271 et seq.) related to protecting

components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rir,ers system.

The Applicant shall not be: 1) in Volation of any order or resolution promulgated by the State Air Resources
Board or an air pollution district; 2) subject to a cease and desist order pursuant to g 13301 of the Califomia
Water Code for Volation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or 3) determined to be in
violation of federal law relating to air or water pollution.

8. Audits

For subrecipients expending $750,000 or more in federal grant funds annually, the Applicant will cause to be
performed the required f nancial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996 and Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements.

9, Access to Records

ln accordance with 2 C.F.R. S 200.336, the Applicant will girc the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of
the United States and, if appropriate, the state, through any authorized representatire, access to and the right
to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award. The Applicant will require any
subrecipients, contractors, successors, transferees and assignees to acknowledge and agree to comply with
this provision.

10. Conflict of lnterest

The Applicant will establish safeguards to prohibit employees ftom using their positions for a purpose that
constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

11. Financiat Management

False Claims for Pavment
The Applicant will comply with 31 U.S.C SS 3729-3733 which sets forth that no subgrantee,
recipient, or subrecipient shall submit a false claim for payment, reimbursement or adrance.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 12

Modified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



12. Reponing - Accountabitity

The Applicant agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA) (P.L. 109-282), specifically (a) the reporting of subawards obligating $25,000 or more
in federal funds and (b) executile compensation data for first-tier subawards. This includes the provisions of
FFATA, which includes requirements for executire compensation, and also requirements implementing the Act
for the non-federal entity at 2 C.F.R. Part 25 Financial Assistance Use of Unirersal ldentifier and Central

Contractor Registration and 2 C.F.R. Parl 170 Reporting Subaward and Executire Compensation lnformation.

13. W hi stl eb I ovve r P rotecti on s

The Applicant also must comply with statutory requirements for whistleblower protections at 10 U.S.C. $ 2409,
41 U.S.C. S 4712, and 10 U.S.C. 5 2324,41 U.S.C. S 4304 and g 4310.

'14. Human Trafficking

The Applicant will comply with the requirements of Section 106(9) of the Traffcking Victims Protection Act of
2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. S 7104) which prohibits grant award recipients or a subrecipient from: (1)
engaging in trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in efiect; (2) procuring a commercial
sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or (3) using forced labor in the performance of the
award or subawards under the award.

15. Labor Standards

The Applicant will comply with the following federal labor standards:
(a) The Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. SS 276a to 276a-7), as applicable, and the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. S

3145 and 18 U.S.C. S 874) and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. SS 327-
333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction contracts or subcontracts, and

(b) The Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C. $ 201 et al.) as they apply to emptoyees of institutes
of higher learning (lHE), hospitals and other non-profit organizations.

16. Wo*ets Compensation

The Applicant must comply with proMsions which require elery employer to be insured to protect workers who
may be injured on the job at all times during the performance of the work of this Agreement, as per the
workers compensation laws set forth in California Labor Code SS 3700 et seq.

17. Property-Related

lf applicable to the type of project funded by this federal award, the Applicant will:
(a) Comply with the requirements of Tltles lland lllof the Uniform RelocationAssistanceand Real Prooerty

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of
persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of federal or federally-assisted programs.
These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of
federal participation in purchase;

(b) Comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood DisasterProtection
Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires subrecipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in
the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is
$10,000 or more;

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 13

lvlodified Contract No. 'l 13
01103t2020



(c) Assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Presenation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. S 470), Executire Order 11593 (identification and
protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preserr,ation Act of 1974 (16
U.S.C. 9469a-1 et seq.); and

(d) Comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prewntion Act (42 U.S.C. S 4831 and 24 CFR Part 35)
which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residencestructures.

18. certifications Applicabte only to Federalty-Funded construction projects

For all construction projects, the Applicant will:
(a) Not dispose of, modifi the use of, or change the terms of the real property title or other interest in

the site and facilities without permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record
the federal awarding agency directiles and will include a corenant in the title of real property acquired
in whole or in part with federal assistance funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of
the project;

(b) Comply with the requirements of the awarding agency with regard to the drafting, reVew and approral of
construction plans and specifications; and

(c) Provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the construction site to
ensure that the complete work conforms with the approred plans and specifications and will furnish
progressire reports and such other information as may be required by the assistance awarding agency
or State.

19. Use of Cetlutar Device White Diving is Prohibited

Applicants are required to comply with California Vehicle Code sections 23123 and 23123.5. These laws
prohibit driving motor rehicle while using an electronic wireless communications device to write, send, or read a
text-based communication. Drirers are also prohibited ftom the use of a wireless telephone without hands -fee
listening and talking, unless to make an emergency call to 91 1, law enforcement, or similar services.

20. California Public Records Act and Freedom of tnformation Act

The Applicant acknowledges that all information submitted in the course of applying for funding under this
program, or provided in the course of an entity's grant management activities that are under Federal control, is
subject to the Freedom of lnformation Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. S 552, and the Catifomia Pubtic Records Act,
California Goremment Code section 6250 et seq. The Applicant should consider these laws and consult its
own State and local laws and regulations regarding the release of information when reporting sensitiw matters in
the grant application, needs assessment, and strategic planning process.

HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM - PROGRAM SPECIFIC ASSURANCES
/ CERTIFICAIIONS

2f . Reporting Accusations and Findings of Discrimination

lf during the past three years the recipient has been accused of discrimination on any basis the recipient must
provide a list of all such proceedings, pending or completed, including outcome and copies of setflement
agreements to the DHS Financial Assistance Offce and the DHS Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties
(CRCL) by e-mail at CROL@hq.dhs.gov or by mail at U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Ofiice for Civil
Rights and Civil Liberties, Building 410, Mait Stop #0190, Washington, D.C.20528.

ln the courts or administratire agencies make a finding of discrimination on grounds of race, color, national
origin (including LEP), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status against the recipient, or the recipients

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 14

Modified Contract No. 1 13
0110312020



settle a case or matter alleging such discrimination, recipients must fonrr,ard a copy of the complaint and
findings to the DHS Financial Assistance Offce and the CRCL by e-mail or mail at the addresses listed abore.

The United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of these obligations.

22. lcknov'tedgment of Federat Funding from DHS

All recipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests
for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with
federal funds.

23. Activities Conducted Abroad

All recipients must ensure that project actiVties canied on outside the United States are coordinated as
necessary with appropriate government authorities and that appropriate licenses, permits, or approrals are
obtained.

24. Best Practices for Cottection and lJse of Personalty tdentifiable Information (Ptt)

DHS def nes personally identifiable information (Pll) as any information that permits the identity of an individual
to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any information that is linked or linkable to that individual. Alt
recipients who collect Pll are required to har,e a publically-awilable priwcy policy that describes standards on
the usage and maintenance of Pll they collect. Recipients may also find the DHS Priracy lmpact Assessments:
Prilacy Guidance and Priwcy template a useful resource respectircly.

25. Copynght

All recipients must affx the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.S.C. SS 401 or 402 and an acknowledgement
of U.S. Goremment sponsorship (including the award number) to any work first produced under federal financial
assistance awards.

26. Duplication of Benefits

Any cost allocable to a particularfederalfinancial assistance award provided for in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E
may not be charged to other federal financial assistance awards to orercome fund deficiencies, to aloid
restrictions imposed by federal statutes, regulations, or federal financial assistance award terms and
conditions, or for other reasons. Howerer, these prohibitions would not preclude recipients from shifting costs
that are allowable under two or more awards in accordance with existing federal statutes, regulations, or the
federal financial assistance award terms and conditions.

27. Energy Policy and Conseruation Act

All recipients must comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. S 6201 which contain policies relatingtoenergy
effciency that are defined in the state energy consenation plan issued in compliance with this Act.

28. Federal Debt Status

All recipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any federal debt. Examples of relelant debt
include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit disallowances, and beneft orerpayments. See OMB Circular
A-129.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 15

Modified Contract No. 1'l 3
01t03t2020



29. ny nmerica Act of 1974

All recipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers: (aircaniers holding certificates under4g
U.S.C. S 41102) for intemational air transportation of people and property to the extent that such service is
arailable, in accordance with the lntemational Air Transportation Fair Competitile Practices Act of 1974 (49
U'S.C. S 40118) and the interpretatirc guidelines issued by the ComptrollerGeneralof the United States in the
March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroller General Decision B-138942.

30. tlotet and Motet Fire Safety Act of 1990

ln accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, all Applicants must ensure that all
conference, meeting, conrention, or training space funded in whole or in part with federal funds complies with
the fire prer,ention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prercntion and Control Act of 1g74, as amended,
15 U.S.C. $2225a.

31. Non-s u ppl anti ng Req u i rem ent

All recipients who receire federal financial assistance awards made under programs that prohibit supplanting
by law must ensure that federal funds do not replace (supplant) funds that hare been budgeted for the same
purpose through non-federal sources.

32. Patents and tntettectual Property Rights

Unless othenrvise provided by law, recipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, Pub. L. No. g6-517, as amended,
and codified in 35 U.S.C. $ 200 et seq. All recipients are subject to the specific requirements golerning the
derclopment, reporting, and disposition of rights to inrentions and patents resulting from financial assistance
awards located at 37 C.F.R. Parl401and the standard patent rights clause located at 37 C.F.R. S 401.14.

33. sarpcou

All recipients who receire federal financial assistance awards made under programs that proVde emergency
communication equipment and its related activities must comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency
Communication Grants, including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable
communications.

34. Tenoist Financing

All recipients must comply with Executire Order 13224 and U.S. law that prohibit transactions with, and the
provisions of resources and support to, individuals and organizations associated with tenorism. Recipients are
legally responsible to ensure compliance with the Order and laws.

35. Repofting of Matters Related to Recipient Integity and performance

lf the total ralue of the recipient's cunently actir,e grants, cooperatire agreements, and procurement contracts
ftom all federal assistance offces exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance
of this federal financial assistance award, you must comply with the requirements set forth in the gorernment-
wide Award Term and Condition for Recipient lntegrity and Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200,
Appendix Xl, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 16

Modified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



36. UsA Patriot Act of 2oo1

All recipients must comply with requirements of the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate
Tools Required to lntercept and Obstruct Tenorism Act (USA PATRIOTAct), which amends 18 U.S.C. SS 175-
175c.

37. Use of DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags

All recipients must obtain permission fom their DHS Financial Assistance Offce, prior to using the DHS
seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, including use of the United
States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard oficials.

IMPORTANT

The purpose of the assurance is to obtain federal and state financial assistance, including any and all federal and
state grants, loans, reimbursement, contracts, etc. The Applicant recognizes and agrees that state financial
assistance will be extended based on the representations made in this assurance. This assurance is binding on the
Applicant, its successors, transferees, assignees, etc. Failure to comply with any of the abore assurances may
result in suspension, termination, or reduction of grant funds.

All appropriate documentation, as outlined abore, must be maintained on file by the Applicant and alailable for Cal
OES or public scrutiny upon request. Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of
payments under the grant or termination of the grant or both and the subrecipient may be ineligible for award of any
future grants if the Cal OES determines that any of the following has occuned: (1) the recipient has made false
certification, or (2) violates the certification by failing to cany out the requirements as noted abor,e.

All of the language contained within this document must be included in the award documents for all subawards at
all tiers. All recipients are bound by the Department of Homeland Security Standard Terms and Conditions 2018,
Version 8.1, hereby incorporated by reference, which can be found at: https://www.dhs.gov/publication/V1S-dhs-
standard- terms-and-conditions.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 17

It4odified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND

FOR THE PROVISION OF
Preoaredness Associafes LLC.

TERM:

May 1 ,2020 ust 31 2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

Countyof ln;o Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 18

FROM

lttlodified Contract No. 1 13
01103t2020



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for professional services
contract for review and update to the lnyo county Emergency operations plan

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees. The minimum scope and limits of insurance coverage shall be at least as broad as
the following:

Commercial General tiability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, pirts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG Z0 gT
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 [non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifliing that
contractor has no employees.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to
subrogation which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of
the payment of any loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement
that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless
of whether or not Inyo County has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from insurer.

Professional Liability [Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the spe.ifi.d
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo county.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by

County of lnyo Custom lnsurance Standards



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for professional services
contract for review and update to the lnyo county Emergency operations plan

Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1' The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2' Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

[5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five [5) years after completion of
contract work.

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and veri$r that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modifii these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

County of lnyo Custom lnsurance Standards



COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

NUMBER:

@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

R

DATE (MM/ODIYYYY}

0411312020
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE
POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE |SSU|NG TNSURER(S),
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: lf the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. lf SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USAA INSURANCE AGENCY INC/PHS
65812846
The Hartford Business Service Center
3600 Wiseman Blvd
San Antonio, TX78251

443-6112
(A/C, No):

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

FAX

E-I\4AIL

ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURED

NAVIGATING PREPAREDNESS ASSOCIATES LLC
3245 DRIFTWOOD DR
LAFAYETTE CA 94549-5629

rNsuRER A : Hartford Casualty lnsurance Company 29424
rNsuRER B: Lloyds, Undenvriters at Lloyds 15792
lNsuRER c : Continental Casualty Co. 20443

INSURER D

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSUMNCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

INSF
ITD TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL

INqF
SUBR POLICY NUMBER POLIGY EFF

IMM/Dnmt
POLICY EXP

LIMITS

B

x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

X OCCUR

X X PSt0616387967 04t11t2020 04111t2021

EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRFMISFS /Fa d..r'rren^a\ $250,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $2,000,000

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY PRO-
JECT

LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000

PRODUCTS . COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000

B

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS
HIRED
AUTOS

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNED
AUTOSX X

X X PSt0616387967 04t11t2020 04t11t2021

COMtsINEIJ SINGLE LIMIT $2,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PT(OPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB
EXCESS LIAB

(JUUUK

CLAllilS-
MADE 652067315 04t01t2020 04t01t2021

EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
K AGGREGATE $1,000,000

RETENTION $

A

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY
PROPRI ETORYPARTN ERYEXECUTIVE

OFFICERYMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
lf yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPFRATIoNS haldw

f N/A X 65 WEC AK3651 0410112020 0410112021

X PER
qTATI ITtr

OTH-
FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LllillT $1,000,000

B Professional Liability
PSl061 6387967 04111t2020 04111t2021

Each Claim
Aggregate

,000,000
$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 1Ol, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Those usual to the lnsured's Operations. Please see Additional Remarks Schedule Acord Form 101 attached.Those usual to the lnsured's
Operations. lnsurer B - Professional Liability - MPLl 4381 8 420 - 0410112020-04101t2021 - Each Ctaim:
$2,000,00O/Aggregate: $2,000,000. Please see Additional Remarks Schedule Acord Form 101 attached.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE wlLL BE DELIVERED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

lnyo County
168 N EDWARDS ST
INDEPENDENCE CA 93526

dtaa.r8 Cazfr-zta-a-:

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016t031



,e.c'fu

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 ol 2

AGENCY

USAA INSURANCE AGENCY INC/PHS
NAMED INSURED

NAVIGATING PREPAREDNESS ASSOCIATES LLC
3245 DRIFTWOOD DR
LAFAYETTE CA 94549-5629

POLICY NUMBER

SEE ACORD 25
CARRIER

SEE ACORD 25
NAIC CODE

EFFEcrlvE DArE: SEE ACORD 25
REMARKS

@ 2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Ail rights reserved.
The AGORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCEFORM NUMBER: ACORD 25 FORM TITLE:

lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the General Liability
policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. Coverage is primary & non-contributory per the
General Liability Coverage. Notice of Cancellation will be provided in accordance with the General Liability Coverage.Blanket
Waiver of Subrogation applies in favor of the Certificate Holder per the General Liability Coverage and Waiver of Our Right to
Recover from Others Endorsement WC040306, attached to this policy.

ACORD 101(2O14rO1l



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Kelley Williams
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed Fiscal Year 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Program 
Application and Resolution No. 2021-53
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board review the proposed Fiscal Year 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) 
Program Application and, if deemed acceptable: A) approve the submittal of the Fiscal Year 2021 EMPG 
Program Application and authorize the County Administrator, as the designated Authorized Agent, to sign the 
grant application, as well as any and all accompanying documents, by approving the "Governing Body Resolution 
No. 2021-53," and B) authorize the Chaiperson to sign the resolution addendum letter.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This application coming before your Board today for consideration is to apply for funding through the Emergency 
Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Program for Fiscal Year 2021.  This is federal Department of 
Homeland Security (DHS) funding administered through the California Governor's Office of Emergency Services 
(CalOES).  Inyo County is eligible to apply for and receive $128,753 in grant funds.

Although the grant is for F/Y 2021, the grant application, assurances and State Supplemental Guidance for the 
grant were not released until November 11, 2021.  

DHS/FEMA annually publishes the National Preparedness Report (NPR) to detail national progress in building, 
sustaining, and delivering core capabilities outlined in the goal of a secure and resilient nation.  This analysis 
provides a national perspective on critical preparedness trends for whole community partners to use to inform 
program priorities, allocate resources, and communicate with stakeholders about issues of concern.

The FY 2021 EMPG provides federal funds to assist local emergency management advance individual and 
jurisdictional preparedness and resilience.

In FY 17/18, the County undertook an extensive statewide recruitment to fill a new Emergency Services Manager 
(ESM) position.  Each year, a portion of the EMPG Program funds are budgeted to support the costs associated 
with the dedicated ESM position.  The ESM position was created to revitalize and further the County's emergency 
services training and response capabilities.  Filling the ESM position has helped fulfill the demands of managing 
the County's emergency services needs, both locally and internally.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

It has been recognized with the increased frequency in which natural disasters have occurred in Inyo County in 
recent years, including response to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic event, the importance and need for the 
County to have a dedicated staff person that can work closely with it's regional CalOES emergency management 
representatives as well as with local partnering agencies.

In addition to the County's emergency response and post-emergency recovery work, the ESM serves as a day-
to-day liaison between the County's Director of Emergency Services and County departments, other Operational 
Areas, CalOES, local partnering agencies, local tribes, local schools, local volunteer groups and community 
members.

The ESM manages the 2020 EMPG-S (Covid Supplemental grant), the 2020 and 2021 EMPG grants, the 2019 
CalOES Public Safety Power Shutoff Resiliency Allocation and the 2020 CalOES Community Power Resiliency 
Allocation grants.  The ESM is also the fiscal manager for the 2019, 2020 and 2021 Homeland Security Grants.

The ESM coordinates emergency management training and exercises for the County's workforce, collaborating 
closely with CalOES and the California Specialized Training Institute (CSTI).  

The ESM is responsible for special projects that include:  project manager for the Inyo County Emergency 
Operations Plan update; coordinating with the California Fire Safe Council Regional representatives to assist 
local communities and tribes with reestablishing their local fire safe councils; coordinates with Southern California 
Edison (SCE) on mitigation and preparedness activities in preparation for Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) 
de-energization events; collaborates with the SCE  Incident Managment Team (IMT) before, during and after all 
PSPS potential de-energization events; sits as a member of the SCE PSPS Advisory Board; sits as a member of 
the SCE PSPS Working Group, coordinates with SCE and the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 
(LADWP) on the review of their dam Emergency Action Plan's and Wldfire Mitigation Plans, prepares 
prevention/preparedness articles and participates in related subject matter community events.

The ESM also researches and, if eligible, applies for grant funding opportunities such as Hazard Mitigation 
Grants, California Fire Safe Council Grants and Cal FIRE grants, all of which are available to the OA to help 
support mitigation and planning efforts.

60% of the annual EMPG grant funds go to support the personnel costs and motorpool expenses associated with 
the ESM position.  The remaining funds will follow the 2021 EMPG California Supplemental guidance which 
suggests subrecipients should fund projects that address areas for improvement as they relate to emergency 
management capabilities, such as logistics distribution and management, evacuation planning, disaster financial 
management, catastrophic disaster housing and resilient communications. 

One of the proposed 2021 EMPG grant projects will address the logistics-distribution management capability and 
align with the state, regional and national priority areas of mass care.  The OA recently purchased a forklift for 
bulk material handling and movement of resources. Due to the OA's vast geographical area of responsibility, the 
forklift may need to be deployed to various locations.  The FY 2021 EMPG Grant will support the purchase of an 
equipment transport trailer that would be used to deploy the forklift to active incident sites, mass care shelters 
and/or points of distribution.

Remaining funds will support emergency preparedness, public education and outreach activities and materials. 
Some funding may also support the costs associated with the development of an evacuation plan.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to apply for the 2021 EMPG Program funding.  However, this is not recommended. 
Demands for County emergency services preparation, response, recovery and training will exceed the capacity 
of current County resources.  As a result, the Countys effectiveness in day-to-day operations as well as 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

emergency preparedness and response, is diminished.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Funding for this grant is provided and administered by the State of California's Office of Emergency Services 
(CalOES).
 
FINANCING:
The 2021 EMPG grant application is for $128,753 and requires a dollar-for-dollar match that has been included in 
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 CAO Recommended Budget - EMPG 21-22 Budget #623821 and the Disaster Services 
Budget #023700. The Performance Period for the 2021 EMPG Grant is July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2023.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. FY 2021 EMPG Governing Body Resolution (GBR) 
2. GBR - Addendum Letter 2021
3. FY 2021 FMFW - FACE Sheet
 
APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams Created/Initiated - 11/15/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/15/2021
Kelley Williams Approved - 11/18/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/9/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/9/2021



Governing Body Resolution 
RESOLUTION 2021- 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE                            Board of Supervisors  
(Governing Body) 

 
OF THE                                County of Inyo THAT 

(Name of Applicant) 
 

 
                                             County Administrative Officer  , OR 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
 

                                           Director of Emergency Services  , OR 
(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 

 
 

 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
 

is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the named applicant, a public entity 
established under the laws of the State of California, any actions necessary for the purpose of 
obtaining federal financial assistance provided by the federal Department of Homeland Security 
and subawarded through the State of California. 
 

2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant 
 
 

Passed and approved this          14th   day of                             December , 20 21  
 

Certification 

I,                 Darcy Ellis , duly appointed and 
(Name) 

 

        Assistant Clerk  of the        Board of Supervisors  
(Title) (Governing Body) 

do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed and approved by 

the         Board of Supervisors of the              County of Inyo on the 
(Governing Body) (Name of Applicant) 

 

                14th   day of                        December , 20 21  
 
 
 Assistant Clerk of the Board 

N  

(Official Position) 

 
 

 

(Signature) 

 

 
 

(Date) 

 



Instruction Sheet for the Governing Body Resolution & Addendum 
to GBR 

 

 
Purpose 

 
The purpose of the Governing Body Resolution (GBR) is to appoint 
individuals to act on behalf of the governing body and the OA. 

 
Note: Self Certifications are not accepted as a valid Governing Body 
Resolution. You cannot self certify that you are an authorized agent. 
Another Board member will need to sign the lower portion of the GBR. 

 

Authorized 
Agent(s) 

The Governing Body Resolution allows for the appointment of individuals 
or positions. For each person or position appointed by the governing 
body, you must submit the following information, with the resolution, 
to Cal OES on the applicant's letterhead: 

 

 Name  Title 
 Jurisdiction  E-Mail Address 
 Street Address (City 

& Zip Code) 
 Phone & Fax Numbers 

 
Authorized 
Agent Changes 

 If the Governing Body Resolution identified Authorized Agents by 
position and/or title, changes can be made by submitting new 
Authorized Agent information to Cal OES, as indicated above. 

 If the Governing Body Resolution identified Authorized Agents by 
name, a new Resolution is needed when any changes are made. The 
information list above must also be submitted with the new 
Resolution. 

 



MEMBERS OF THE BOARD •  DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  RICK PUCCI •  JENNIFER ROESER • MATT KINGSLEY 
LESLIE CHAPMAN • Clerk of the Board  •  DARCY ELLIS  •  Assistant Clerk of the Board 

 
 

             
 
 

 

December 14, 2021 
 
 
 
California Office of Emergency Services 
Emergency Management Grants Unit 
3650 Schriever Avenue 
Mather, CA  95655 
 
 
 
On December 14, 2021, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors resolved that the County Administrative 
Officer/Director of Emergency Services was authorized to execute for and on behalf of the County of Inyo any 
actions necessary for the purpose of obtaining federal financial assistance provided by the Federal 
Department of Homeland Security and subawarded through the State of California. 
 
Inyo County’s Administrative Officer is also the designated Director of Emergency Services.  Ms. Leslie 
Chapman serves in both of these capacities.  Her information is as follows: 
 
Leslie Chapman 
County of Inyo Administrative Officer 
Director of Emergency Services 
224 N. Edwards Street 
P.O. Drawer N (use as mailing address) 
Independence, CA  93526 
lchapman@inyocounty.us 
(760) 878‐0292‐phone 
(760) 878‐0465‐FAX 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jeff Griffiths 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF INYO 

 

P. O. DRAWER  N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526 
 

TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373   
email:  dellis@inyocounty.us 



CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES (Cal OES)

FIPS # 027-00000 VS# Subaward #

1a. DUNS#:

2a. DUNS#:

93526-0613
(City) (Zip+4)

93526-0613
(Zip+4)

July 1, 2021 June 30, 2023
(Start Date) (End Date)

%

Item 
Number

Grant 
Year

Fund 
Source  A. State  B. Federal  C. Total D. Cash Match E. In-Kind Match F. Total Match G. Total  Cost

8. 2021 EMPG $128,753 $128,753 $128,753 $257,506
9. $0 $0

10. $0 $0
11. $0 $0
12. $0 $0

Total Project Cost $0 $128,753 $128,753 $128,753 $0 $128,753 $257,506

Name: Title:

City: Zip Code+4: 93526-0613

Signature: Date:

(Date) (Date)

13. Certification - This Grant Subaward consists of this title page, the application for the grant, which is attached and made a part hereof, and the 
Assurances/Certifications. I hereby certify I am vested with the authority to enter into this Grant Subaward, and have the approval of the City/County Financial 
Officer, City Manager, County Administrator, Governing Board Chair, or other Approving Body. The Subrecipient certifies that all funds received pursuant to this 
agreement will be spent exclusively on the purposes specified in the Grant Subaward. The Subrecipient accepts this Grant Subaward and agrees to administer 
the grant project in accordance with the Grant Subaward as well as all applicable state and federal laws, audit requirements, federal program guidelines, and 
Cal OES policy and program guidance. The Subrecipient further agrees that the allocation of funds may be contingent on the enactment of the State Budget. 

14. CA Public Records Act - Grant applications are subject to the California Public Records Act, Government Code section 6250 et seq. Do not put any 
personally identifiable information or private information on this application. If you believe that any of the information you are putting on this application is 
exempt from the Public Records Act, please attach a statement that indicates what portions of the application and the basis for the exemption. Your statement 
that the information is not subject to the Public Records Act will not guarantee that the information will not be disclosed. 

15. Official Authorized to Sign for Subrecipient:

Leslie Chapman CAO-Director of Emergency Services

Independence

16. Federal Employer ID Number: 95-6005445

Payment Mailing Address: P.O. Drawer N

(FOR Cal OES USE ONLY)
I hereby certify upon my personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for the period and purposes of this expenditure stated above. 

(Cal OES Fiscal Officer) (Cal OES Director or Designee)

7.  Indirect Cost Rate: Federally Approved ICR Federally Approved ICR (if applicable):

4.  Location of Project:
          (City) (County)

6.  Performance 
Period: to

Independence

Independence Inyo

3.  Implementing Agency Address: 

Emergency Management Performance Grant5.  Disaster/Program Title:

168 N. Edwards Street
          (Street)

The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) hereby makes a Grant Subaward of funds to the following:

(Cal OES Use Only)

Cal OES # 

CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES
GRANT SUBAWARD FACE SHEET

1.  Subrecipient: County of Inyo 010706687

2.  Implementing Agency: County of Inyo 010706687

FY 2021 EMPG/EMPG-A FMFW (Macro) v.21 1 of 1 Facesheet



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Information Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  County Administrator - Information Services
 
SUBJECT:  Pitney Bowes Postage Machine Rental and Service Agreement for the Quilter COB
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Pitney Bowes of Pittsburgh, PA a sole-source provider of postage processing 
machines and postage; B) approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Pitney Bowes of Pittsburgh, 
PA for the provision of mail metering rental and service lease agreement in an amount not to exceed $21,861.60 
for the period of 60 months, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) authorize Senior 
Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County is currently under agreement with Pitney Bowes, to meter and stamp more than 120,000 pieces of 
County generated mail annually out of the Independence Information Services office. This machine will be used 
at the Quilter COB in Bishop. This will reduce the cost of sending mail via courier services to Independence for 
postage in addition to providing a more efficient and time-effective way for County Departments located in Bishop 
to send their mail. The rental agreement includes software and maintenance.

Sole source justification is in Section E.3. of the County of Inyo Purchasing Manual: "Sole source procurement, 
defined as an award for commodity or service, which can only be purchased from one supplier, usually because 
of its specific technological requirements, availability or unique patented manufacture." Pitney Bowes is the sole 
provider/vendor for this much-needed service in our area; therefore, we are requesting to enter a new lease 
agreement with Pitney-Bowes in order to offer postage service in Bishop.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to evaluate mail-processing options such as purchasing stamps directly from USPS. 
The alternative is not recommended because it is less efficient, error-prone and more costly than the 
recommendation.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
All county departments are affected.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
The cost of the equipment rental and services is in the requested FY 2021-2022 Information Services budgets 
011801-5281. Funding for subsequent fiscal years will be requested in the Information Services budget for those 
years.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Pitney Bowes Lease Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Scott Armstrong Created/Initiated - 12/2/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/3/2021
Scott Armstrong Approved - 12/3/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/3/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/3/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/3/2021



NASPO ValuePoint FMV Lease Agreement (Option C)
Agreement Number

Your Business Information

County of Inyo – Information Services

Full Legal Name of Lessee / DBA Name of Lessee Tax ID # (FEIN/TIN)

956005445

1360 N Main StSte IDF 137, Bishop, CA, 93514-3013, US

Sold-To: Address

Sold-To: Contact Name

Denelle Carrington

Sold-To: Contact Phone #

(760) 878-0262

Sold-To: Account #

0018470086

Ship-To: Address

1360 N Main StSte IDF 137, Bishop, CA, 93514-3013, US

Ship-To: Contact Name

Rochelle Romo

Ship-To: Contact Phone #

(760) 878-0398

Ship-To: Account #

0018470086

PO #

.

Bill-To: Contact Phone # Bill-To: Account #

PO Box 477, Independence, CA, 93526-0477, US

0018470042

Bill-To: Contact Name

Rochelle Romo

Bill-To: Address

(760) 878-0398

Bill-To: Email

rromo@inyocounty.us

Your Business Needs

Qty Business Solution DescriptionItem

1 SENDPROPSERIES
SendPro P Series

1 1FWW
     10lb Interfaced Weighing Feature

1 4W00
     Connect+ /SendPro P Series Meter

1 APA2
     100 Dept Analytics

APAS
     Sendpro P2000/500W GCS Identifier

1 APKE
     SendPro P Receiving Feature

1 APKF
     SendPro P Shipping Feature Access

1 AZBE
     SendPro P Series Mono Print Module

1 AZBG
     Black Graphics Upgrade

1 AZCG
     SendPro P2000 Basic (145/70LPM)

1 CAAB1
     Basic Cost Accounting for PSeries

1 M9SS
     Mailstream IntelliLink Services 2

1 ME1C
     Meter Equipment - P Series, LV

1 MSD1
     10in Color Touch Display

See Pitney Bowes Terms for additional terms and conditions

Page 1 of 3 Y102361445US174883.4 9/17

©2017 Pitney Bowes Inc. All rights reserved.

Pitney Bowes Confidential Information



1 MW90007
     SendPro P Series Drop Stacker

1 MW96000
     Weighing Platform

1 MW97182
     Wireless LAN Adapter

1 NV10
     InView TMR Web Acct Bundle Single only

1 NV90
     InView Subscription

1 NV90KIT
     InView Welcome Kit

1 NV99
     InView MMS Base Software

1 NV99KIT
     InView Welcome Kit

1 NVMA
     InView Dashboard - Single Meter

1 PTJ1
     SendPro Online

1 PTJN
     Single User Access

1 PTJR
     50 User Access with Hardware or Meter

1 PTK1
     Web Browser Integration

1 PTK3
     SendPro P Series Meter Integration

1 SJM5
     SoftGuard for Sendpro P2000 Basic/500W

1 STDSLA
     Standard SLA-Equipment Service Agreement (for SendPro P Series)

1 SYAB21
     Analytics - 2 Products

1 T6CS
     Receiving - Standard

Your Payment Plan

Initial Term:

Number of Months Monthly Amount Billed Quarterly at*

Initial Payment Amount:60 months

$ 364.3660 $ 1,093.08

*Does not include any applicable sales, use, or property taxes which will be billed separately.

Tax Exempt Certificate Attached
Tax Exempt Certificate Not Required

(  )

(  )

(  )  Purchase Power® transaction fees extra

(X)  Purchase Power® transaction fees included

See Pitney Bowes Terms for additional terms and conditions

Page 2 of 3 Y102361445US174883.4 9/17

©2017 Pitney Bowes Inc. All rights reserved.

Pitney Bowes Confidential Information



Title

Your Signature Below

Lessee Signature

Date

Title

Date

Print Name

Email Address

Print Name

Pitney Bowes Signature

[[SertifiSStamp_1]]

NASPO VALUEPOINT ADSPO16-169897; 7-17-70-41-03
State/Entity's Contract#

By signing below, you agree to be bound by your State’s/Entity’s/Cooperative’s contract, which is available at http://www.pb.com/states and is incorporated by reference. The terms and
conditions of this contract will govern this transaction and be binding on us after we have completed our credit and documentation approval process and have signed below.

Account Rep Name Email Address

Sales Information

Charlene Hunt charlene.hunt@pb.com

PBGFS Acceptance

See Pitney Bowes Terms for additional terms and conditions

Page 3 of 3 Y102361445US174883.4 9/17

©2017 Pitney Bowes Inc. All rights reserved.

Pitney Bowes Confidential Information

http://www.pb.com/states


County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  County Counsel
 
SUBJECT:  Findings pursuant to AB 361 Authorizing Remote Board of Supervisors Meeting
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 that: A) the Board reconsidered the circumstances of the 
existing State of Emergency issued on March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and B) local 
officials continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing, and/or the state of emergency continues 
to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic. That Proclamation remains in effect. Subsequently, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued 
Executive Order N-29-20, which modified the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law, 
Government Code section 54950 et seq. (the “Brown Act”), in order to allow legislative bodies to meet from 
remote locations without opening those locations to the public or complying with certain agenda requirements. 
Those modifications remained in effect through September 30, 2021.

In anticipation of the expiration of the applicable provisions of Executive Order N-29-20, the California legislature 
adopted, and Governor Newsom signed, AB 361. AB 361 amended the Brown Act to allow local legislative 
bodies to continue to meet under the modified teleconferencing rules until January 1, 2024, if the meeting occurs 
during a proclaimed state of emergency and the legislative body finds that it has reconsidered the circumstances 
of the state of emergency and either: measures to promote social distancing have been imposed or 
recommended by local health officials; and/or the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of 
the members to meet safely in person.

The Inyo County Health Officer currently recommends that measures be implemented to promote social 
distancing, including the holding of virtual meetings. A copy of the memo memorializing that recommendation is 
included in your agenda materials. Adopting the recommended action  would therefore make the required 
findings that the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the emergency and that local health officials have 
recommended measures to promote social distancing or the state of emergency continues to directly impact the 
ability of the members to meet safely in person. If the Board adopts the proposed findings, then it may continue 
to meet under the modified Brown Act teleconference rules of AB 361 through December 1, 2021.  In order to 
continue to meet under those modified rules after December 1, the Board will again need to reconsider the 
circumstances of the state of emergency and again make at least one of the additional findings required by AB 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

361.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
If your Board chooses to not make the required findings, the Board must meet in person as required by the 
Brown Act, and any Board Member participating via teleconference must make their location open and available 
to the public during the meeting. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. AB 361 Public Meeting Recommendations from Public Health Officer
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/7/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/7/2021
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 12/7/2021



Strengthening Resilience & Well-Being in Our Community 

Date: September 23, 2021 

To: Inyo County Local Agency Governing Bodies 

From: Dr. James Richardson, Inyo County Public Health Officer 

Re: Continued Recommendation Re Social Distancing and Remote Meetings 

In order to help minimize the spread of COVID-19, I recommend that physical/social distancing measures continue to be 
practiced throughout our Inyo County communities, including at public meetings of the Board of Supervisors and other 
public agencies.   Individuals continue to contract COVID-19 and spread the infection throughout our communities. Social 
distancing, masking, and vaccination are crucial mitigation measures to prevent the disease’s spread. Remote public agency 
meetings allow for the participation of the community, agency staff, presenters, and board members in a safe environment, 
with no risk of contagion. As such, and since this disease negatively and directly impacts the ability of public agencies to 
conduct public meetings safely in person, it is my recommendation that local public agencies conduct their public meetings 
remotely. 

This recommendation will remain in place until further notice. 

Dr. James A. Richardson 
Inyo County Health Officer 

County of Inyo 

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Public Health, Suite 203-C 

1360 N. Main Street, Bishop CA 93514 
TEL: (760) 873-7868 FAX: (760) 873-7800 

Marilyn Mann, Director 
mmann@inyocounty.us  



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Ashley Helms
 
SUBJECT:  Use License Agreement with United Airlines for the Bishop Airport
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the Use License Agreement between the County of Inyo and United Airlines for a non-
exclusive, nontransferable, fully revocable license for use of a portion of the Bishop Airport property, located at 
703 Airport Road, Bishop, CA, for the period of December 19, 2021 to December 3, 2024, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This Use License Agreement with United Airlines gives United authorization to carry out commercial passenger 
air service at the Bishop Airport.  The agreement defines the fees to be paid for each commercial operation as 
well as the portions of the Airport available for exclusive and non-exclusive use by United.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this agreement.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
Revenue from the agreement will be deposited into Budget 150100 (Bishop Airport Operating).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. AIRPORT USE LICENSE AGREEMENT
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 12/9/2021
Ashley Helms Approved - 12/9/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/9/2021



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Ashley Helms Approved - 12/9/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/9/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/9/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 12/9/2021



GATE / WAITING

MENS

WOMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exhibit A: Premise Diagram

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Use Lease Agreement - Bishop Airport

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Exclusive Use

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Non-Exclusive Use

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Manager's Office



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Justine Kokx
 
SUBJECT:  Correction to Amendment No. 2 of the contract with LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize a correction to Amendment No. 2 to the contract with LSC Transportation Consultants, 
Inc., of Tahoe City, CA, increasing the contract's not-to-exceed amount from $159,742 to $178,887, contingent 
upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This is being brought to your Board to correct the not to exceed amount from $159,742 to $178,887. On 
November 16th 2021, Amendment No. 2 to the contract with LSC was approved by your Board to complete the 
2nd (2023) Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) for $45,097, and to develop a Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) for 
$69,510. The not-to-exceed amount of the contract was incorrectly calculated at $159,742, which did not take 
into account the amount of $19,145 from Amendment No. 1 for the Active Transportation Plan (ATP) grant 
proposal. There are no other changes.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
This change simply corrects the not-to-exceed amount of the LSC contract via subsequent amendments from 
$159,742 to $178,887. On April 10, 2018, your Board approved a five-year contract with LSC to complete the 
2019 RTP and the 2023 update to the RTP with a not-to-exceed amount of $45,135. Your Board next approved 
Amendment No. 1 in the amount of $19,145 on June 26th, 2018 to prepare the 2019 ATP grant proposal. On 
November 16, 2021, your Board authorized Amendment No. 2 to update the 2023 RTP, and to develop a LRSP 
in the amount of $114,607.  
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the correction to the clerical error in Amendment No. 2 of the contract 
with LSC. This is not recommended, as LSC has worked extensively with Inyo County Public Works over the 
years, and has successfully produced state and federally required documents, as well as a grant proposal.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
RTP and LRSP will require coordination with Caltrans District 9, City of Bishop, 5 Tribal Governments in Inyo 
County, Los Angeles Dept. of Water and Power, Local and State law enforcement agencies, and Federal land 
agencies.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Inyo County Counsel
Inyo County Auditor
Inyo County Risk Manager
 
FINANCING:
The funding for this contract will be provided through the Transportation and Planning Trust Budget 504605, 
Professional Services object code 5265. The funds are included in the FY 2021-2022 Board Approved budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. LSC Transportation Consultants Contract Amendment 2 (Corrected)
2. LSC Transportation Consultants Contract
3. LSC Transportation Consultants Contract Amendment 1
 
APPROVALS:
Justine Kokx Created/Initiated - 11/22/2021
John Pinckney Approved - 11/23/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 11/23/2021
Justine Kokx Approved - 11/23/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/23/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 11/23/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/3/2021
Aaron Holmberg Final Approval - 12/3/2021



AMENDMENT NUMBER    2    TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

   LSC TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS, INC.  
FOR THE PROVISION OF TRANSPORTATION PLANNING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and     LSC Transportation Consultants, 
Inc. of     Tahoe City, CA      (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of 
engineering services dated    April 10, 2018    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the term from    April 10, 
2018    to    April 30, 2023.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by 
the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same 
formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below.
 

1. Section 2, TERM, the first sentence is revised as follows:

The term of this Agreement shall be from April 10, 2018 to December 31, 2023 unless sooner terminated as 
provided below.  

2. Section 3, D, Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County to 
Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed $178,887.00 (initial term) $ N/A   
(option 1) and $ N/A   (option 2) for a total of $ N/A   Dollars (hereinafter referred to as “contract limit”).

3. Attachment A to the Contract shall be revised to include additional tasks required for the completion of the 2023 
Regional Transportation Plan and the development of the Local Road Safety Plan, as described in Attachment A-1 to the 
Contract. 

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is November 16,  2021 .

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.



AMENDMENT NUMBER    2    TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

LSC TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS, INC.  
FOR THE PROVISION OF TRANSPORTATION PLANNING SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
            DAY OF                                 , 2021.

COUNTY OF INYO CONSULTANT

By: By: 

Dated: Dated: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
     LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING
     FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
     REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager



ATTACHMENT A1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
LSC TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS, INC.  

FOR THE PROVISION OF TRANSPORTATION PLANNING SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: ___ April 10, 2018___ TO: ___ December 31, 2023___

SCOPE OF WORK:

The scope of work described in the original Contract, dated April 10, 2018, is revised to include additional tasks required for 
the completion of the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan and the development of a Local Road Safety Plan.  

See Regional Transportation Plan and  Local Road Safety  Plan Work proposals from LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.



2690 Lake Forest Road, Suite C
P.O. Box 5875 

Tahoe City, CA 96145
530-583-4053 ▴ FAX: 530-583-5966

info@lsctahoe.com ▴ www.lsctrans.com

October 27, 2021

John Pickney
Inyo County Local Transportation Commission
P.O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526

SUBJECT: Inyo 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update Work Scope and Cost Estimate 

Dear Mr. Pickney:

Below is a proposed Work Scope and Cost Estimate for the 2023 Update of the Inyo County Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP) as per the April 2018 agreement with Inyo County. The Work Scope is similar to the one followed in 2018 and 
assumes a simple update of the RTP with no significant changes to the Policy Element and Action Element. The Work 
Scope also assumes that a Negative Declaration will be required as the environmental document. LSC will be happy to 
work with you to ensure that the RTP update work scope reflects the goals of Inyo County.

WORK SCOPE

As the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) for the region, California law requires the Inyo County Local 
Transportation Commission (ICLTC) to adopt and submit an updated RTP to the California Transportation Commission 
(CTC) and to the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) every four years. The main objective of a Regional 
Transportation Plan update is to develop a long-term plan for transportation facilities in Inyo County that is fiscally 
constrained, sustainable, and consistent with the goals and assumptions set forth in adopted and in-progress plans in the 
region. LSC will work closely with ICLTC, the public, and other stakeholders to address these issues by determining Inyo 
County’s regional transportation needs and updating capital improvement project lists to address those needs. The RTP 
update will be conducted in conformance with the latest federal and state guidance.

TASK 1: Kick-off Meeting

Kick-off Meeting

As part of Task 1, the LSC Team will hold a “kick-off” meeting via Zoom with ICLTC staff, county representatives, City of 
Bishop staff, tribal representatives, and the Caltrans District 9 representative to refine the focus and schedule of the 
project, gather data, discuss relevant changes in existing conditions, review regional goals and policies, and discuss data 
forecasts and plan assumptions.

mailto:info@lsctahoe.com
http://www.lsctrans.com/


Inyo County Local Transportation Commission Page 2 October 27, 2021

TASK 2: Existing and Future Conditions Analysis

Existing Conditions

The first step in the RTP process will be to conduct an analysis of existing conditions. As this is an update to previous RTPs 
and as Inyo County has not grown significantly in population, it is anticipated that changes to existing conditions will be 
minimal. Data such as population and traffic volumes will be updated with the most current information available. This 
section will also include a list of transportation capital improvement projects completed since the last RTP adoption.
Recent plans and studies which have been updated since 2019, such as the Short Range Transit Plan for the Eastern Sierra 
Transit Authority (ESTA), will also be reviewed. Lastly, the Study Team will review applicable planning documents 
identified in the 2017 guidelines with which the RTP should be consistent such as Local Public Health Plans.

Future Conditions Analysis

As part of this task, the Study Team will project demographic and economic conditions over the 20-year planning period 
as a basis for the transportation needs assessment. This will include a review of local and state demographic forecasts. 
LSC will also prepare forecasts of traffic volumes and level of service, based on the following:

 Traffic trends over the last 10 and 20 years per Caltrans and Inyo County data
 Transportation Concept Reports

The existing and future conditions analysis will be combined with input from the public/stakeholder outreach (Task 3) 
effort to update the regional transportation needs and issues assessment for each transportation mode.

TASK 3: Public Participation/Stakeholder Consultation Process

Per the 2017 RTP Guidelines, a strong consultation and coordination process is a key element in the development of an 
effective RTP. The public participation process will comply with previously adopted ICLTC Public Involvement Procedures. 
We will make documented outreach efforts to the following:

On-line Questionnaire

In rural counties such as Inyo County, public workshops often garner minimal input. It is likely that more input can be 
attained by directly contacting agencies and groups with interest in regional transportation. For this reason, the RTP 
consultation and coordination process will be an important part of public input. The Study Team will develop a short 
questionnaire which can be made available on-line and in hard copy format. The questionnaire will ask respondents about 
their opinion on how to prioritize transportation needs in general categories (maintenance, new roadways, public transit, 
bicycle facilities, etc.), as well as ask for specific input. Respondents will also be asked to rank performance measures used 
to prioritize transportation capital improvement projects (safety, mobility, productivity, etc.).

Availability of the questionnaire will be noticed in Inyo Register. The following groups will be directly contacted and 
provided a link to the on-line questionnaire as well as a PDF file to be distributed in hard copy format:

 Tribal Governments (Bishop Paiute Tribe, Big Pine Paiute, Fort Independence, Lone Pine Paiute, Timbisha 
Shoshone)

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission Page 3 October 27, 2021

 County and City Health and Human Services Departments



 Inyo County Office of Education
 Bicycle advocacy groups
 ESTA
 Private Shuttle Services
 Eastern Sierra Area Agency for the Aging
 Inyo Mono Association for the Handicapped
 Adventure Trails of the Eastern Sierra
 Private companies generating truck traffic (freight shippers)
 ICLTC Social Services Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC)
 Chamber of Commerce
 Los Angeles Department of Water and Power

If it is deemed by the Study Team and ICLTC that insufficient input was received, LSC will work with county staff to 
advertise the questionnaire to a larger audience and extend the availability of the questionnaire.

Consultation

Per the 2017 RTP Guidelines, the Study Team will consult with the following agencies in the development of the RTP.

 After consulting the Caltrans Native American Liaison Branch, we will contact Tribal Governments that have 
sacred lands in Inyo County to request input on the RTP process. The Study Team will request and review any 
transportation related tribal plans and projects. LSC will continue to keep the tribal governments informed about 
various meetings and document availability throughout the RTP process.

 We will contact all adjacent county RTPAs to make them aware of the RTP update and request their input.

 We will consult with environmental resource agencies such as the US Forest Service, Bureau of Land 
Management, Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, Death Valley National Park, Lahonton Water Quality 
Control Board and California Department of Fish and Game. Regional Transportation Plans and projects will be 
compared with adopted resource agency plans, maps and other data. The Great Basin Unified Air Pollution 
Control District will also be included in the planning process and the RTP will be consistent with transportation 
conformity measures set forth in applicable State Implementation Plans.

Notification

Draft documents and public notices for input will be made available for posting on the ICLTC website. 

Public Hearing

After completion of the Draft RTP and Negative Declaration, LSC will present the RTP at a regularly scheduled ICLTC 
meeting during a public hearing process. We will directly notify all stakeholders and persons who have expressed interest 
in the project of the public hearing.

All public participation/stakeholder input will be summarized in the RTP, and copies of correspondence will be included as 
an appendix.

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission Page 4 October 27, 2021

TASK 4: Policy Element



The Policy Element describes the transportation issues in the region, identifies and quantifies regional needs expressed 
within both a short- and long-range framework, and maintains internal consistency with the financial element fund 
estimates. As this document is an update to the 2019 RTP and there has not been significant changes in the county over 
the intervening years, it is not anticipated that the policy element will not change significantly.

TASK 5: Action Element

The Action Element identifies plans to address the needs and issues for each transportation mode (roadways, goods 
movement, transit and non-motorized transportation), in accordance with the goals, objectives, and policies set forth in 
the policy element. The future conditions analysis and public/stakeholder input will be considered to develop prioritized 
short-term and long-term projects and programs consistent with the identified needs and policies. Top priority projects 
along with cost estimates, implementing agency, and performance measures will be displayed in tables in Microsoft Excel 
for easy reference and use by decision-makers. The action element also includes a discussion of the following required 
RTP elements:

 Transportation safety & security
 Preservation of existing and future infrastructure
 Compatibility with transportation and land use
 Potential environmental mitigation areas and activities
 Performance measures and evaluation criteria for prioritizing improvement projects based on the latest 

federal guidance
 Coordination with other planning processes such as the Interregional Transportation Strategic Plan (ITSP) and 

Transportation Concept Reports (TCRs).

Although as a rural county Inyo County is not required to develop Sustainable Community Strategies, a qualitative analysis 
of the potential impacts of RTP projects on greenhouse gas emissions will be conducted, a discussion as to how RTP 
projects and policies can help attain statewide GHG goals will be included and potential strategies to address climate 
change issues will be outlined. This analysis will enhance the quality of information available to decision makers and assist 
with future policymaking.

TASK 6: Financial Element

The Financial Element identifies the current and anticipated revenue sources and financing techniques available to fund 
the planned transportation investments described in the action element. The intent is to define realistic inflation adjusted 
financing constraints and opportunities. The focus of the financial element will be to work closely with ICLTC to develop 
conservative and realistic estimates of all transportation funding sources to formulate a 10-year fiscally constrained 
project list. A 20 year financially unconstrained projects will also be listed.



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission Page 5 October 27, 2021

TASK 7: Draft RTP and Environmental Documentation

All elements described above will be compiled into an Administrative Draft Plan for review and comment by ICLTC staff. Electronic files in both Microsoft 
Word and Adobe PDF format will be delivered. Hard copies will be available upon request.

 Deliverable: Administrative Draft RTP

Next, LSC will incorporate all comments to prepare the Public Draft RTP. This document will include and Executive Summary and the California Transportation 
Commission (CTC) RTP checklist. Electronic files in both Microsoft Word and Adobe PDF format will be provided to ICLTC staff for review and distribution. Hard 
copies will be available upon request. The Public Draft RTP will be made available for posting on ICLTC’s website. As indicated in Task 3, the Public Draft RTP 
will be presented at a regularly scheduled ICLTC meeting as a public hearing.

 Deliverable: Public Draft RTP CEQA Documentation

It is the understanding of LSC that, given the very limited scope of new capacity increasing projects to be included in the RTP as well as the programmatic 
nature of the document, adoption of the 2023 RTP will not require an Environmental Impact Report (EIR). As part of this task, LSC will complete the CEQA 
Initial Study checklist to confirm that the RTP will not result in any significant environmental impacts. LSC will then prepare a Negative Declaration, while the 
ICLTC will be responsible for publicly noticing the Negative Declaration. If it were determined after the initial study process that an EIR is necessary, 
preparation of this document would be outside the scope of this proposal. The Negative Declaration report will include the following:

 Project description
 Project location
 Identification of project proponent
 Proposed finding of less than significant impact
 Attached copy of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Initial Study Checklist justifying the finding.

A minimum public review period of 30 days is required for a Negative Declaration unless the State Clearinghouse grants a “shortened review period” of 20 
days and approved by Caltrans staff. LSC will mail 15 copies of the Negative Declaration directly to the State Clearinghouse for environmental review, while 
another five copies and an electronic file will be sent to ICLTC. Additionally, we will make the Initial Study/Proposed Negative Declaration available for posting 
on ICLTC’s website the duration of the public review period.

 Deliverable: Negative Declaration

LSC will present the Draft RTP and the Draft Negative Declaration to the ICLTC at a regularly scheduled meeting as part of a public hearing.



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission Page 6 October 27, 2021

TASK 8: Prepare Final RTP and Negative Declaration

A Final RTP and Negative Declaration will be prepared incorporating public and Caltrans comments. Thirteen copies of each document will be provided, 
along with all electronic files on USB key in both native formats and Adobe PDF. We expect that this document can be adopted by the ICLTC without the 
need for a presentation by LSC. Within five days of adoption of the RTP, LSC will assist the ICLTC with filing a Notice of Determination for approval with the 
State Clearinghouse and arrange for posting by the County Clerk.

 Deliverable: Final RTP

SCHEDULE

A proposed schedule for the RTP update is displayed in Table 1.

COST ESTIMATE

Estimated costs for the RTP update are displayed in Table 2. LSC proposes a total project cost of $45,097. This includes one-site visit, presumably for the 
presentation of the Draft Plan at an ICLTC meeting.

LSC is happy to work with ICLTC to revise the work scope and cost estimate to meet the needs of the commission.

▴ ▴ ▴

Respectfully submitted,
LSC TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS, INC.

Genevieve Evans, AICP
LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Enclosure: Tables 1 and 2





Work Scope

Inyo County Local Roadway Safety Plan Study

Work Tasks

Task 1 – Study Management and Stakeholder Group

As part of this task LSC will manage the progress of the LRSP and provide billing and coordination 
documents to the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission (ICLTC).

We will develop a stakeholder group comprised of representatives of key groups concerned with 
highway/roadway safety in Inyo County. Invitations will be made to each of the following:

 Caltrans District 9
 Inyo County Public Works
 Inyo County Sheriff’s Department
 California Highway Patrol
 City of Bishop Public Works
 City of Bishop Fire Department
 US Forest Service
 US Bureau of Land Management
 Death Valley National Park
 Bishop Paiute Tribe
 Los Angeles Department of Water and Power

This stakeholder group will help to provide input and data resources, will review interim and final study 
products, and will provide input with regards to safety strategies. It will meet a minimum of three times 
over the course of the study (either in person or virtually, as conditions permit). LSC will prepare 
agendas, conduct the meetings and provide minutes of the meetings.

Task 2 – Data Collection

LSC will collect available crash data for the last 10 available years, including SWITRS and TIMS data (at 
the collision level). In addition, we will contact the Inyo County Sheriff’s Department, Bishop Police 
Department and California Highway Patrol to identify any available documented crash information not 
included in the statewide databases. This available data will be reviewed and, if found to be of sufficient 
quality, included in the analysis.

1



LSC will collect available daily traffic volume data for public roads throughout Inyo County, including 
data from Caltrans, Inyo County, City of Bishop, US Forest Service, National Park Service, US Bureau of 
Land Management and the Bishop Rancheria.

LSC will contact law enforcement agencies (City, County, CHP, USFS, BIA and the Bishop Indian 
Rancheria) to discuss traffic safety issues and the availability of data.

Task 3 – Data Analysis

Once the crash database has been developed and reviewed, LSC will conduct the following data analysis 
tasks:

 Locations of crashes will be mapped for the most recent 10‐year period. This will include 
separate maps for fatalities, for crashes involving bicyclists and for crashes involving 
pedestrians. In addition to countywide maps, maps focusing on the City of Bishop will be 
prepared. Other focus‐area maps will be prepared as necessary to define specific issues.

 Traffic count data will be summarized and analyzed to identify the average daily traffic and 10‐ 
year total vehicle‐movements (for intersections) or vehicle‐miles of travel (for roadway 
segments). This will be used to analyze

 The crash data inventory will be analyzed to summarize crashes by severity, by type, and by 
contributing factor.

 Crash rates will be calculated by roadway segment and intersection (as traffic count data 
allows), for those intersections and roadway segments with two or more recorded crashes over 
a 10‐year period.

 The type of crash and injury severity will be assessed to identify those that are correctable 
through changes in the roadway design, as well as those that are related to excess speed or 
other factors.

We will identify crash patterns, crash trends, and primary contributing factors that most commonly 
recur in the crash data. These findings will be summarized using charts and graphs. In addition, as a basis 
for future Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funding, LSC will use the database established in 
Task 2 to identify trends, location characteristics, and contributing factors for the pertinent California 
Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) Challenge Areas. This work will be multimodal, documenting 
collisions and trends by mode as well as for the incorporated and unincorporated areas. We will conduct 
this work by considering descriptive statistics of the crash data as well as analyzing the crash data 
spatially. While LRSP guidelines require only a minimum of a 5‐year data analysis, we will use the 10‐ 
years of crash data to identify the broader trends in crashes and roadway safety.

We will identify high priority locations to provide clarity on what locations have the greatest opportunity 
for safety improvements, based upon the costs associated with the crash history. These locations will be

2



identified by mode (vehicle, pedestrian, bicyclist). A series of maps will identify these high priority 
locations.

We will document the work conducted in Tasks 2 and 3 in a memorandum. The memorandum will 
present the data analysis findings from the descriptive analysis, comparative analysis, and the spatial 
analysis. We will use visuals and graphics to support the text regarding the data analysis findings. The 
memorandum will also present the high‐priority locations and risk factors associated with crashes. The 
content of the memorandum will serve as the basis from which the team will generate workshop 
materials for discussion with the Stakeholder Group in Task 4.

Task 4: Public Input and Workshops -- Establish Goals, Priorities and Potential 
Countermeasures

We propose to conduct a series of two workshops with the Stakeholder Group. We expect that these 
can be conducted virtually. Materials will be distributed in advance, and we will conduct the workshop 
so that all participants have a chance to fully engage. Each workshop would be up to two hours in 
duration.

The two workshops would be organized as follows:

Workshop #1 – Goals, Priorities and Data Review

The first workshop will review in greater detail the data analysis findings from Task 3 and will spur the 
Stakeholders Group’s input regarding safety concerns. LSC will facilitate a discussion of goals and 
priorities for the LRSP. We will develop the proposed goals and priorities for discussion with the 
Stakeholder Group (based on the data analysis) and then update those based on the input received. We 
will also lead a discussion of the priorities regarding the locations of focus and the emphasis areas of 
types of crashes and conditions to address.

Workshop #2 – Countermeasures Workshop

This workshop will focus on discussing the draft engineering countermeasures to address the priority 
locations, as well as comprehensive programmatic countermeasures. The pros and cons of various 
approaches will be discussed, and the input received from the Stakeholder Group will be used to refine 
the individual countermeasures as well as their prioritization.

As an outcome of each of the workshops, we will prepare a summary memorandum regarding input 
received on the following:

 Goals and Priorities
 Prioritized Engineering Countermeasures
 Input on Comprehensive Countermeasures

o Identify promising education, enforcement, emergency services strategies

3

 Document likely partners for promising comprehensive measures



 Document next steps in follow‐on effort to further develop and implement the 
comprehensive measures with its agency partners

The content of the summary memorandum would be integrated into the LRSP in Task 8.

Public Input Survey

We propose to conduct an online survey (in both English and Spanish) asking residents for their 
input on specific safety problems. This survey will provide a map which respondents can use to 
drop a pin at a specific location provide a comment about their issue and suggested 
improvement. It will also ask questions regarding residential location, perception of safety 
conditions and issues, experience with near misses that are of concern but which may not have 
shown up in crash data, and demographic information (age, ethnicity, gender). LSC will advertise 
the availability of this survey through ads in the Inyo Register, announcements through local 
service organizations, as well as local Facebook ads.

Task 5: Develop Safety Projects

LSC will work with the County and City staffs to finalize the prioritized countermeasures, based on the 
input received in Task 4 from the Stakeholder Group. In finalizing the list and priorities, we will consider 
the local jurisdiction’s ability to deploy and implement the countermeasures to arrive at a final set of 
countermeasures that are implementable and effective at improving roadway safety.

We will identify locations where the countermeasures are appropriate and effective. We will work with 
the City and County staffs to identify up to three competitive HSIP grant applications that include high 
priority locations for safety improvements and also potentially include systemic countermeasures that 
would benefit multiple locations.

In finalizing the work under this task, we will prepare a final project listing capturing the locations and 
projects in the HSIP applications and/or others the local jurisdictions are confident in advancing. Other 
projects will be noted in the final LRSP but not included in the final project list.

Based on the crash analysis and professional standards, LSC will identify risk factors that are correlated 
to the most frequent occurrences of injury/fatal collisions. We will also identify safety areas and 
locations on which to focus for the greatest potential safety benefits. We will consider the following 
comprehensive strategies:

 Emerging technologies that have the potential to enhance roadway safety, such as automated 
enforcement, dynamic engineering treatments (e.g., operational under specific weather 
conditions), and ways to leverage social media for education programs.

 Education strategies that include programs and strategies that can be used to address road user 
behavior across multiple age groups forums. For example, these can include messaging that can 
be incorporated into Safe Routes to School Programs, community‐based programs, and

4



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
Amendment 2

Page 15

community campaigns (e.g., messaging on social media, posted on buses, and distributed 
through other channels such as existingnewsletters.

 Enforcement strategies will focus on best practices for improving roadway and community safety. 
As research has found that most enforcement strategies have limited long‐term impacts for 
changing road user behavior, the most effective enforcement strategies tend to be those that can 
be done transparently and consistently. An example is education or outreach campaigns as part of 
enforcement in school zones during school hours.

 The emergency services strategies will focus on strategies and partnerships that could help 
reduce response times and sharing of real‐ time information to improve overall coordination.

 Engineering strategies will be organized in a toolbox type of form that describes the treatment, 
shows an image or photo of each treatment, the context in which it is applicable, the mode or road 
users that the treatment would benefit and/or impact, the specific type of crashes and/or priority 
areas it helps to address, a planning‐level cost estimate, the expected degree of crash reduction (if 
known), and if it has typically been eligible for HSIPfunding.

We will document the work in Task 5 in a memorandum. The memorandum will present the safety areas, 
high‐priority locations or high‐injury network, risk factors associated with crashes, and the draft 
multidisciplinary strategies and countermeasures. The content of the memorandum will serve as the basis 
from which the team will generate workshop materials for discussion with the Stakeholder Group in Task 6.

Task 6: Final Local Road Safety Plan

We will prepare the final LRSP and supporting materials using the findings and information from the 
work in Tasks 2 through 7. The final set of deliverables will consist of the following:

 Local Road Safety Plan – Meeting the ICLTC’s needs and requirements for Caltrans’ grant funding.

 Executive Summary – Stand‐alone document that can be used share key elements of LRSPwith 
local decision‐makers and/or broader community.

 PowerPoint Presentation – Targeted towards sharing LRSP key elements with local decision‐ 
makers and/or broader community. This could potentially be hosted on the ICLTC website.

The LRSP will include a discussion of the crash characteristics, data gathering, data analysis, 
countermeasures prioritization, and proposed projects. The report will also document the individuals 
who participated in the development of the LRSP.

We will tailor the LRSP to a format that is most useful for the ICLTC, City and County to monitor and 
implement the recommendations. For each of the final deliverables, we will provide a draft version for the 
ICLTC’s review and comment and a final version incorporating edits to respond to the ICLTC’s comments. 
LSC will be available to make a presentation of the final report in Bishop, if desired.



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
Amendment 2

Page 16

ATTACHMENT B1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
LSC TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS, INC.  

FOR THE PROVISION OF TRANSPORTATION PLANNING SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: ___ April 10, 2018___ TO: ___ December 31, 2023___

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Regional Transportation Plan Update: See Table 2: Cost Analysis

Local Road Safety Plan Development: See Cost Estimate



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
Amendment 2

Page 17



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
Amendment 2

Page 18



In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Inyo, State of California 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 10th 
day of April 2018 an order was duly 

made and entered as follows: 

Public Works - LSC 
Transportation 
Consultants Contract 

I Routing 

cc 

Purchasing 
Personnel 
Auditor 
CAO 
Other: Public Works 
DATE: April 19, 2018 

Transportation Planner Courtney Smith presented a request for approval of a 
contract with a firm to two complete two updates to the County's Regional 
Transportation Plan, and provide other transportation planning services such as 
preparing grant applications on behalf of the County and City of Bishop. He said 
the firm was selected through the Request for Proposals process, and submitted 
the highest-ranked of two proposals received. Smith noted a clerical error in the 
contract originally submitted for consideration, which had the start date at March 
27. He said the document has been revised to reflect the true start date of April 10, 
so there was no need for the Board to ratify the contract. Moved by Supervisor 
Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to approve the contract between the 
County of Inyo and LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc. for the provision of 
transportation planning services, in an amount not to exceed $45, 135 for the period 
of April 10, 2018 through April 30, 2023 and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Pucci absent.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 1 O'h 
Day of April. 2018 

@ 
KEVIN D. CARUNCHIO 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisor 

By:---------





















































































County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Carma Roper
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed Fiscal Year 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) Application and Resolution
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board review the proposed Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Homeland Security Grant (HSGP) Application and, 
if deemed acceptable: A) approve the submittal of the application and authorize the County Administrator, as the 
designated Authorized Agent, to sign the grant application, as well as any and all accompanying documents, by 
approving the "Governing Board Resolution No. 2021-54;" and B) authorize the Chairperson to approve the 
resolution and sign the addendum letter.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Department of Homeland Security is offering the FY2021 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP), to 
provide funding to build and sustain planning capabilities in support of the National Preparedness Goal and 
National Priorities. If awarded, these monies would be used to purchase equipment and provide training to 
strengthen the County’s catastrophic planning capabilities.

In late 2005, the federal government resolved to streamline efforts for States and Urban Areas in obtaining 
resources that are critical to building and sustaining capabilities to achieve the Interim National Preparedness 
Goal and implement State and Urban Area Homeland Security Strategies. As a result, the Department of 
Homeland Security  dopted a risk- and need-based approach to allocating future funding for certain programs 
within HSGP. Their aim is to allocate and apply these resources to generate the highest return on investment 
and, as a result, strengthen national preparedness in the most effective and efficient manner.

The State has informed each operational area of the amount that is available in grant monies; Inyo County has a 
potential allocation of $93,278. The HSGP does not require a cash or in-kind match from the applicant. However, 
a requirement of the application process is for the governing body, the Board of Supervisors, to adopt a 
Resolution in support of applying for Homeland Security Grant monies.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to authorize the submittal of the 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program 
application, but this alternative is not recommended. Receiving these grant funds annually is important to support 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

the County's ability to build, sustain and deliver core capabilities that are necessary for maintaining a safe and 
resilient community. If the County does not apply for the 2021 HSGP, an alternative source of funding will need to 
be identified to sustain the County's current recurring emergency service projects.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
The 2021 HSGP grant application is for $93,278 and requires no cost share or match. Upon State approval, 
Budget #623721 will be created. The Performance Period is September 1, 2021-May 31, 2024
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. FY 2021 HSGP Governing Body Resolution (GBR) 2021- and Addendum to GBR
2. GBR - Addendum Letter 2021
3. FACE Sheet 2021
 
APPROVALS:
Carma Roper Created/Initiated - 12/1/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/1/2021
Carma Roper Approved - 12/1/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/2/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/2/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/2/2021
Leslie Chapman Approved - 12/3/2021
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 12/3/2021



Governing Body Resolution 
RESOLUTION 2021- 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE                            Board of Supervisors  
(Governing Body) 

 
OF THE                                County of Inyo THAT 

(Name of Applicant) 
 
 

                                             County Administrative Officer  , OR 
(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 

 

                                           Director of Emergency Services  , OR 
(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 

 
 

 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
 

is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the named applicant, a public entity 
established under the laws of the State of California, any actions necessary for the purpose of 
obtaining federal financial assistance provided by the federal Department of Homeland Security 
and subawarded through the State of California. 
 

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program 
 
 

Passed and approved this     14         day of              December                , 20 21  
 

Certification 

I,                 Darcy Ellis , duly appointed and 
(Name) 

 

        Assistant Clerk  of the        Board of Supervisors  
(Title) (Governing Body) 

do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed and approved by 

the         Board of Supervisors of the              County of Inyo on the 
(Governing Body) (Name of Applicant) 

 

                14  day of             December            , 20 21  
 
 
 Assistant Clerk of the Board 

N  

(Official Position) 
 
 

 

(Signature) 
 
 

 

(Date) 

 



Instruction Sheet for the Governing Body Resolution & Addendum 
to GBR 

 
 

Purpose 
 

The purpose of the Governing Body Resolution (GBR) is to appoint 
individuals to act on behalf of the governing body and the OA. 

 
Note: Self Certifications are not accepted as a valid Governing Body 
Resolution. You cannot self certify that you are an authorized agent. 
Another Board member will need to sign the lower portion of the GBR. 

 

Authorized 
Agent(s) 

The Governing Body Resolution allows for the appointment of individuals 
or positions. For each person or position appointed by the governing 
body, you must submit the following information, with the resolution, 
to Cal OES on the applicant's letterhead: 

 
 Name  Title 
 Jurisdiction  E-Mail Address 
 Street Address (City 

& Zip Code) 
 Phone & Fax Numbers 

 
Authorized 
Agent Changes 

• If the Governing Body Resolution identified Authorized Agents by 
position and/or title, changes can be made by submitting new 
Authorized Agent information to Cal OES, as indicated above. 

• If the Governing Body Resolution identified Authorized Agents by 
name, a new Resolution is needed when any changes are made. The 
information list above must also be submitted with the new 
Resolution. 

 



MEMBERS OF T HE BOARD • DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF GRIFFITHS • RICK PUCCI • JENNIFER ROESER • M ATT  KINGSLEY  
LESLIE CHAPMAN • Clerk of the Board  • DARCY ELLIS  •  Assistant Clerk of the Board 

 
 

             
 
 

 
December 14, 2021 
 
 
 
California Office of Emergency Services 
Homeland Security Grant Program 
3650 Schriever Avenue 
Mather, CA  95655 
 
 
On December 14, 2021, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors resolved that the County Administrative 
Officer/Director of Emergency Services was authorized to execute for and on behalf of the County of Inyo any 
actions necessary for the purpose of obtaining federal financial assistance provided by the Federal 
Department of Homeland Security and subawarded through the State of California. 
 
Inyo County’s Administrative Officer is also the designated Director of Emergency Services.  Ms. Leslie 
Chapman serves in both of these capacities.  Her information is as follows: 
 
Leslie Chapman 
County of Inyo Administrative Officer 
Director of Emergency Services 
224 N. Edwards Street 
P.O. Drawer N (use as mailing address) 
Independence, CA  93526 
lchapman@inyocounty.us 
(760) 878-0292-phone 
(760) 878-0465-FAX 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jeff Griffiths 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF INYO 

 

P. O. DRAWER  N  • INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526 
 

TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373   
email:  dellis@inyocounty.us 

mailto:lchapman@inyocounty.us


CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES (Col OES)

(Col OES Use Only)

Col OES # FIPS # vs# Suboword #

CATIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES
GRANT SUBAWARD FACE SHEET

The Colifornio Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Col OES) hereby mokes o Gront Suboword of funds 1o the following:

1. Subrecipient: Countv of lnvo lo. DUNS#: 010706687

2. lmplementing Agency: lnvo Corrntv Sh eriff's Office 2o. DUNS#: 010706687

3. lmplemenling Agency Address: BO Box S lndependence 93526-061 3
(Sireel) (Cily) {Zip+41

4. Locotion of Project: lndeoendence lnvo 93s26-0613
(city) (CounlY)

6. Performonce O9/Ol/2021

{Zip+41

05/31/20245. Disosier/Progrom Title:

7. lndirect Cosl Role:

Homelond Proorom to
Period: (Slorl Dote)

Federolly Approved ICR (if oppticobte):

{End Dole)

liem
Number

Gronl
Yeor

Fund
Source

A. Slole B, Federol C. Tolol D. Cosh Molch E. ln-Kind Motch F. Tolol Moich G. Tolol Cost

8. Select Selecl $e3,278 $o $9s,278

I Select Select $o $o

10. Select Seleci $o $o

ll. Select Select $o $o

12. Selecl Select $o $o
Tolql Projecl Cosl $o $e3,278 $e3,278 $o $o $o $e3,278

13. Cerlificotion - This Gront Suboword consisls of this tille poge, the opplicotion for the gront, which is ottoched ond mode o pori hereof, ond lhe
Assuronces/Certificotions. I hereby certify I om vested with the outhority io enter into this Gronl Suboword, ond hove the opprovol of ihe City/Counly Finonciol
Officer, City Monoger, Counly Administrotor, Governing Boord Choir, or olher Approving Body. The Subrecipient certifies thot oll funds received pursuont to this
ogreement will be spent exclusively on the purposes specified in the Gront Suboword. The Subrecipient occepts this Gront Suboword ond ogrees io qdminister
the gront project in occordonce with the Gront Suboword os well os oll opplicoble stote ond federol lows, oudit requlrements, federol progrom guidelines,
ond Col OES policy ond progrom guidonce. The Subrecipient further ogrees thot the ollocotion of funds moy be contingent on the enoctment of the Stote
Budget.
'14' CA Public Records Act - Gront opplicotions ore subjeci to the Colifornio Public Records Acl, Government Code section 6250 el seq. Do not put ony
personolly identifioble informoiion or privote informotion on this opplicotion. lf you believe thot ony of the informotion you ore putting on this opplicotion is
exempt from the Public Records Act, pleose oltoch o stotement thot indicotes whot portions of the opplicotion ond the bosis for lhe exemption. Your
stolement thot the informotion is noi subject io the Public Records Act will not guoronlee thot the informotlon will noi be disclosed.

15. Otliciol Aulhorized lo Sign for Subrecipienl:

Nome: Leslie Chopmon Title: CAO-Direclor of Fmeroencv Services

Poyment Moiling Address: PO Drower N

Signoture:

City: Independence Zip Code+4: l3

Dote:

'l6.Federol Employer lD Number: 95-6005445

USE ONt
I hereby cerlify upon my personcl knowledge thol budgeled funds ore ovoiloble for lhe period ond purposes of this expendilure s.toled obove.

(Cql OES Flscol Otllcer) (Dole) (Col OES Dlreclor or Deslqnee) (Dole)

HSGP FMFW v2l - FY 2021 Gront Suboword Foce Sheet Col OES 2-101 (Revised t0/2020)



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Kelley Williams
 
SUBJECT:  Workshop to discuss local Fire Safe Councils regional correspondence letter to Inyo and Mono 
Boards of Supervisors
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) conduct a workshop with members from local Fire Safe Councils to discuss their recent letter 
to the Board requesting continued support in furthering fire safe policies, management and advocacy; and B) 
provide any follow-up direction to staff as necessary.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On October 26, 2021, your Board received a letter of correspondence from a group of seven fire safe councils 
from Inyo and Mono Counties. The group had collaborated regionally to submit a letter of concern about wildfire 
activity in and around their communities.  The letter also stated they were seeking the Board's support and 
cooperation in achieving the objectives they had identified in the letter..

The letter was placed on the Inyo County Board of Supervisors November 16, 2021 board agenda as a 
"Correspondence" item.  When the letter of correspondence was acknowledged during the Board meeting, your 
Board requested that this item be brought back as a workshop to allow for additional discussion, providing the 
local fire safe councils with an opportunity to speak about their concerns, and the objectives identified in their 
October 26, 2021 letter.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo and Mono Local Fire Safe Councils, Local Volunteer Fire Departments, USFS, BLM, LADWP, Local Tribes. 
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. Regional Fire Safe Council Board Letter 2021.10.26
 
APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams Created/Initiated - 11/17/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/18/2021
Kelley Williams Approved - 11/18/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 11/18/2021
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 12/9/2021



1 
 

October 26, 2021 

Dear Inyo and Mono County Supervisors: 

We are a group of seven fire safe councils in Inyo and Mono Counties that has collaborated to 
bring this letter before your Boards in response to concerns about wildfire activity in and 
around our communities.  We acknowledge and appreciate the attention paid to wildfire issues 
to date by the counties, including the recent enactment of fire restrictions, and would like to 
see further action. 

Drought and extremely dry conditions in the Eastern Sierra have drastically increased the 
danger from wildfires over the last decade.  The Tamarack Fire and Mountain View Fire are 
recent tragic examples.  This heightened wildfire risk has prompted fire safe councils in the 
Eastern Sierra to join efforts in addressing this growing problem. We are looking to you, as our 
elected officials charged with the health and safety of the communities in each of your 
respected jurisdictions of Inyo and Mono Counties, to continue to assist in furthering fire safe 
policies, management, and advocacy.  

The region’s fire safe councils are seeking your help and cooperation to achieve the following 
objectives: 

1) Inform and educate the public about current fire restrictions and wildfire risks and 
provide information on what the public can do to reduce fire risk in their communities 
and on public lands in the Eastern Sierra. The region’s fire safe councils are ready to 
partner with local governments to provide information and projects to communities 
that raise awareness of fire safe practices and strategies.  

2) Work with federal land managers to define and impose fire restrictions based on risk 
and fire conditions in specific, localized areas, instead of basing restrictions and 
warnings on general conditions over the entire Eastern Sierra. The large variations seen 
in the Eastern Sierra landscape make a more localized approach to assessing fire risks 
far more effective.  

3) Collaborate with federal land managers and the Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power to reduce the risk of human-caused wildfires, focusing special attention on the 
increased wildfire risk that has arisen with the increase in the number of dispersed 
campers in the Eastern Sierra. We ask that Supervisors pay particular attention to the 
wildlands immediately adjacent to our communities. This concern is being addressed 
by the Eastern Sierra Dispersed Camping Collaborative initiated by Mono County 
Supervisor Bob Gardner. The “Camp Like a Pro” campaign should continue to receive 
your support and should be expanded to include specific information and content about 
Inyo and Alpine Counties. Expanding the program to include signage at locations used 
by dispersed campers would be a logical next step.  



2 
 

These suggestions were generated over time as the region’s fire safe councils interacted with 
concerned residents and through collaborative meetings with the Regional Forest and Fire 
Capacity Program and other fire safe councils in the region and across the state.  

There are ten fire safe councils within the Eastern Sierra, representing Alpine County, Twin 
Lakes, Mono Basin, June Lake, Mammoth Lakes, Swall Meadows, 40 Acres, Wilkerson, 
Independence, and Lone Pine. A fire safe council is a volunteer community-based organization 
established to support and/or create programs and projects that will help create a fire-safe 
community.  

The fire safe councils in the region have used several strategies to foster this goal:  1) 
promoting awareness of fire safe practices by providing information at community events, via 
social media, and using the news media and mailings; 2) enhancing the effectiveness of 
wildland fire fighting before a fire by supporting and implementing fuel-reduction projects; 3) 
seeking grants and other funds to aid in community fire safe projects and fire awareness 
activities; and 4) assisting in the creation of Community Wildfire Protection Plans. 

We appreciate your consideration and will continue to work in our communities and with you, 
other agencies, local governments, and federal land managers to create fire safe communities 
and landscapes in the Eastern Sierra.  

Sincerely, 

Mono Basin Fire Safe Council 

Mammoth Lakes Fire Safe Council 

Wheeler Crest Fire Safe Council 

40 Acres Fire Safe Council 

Wilkerson Fire Safe Council 

Independence Fire Safe Council 

Lone Pine Fire Safe Council 

Holly Alpert, Regional Forest and Fire Capacity Program 
 holly.easterncaliforniawater@gmail.com, 760-709-2212 

 

cc:  Lesley Yen, Supervisor, Inyo National Forest 

Steve Nelson, Field Manager, Bureau of Land Management – Bishop Field Office 

mailto:holly.easterncaliforniawater@gmail.com


County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Leslie Chapman, Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board hear a presentation regarding the American Rescue Plan Act funds allocated to Inyo County and 
discuss potential uses of the funding.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) was signed into law on March 11, 2021. Inyo County's allocation is 
$3,503,864 and the first tranche in the amount of $1,751,932 was received on May 20, 2021. The second tranche 
of $1,751,932 should be received by May 20, 2022. The funding eligibility period is March 3, 2021 through 
December 31, 2024. 

The purpose of these funds is to provide a substantial infusion of resources to help turn the tide on the pandemic, 
address its economic fallout, and lay the foundation for a strong and equitable recovery.

The purpose of this agenda request is to work with the Board to prioritize and designate projects to be completed 
with this funding. There are several expenditure categories available:

 Negative Economic Impacts
 Housing
 Water, Sewer, and broadband infrastructure
 Revenue Replacement
 Premium Pay for Essential Workers

Earlier this year, your Board approved the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Inyo County Budget, which included a budget of 
$1,751,932 to fund projects designated by your Board. Funding was included for projects to be started, but no 
designated projects are listed as your Board will need to identify the specific projects. Once your Board identifies 
the projects, staff will be able to move forward.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
US Department of Treasury
 
FINANCING:
Projects will be funded in the American Rescue Plan Act Budget #650200 based on the priorities of the Board.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 10/28/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/28/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 10/28/2021
Leslie Chapman Approved - 12/9/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/9/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/9/2021



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Ashley Helms
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance concerning parking fees at the Bishop Airport
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board waive further reading of  proposed Ordinance 1277 titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of 
Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Repealing Certain Portions of Ordinance No. 1167 (2011) and 
Setting Rates for Vehicle Parking at the Bishop Airport," and schedule enactment for Tuesday, September 21, 
2021 in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative Center, Independence.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Ordinance 1167, which was passed in 2011, set the rates for hangar rent, tie-down fees and parking fees at Inyo 
County airports. The pricing structure for hangar and tie-down fees included an annual increase of 3%.  The 
vehicle parking fees were set as follows, with no stipulated increases: Thirty dollars ($30) per month for 
automobiles, pickups, and other vehicles twenty (20) feet or less in length, and forty-five dollars ($45) per month 
for any vehicle or trailer exceeding twenty (20) feet in length.  All vehicles must have current vehicle registration.

Given the upcoming start of commercial air service at the Bishop Airport, which will lead to an increased demand 
for short-term and long-term parking, the Airport would like to increase the long-term parking rates to be 
consistent with other area parking options - such as the Tri-County Fairgrounds. To achieve this, Public Works is 
first asking your Board to repeal the outdated rates found in the 2011 ordinance. Then, to make it easier to 
update parking rates in the future, Public Works is asking your Board to authorize the Department to set fees by 
resolution, rather than by ordinance.  

Before your Board today is only the ordinance repealing Ordinance 1167 and authorizing the setting of fees via 
resolution. The resolution setting the new fees is not before your Board today, as this resolution cannot be 
passed until today's ordinance goes into effect, which will not be until 30 days after its adoption. Thus, Public 
Works will return to your Board with the resolution setting fees once today's ordinance is in effect.

However, so that your Board understands what the new parking fees will be, should your Board approve this 
resolution, Public Works plans to bring a resolution to your Board with the following proposed fees:

 $50 per month for automobiles, pickups, and other vehicles twenty feet or less in length 
 $75 per month for any vehicle or trailer exceeding twenty feet in length 
 $6 per 24 hours for automobiles, pickups, and other vehicles twenty feet or less in length 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 $12 per 24 hours for any vehicle or trailer exceeding twenty feet in length

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to make any changes to the parking fee schedule at the Bishop Airport.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
Revenue from short-term and long-term parking at the Bishop Airport remains in the Bishop Airport Operating 
Budget, and will be used to fund Airport operations and upcoming improvements to the parking area.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Airport Parking Ordinance
2. Ordinance 1167
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 12/7/2021
Ashley Helms Approved - 12/7/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/7/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/8/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 12/9/2021



1

ORDINANCE NO. _______

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

REPEALING CERTAIN PORTIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 1167 (2011) 
AND SETTING RATES FOR VEHICLE PARKING AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT

The Board of Supervisors of Inyo County ordains as follows:

SECTION ONE. PURPOSE.

The purpose of this Ordinance is to repeal Section IV(B) of Ordinance No. 1167 (2011) and to 
create a new fee structure for off-street parking fees to be charged at the Bishop Airport.  

SECTION TWO. AUTHORITY.

This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the general police power granted to the Inyo County Board 
of Supervisors.  This ordinance is not subject to the limitations or rules found in Article XIII(C) 
of the California Constitution as it pertains to a charge imposed for entrance to or use of local 
government property, or the purchase, rental, or lease of local government property.

SECTION THREE. MODIFICATIONS TO ORDINANCE NO. 1167.

Section IV(B) of Ordinance No. 1167 (2011) is hereby repealed in its entirety.

SECTION FOUR. PARKING FEES AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT

The amount to be charged by the County of Inyo for the use of the designated off-street parking 
areas controlled by the County at County operated airports shall be set by resolution of the Board 
of Supervisors.

SECTION FIVE. SEVERABILITY.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The Board hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each and every section, subsection, 
sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any 
portion of this Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION SIX. CEQA COMPLIANCE.

This ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and Section 15060(c)(3) (the activity is 
not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, because it has no potential for 
resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.) 



2

SECTION SEVEN. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its adoption.
Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this ordinance shall be 
published as required by Government Code Section 25124. The Clerk of the Board is hereby 
instructed and ordered to so publish this ordinance together with the names of the Board 
members voting for or against the same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of December, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: _______
NOES: _______
ABSTAIN: _______
ABSENT: _______

________________________________
JEFF GRIFFITHS, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Leslie Chapman
Clerk of the Board

By: _____________________________
Darcy Ellis, Assistant
Assistant Clerk of the Board









County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Darcy Ellis
 
SUBJECT:  Tecopa Cemetery Board Resolution
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-55, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Stating Its Intent to Become the Governing Board of the Tecopa Cemetery District," and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On October 19, 2021, your Board discussed issues related to the Board of Trustees of the Tecopa Cemetery 
District. Specifically, your Board discussed the fact that there was currently no functional Board for this District 
and that recruitment efforts to find individuals to fill the Board proved unsuccessful. While two individuals 
expressed interest in joining the District board, two people would not be enough to form a quorum and allow the 
District to conduct any business.

County Counsel suggested that, given the inability to form a quorum of District board members, the County 
Board of Supervisors could exercise the power found in Gov't Code 9026, which allows a County Board of 
Supervisors to appoint itself as the governing board of a Cemetery District. The process to exercise the power 
found in section 9026 is as follows:

1. The Board of Supervisors passes a resolution declaring its intent to become the governing board of the 
District.

2. No more than 60 days after passing the resolution, the Board of Supervisors holds a noticed hearing to 
discuss becoming the governing board of the District. At this hearing, voters in the District can submit 
protests. If the number of protests exceeds 10% of the registered voters in the District, the Board must 
vote by a 4/5 majority and make special findings to become the governing board of the District. If the 
protests do not exceed 10% of the registered voters in the District, the Board can vote by a simple 3/5 
majority with no special findings to become the governing board.

Currently, the plan is that, if the Board of Supervisors becomes the governing board of the District, the Board of 
Supervisors will take action to reduce the number of board members on the District board to three, appoint the 
two interested individuals to the District board, and then turn control back over to the District board. Reducing the 
District board to three people will allow the District to form a quorum with only the two individuals who expressed 
interest.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Therefore, before your Board today is a resolution to complete step one of the process outlined above. If your 
Board chooses to pass the resolution, the hearing in step two will be scheduled for January 11, 2022.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to pass this resolution. This is not recommended, as other avenues to create a 
operational board for the Tecopa Cemetery District have proved unsuccessful.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Tecopa Cemetery District Resolution
 
APPROVALS:
Grace Chuchla Created/Initiated - 11/29/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/30/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 11/30/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/1/2021
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 12/1/2021



RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -______

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

STATING ITS INTENT TO BECOME THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE TECOPA 
CEMETERY DISTRICT

WEREAS, the Tecopa Cemetery District (“the District”) is a cemetery district organized 
pursuant to Cal. Health & Safety Code section 9000, et seq.;

WHEREAS, for many years, the District has been without a governing board due to the 
resignation of past board members and an insufficient number of individuals who are interested 
in joining the Board;

WHEREAS, recent efforts to recruit individuals to serve on the District’s Board have yielded 
only two interested applicants, which is an insufficient number for the District Board to form a 
quorum;

WHEREAS, without a quorum, the District cannot conduct any business;

WHEREAS, Health & Safety Code section 9026 provide the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
with the power to declare itself the governing board of any cemetery district within the County;

WHEREAS, following the passage of this resolution, the County Board of Supervisors will hold 
a noticed hearing pursuant to section 9026(c) to receive public comment and/or protest on the 
issue of the County Board of Supervisors becoming the governing board of the District.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That the Inyo County Board of Supervisors declares its intent to become the governing 
board of the Tecopa Cemetery District.

2. That a hearing will be held before the County Board of Supervisors within 60 days of the 
passage of this resolution to receive public comment and/or protest regarding the County 
Board of Supervisors becoming the governing board of the Tecopa Cemetery District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of December 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: _______
NOES: _______
ABSTAIN: _______
ABSENT: _______

________________________________
JEFF GRIFFITHS, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors



ATTEST: Leslie Chapman
Clerk of the Board

By: _____________________________
Darcy Ellis, Assistant
Assistant Clerk of the Board



County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

TIMED ITEMS - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 14, 2021
 
FROM:  Grace Chuchla
 
SUBJECT:  Final redistricting hearing
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
11:05 a.m. - County Counsel - Request Board: A) conduct a noticed hearing as part of the 2021 redistricting 
process; and B) approve Resolution No. 2021-56, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of Inyo, State of California, Setting the Boundaries of the Supervisorial Districts Following the 2020 Census," and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This is the final hearing in the redistricting process, and before the Inyo County Redistricting Commission is a 
resolution to adopt one of the many draft maps that have been presented to the Commission.  Per Elections 
Code 21508(d)(1), all of these maps have been posted online for at least three business days.  This staff report is 
broken down into three parts.  First, there is a summary of the legal rules to keep in mind when considering which 
map to adopt as a final map.  Second, there is an analysis of each draft map that contains recommendations 
from legal counsel and staff.  Third, there is a discussion of the resolution that the Commission will need to adopt 
at the end of this hearing to choose a final map.

I. LEGAL RULES REGARDING DRAFT MAPS

The legal rules that the Commission and public should keep in mind when assessing (and voting on) the draft 
maps include:

Compliance with the Equal Protection Clause. The Equal Protection Clause of the federal Constitution 
requires three things in the redistricting context.  First, it requires that counties respect the "one person, one vote" 
rule by making the districts as close to equal in population as possible.  Recognizing that exact numeric equality 
is impossible, numerous Supreme Court cases have explained that a 10% deviation between the smallest and 
the largest district is "close enough" to comply with the "one person, one vote" rule.  However, it is not 
necessarily true that all maps that are below 10% deviation are created equal.  From an equal protection 
perspective, the lower the deviation, the better the map.  Second, the Equal Protection Clause and the federal 
Voting Rights Act prohibit a county from adopting a map that dilutes the voting power of a racial minority or that 
provides less opportunity for racial minorities to elect representatives of their choice.  Third, the Equal Protection 
Clause prohibits drawing districts with race as the primary motivator for dividing the population unless the Voting 
Rights Act mandates such a consideration.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Compliance with the Fair Maps Act.  In addition to setting out numerous procedural rules that a county must 
follow, the Fair Maps Act (Cal. Elections Code section 21500, et seq.) requires that the Commission take the 
following into account when choosing a final map:

1. Districts must be geographically contiguous.
2. Neighborhoods and communities of interest should be kept together.
3. Cities or census designated places should be kept together.
4. District boundaries should be easily identifiable and understandable and should follow natural boundaries.
5. Districts should encourage geographic compactness by not bypassing areas of nearby population in favor 

of more distant population.

Things that the Commission and the public should not take into account when assessing draft maps include:

1. Drawing districts with the intent to favor one political party over another
2. Drawing districts with the intent to protect an incumbent 
3. Drawing districts with the intent to elect a certain candidate for office

II. SUMMARY OF DRAFT MAPS TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE COMMISSION 

All maps to be considered by the Commission are attached to this staff report.  Zoomed in versions of the maps 
and race data regarding each map are available here: https://www.inyocounty.us/redistricting-2021/draft-
redistricting-maps. The maps up for consideration, a brief description of each map, a legal analysis, and staff 
recommendations regarding each map are as follows:

Option 1a, 1b, and 1c. This option was eliminated by the Commission at the Dec. 7, 2021 hearing.  Therefore, 
an analysis of this map is not included.

Option 2. This option was eliminated by the Commission at the Dec. 7, 2021 hearing.  Therefore, an analysis of 
this map is not included.

Option 3.  This map puts Independence in District 5 and leaves the Fort Independence Paiute Tribal lands in 
District 4.  It also takes the population from the small communities located west and northwest of Bishop into 
District 4.  District 1 is moved to the east and takes population from West Bishop and the non-City of Bishop 
population from District 2.  The deviation for this map is 5.9%.

 Legal analysis - This map complies with all legal requirements.  
 Staff recommendation -  Option 3 has the second best deviation at 5.9%; however, it causes the most 

drastic changes to the existing Districts. Although this is not to be a factor in this decision process, public 
comment is overwhelmingly  against big changes as people feel these changes affect communities of 
interest. This map is staff's #3 recommendation.

Option 4.  This map grows District 5 by taking in Independence and the Ft. Independence Reservation.  It grows 
District 4 by taking in the land up to the Mono County line to the east and west of Bishop.  District 3 consists of 
West Bishop and part of Manor Market.  District 2 consists of the City of Bishop.  District 1 consists of all of the 
communities north and east of Highway 395 and west of Highway 6 (e.g. Meadowcreek, Mustang Mesa, etc.). 
 The deviation for this map is 9.76%.

 Legal analysis - This map splits up the Manor Market neighborhood.  Specifically, the southwest corner of 
that neighborhood is in District 4 while the rest of that neighborhood is in District 3.  Per Election Code 
21500(c)(2), "the geographic integrity of any local neighborhood or local community of interest shall be 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

respected in a manner that minimizes its division."  This map therefore does not comply with section 
21500(c)(2).  However, section 21500 only mandates compliance with its requirements "to the extent 
practical."  Therefore, the Commission could make findings that it is not practical to keep the Manor 
Market neighborhood intact if the Commission wants to adopt this map.

 Staff recommendation - Staff notes that there has been a large amount of public comment in support of 
this map.  However, it is important to note that the vast majority of this public comment came in when this 
map looked very different than it looks today.  Specifically, when most of the public comments in favor of 
this map were made, this map had a deviation of 17%, which is far above what is permissible.  The map's 
proponent then made substantial edits to the map to bring it within the permissible deviation.  It is within 
the Commission's discretion to decide how to weigh the public comment in support of this map given that 
the map was changed after most comment was received. If the Commission wishes to reconsider this 
map with the recent edits, factors to include are: the new deviation of this map is 9.76%, which is 
permissible, but very close to the 10% threshold. As described above, it also splits a compact 
neighborhood (community of interest). Due to these factors, this map is staff's #4 recommendation.  

Option 5.  This map creates one district that encompasses all tribal lands within Inyo County and various other 
blocks that were necessary to include to make the district contiguous and to get the population up to 
approximately 3792 (tribal lands only contain approximately 2500 people).  The remaining 4 districts consist of: 
one district that's the City of Bishop; one district that contains Meadow Creek, Laws, the blocks east of Bishop, 
and the southern part of West Bishop; one district that contains Manor Market, McLaren, and the small 
communities west of Bishop up to the Mono County line; and one district that contains Big Pine, Independence, 
Lone Pine, and all other non-tribal south county communities.  The deviation for this map is 9.1%. 

 Legal analysis - Creating a district that contains all tribal land could be seen as a race-based decision. 
 Drawing lines with race as the primary consideration is prohibited by the Equal Protection Clause, unless 
the Voting Rights Act mandates that the county draw such a district.  To determine if the Voting Rights Act 
mandates race-based redistricting, the county must apply the three factors enumerated by the Supreme 
Court in Thornburg v. Gingles, 478 U.S. 30 (1986).  These three factors are: 1) there must be a minority 
group that is “sufficiently large” to constitute a majority and sufficiently “geographically compact” to permit 
the creation of a “reasonably configured legislative district"; 2) the minority group must be “politically 
cohesive"; and 3) the white majority in the current district must “vote sufficiently as a bloc” to usually 
“defeat the minority’s preferred candidate.”  The conditions in Inyo County likely do not allow the 
Commission to make findings that would satisfy these three factors.  On factor #1, the County's Native 
American population, while sufficient to create a majority in one district, is not geographically compact. 
 Rather, the Native American population is spread throughout the entire county, from Death Valley to 
Bishop.  On factors #2 and #3, a review of past election data did not provide sufficient information to 
indicate block voting, either by a white majority or by the Native American population.  

 Staff recommendations - Because this map is vulnerable to a legal challenge, staff does not recommend 
that the Commission adopt this map.  Additionally, public comment regarding an all-tribal district appears 
to be fairly evenly split in favor and against such a district.  One tribe (the Bishop Paiute Tribe) is in favor 
of such a district.  Another tribe (the Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe) is against it.  Additionally, three 
members of the public commented in favor of this map, and three commented against it.

Option 6.  This map creates one district that takes in all tribal lands and other areas of cultural significance to the 
county's Native American population (e.g. the Tablelands, the Alabama Hills, and the dry Owens Lake).  The 
other four districts consist of: one district containing the City of Bishop; one district containing Meadowcreek, 
Manor Market, and parts of West Bishop north of Hwy. 168; one district containing the Barlow Ln. and Bishop 
Creek neighborhoods and the community of Big Pine; and one district containing all other non-tribal land south of 
Big Pine.  The deviation for this map is 9.68%.
 Legal analysis - Creating a district that contains all tribal land could be seen as a race-based decision.  Drawing 

lines with race as the primary consideration is prohibited by the Equal Protection Clause, unless the Voting Rights 



Agenda Request 
Page 4

Act mandates that the county draw such a district.  To determine if the Voting Rights Act mandates race-based 
redistricting, the county must apply the three factors enumerated by the Supreme Court in Thornburg v. Gingles, 
478 U.S. 30 (1986).  These three factors are: 1) there must be a minority group that is “sufficiently large” to 
constitute a majority and sufficiently “geographically compact” to permit the creation of a “reasonably configured 
legislative district"; 2) the minority group must be “politically cohesive"; and 3) the white majority in the current 
district must “vote sufficiently as a bloc” to usually “defeat the minority’s preferred candidate.”  The conditions in 
Inyo County likely do not allow the Commission to make findings that would satisfy these three factors.  On factor 
#1, the County's Native American population, while sufficient to create a majority in one district, is not 
geographically compact.  Rather, the Native American population is spread throughout the entire county, from 
Death Valley to Bishop.  On factors #2 and #3, a review of past election data did not provide sufficient information 
to indicate block voting, either by a white majority or by the Native American population.  

 Staff recommendations - Because this map is vulnerable to a legal challenge, staff does not recommend that the 
Commission adopt this map.  Additionally, public comment regarding an all-tribal district appears to be fairly 
evenly split in favor and against such a district.  One tribe (the Bishop Paiute Tribe) is in favor of such a district. 
 Another tribe (the Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe) is against it.  Additionally, three members of the public 
commented in favor of this map, and three commented against it.

Option 7.  This map put Independence and the Fort Independence Reservation in District 5.  District 4 grows 
north to take in some of West Bishop, the lands to the east of Bishop, and the small communities to the north of 
Bishop (e.g. 40 Acres and Rovana).  District 2 contains the city of Bishop.  District 1 consists of the communities 
along the Hwy. 168 corridor, Manor Market, and Meadowcreek.  District 3 contains the Bishop Paiute 
Reservation and Barlow Ln. neighborhood. 
 Legal analysis - This map complies with all legal requirements, but it is ever so slightly above the permissible 

deviation at 10.05%.  This number is close enough to 10% to make this map legally permissible, but it is 
preferable to have as low a deviation as possible.

 Staff recommendations - Since this map is both: 1) just over the edge of the deviation threshold and 2) requires 
an odd wrap around of unpopulated blocks (west of Otney Road to Ed Powers Road) to add population to District 
1, causing it to appear that it is  bypassing areas of nearby population in favor of more distant population - staff is 
not recommending this map.

Option 8a.  This proposal extends District 5 northwards to take in the community of Independence.  The Ft. 
Independence Reservation remains in District 4.  District 4 extends northwards to take in the non-City of Bishop 
blocks that previously were in District 2 and the blocks south of Manor Market and west of Barlow Ln. that 
previously were in District 3.  District 1 has some small changes on its margins to better balance the population.

 Legal analysis - This map complies with all legal requirements.
 Staff recommendation -This map has a deviation of 5.5%, which is by far the best deviation of all the 

maps, and therefore the best representation of one person - one vote. It causes some amount of 
disruption to communities of interest in the West Bishop area, but much less than some of the other 
maps. Due to these factors, it best meets the requirements and is staff's #1 recommendation.

Option 8b.  This proposal extends District 5 northwards to take in the community of Independence.  The Ft. 
Independence Reservation remains in District 4.  District 4 extends northwards to take in the non-City of Bishop 
blocks that previously were in District 2 and the blocks south of Manor Market and west of Barlow Ln. that 
previously were in District 3.  District 1 has some small changes on its margins to better balance the population.
 Legal analysis - This map complies with all legal requirements.
 Staff recommendation - this map has a deviation 7.1. This deviation is not as good as Option 8a, or 3, but it 



Agenda Request 
Page 5

disrupts the communities of interest in the West Bishop area less than 8a and far less than Option 3; therefore, 
this staff's #2 recommendation.

Option 8c. This option was eliminated by the Commission at the Dec. 7, 2021 hearing.  Therefore, an analysis of 
this map is not included.

III. RESOLUTION ADOPTING A DRAFT MAP AS THE FINAL MAP

After receiving public comment and deliberating, the Commission will need to pass the attached resolution to 
adopt one of the above-listed draft maps as the final map.  To ensure that the above-listed maps are 
memorialized in a non-changeable format, listings of the GEOID20s for each census block that would be in each 
district of each draft map are attached to this staff report.  Once the Commission chooses which map to adopt as 
the final map, the Commission will also need to make findings to justify the adoption of the map.  Counsel will 
assist the Commission in formulating such findings at the hearing after the Commission chooses which map to 
adopt.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution Adopting Final Maps
2. Exhibit A - All Maps
3. Exhibit B - all GEOID20s
 
APPROVALS:
Grace Chuchla Created/Initiated - 12/9/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/9/2021
Grace Chuchla Approved - 12/9/2021
John Vallejo Final Approval - 12/9/2021



1

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_____

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ADOPTING NEW SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT 

BOUNDARIES FOLLOWING THE 2020 FEDERAL CENSUS

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Fair Maps Act (Elections Code § 21500, et seq.), following 
each federal decennial census, every county in the state of California must examine the 
boundaries of its supervisorial districts in light of the results of the census to ensure compliance 
with all state and federal laws; and

WHEREAS, the US Constitution and the federal Voting Rights Act (42 USC § 1973, et 
seq.) prohibit the drawing of district boundaries based on race, unless necessary to comply with 
the mandates of the Voting Rights Act; and

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2021, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors chose to 
exercise its power pursuant to Elections Code § 23001 to serve as the Redistricting Commission 
for Inyo County; and 

WHEREAS, the Redistricting Commission held all public hearings as required by 
Elections Code 21507.  Specifically, the Redistricting Commission held noticed public hearings 
on July 16, 2021, October 12, 2021; October 19, 2021 (two hearings on this day); November 2, 
2021; November 9, 2021; November 16, 2021; December 7, 2021, and December 14, 2021.  
Staff and various members of the Commission also hosted informal town halls and instructional 
webinars; and 

WHEREAS, all hearings were noticed as required by law, and informational postcards 
containing the dates and times for the final four hearings were mailed to all addresses within 
Inyo County; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors that:

1. The five supervisorial districts, as set forth in the map attached as Exhibit A, are hereby 
adopted as the supervisorial districts of the County of Inyo.  A listing of the GEOID20s 
of the each census block contained within each district is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

2. The five supervisorial districts, as set forth in the map attached as Exhibit A, shall be 
effective as the supervisorial districts of Inyo County upon the passage of this Resolution.

3. The five supervisorial districts, as set forth in the map attached as Exhibit A, comply with 
all state and federal laws related to the redistricting process.

4. The population distribution and deviation for the five supervisorial districts, as set forth 
in the map attached as Exhibit A, is as follows:

District Population Difference from 3792 Percent Deviation
1



2

2
3
4
5

18,963

5. The total deviation for the five supervisorial districts, as set forth in the map attached as 
Exhibit A, is ____%.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: _______
NOES: _______
ABSTAIN: _______
ABSENT: _______

________________________________
Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson of the Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors 

ATTEST: Leslie Chapman 
Clerk of the Board

By:_____________________________
Assistant Clerk of the Board



 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 



¬«395 ¬«6

¬«168
¬«168

¬«395

¬«136
¬«190

¬«127

¬«395

Laws

Darwin

Tecopa

Keeler

Bishop

Olancha
Cartago

Shoshone

Big Pine

Wilkerson

Lone Pine

Townes Pass

Pearsonville

Independence

Stovepipe Wells

Charleston View

Panamint Springs

Furnace Creek Ranch

Death Valley Junction

District 2 - 3,831       +39        +1%
District 1 - 3,729       -63        -1.7%

District 4 - 3,678        -114       -3.0%       
District 3 - 3,888       +96         2.5%

District 5 - 3,837         +45      +1.2%

  POP        DIFF       Deviation

 This configuration puts Independence in District 5 and leaves
 the FortIndependence Paiute Tribal lands in District 4. 
It also takes thepopulation from the small communties located 
west and northwest of Bishop. District 1 is moved to the east 
and takes population from west Bishop and the non-City of Bishop 
population from District 2.  

Option 3



District 5

District 4

District 1

District 3

District 2District 1

Population Difference from 3792 % Deviation from 3792
Dist 1 3684 -108 -2.85%
Dist 2 3842 50 1.32%
Dist 3 3915 123 3.24%
Dist 4 3576 -216 -5.70%
Dist 5 3946 154 4.06%

18963 -9.76%

Option 4



O l an c h a

¬«395

¬«190

¬«127

¬«168

¬«178

¬«136

¬«6¬«395

¬«395

¬«168

± 0 10 20 Miles

1

2

3
4

5

Option 5 

District 2 - 3,831 +39 +1%
District 1 - 3850        +58         1.5%

District 4 - 3,921 +129 3.4%
District 3 - 3,797 -5 -0.1%

District 5 - 3,574 -218      -5.7%

 POP  DIFF (3,792)  Deviation



District 5

District 3

District 4

Tecopa

Keeler

Bishop

Olancha

Shoshone

Big Pine

Lone Pine

Independence

Furnace Creek

Death Valley Junction

Population Difference from 3792
% Deviation 
from 3792

Dist 1 3965 173 4.56%
Dist 2 3842 50 1.32%
Dist 3 3598 -194 -5.12%
Dist 4 3957 165 4.35%
Dist 5 3601 -191 -5.04%

18963

Option 6



District 5

District 4

District 1

Tecopa

Keeler

Bishop

Olancha

Shoshone

Big Pine

Lone Pine

Independence

Furnace Creek

Death Valley Junction

District 3
District 2

Population Difference from 3792
% Deviation 
from 3792

Dist 1 3829 37 0.98%
Dist 2 3831 39 1.03%
Dist 3 3792 0 0.00%
Dist 4 3565 -227 -5.99%
Dist 5 3946 154 4.06%

18963 10.05%

Option 7



District 5

District 4

District 1

Tecopa

Keeler

Bishop

Olancha

Shoshone

Big Pine

Lone Pine

Independence

Furnace Creek

Death Valley Junction

District 3
District 2

Bishop

Option A Population Difference from 3792
% Deviation 
from 3792

Dist 1 3814 22 0.58%
Dist 2 3831 39 1.03%
Dist 3 3840 48 1.27%
Dist 4 3634 -158 -4.17%
Dist 5 3844 52 1.37%

18963

Option 8a



District 5

District 4

District 1

Tecopa

Keeler

Bishop

Olancha

Shoshone

Big Pine

Lone Pine

Independence

Furnace Creek

Death Valley Junction

District 3
District 2

Bishop

Option B Population Difference from 3792
% Deviation 
from 3792

Dist 1 3848 56 1.48%
Dist 2 3831 39 1.03%
Dist 3 3855 63 1.66%
Dist 4 3585 -207 -5.46%
Dist 5 3844 52 1.37%

18963

Option 8b



 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 



District 1 
060270001001000 
060270001001001 
060270001001002 
060270001001003 
060270001001004 
060270001001005 
060270001001006 
060270001001007 
060270001001008 
060270001001009 
060270001001010 
060270001001011 
060270001001012 
060270001001013 
060270001001014 
060270001001015 
060270001001016 
060270001001017 
060270001001018 
060270001001019 
060270001001020 
060270001001021 
060270001001022 
060270001001023 
060270001001024 
060270001001025 
060270001001026 
060270001001027 
060270001001028 
060270001001029 
060270001001030 
060270001001031 
060270001001032 
060270001001033 
060270001001034 
060270001001035 
060270001001036 
060270001001037 
060270001001038 
060270001001039 
060270001001040 
060270001001041 
060270001001042 
060270001001043 
060270001001044 
060270001001045 
060270001001046 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 001



060270001001047 
060270001001048 
060270001001049 
060270001001050 
060270001001051 
060270001001052 
060270001001053 
060270001001054 
060270001001055 
060270001001056 
060270001001057 
060270001001058 
060270001001059 
060270001001060 
060270001001061 
060270001001062 
060270001001063 
060270001001064 
060270001001065 
060270001001066 
060270001001067 
060270001001068 
060270001001069 
060270001001070 
060270001001071 
060270001001072 
060270001001073 
060270001001074 
060270001001075 
060270001001076 
060270001001077 
060270001001078 
060270001001079 
060270001001080 
060270001001081 
060270001001082 
060270001001083 
060270001001084 
060270001001085 
060270001001086 
060270001001087 
060270001001088 
060270001001089 
060270001001090 
060270001001091 
060270001001092 
060270001001093 
060270001001094 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 002



060270001001095 
060270001001096 
060270001001097 
060270001001099 
060270001001100 
060270001001101 
060270001001102 
060270001001103 
060270001001104 
060270001001105 
060270001001106 
060270001001107 
060270001001108 
060270001001109 
060270001001112 
060270001001113 
060270001001114 
060270001001115 
060270001001116 
060270001001117 
060270001001118 
060270001001119 
060270001001120 
060270001001121 
060270001001122 
060270001001123 
060270001001125 
060270001001126 
060270001001127 
060270001001128 
060270001001129 
060270001001132 
060270001001133 
060270001001134 
060270001001135 
060270001001136 
060270001001137 
060270001001138 
060270001001139 
060270001001140 
060270001001141 
060270001001142 
060270001001147 
060270001001148 
060270001001149 
060270001001150 
060270001001151 
060270001001152 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 003



060270001001154 
060270001001155 
060270001001156 
060270001001157 
060270001001158 
060270001001159 
060270001002000 
060270001002001 
060270001002002 
060270001002003 
060270001002004 
060270001002005 
060270001002006 
060270001002007 
060270001002008 
060270001002009 
060270001002010 
060270001002011 
060270001002012 
060270001002013 
060270001002014 
060270001002024 
060270001002025 
060270001002026 
060270001002027 
060270001002028 
060270001002029 
060270001002030 
060270001002031 
060270001002032 
060270001002033 
060270001002034 
060270001002035 
060270001002036 
060270001002037 
060270001002038 
060270001002039 
060270001002040 
060270001002041 
060270001002042 
060270001002043 
060270001002044 
060270001002045 
060270001002048 
060270001002049 
060270001002050 
060270002001000 
060270002001001 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 004



060270002001002 
060270002001003 
060270002001004 
060270002001007 
060270002001008 
060270002001009 
060270002001010 
060270002001011 
060270002001012 
060270002001013 
060270002001020 
060270002001185 
060270002001194 
060270002001195 
060270002002006 
060270002002007 
060270002002008 
060270002002009 
060270002002010 
060270002002011 
060270002002012 
060270002002013 
060270002002014 
060270002002017 
060270003001000 
060270003001005 
060270003001006 
060270003001007 
060270003001008 
060270003001009 
060270003001010 
060270003001011 
060270003001012 
060270003001013 
060270003001016 
060270003001030 
060270003002007 
060270003002008 
060270003002009 
060270004001000 
060270004001001 
060270004001002 
060270004002002 
060270004002009 
060270004002010 
060270004002042 
060270004002053 
060270004002054 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 005



060270004002055 
060270004002057 
060270004002058 
060270004002060 
060270004003004 
060270005001000 
060270005001001 
060270005001002 
060270005001003 
060270005001004 
060270005001005 
060270005001006 
060270005001007 
060270005001008 
060270005001009 
060270005001010 
060270005001011 
060270005001012 
060270005001013 
060270005001014 
060270005001015 
060270005001016 
060270005001017 
060270005001018 
060270005001019 
060270005001020 
060270005001021 
060270005001022 
060270005001023 
060270005001024 
060270005001025 
060270005001026 
060270005001027 
060270005001028 
060270005001029 
060270005001030 
060270005001031 
060270005001032 
060270005001033 
060270005001034 
060270005001035 
060270005001036 
060270005001037 
060270005001038 
060270005001039 
060270005001040 
060270005001041 
060270005001042 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 006



060270005001043 
060270005001044 
060270005001045 
060270005001046 
060270005001047 
060270005001048 
060270005001049 
060270005001051 
060270005001052 
060270005001053 
060270005001054 
060270005001055 
060270005001056 
060270005001057 
060270005001058 
060270005001059 
060270005001060 
060270005001061 
060270005001062 
060270005001063 
060270005001064 
060270005001065 
060270005001066 
060270005001067 
060270005001068 
060270005001069 
060270005001070 
060270005001071 
060270005001072 
060270005001073 
060270005001076 
060270005001077 
060270005001083 
060270005001084 
060270005001085 
060270005001086 
060270005001087 
060270005001088 
060270005001089 
060270005001090 
060270005001091 
060270005001387 
060270005001389 
060270005001390 
060270005001391 
060270005001392 
060270005001393 
060270005001411 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 007



060270005001485 
060270005001488 
060270005001489 
060270005001490 
060270005001491 
060270005001492 
060270005001493 
060270005001494 
060270005001495 
060270005001496 
060270005001497 
060270005001498 
060270005001499 
060270005001500 
060270005001501 
060270005001502 
060270005001503 
060270005001505 
060270005001506 
060270005001507 
060270005001508 
060270005001509 
060270005001510 
060270005001511 
060270005001512 
 
District 2 
060270001001098 
060270001001110 
060270001001111 
060270004002000 
060270004002001 
060270004002003 
060270004002004 
060270004002005 
060270004002006 
060270004002007 
060270004002008 
060270004002011 
060270004002012 
060270004002013 
060270004002014 
060270004002015 
060270004002016 
060270004002017 
060270004002018 
060270004002019 
060270004002020 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 008



060270004002021 
060270004002022 
060270004002023 
060270004002024 
060270004002025 
060270004002026 
060270004002027 
060270004002028 
060270004002029 
060270004002030 
060270004002031 
060270004002032 
060270004002033 
060270004002034 
060270004002035 
060270004002036 
060270004002037 
060270004002038 
060270004002039 
060270004002040 
060270004002041 
060270004002043 
060270004002044 
060270004002045 
060270004002046 
060270004002047 
060270004002048 
060270004002049 
060270004002050 
060270004002051 
060270004002052 
060270004002056 
060270004002059 
060270004003000 
060270004003001 
060270004003002 
060270004003003 
060270004003005 
060270004003006 
060270004003007 
060270004003008 
060270004003009 
060270004003010 
060270004003011 
060270004003012 
060270004003013 
060270004003014 
060270004003015 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 009



060270004003016 
060270004003017 
060270004003018 
060270004003019 
060270004003020 
060270004003021 
060270004003022 
060270004003023 
060270004003024 
060270004003025 
060270004003026 
060270004003027 
060270004003028 
060270004003029 
060270004003030 
060270004003031 
060270004003032 
060270004003033 
060270004003034 
060270004003035 
060270004003036 
060270004003037 
060270004003038 
060270004003039 
060270004003040 
060270004003041 
060270004004000 
060270004004001 
060270004004002 
060270004004003 
060270004004004 
060270004004005 
060270004004006 
060270004004007 
060270004004008 
060270004004009 
060270004004010 
060270004004011 
060270004004012 
060270004004013 
 
District 3 
060270003001017 
060270003001018 
060270003001019 
060270003001020 
060270003001021 
060270003001022 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 010



060270003001023 
060270003001024 
060270003001025 
060270003001026 
060270003001027 
060270003001028 
060270003001029 
060270003002000 
060270003002001 
060270003002002 
060270003002003 
060270003002004 
060270003002005 
060270003002006 
060270004001003 
060270004001004 
060270004001005 
060270004001006 
060270004001007 
060270004001008 
060270004001009 
060270004001010 
060270004001011 
060270004001012 
060270004001013 
060270004001014 
060270004001015 
060270004001016 
060270004001017 
060270004001018 
060270004001019 
060270004001020 
060270004001021 
060270004001022 
060270004001023 
060270004001024 
060270004001025 
060270004001026 
 
District 4 
060270001001124 
060270001001130 
060270001001131 
060270001001143 
060270001001144 
060270001001145 
060270001001146 
060270001001153 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 011



060270001001160 
060270001002015 
060270001002016 
060270001002017 
060270001002018 
060270001002019 
060270001002020 
060270001002021 
060270001002022 
060270001002023 
060270001002046 
060270001002047 
060270002001005 
060270002001006 
060270002001014 
060270002001015 
060270002001016 
060270002001017 
060270002001018 
060270002001019 
060270002001021 
060270002001022 
060270002001023 
060270002001024 
060270002001025 
060270002001026 
060270002001027 
060270002001028 
060270002001029 
060270002001030 
060270002001031 
060270002001032 
060270002001033 
060270002001034 
060270002001035 
060270002001036 
060270002001037 
060270002001038 
060270002001039 
060270002001040 
060270002001041 
060270002001042 
060270002001043 
060270002001044 
060270002001045 
060270002001046 
060270002001047 
060270002001048 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 012



060270002001049 
060270002001050 
060270002001051 
060270002001052 
060270002001053 
060270002001054 
060270002001055 
060270002001056 
060270002001057 
060270002001058 
060270002001059 
060270002001060 
060270002001061 
060270002001062 
060270002001063 
060270002001064 
060270002001065 
060270002001066 
060270002001067 
060270002001068 
060270002001069 
060270002001070 
060270002001071 
060270002001072 
060270002001073 
060270002001074 
060270002001075 
060270002001076 
060270002001077 
060270002001078 
060270002001079 
060270002001080 
060270002001081 
060270002001082 
060270002001083 
060270002001084 
060270002001085 
060270002001086 
060270002001087 
060270002001088 
060270002001089 
060270002001090 
060270002001091 
060270002001092 
060270002001093 
060270002001094 
060270002001095 
060270002001096 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 013



060270002001097 
060270002001098 
060270002001099 
060270002001100 
060270002001101 
060270002001102 
060270002001103 
060270002001104 
060270002001105 
060270002001106 
060270002001107 
060270002001108 
060270002001109 
060270002001110 
060270002001111 
060270002001112 
060270002001113 
060270002001114 
060270002001115 
060270002001116 
060270002001117 
060270002001118 
060270002001119 
060270002001120 
060270002001121 
060270002001122 
060270002001123 
060270002001124 
060270002001125 
060270002001126 
060270002001127 
060270002001128 
060270002001129 
060270002001130 
060270002001131 
060270002001132 
060270002001133 
060270002001134 
060270002001135 
060270002001136 
060270002001137 
060270002001138 
060270002001139 
060270002001140 
060270002001141 
060270002001142 
060270002001143 
060270002001144 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 014



060270002001145 
060270002001146 
060270002001147 
060270002001148 
060270002001149 
060270002001150 
060270002001151 
060270002001152 
060270002001153 
060270002001154 
060270002001155 
060270002001156 
060270002001157 
060270002001158 
060270002001159 
060270002001160 
060270002001161 
060270002001162 
060270002001163 
060270002001164 
060270002001165 
060270002001166 
060270002001167 
060270002001168 
060270002001169 
060270002001170 
060270002001171 
060270002001172 
060270002001173 
060270002001174 
060270002001175 
060270002001176 
060270002001177 
060270002001178 
060270002001179 
060270002001180 
060270002001181 
060270002001182 
060270002001183 
060270002001184 
060270002001186 
060270002001187 
060270002001188 
060270002001189 
060270002001190 
060270002001191 
060270002001192 
060270002001193 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 015



060270002001196 
060270002001197 
060270002001198 
060270002001199 
060270002001200 
060270002001201 
060270002001202 
060270002001203 
060270002001204 
060270002001205 
060270002002000 
060270002002001 
060270002002002 
060270002002003 
060270002002004 
060270002002005 
060270002002015 
060270002002016 
060270002002018 
060270002002019 
060270002002020 
060270002002021 
060270002002022 
060270002002023 
060270002002024 
060270002002025 
060270002002026 
060270002002027 
060270002002028 
060270002002029 
060270002002030 
060270002002031 
060270002002032 
060270002002033 
060270002002034 
060270002002035 
060270002002036 
060270002002037 
060270002002038 
060270002002039 
060270002002040 
060270002002041 
060270002002042 
060270002002043 
060270002002044 
060270002002045 
060270002002046 
060270002002047 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 016



060270002002048 
060270002002049 
060270002002050 
060270002002051 
060270002002052 
060270002002053 
060270002002054 
060270002002055 
060270002002056 
060270002002057 
060270002002058 
060270002002059 
060270002002060 
060270002002061 
060270002002062 
060270002002063 
060270002002064 
060270002002065 
060270002002066 
060270002002067 
060270002002068 
060270002002069 
060270002002070 
060270002002071 
060270002002072 
060270002002073 
060270002002074 
060270002002075 
060270002002076 
060270002002077 
060270002002078 
060270002002079 
060270002002080 
060270002002081 
060270002002082 
060270002002083 
060270002002084 
060270002002085 
060270002002086 
060270002002087 
060270002002088 
060270002002089 
060270002002090 
060270002002091 
060270002002092 
060270002002093 
060270002002094 
060270002002095 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 017



060270002002096 
060270002002097 
060270002002098 
060270002002099 
060270002002100 
060270002002101 
060270002002102 
060270002002103 
060270002002104 
060270002002105 
060270002002106 
060270002002107 
060270002002108 
060270002002109 
060270002002110 
060270002002111 
060270002002112 
060270002002113 
060270002002114 
060270002002115 
060270002002116 
060270002002117 
060270002002118 
060270002002119 
060270002002120 
060270002002121 
060270002002122 
060270002002123 
060270002002124 
060270002002125 
060270002002126 
060270003001001 
060270003001002 
060270003001003 
060270003001004 
060270003001014 
060270003001015 
060270005001074 
060270005001075 
060270005001078 
060270005001079 
060270005001080 
060270005001081 
060270005001082 
060270005001092 
060270005001093 
060270005001094 
060270005001095 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 018



060270005001096 
060270005001097 
060270005001098 
060270005001099 
060270005001100 
060270005001101 
060270005001102 
060270005001103 
060270005001104 
060270005001105 
060270005001106 
060270005001107 
060270005001108 
060270005001109 
060270005001110 
060270005001111 
060270005001112 
060270005001113 
060270005001114 
060270005001115 
060270005001116 
060270005001117 
060270005001118 
060270005001119 
060270005001120 
060270005001121 
060270005001122 
060270005001123 
060270005001124 
060270005001125 
060270005001126 
060270005001127 
060270005001128 
060270005001129 
060270005001130 
060270005001131 
060270005001132 
060270005001133 
060270005001134 
060270005001135 
060270005001136 
060270005001137 
060270005001138 
060270005001139 
060270005001140 
060270005001141 
060270005001142 
060270005001143 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 019



060270005001144 
060270005001145 
060270005001146 
060270005001147 
060270005001148 
060270005001149 
060270005001150 
060270005001151 
060270005001152 
060270005001153 
060270005001154 
060270005001155 
060270005001156 
060270005001157 
060270005001158 
060270005001159 
060270005001160 
060270005001161 
060270005001162 
060270005001163 
060270005001164 
060270005001165 
060270005001166 
060270005001167 
060270005001168 
060270005001169 
060270005001170 
060270005001171 
060270005001172 
060270005001173 
060270005001174 
060270005001175 
060270005001176 
060270005001177 
060270005001178 
060270005001179 
060270005001180 
060270005001181 
060270005001182 
060270005001183 
060270005001184 
060270005001185 
060270005001186 
060270005001187 
060270005001188 
060270005001189 
060270005001190 
060270005001191 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 020



060270005001192 
060270005001193 
060270005001194 
060270005001195 
060270005001196 
060270005001197 
060270005001198 
060270005001199 
060270005001200 
060270005001201 
060270005001202 
060270005001203 
060270005001204 
060270005001205 
060270005001206 
060270005001207 
060270005001208 
060270005001209 
060270005001210 
060270005001211 
060270005001212 
060270005001213 
060270005001214 
060270005001215 
060270005001216 
060270005001217 
060270005001218 
060270005001219 
060270005001220 
060270005001221 
060270005001222 
060270005001224 
060270005001243 
060270005001244 
060270005001245 
060270005001246 
060270005001247 
060270005001248 
060270005001249 
060270005001250 
060270005001251 
060270005001252 
060270005001253 
060270005001254 
060270005001255 
060270005001256 
060270005001257 
060270005001258 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 021



060270005001259 
060270005001260 
060270005001261 
060270005001262 
060270005001263 
060270005001264 
060270005001265 
060270005001266 
060270005001267 
060270005001268 
060270005001269 
060270005001270 
060270005001271 
060270005001272 
060270005001273 
060270005001274 
060270005001275 
060270005001276 
060270005001277 
060270005001278 
060270005001279 
060270005001280 
060270005001281 
060270005001282 
060270005001283 
060270005001284 
060270005001285 
060270005001286 
060270005001287 
060270005001288 
060270005001289 
060270005001290 
060270005001291 
060270005001292 
060270005001293 
060270005001294 
060270005001295 
060270005001296 
060270005001297 
060270005001300 
060270005001374 
060270005001375 
060270005001376 
060270005001377 
060270005001378 
060270005001379 
060270005001380 
060270005001381 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 022



060270005001382 
060270005001383 
060270005001384 
060270005001385 
060270005001412 
060270005001413 
060270005001414 
060270005001427 
060270005001428 
060270005001429 
060270005001430 
060270005001450 
060270005001451 
060270005001455 
060270005001456 
060270005001457 
060270005001458 
060270005001459 
060270005001460 
060270005001461 
060270005001462 
060270005001463 
060270005001464 
060270005001465 
060270005001466 
060270005001467 
060270005001468 
060270005001469 
060270005001470 
060270005001471 
060270005001472 
060270005001473 
060270005001474 
060270005001475 
060270005001476 
060270005001477 
060270005001478 
060270005001479 
060270005001480 
060270005001481 
060270005001482 
060270005001483 
060270005001484 
060270005001486 
060270005001487 
060270005001504 
060270005002000 
060270005002001 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 023



060270005002002 
060270005002003 
060270005002004 
060270005002005 
060270005002006 
060270005002007 
060270005002008 
060270005002009 
060270005002010 
060270005002011 
060270005002012 
060270005002013 
060270005002014 
060270005002015 
060270005002016 
060270005002017 
060270005002018 
060270005002019 
060270005002020 
060270005002021 
060270005002022 
060270005002023 
060270005002024 
060270005002025 
060270005002026 
060270005002027 
060270005002028 
060270005002029 
060270005002030 
060270005002031 
060270005002032 
060270005002033 
060270005002034 
060270005002035 
060270005002036 
060270005002037 
060270005002038 
060270005002039 
060270005002040 
060270005002041 
060270005002042 
060270005002043 
060270005002044 
060270005002045 
060270005002046 
060270005002047 
060270005002048 
060270005002049 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 024



060270005002050 
060270005002051 
060270005002052 
060270005002053 
060270005002054 
060270005002055 
060270005002056 
060270005002057 
060270005002058 
060270005002059 
060270005002060 
060270005002061 
060270005002062 
060270005002063 
060270005002064 
060270005002065 
060270005002066 
060270005002067 
060270005002068 
060270005002069 
060270005002070 
060270005002071 
060270005002072 
060270005002073 
060270005002074 
060270005002075 
060270005002076 
060270005002077 
060270005002078 
060270005002079 
060270005002080 
060270005002081 
060270005002082 
060270005002083 
060270005002084 
060270005002085 
060270005002086 
060270005002087 
060270005002088 
060270005002089 
060270005002090 
060270005002091 
060270005002092 
060270005002093 
060270005002094 
 
District 5 
060270005001050 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 025



060270005001223 
060270005001225 
060270005001226 
060270005001227 
060270005001228 
060270005001229 
060270005001230 
060270005001231 
060270005001232 
060270005001233 
060270005001234 
060270005001235 
060270005001236 
060270005001237 
060270005001238 
060270005001239 
060270005001240 
060270005001241 
060270005001242 
060270005001295 
060270005001298 
060270005001299 
060270005001301 
060270005001302 
060270005001303 
060270005001304 
060270005001305 
060270005001306 
060270005001307 
060270005001308 
060270005001309 
060270005001310 
060270005001311 
060270005001312 
060270005001313 
060270005001314 
060270005001315 
060270005001316 
060270005001317 
060270005001318 
060270005001319 
060270005001320 
060270005001321 
060270005001322 
060270005001323 
060270005001324 
060270005001325 
060270005001326 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 026



060270005001327 
060270005001328 
060270005001329 
060270005001330 
060270005001331 
060270005001332 
060270005001333 
060270005001334 
060270005001335 
060270005001336 
060270005001337 
060270005001338 
060270005001339 
060270005001340 
060270005001341 
060270005001342 
060270005001343 
060270005001344 
060270005001345 
060270005001346 
060270005001347 
060270005001348 
060270005001349 
060270005001350 
060270005001351 
060270005001352 
060270005001353 
060270005001354 
060270005001355 
060270005001356 
060270005001357 
060270005001358 
060270005001359 
060270005001360 
060270005001361 
060270005001362 
060270005001363 
060270005001364 
060270005001365 
060270005001366 
060270005001367 
060270005001368 
060270005001369 
060270005001370 
060270005001371 
060270005001372 
060270005001373 
060270005001386 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 027



060270005001388 
060270005001394 
060270005001395 
060270005001396 
060270005001397 
060270005001398 
060270005001399 
060270005001400 
060270005001401 
060270005001402 
060270005001403 
060270005001404 
060270005001405 
060270005001406 
060270005001407 
060270005001408 
060270005001409 
060270005001410 
060270005001415 
060270005001416 
060270005001417 
060270005001418 
060270005001419 
060270005001420 
060270005001421 
060270005001422 
060270005001423 
060270005001424 
060270005001425 
060270005001426 
060270005001431 
060270005001432 
060270005001433 
060270005001434 
060270005001435 
060270005001436 
060270005001437 
060270005001438 
060270005001439 
060270005001440 
060270005001441 
060270005001442 
060270005001443 
060270005001444 
060270005001445 
060270005001446 
060270005001447 
060270005001448 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 028



060270005001449 
060270005001452 
060270005001453 
060270005001454 
060270008001000 
060270008001001 
060270008001002 
060270008001003 
060270008001004 
060270008001005 
060270008001006 
060270008001007 
060270008001008 
060270008001009 
060270008001010 
060270008001011 
060270008001012 
060270008001013 
060270008001014 
060270008001015 
060270008001016 
060270008001017 
060270008001018 
060270008001019 
060270008001020 
060270008001021 
060270008001022 
060270008001023 
060270008001024 
060270008001025 
060270008001026 
060270008001027 
060270008001028 
060270008001029 
060270008001030 
060270008001031 
060270008001032 
060270008001033 
060270008001034 
060270008001035 
060270008001036 
060270008001037 
060270008001038 
060270008001039 
060270008001040 
060270008001041 
060270008001042 
060270008001043 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 029



060270008001044 
060270008001045 
060270008001046 
060270008001047 
060270008001048 
060270008001049 
060270008001050 
060270008001051 
060270008001052 
060270008001053 
060270008001054 
060270008001055 
060270008001056 
060270008001057 
060270008001058 
060270008001059 
060270008001060 
060270008001061 
060270008001062 
060270008001063 
060270008001064 
060270008001065 
060270008001066 
060270008001067 
060270008001068 
060270008001069 
060270008001070 
060270008001071 
060270008001072 
060270008001073 
060270008001074 
060270008001075 
060270008001076 
060270008001077 
060270008001078 
060270008001079 
060270008001080 
060270008001081 
060270008001082 
060270008001083 
060270008001084 
060270008001085 
060270008001086 
060270008001087 
060270008001088 
060270008001089 
060270008001090 
060270008001091 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 030



060270008001092 
060270008001093 
060270008001094 
060270008001095 
060270008001096 
060270008001097 
060270008001098 
060270008001099 
060270008001100 
060270008001101 
060270008001102 
060270008001103 
060270008001104 
060270008001105 
060270008001106 
060270008001107 
060270008001108 
060270008001109 
060270008001110 
060270008001111 
060270008001112 
060270008001113 
060270008001114 
060270008001115 
060270008001116 
060270008001117 
060270008001118 
060270008001119 
060270008001120 
060270008001121 
060270008001122 
060270008001123 
060270008001124 
060270008001125 
060270008001126 
060270008001127 
060270008001128 
060270008001129 
060270008001130 
060270008001131 
060270008001132 
060270008001133 
060270008001134 
060270008001135 
060270008001136 
060270008001137 
060270008001138 
060270008001139 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 031



060270008001140 
060270008001141 
060270008001142 
060270008001143 
060270008001144 
060270008001145 
060270008001146 
060270008001147 
060270008001148 
060270008001149 
060270008001150 
060270008001151 
060270008001152 
060270008001153 
060270008001154 
060270008001155 
060270008001156 
060270008001157 
060270008001158 
060270008001159 
060270008001160 
060270008001161 
060270008001162 
060270008001163 
060270008001164 
060270008001165 
060270008001166 
060270008001167 
060270008001168 
060270008001169 
060270008001170 
060270008001171 
060270008001172 
060270008001173 
060270008001174 
060270008001175 
060270008001176 
060270008001177 
060270008001178 
060270008001179 
060270008001180 
060270008001181 
060270008001182 
060270008001183 
060270008001184 
060270008001185 
060270008001186 
060270008001187 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 032



060270008001188 
060270008001189 
060270008001190 
060270008001191 
060270008001192 
060270008001193 
060270008001194 
060270008001195 
060270008001196 
060270008001197 
060270008001198 
060270008001199 
060270008001200 
060270008001201 
060270008001202 
060270008001203 
060270008001204 
060270008001205 
060270008001206 
060270008001207 
060270008001208 
060270008001209 
060270008001210 
060270008001211 
060270008001212 
060270008001213 
060270008001214 
060270008001215 
060270008001216 
060270008001217 
060270008001218 
060270008001219 
060270008001220 
060270008001221 
060270008001222 
060270008001223 
060270008001224 
060270008001225 
060270008001226 
060270008001227 
060270008001228 
060270008001229 
060270008001230 
060270008001231 
060270008001232 
060270008001233 
060270008001234 
060270008001235 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 033



060270008001236 
060270008001237 
060270008001238 
060270008001239 
060270008001240 
060270008001241 
060270008001242 
060270008001243 
060270008001244 
060270008001245 
060270008001246 
060270008001247 
060270008001248 
060270008001249 
060270008001250 
060270008001251 
060270008001252 
060270008001253 
060270008001254 
060270008001255 
060270008001256 
060270008001257 
060270008001258 
060270008001259 
060270008001260 
060270008001261 
060270008001262 
060270008001263 
060270008001264 
060270008001265 
060270008001266 
060270008001267 
060270008001268 
060270008001269 
060270008001270 
060270008001271 
060270008001272 
060270008001273 
060270008001274 
060270008001275 
060270008001276 
060270008001277 
060270008001278 
060270008001279 
060270008001280 
060270008001281 
060270008001282 
060270008001283 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 034



060270008001284 
060270008001285 
060270008001286 
060270008001287 
060270008001288 
060270008001289 
060270008001290 
060270008001291 
060270008001292 
060270008001293 
060270008001294 
060270008001295 
060270008001296 
060270008001297 
060270008001298 
060270008001299 
060270008001300 
060270008001301 
060270008001302 
060270008001303 
060270008001304 
060270008001305 
060270008001306 
060270008001307 
060270008001308 
060270008001309 
060270008001310 
060270008001311 
060270008001312 
060270008001313 
060270008001314 
060270008001315 
060270008001316 
060270008001317 
060270008001318 
060270008001319 
060270008001320 
060270008001321 
060270008001322 
060270008001323 
060270008001324 
060270008001325 
060270008001326 
060270008001327 
060270008001328 
060270008001329 
060270008001330 
060270008001331 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 035



060270008001332 
060270008001333 
060270008001334 
060270008001335 
060270008001336 
060270008001337 
060270008001338 
060270008001339 
060270008001340 
060270008001341 
060270008001342 
060270008001343 
060270008001344 
060270008001345 
060270008001346 
060270008001347 
060270008001348 
060270008001349 
060270008001350 
060270008001351 
060270008001352 
060270008001353 
060270008002000 
060270008002001 
060270008002002 
060270008002003 
060270008002004 
060270008002005 
060270008002006 
060270008002007 
060270008002008 
060270008002009 
060270008002010 
060270008002011 
060270008002012 
060270008002013 
060270008002014 
060270008002015 
060270008002016 
060270008002017 
060270008002018 
060270008002019 
060270008002020 
060270008002021 
060270008002022 
060270008002023 
060270008002024 
060270008002025 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 036



060270008002026 
060270008002027 
060270008002028 
060270008002029 
060270008002030 
060270008002031 
060270008002032 
060270008002033 
060270008002034 
060270008002035 
060270008002036 
060270008002037 
060270008002038 
060270008002039 
060270008002040 
060270008002041 
060270008002042 
060270008002043 
060270008002044 
060270008002045 
060270008002046 
060270008002047 
060270008002048 
060270008002049 
060270008002050 
060270008002051 
060270008002052 
060270008002053 
060270008002054 
060270008002055 
060270008002056 
060270008002057 
060270008002058 
060270008002059 
060270008002060 
060270008002061 
060270008002062 
060270008002063 
060270008002064 
060270008002065 
060270008002066 
060270008002067 
060270008002068 
060270008002069 
060270008002070 
060270008002071 
060270008002072 
060270008002073 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 037



060270008002074 
060270008002075 
060270008002076 
060270008002077 
060270008002078 
060270008002079 
060270008002080 
060270008002081 
060270008002082 
060270008002083 
060270008002084 
060270008002085 
060270008002086 
060270008002087 
060270008002088 
060270008002089 
060270008002090 
060270008002091 
060270008002092 
060270008002093 
060270008002094 
060270008002095 
060270008002096 
060270008002097 
060270008002098 
060270008002099 
060270008002100 
060270008002101 
060270008002102 
060270008002103 
060270008002104 
060270008002105 
060270008002106 
060270008002107 
060270008002108 
060270008002109 
060270008002110 
060270008002111 
060270008002112 
060270008002113 
060270008002114 
060270008002115 
060270008002116 
060270008002117 
060270008002118 
060270008002119 
060270008002120 
060270008002121 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 038



060270008002122 
060270008002123 
060270008002124 
060270008002125 
060270008002126 
060270008002127 
060270008002128 
060270008002129 
060270008002130 
060270008002131 
060270008002132 
060270008002133 
060270008002134 
060270008002135 
060270008002136 
060270008002137 
060270008002138 
060270008002139 
060270008002140 
060270008002141 
060270008002142 
060270008002143 
060270008002144 
060270008002145 
060270008002146 
060270008002147 
060270008002148 
060270008002149 
060270008002150 
060270008002151 
060270008002152 
060270008002153 
060270008002154 
060270008002155 
060270008002156 
060270008002157 
060270008002158 
060270008002159 
060270008002160 
060270008002161 
060270008002162 
060270008002163 
060270008002164 
060270008002165 
060270008002166 
060270008002167 
060270008002168 
060270008002169 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 039



060270008002170 
060270008002171 
060270008002172 
060270008002173 
060270008002174 
060270008002175 
060270008002176 
060270008002177 
060270008002178 
060270008002179 
060270008002180 
060270008002181 
060270008002182 
060270008002183 
060270008002184 
060270008002185 
060270008002186 
060270008002187 
060270008002188 
060270008002189 
060270008002190 
060270008002191 
060270008002192 
060270008002193 
060270008002194 
060270008002195 
060270008002196 
060270008002197 
060270008002198 
060270008002199 
060270008002200 
060270008002201 
060270008002202 
060270008002203 
060270008002204 
060270008002205 
060270008002206 
060270008002207 
060270008002208 
060270008002209 
060270008002210 
060270008002211 
060270008002212 
060270008002213 
060270008002214 
060270008002215 
060270008002216 
060270008002217 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 040



060270008002218 
060270008002219 
060270008002220 
060270008002221 
060270008002222 
060270008002223 
060270008002224 
060270008002225 
060270008002226 
060270008002227 
060270008002228 
060270008002229 
060270008002230 
060270008002231 
060270008002232 
060270008002233 
060270008002234 
060270008002235 
060270008002236 
060270008002237 
060270008002238 
060270008002239 
060270008002240 
060270008002241 
060270008002242 
060270008002243 
060270008002244 
060270008002245 
060270008002246 
060270008002247 
060270008002248 
060270008002249 
060270008002250 
060270008002251 
060270008002252 
060270008002253 
060270008002254 
060270008002255 
060270008002256 
060270008002257 
060270008002258 
060270008002259 
060270008002260 
060270008002261 
060270008002262 
060270008002263 
060270008002264 
060270008002265 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 041



060270008002266 
060270008002267 
060270008002268 
060270008002269 
060270008002270 
060270008002271 
060270008002272 
060270008002273 
060270008002274 
060270008002275 
060270008002276 
060270008002277 
060270008002278 
060270008002279 
060270008002280 
060270008002281 
060270008002282 
060270008002283 
060270008002284 
060270008002285 
060270008002286 
060270008002287 
060270008002288 
060270008002289 
060270008002290 
060270008002291 
060270008002292 
060270008002293 
060270008002294 
060270008002295 
060270008002296 
060270008002297 
060270008002298 
060270008002299 
060270008002300 
060270008002301 
060270008002302 
060270008002303 
060270008002304 
060270008002305 
060270008002306 
060270008002307 
060270008002308 
060270008002309 
060270008002310 
060270008002311 
060270008002312 
060270008002313 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 042



060270008002314 
060270008002315 
060270008002316 
060270008002317 
060270008002318 
060270008002319 
060270008002320 
060270008002321 
060270008002322 
060270008002323 
060270008002324 
060270008002325 
060270008002326 
060270008002327 
060270008002328 
060270008002329 
060270008002330 
060270008002331 
060270008002332 
060270008002333 
060270008002334 
060270008002335 
060270008002336 
060270008002337 
060270008002338 
060270008002339 
060270008002340 
060270008002341 
060270008002342 
060270008002343 
060270008002344 
060270008002345 
060270008002346 
060270008002347 
060270008002348 
060270008002349 
060270008002350 
060270008002351 
060270008002352 
060270008002353 
060270008002354 
060270008002355 
060270008002356 
060270008002357 
060270008002358 
060270008002359 
060270008002360 
060270008002361 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 043



060270008002362 
060270008002363 
060270008002364 
060270008002365 
060270008002366 
060270008002367 
060270008002368 
060270008002369 
060270008002370 
060270008002371 
060270008002372 
060270008002373 
060270008002374 
060270008002375 
060270008002376 
060270008002377 
060270008002378 
060270008002379 
060270008002380 
060270008002381 
060270008002382 
060270008002383 
060270008002384 
060270008002385 
060270008002386 
060270008002387 
060270008002388 
060270008002389 
060270008002390 
060270008002391 
060270008002392 
060270008002393 
060270008002394 
060270008002395 
060270008002396 
060270008002397 
060270008002398 
060270008002399 
060270008002400 
060270008002401 
060270008002402 
060270008002403 
060270008002404 
060270008002405 
060270008002406 
060270008002407 
060270008002408 
060270008002409 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 044



060270008002410 
060270008002411 
060270008002412 
060270008002413 
060270008002414 
060270008002415 
060270008002416 
060270008002417 
060270008002418 
060270008002419 
060270008002420 
060270008002421 
060270008002422 
060270008002423 
060270008002424 
060270008002425 
060270008002426 
060270008002427 
060270008002428 
060270008002429 
060270008002430 
060270008002431 
060270008002432 
060270008002433 
060270008002434 
060270008002435 
060270008002436 
060270008002437 
060270008002438 
060270008002439 
060270008002440 
060270008002441 
060270008002442 
060270008002443 
060270008002444 
060270008002445 
060270008002446 
060270008002447 
060270008002448 
060270008002449 
060270008002450 
060270008002451 
060270008002452 
060270008002453 
060270008002454 
060270008002455 
060270008002456 
060270008002457 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 045



060270008002458 
060270008002459 
060270008002460 
060270008002461 
060270008002462 
060270008002463 
060270008002464 
060270008002465 
060270008002466 
060270008002467 
060270008002468 
060270008002469 
060270008002470 
060270008002471 
060270008002472 
060270008002473 
060270008002474 
060270008002475 
060270008002476 
060270008002477 
060270008002478 
060270008002479 
060270008002480 
060270008002481 
060270008002482 
060270008002483 
060270008002484 
060270008002485 
060270008002486 
060270008002487 
060270008002488 
060270008002489 
060270008002490 
060270008002491 
060270008002492 
060270008002493 
060270008002494 
060270008002495 
060270008002496 
060270008002497 
060270008002498 
060270008002499 
060270008002500 
060270008002501 
060270008002502 
060270008002503 
060270008002504 
060270008002505 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 046



060270008002506 
060270008002507 
060270008002508 
060270008002509 
060270008002510 
060270008002511 
060270008002512 
060270008002513 
060270008002514 
060270008002515 
060270008002516 
060270008002517 
060270008002518 
060270008002519 
060270008002520 
060270008002521 
060270008002522 
060270008002523 
060270008002524 
060270008002525 
060270008002526 
060270008002527 
060270008002528 
060270008002529 
060270008002530 
060270008002531 
060270008002532 
060270008002533 
060270008002534 
060270008002535 
060270008002536 
060270008002537 
060270008002538 
060270008002539 
060270008002540 
060270008002541 
060270008002542 
060270008002543 
060270008002544 
060270008002545 
060270008002546 
060270008002547 
060270008002548 
060270008002549 
060270008002550 
060270008002551 
060270008002552 
060270008002553 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 047



060270008002554 
060270008002555 
060270008002556 
060270008002557 
060270008002558 
060270008002559 
060270008002560 
060270008002561 
060270008002562 
060270008002563 
060270008002564 
060270008002565 
060270008002566 
060270008002567 
060270008002568 
060270008002569 
060270008002570 
060270008002571 
060270008002572 
060270008002573 
060270008002574 
060270008002575 
060270008002576 
060270008002577 
060270008002578 
060270008002579 
060270008002580 
060270008002581 
060270008002582 
060270008002583 
060270008002584 
060270008002585 
060270008002586 
060270008002587 
060270008002588 
060270008002589 
060270008002590 
060270008002591 
060270008002592 
060270008002593 
060270008002594 
060270008003000 
060270008003001 
060270008003002 
060270008003003 
060270008003004 
060270008003005 
060270008003006 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 048



060270008003007 
060270008003008 
060270008003009 
060270008003010 
060270008003011 
060270008003012 
060270008003013 
060270008003014 
060270008003015 
060270008003016 
060270008003017 
060270008003018 
060270008003019 
060270008003020 
060270008003021 
060270008003022 
060270008003023 
060270008003024 
060270008003025 
060270008003026 
060270008003027 
060270008003028 
060270008003029 
060270008003030 
060270008003031 
060270008003032 
060270008003033 
060270008003034 
060270008003035 
060270008003036 
060270008003037 
060270008003038 
060270008003039 
060270008003040 
060270008003041 
060270008003042 
060270008003043 
060270008003044 
060270008003045 
060270008003046 
060270008003047 
060270008003048 
060270008003049 
060270008003050 
060270008003051 
060270008003052 
060270008003053 
060270008003054 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 049



060270008003055 
060270008003056 
060270008003057 
060270008003058 
060270008003059 
060270008004000 
060270008004001 
060270008004002 
060270008004003 
060270008004004 
060270008004005 
060270008004006 
060270008004007 
060270008004008 
060270008004009 
060270008004010 
060270008004011 
060270008004012 
060270008004013 
060270008004014 
060270008004015 
060270008004016 
060270008004017 
060270008004018 
060270008004019 
060270008004020 
060270008004021 
060270008004022 
060270008004023 
060270008004024 
060270008004025 
060270008004026 
060270008004027 
060270008004028 
060270008004029 
060270008004030 
060270008004031 
060270008004032 
060270008004033 
060270008004034 
060270008004035 
060270008004036 
060270008004037 
060270008004038 
060270008004039 
060270008004040 
060270008004041 
060270008004042 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 050



060270008004043 
060270008004044 
060270008004045 
060270008004046 
060270008004047 
060270008004048 
060270008004049 
060270008004050 
060270008004051 
060270008004052 
060270008004053 
060270008004054 
060270008004055 
060270008004056 
060270008004057 
060270008004058 
060270008004059 
060270008004060 
060270008004061 
060270008004062 
060270008004063 
060270008004064 
060270008004065 
060270008004066 
060270008004067 
060270008004068 
060270008004069 
060270008004070 
060270008004071 
060270008004072 
060270008004073 
060270008004074 
060270008004075 
060270008004076 
060270008004077 
060270008004078 
060270008004079 
060270008004080 
060270008004081 
060270008004082 
060270008004083 
060270008004084 
060270008004085 
060270008004086 
060270008004087 
060270008004088 
060270008004089 
060270008004090 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 051



060270008004091 
060270008004092 
060270008004093 
060270008004094 
060270008004095 
060270008004096 
060270008004097 
060270008004098 
060270008004099 
060270008004100 
 

Option 3 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in all districts - p. 052



District 1 
060270001001012 
060270001001013 
060270001001014 
060270001001015 
060270001001016 
060270001001023 
060270001001027 
060270001001028 
060270001001029 
060270001001030 
060270001001031 
060270001001032 
060270001001033 
060270001001034 
060270001001035 
060270001001036 
060270001001037 
060270001001038 
060270001001039 
060270001001040 
060270001001041 
060270001001042 
060270001001043 
060270001001044 
060270001001045 
060270001001046 
060270001001047 
060270001001048 
060270001001049 
060270001001050 
060270001001051 
060270001001052 
060270001001062 
060270001001063 
060270001001064 
060270001001065 
060270001001066 
060270001001067 
060270001001068 
060270001001069 
060270001001070 
060270001001071 
060270001001072 
060270001001073 
060270001001074 
060270001001075 
060270001001076 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 001



060270001001077 
060270001001078 
060270001001079 
060270001001080 
060270001001081 
060270001001082 
060270001001083 
060270001001084 
060270001001085 
060270001001086 
060270001001087 
060270001001088 
060270001001089 
060270001001090 
060270001001091 
060270001001092 
060270001001093 
060270001001095 
060270001001096 
060270001001100 
060270001001104 
060270001001110 
060270001001111 
060270001001112 
060270001001113 
060270001001114 
060270001001152 
060270001002000 
060270001002001 
060270001002002 
060270001002003 
060270001002004 
060270001002005 
060270001002006 
060270001002007 
060270001002008 
060270001002009 
060270001002010 
060270001002011 
060270001002012 
060270001002013 
060270001002014 
060270001002015 
060270001002016 
060270001002017 
060270001002018 
060270001002019 
060270001002020 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 002



060270001002021 
060270001002022 
060270001002023 
060270001002024 
060270001002025 
060270001002026 
060270001002027 
060270001002028 
060270001002029 
060270001002030 
060270001002031 
060270001002032 
060270001002033 
060270001002034 
060270001002035 
060270001002036 
060270001002037 
060270001002038 
060270001002039 
060270001002040 
060270001002041 
060270001002042 
060270001002043 
060270001002044 
060270001002045 
060270001002046 
060270001002047 
060270001002048 
060270001002049 
060270001002050 
060270002001000 
060270002001001 
060270002001002 
060270002001003 
060270002001004 
060270002001005 
060270002001006 
060270002001007 
060270002001008 
060270002001009 
060270002001010 
060270002001011 
060270002001012 
060270002001013 
060270002001014 
060270002001015 
060270002001016 
060270002001017 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 003



060270002001018 
060270002001019 
060270002001020 
060270002001021 
060270002001022 
060270002001023 
060270002001024 
060270002001025 
060270002001026 
060270002001027 
060270002001030 
060270002001031 
060270002001032 
060270002001101 
060270002001102 
060270002001103 
060270002001104 
060270002001109 
060270002001110 
060270002001123 
060270002001124 
060270002001193 
060270002001194 
060270002001195 
060270003001000 
060270003001005 
060270003001006 
060270003001007 
060270003001008 
060270003001009 
060270003001010 
060270003001011 
060270003001012 
060270003001013 
060270003001016 
060270003001030 
060270004001000 
060270004001001 
060270004001002 
060270004002000 
060270004002002 
 
District 2 
060270001001098 
060270004002001 
060270004002003 
060270004002004 
060270004002005 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 004



060270004002006 
060270004002007 
060270004002008 
060270004002011 
060270004002012 
060270004002013 
060270004002014 
060270004002015 
060270004002016 
060270004002017 
060270004002018 
060270004002019 
060270004002020 
060270004002021 
060270004002022 
060270004002023 
060270004002024 
060270004002025 
060270004002026 
060270004002027 
060270004002028 
060270004002029 
060270004002030 
060270004002031 
060270004002032 
060270004002033 
060270004002034 
060270004002035 
060270004002036 
060270004002037 
060270004002038 
060270004002039 
060270004002040 
060270004002041 
060270004002043 
060270004002044 
060270004002045 
060270004002046 
060270004002047 
060270004002048 
060270004002049 
060270004002050 
060270004002051 
060270004002052 
060270004002053 
060270004002054 
060270004002056 
060270004002059 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 005



060270004003000 
060270004003001 
060270004003002 
060270004003003 
060270004003005 
060270004003006 
060270004003007 
060270004003008 
060270004003009 
060270004003010 
060270004003011 
060270004003012 
060270004003013 
060270004003014 
060270004003015 
060270004003016 
060270004003017 
060270004003018 
060270004003019 
060270004003020 
060270004003021 
060270004003022 
060270004003023 
060270004003024 
060270004003025 
060270004003026 
060270004003027 
060270004003028 
060270004003029 
060270004003030 
060270004003031 
060270004003032 
060270004003033 
060270004003034 
060270004003035 
060270004003036 
060270004003037 
060270004003038 
060270004003039 
060270004003040 
060270004003041 
060270004004000 
060270004004001 
060270004004002 
060270004004003 
060270004004004 
060270004004005 
060270004004006 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 006



060270004004007 
060270004004008 
060270004004009 
060270004004010 
060270004004011 
060270004004012 
060270004004013 
 
District 3 
060270002002002 
060270002002003 
060270003001017 
060270003001018 
060270003001019 
060270003001020 
060270003001023 
060270003001024 
060270003001025 
060270003001026 
060270003001027 
060270003001028 
060270003001029 
060270003002000 
060270003002001 
060270003002002 
060270003002003 
060270003002004 
060270003002005 
060270004001003 
060270004001004 
060270004001005 
060270004001006 
060270004001007 
060270004001008 
060270004001009 
060270004001010 
060270004001011 
060270004001012 
060270004001013 
060270004001014 
060270004001015 
060270004001016 
060270004001017 
060270004001018 
060270004001019 
060270004001020 
060270004001021 
060270004001022 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 007



060270004001023 
060270004001024 
060270004001025 
060270004001026 
060270004002009 
060270004002010 
 
District 4 
060270001001000 
060270001001001 
060270001001002 
060270001001003 
060270001001004 
060270001001005 
060270001001006 
060270001001007 
060270001001008 
060270001001009 
060270001001010 
060270001001011 
060270001001017 
060270001001018 
060270001001019 
060270001001020 
060270001001021 
060270001001022 
060270001001024 
060270001001025 
060270001001026 
060270001001053 
060270001001054 
060270001001055 
060270001001056 
060270001001057 
060270001001058 
060270001001059 
060270001001060 
060270001001061 
060270001001094 
060270001001097 
060270001001099 
060270001001101 
060270001001102 
060270001001103 
060270001001105 
060270001001106 
060270001001107 
060270001001108 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 008



060270001001109 
060270001001115 
060270001001116 
060270001001117 
060270001001118 
060270001001119 
060270001001120 
060270001001121 
060270001001122 
060270001001123 
060270001001124 
060270001001125 
060270001001126 
060270001001127 
060270001001128 
060270001001129 
060270001001130 
060270001001131 
060270001001132 
060270001001133 
060270001001134 
060270001001135 
060270001001136 
060270001001137 
060270001001138 
060270001001139 
060270001001140 
060270001001141 
060270001001142 
060270001001143 
060270001001144 
060270001001145 
060270001001146 
060270001001147 
060270001001148 
060270001001149 
060270001001150 
060270001001151 
060270001001153 
060270001001154 
060270001001155 
060270001001156 
060270001001157 
060270001001158 
060270001001159 
060270001001160 
060270002001028 
060270002001029 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 009



060270002001033 
060270002001034 
060270002001035 
060270002001036 
060270002001037 
060270002001038 
060270002001039 
060270002001040 
060270002001041 
060270002001042 
060270002001043 
060270002001044 
060270002001045 
060270002001046 
060270002001047 
060270002001048 
060270002001049 
060270002001050 
060270002001051 
060270002001052 
060270002001053 
060270002001054 
060270002001055 
060270002001056 
060270002001057 
060270002001058 
060270002001059 
060270002001060 
060270002001061 
060270002001062 
060270002001063 
060270002001064 
060270002001065 
060270002001066 
060270002001067 
060270002001068 
060270002001069 
060270002001070 
060270002001071 
060270002001072 
060270002001073 
060270002001074 
060270002001075 
060270002001076 
060270002001077 
060270002001078 
060270002001079 
060270002001080 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 010



060270002001081 
060270002001082 
060270002001083 
060270002001084 
060270002001085 
060270002001086 
060270002001087 
060270002001088 
060270002001089 
060270002001090 
060270002001091 
060270002001092 
060270002001093 
060270002001094 
060270002001095 
060270002001096 
060270002001097 
060270002001098 
060270002001099 
060270002001100 
060270002001105 
060270002001106 
060270002001107 
060270002001108 
060270002001111 
060270002001112 
060270002001113 
060270002001114 
060270002001115 
060270002001116 
060270002001117 
060270002001118 
060270002001119 
060270002001120 
060270002001121 
060270002001122 
060270002001125 
060270002001126 
060270002001127 
060270002001128 
060270002001129 
060270002001130 
060270002001131 
060270002001132 
060270002001133 
060270002001134 
060270002001135 
060270002001136 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 011



060270002001137 
060270002001138 
060270002001139 
060270002001140 
060270002001141 
060270002001142 
060270002001143 
060270002001144 
060270002001145 
060270002001146 
060270002001147 
060270002001148 
060270002001149 
060270002001150 
060270002001151 
060270002001152 
060270002001153 
060270002001154 
060270002001155 
060270002001156 
060270002001157 
060270002001158 
060270002001159 
060270002001160 
060270002001161 
060270002001162 
060270002001163 
060270002001164 
060270002001165 
060270002001166 
060270002001167 
060270002001168 
060270002001169 
060270002001170 
060270002001171 
060270002001172 
060270002001173 
060270002001174 
060270002001175 
060270002001176 
060270002001177 
060270002001178 
060270002001179 
060270002001180 
060270002001181 
060270002001182 
060270002001183 
060270002001184 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 012



060270002001185 
060270002001186 
060270002001187 
060270002001188 
060270002001189 
060270002001190 
060270002001191 
060270002001192 
060270002001196 
060270002001197 
060270002001198 
060270002001199 
060270002001200 
060270002001201 
060270002001202 
060270002001203 
060270002001204 
060270002001205 
060270002002000 
060270002002001 
060270002002004 
060270002002005 
060270002002006 
060270002002007 
060270002002008 
060270002002009 
060270002002010 
060270002002011 
060270002002012 
060270002002013 
060270002002014 
060270002002015 
060270002002016 
060270002002017 
060270002002018 
060270002002019 
060270002002020 
060270002002021 
060270002002022 
060270002002023 
060270002002024 
060270002002025 
060270002002026 
060270002002027 
060270002002028 
060270002002029 
060270002002030 
060270002002031 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 013



060270002002032 
060270002002033 
060270002002034 
060270002002035 
060270002002036 
060270002002037 
060270002002038 
060270002002039 
060270002002040 
060270002002041 
060270002002042 
060270002002043 
060270002002044 
060270002002045 
060270002002046 
060270002002047 
060270002002048 
060270002002049 
060270002002050 
060270002002051 
060270002002052 
060270002002053 
060270002002054 
060270002002055 
060270002002056 
060270002002057 
060270002002058 
060270002002059 
060270002002060 
060270002002061 
060270002002062 
060270002002063 
060270002002064 
060270002002065 
060270002002066 
060270002002067 
060270002002068 
060270002002069 
060270002002070 
060270002002071 
060270002002072 
060270002002073 
060270002002074 
060270002002075 
060270002002076 
060270002002077 
060270002002078 
060270002002079 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 014



060270002002080 
060270002002081 
060270002002082 
060270002002083 
060270002002084 
060270002002085 
060270002002086 
060270002002087 
060270002002088 
060270002002089 
060270002002090 
060270002002091 
060270002002092 
060270002002093 
060270002002094 
060270002002095 
060270002002096 
060270002002097 
060270002002098 
060270002002099 
060270002002100 
060270002002101 
060270002002102 
060270002002103 
060270002002104 
060270002002105 
060270002002106 
060270002002107 
060270002002108 
060270002002109 
060270002002110 
060270002002111 
060270002002112 
060270002002113 
060270002002114 
060270002002115 
060270002002116 
060270002002117 
060270002002118 
060270002002119 
060270002002120 
060270002002121 
060270002002122 
060270002002123 
060270002002124 
060270002002125 
060270002002126 
060270003001001 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 015



060270003001002 
060270003001003 
060270003001004 
060270003001014 
060270003001015 
060270003001021 
060270003001022 
060270003002006 
060270003002007 
060270003002008 
060270003002009 
060270004002042 
060270004002055 
060270004002057 
060270004002058 
060270004002060 
060270004003004 
060270005001000 
060270005001001 
060270005001002 
060270005001003 
060270005001004 
060270005001005 
060270005001006 
060270005001007 
060270005001008 
060270005001009 
060270005001010 
060270005001011 
060270005001012 
060270005001013 
060270005001014 
060270005001015 
060270005001016 
060270005001017 
060270005001018 
060270005001019 
060270005001020 
060270005001021 
060270005001024 
060270005001025 
060270005001026 
060270005001027 
060270005001028 
060270005001029 
060270005001030 
060270005001031 
060270005001032 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 016



060270005001033 
060270005001034 
060270005001035 
060270005001036 
060270005001037 
060270005001038 
060270005001039 
060270005001040 
060270005001041 
060270005001043 
060270005001044 
060270005001045 
060270005001047 
060270005001048 
060270005001049 
060270005001051 
060270005001052 
060270005001053 
060270005001054 
060270005001055 
060270005001056 
060270005001057 
060270005001058 
060270005001059 
060270005001060 
060270005001062 
060270005001063 
060270005001067 
060270005001068 
060270005001069 
060270005001070 
060270005001071 
060270005001072 
060270005001073 
060270005001074 
060270005001075 
060270005001076 
060270005001077 
060270005001078 
060270005001079 
060270005001080 
060270005001081 
060270005001082 
060270005001083 
060270005001084 
060270005001085 
060270005001086 
060270005001087 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 017



060270005001088 
060270005001089 
060270005001090 
060270005001091 
060270005001092 
060270005001093 
060270005001094 
060270005001095 
060270005001096 
060270005001097 
060270005001098 
060270005001101 
060270005001102 
060270005001103 
060270005001104 
060270005001105 
060270005001106 
060270005001107 
060270005001108 
060270005001109 
060270005001110 
060270005001111 
060270005001112 
060270005001113 
060270005001114 
060270005001115 
060270005001116 
060270005001117 
060270005001118 
060270005001119 
060270005001120 
060270005001121 
060270005001122 
060270005001123 
060270005001124 
060270005001125 
060270005001126 
060270005001127 
060270005001128 
060270005001129 
060270005001130 
060270005001131 
060270005001132 
060270005001133 
060270005001134 
060270005001135 
060270005001136 
060270005001137 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 018



060270005001138 
060270005001139 
060270005001140 
060270005001141 
060270005001142 
060270005001143 
060270005001144 
060270005001145 
060270005001146 
060270005001147 
060270005001148 
060270005001149 
060270005001150 
060270005001151 
060270005001152 
060270005001153 
060270005001154 
060270005001155 
060270005001156 
060270005001157 
060270005001158 
060270005001159 
060270005001160 
060270005001161 
060270005001162 
060270005001163 
060270005001164 
060270005001165 
060270005001166 
060270005001167 
060270005001168 
060270005001169 
060270005001170 
060270005001171 
060270005001172 
060270005001173 
060270005001174 
060270005001175 
060270005001176 
060270005001177 
060270005001178 
060270005001179 
060270005001180 
060270005001181 
060270005001182 
060270005001183 
060270005001184 
060270005001185 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 019



060270005001186 
060270005001187 
060270005001188 
060270005001189 
060270005001190 
060270005001191 
060270005001192 
060270005001193 
060270005001194 
060270005001195 
060270005001196 
060270005001197 
060270005001198 
060270005001199 
060270005001200 
060270005001201 
060270005001202 
060270005001203 
060270005001204 
060270005001205 
060270005001206 
060270005001207 
060270005001208 
060270005001209 
060270005001210 
060270005001211 
060270005001212 
060270005001213 
060270005001214 
060270005001215 
060270005001216 
060270005001220 
060270005001221 
060270005001222 
060270005001248 
060270005001249 
060270005001250 
060270005001251 
060270005001252 
060270005001255 
060270005001256 
060270005001257 
060270005001258 
060270005001268 
060270005001269 
060270005001270 
060270005001375 
060270005001376 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 020



060270005001377 
060270005001378 
060270005001462 
060270005001463 
060270005001464 
060270005001465 
060270005001466 
060270005001468 
060270005001469 
060270005001470 
060270005001471 
060270005001472 
060270005001473 
060270005001474 
060270005001475 
060270005001476 
060270005001477 
060270005001478 
060270005001479 
060270005001480 
060270005001481 
060270005001482 
060270005001483 
060270005001484 
060270005001485 
060270005001486 
060270005001487 
060270005001492 
060270005001493 
060270005001494 
060270005001495 
060270005001496 
060270005001497 
060270005001498 
060270005001499 
060270005001500 
060270005001502 
060270005001503 
060270005001504 
060270005001505 
060270005001506 
060270005001507 
060270005001508 
060270005001509 
060270005001510 
060270005001511 
060270005001512 
060270005002000 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 021



060270005002001 
060270005002002 
060270005002003 
060270005002004 
060270005002005 
060270005002006 
060270005002007 
060270005002008 
060270005002009 
060270005002010 
060270005002011 
060270005002012 
060270005002013 
060270005002014 
060270005002015 
060270005002016 
060270005002017 
060270005002018 
060270005002019 
060270005002020 
060270005002021 
060270005002022 
060270005002023 
060270005002024 
060270005002025 
060270005002026 
060270005002027 
060270005002028 
060270005002029 
060270005002030 
060270005002031 
060270005002032 
060270005002033 
060270005002034 
060270005002035 
060270005002036 
060270005002037 
060270005002038 
060270005002039 
060270005002040 
060270005002041 
060270005002042 
060270005002043 
060270005002044 
060270005002045 
060270005002046 
060270005002047 
060270005002048 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 022



060270005002049 
060270005002050 
060270005002051 
060270005002052 
060270005002053 
060270005002054 
060270005002055 
060270005002056 
060270005002057 
060270005002058 
060270005002059 
060270005002060 
060270005002061 
060270005002062 
060270005002063 
060270005002064 
060270005002065 
060270005002066 
060270005002067 
060270005002068 
060270005002069 
060270005002070 
060270005002071 
060270005002072 
060270005002073 
060270005002074 
060270005002075 
060270005002076 
060270005002077 
060270005002078 
060270005002079 
060270005002080 
060270005002081 
060270005002082 
060270005002083 
060270005002084 
060270005002085 
060270005002086 
060270005002087 
060270005002088 
060270005002089 
060270005002090 
060270005002091 
060270005002092 
060270005002093 
060270005002094 
 
District 5 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 023



060270005001022 
060270005001023 
060270005001042 
060270005001046 
060270005001050 
060270005001061 
060270005001064 
060270005001065 
060270005001066 
060270005001099 
060270005001100 
060270005001217 
060270005001218 
060270005001219 
060270005001223 
060270005001224 
060270005001225 
060270005001226 
060270005001227 
060270005001228 
060270005001229 
060270005001230 
060270005001231 
060270005001232 
060270005001233 
060270005001234 
060270005001235 
060270005001236 
060270005001237 
060270005001238 
060270005001239 
060270005001240 
060270005001241 
060270005001242 
060270005001243 
060270005001244 
060270005001245 
060270005001246 
060270005001247 
060270005001253 
060270005001254 
060270005001259 
060270005001260 
060270005001261 
060270005001262 
060270005001263 
060270005001264 
060270005001265 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 024



060270005001266 
060270005001267 
060270005001271 
060270005001272 
060270005001273 
060270005001274 
060270005001275 
060270005001276 
060270005001277 
060270005001278 
060270005001279 
060270005001280 
060270005001281 
060270005001282 
060270005001283 
060270005001284 
060270005001285 
060270005001286 
060270005001287 
060270005001288 
060270005001289 
060270005001290 
060270005001291 
060270005001292 
060270005001293 
060270005001294 
060270005001295 
060270005001296 
060270005001297 
060270005001298 
060270005001299 
060270005001300 
060270005001301 
060270005001302 
060270005001303 
060270005001304 
060270005001305 
060270005001306 
060270005001307 
060270005001308 
060270005001309 
060270005001310 
060270005001311 
060270005001312 
060270005001313 
060270005001314 
060270005001315 
060270005001316 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 025



060270005001317 
060270005001318 
060270005001319 
060270005001320 
060270005001321 
060270005001322 
060270005001323 
060270005001324 
060270005001325 
060270005001326 
060270005001327 
060270005001328 
060270005001329 
060270005001330 
060270005001331 
060270005001332 
060270005001333 
060270005001334 
060270005001335 
060270005001336 
060270005001337 
060270005001338 
060270005001339 
060270005001340 
060270005001341 
060270005001342 
060270005001343 
060270005001344 
060270005001345 
060270005001346 
060270005001347 
060270005001348 
060270005001349 
060270005001350 
060270005001351 
060270005001352 
060270005001353 
060270005001354 
060270005001355 
060270005001356 
060270005001357 
060270005001358 
060270005001359 
060270005001360 
060270005001361 
060270005001362 
060270005001363 
060270005001364 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 026



060270005001365 
060270005001366 
060270005001367 
060270005001368 
060270005001369 
060270005001370 
060270005001371 
060270005001372 
060270005001373 
060270005001374 
060270005001379 
060270005001380 
060270005001381 
060270005001382 
060270005001383 
060270005001384 
060270005001385 
060270005001386 
060270005001387 
060270005001388 
060270005001389 
060270005001390 
060270005001391 
060270005001392 
060270005001393 
060270005001394 
060270005001395 
060270005001396 
060270005001397 
060270005001398 
060270005001399 
060270005001400 
060270005001401 
060270005001402 
060270005001403 
060270005001404 
060270005001405 
060270005001406 
060270005001407 
060270005001408 
060270005001409 
060270005001410 
060270005001411 
060270005001412 
060270005001413 
060270005001414 
060270005001415 
060270005001416 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 027



060270005001417 
060270005001418 
060270005001419 
060270005001420 
060270005001421 
060270005001422 
060270005001423 
060270005001424 
060270005001425 
060270005001426 
060270005001427 
060270005001428 
060270005001429 
060270005001430 
060270005001431 
060270005001432 
060270005001433 
060270005001434 
060270005001435 
060270005001436 
060270005001437 
060270005001438 
060270005001439 
060270005001440 
060270005001441 
060270005001442 
060270005001443 
060270005001444 
060270005001445 
060270005001446 
060270005001447 
060270005001448 
060270005001449 
060270005001450 
060270005001451 
060270005001452 
060270005001453 
060270005001454 
060270005001455 
060270005001456 
060270005001457 
060270005001458 
060270005001459 
060270005001460 
060270005001461 
060270005001467 
060270005001488 
060270005001489 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 028



060270005001490 
060270005001491 
060270005001501 
060270008001000 
060270008001001 
060270008001002 
060270008001003 
060270008001004 
060270008001005 
060270008001006 
060270008001007 
060270008001008 
060270008001009 
060270008001010 
060270008001011 
060270008001012 
060270008001013 
060270008001014 
060270008001015 
060270008001016 
060270008001017 
060270008001018 
060270008001019 
060270008001020 
060270008001021 
060270008001022 
060270008001023 
060270008001024 
060270008001025 
060270008001026 
060270008001027 
060270008001028 
060270008001029 
060270008001030 
060270008001031 
060270008001032 
060270008001033 
060270008001034 
060270008001035 
060270008001036 
060270008001037 
060270008001038 
060270008001039 
060270008001040 
060270008001041 
060270008001042 
060270008001043 
060270008001044 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 029



060270008001045 
060270008001046 
060270008001047 
060270008001048 
060270008001049 
060270008001050 
060270008001051 
060270008001052 
060270008001053 
060270008001054 
060270008001055 
060270008001056 
060270008001057 
060270008001058 
060270008001059 
060270008001060 
060270008001061 
060270008001062 
060270008001063 
060270008001064 
060270008001065 
060270008001066 
060270008001067 
060270008001068 
060270008001069 
060270008001070 
060270008001071 
060270008001072 
060270008001073 
060270008001074 
060270008001075 
060270008001076 
060270008001077 
060270008001078 
060270008001079 
060270008001080 
060270008001081 
060270008001082 
060270008001083 
060270008001084 
060270008001085 
060270008001086 
060270008001087 
060270008001088 
060270008001089 
060270008001090 
060270008001091 
060270008001092 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 030



060270008001093 
060270008001094 
060270008001095 
060270008001096 
060270008001097 
060270008001098 
060270008001099 
060270008001100 
060270008001101 
060270008001102 
060270008001103 
060270008001104 
060270008001105 
060270008001106 
060270008001107 
060270008001108 
060270008001109 
060270008001110 
060270008001111 
060270008001112 
060270008001113 
060270008001114 
060270008001115 
060270008001116 
060270008001117 
060270008001118 
060270008001119 
060270008001120 
060270008001121 
060270008001122 
060270008001123 
060270008001124 
060270008001125 
060270008001126 
060270008001127 
060270008001128 
060270008001129 
060270008001130 
060270008001131 
060270008001132 
060270008001133 
060270008001134 
060270008001135 
060270008001136 
060270008001137 
060270008001138 
060270008001139 
060270008001140 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 031



060270008001141 
060270008001142 
060270008001143 
060270008001144 
060270008001145 
060270008001146 
060270008001147 
060270008001148 
060270008001149 
060270008001150 
060270008001151 
060270008001152 
060270008001153 
060270008001154 
060270008001155 
060270008001156 
060270008001157 
060270008001158 
060270008001159 
060270008001160 
060270008001161 
060270008001162 
060270008001163 
060270008001164 
060270008001165 
060270008001166 
060270008001167 
060270008001168 
060270008001169 
060270008001170 
060270008001171 
060270008001172 
060270008001173 
060270008001174 
060270008001175 
060270008001176 
060270008001177 
060270008001178 
060270008001179 
060270008001180 
060270008001181 
060270008001182 
060270008001183 
060270008001184 
060270008001185 
060270008001186 
060270008001187 
060270008001188 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 032



060270008001189 
060270008001190 
060270008001191 
060270008001192 
060270008001193 
060270008001194 
060270008001195 
060270008001196 
060270008001197 
060270008001198 
060270008001199 
060270008001200 
060270008001201 
060270008001202 
060270008001203 
060270008001204 
060270008001205 
060270008001206 
060270008001207 
060270008001208 
060270008001209 
060270008001210 
060270008001211 
060270008001212 
060270008001213 
060270008001214 
060270008001215 
060270008001216 
060270008001217 
060270008001218 
060270008001219 
060270008001220 
060270008001221 
060270008001222 
060270008001223 
060270008001224 
060270008001225 
060270008001226 
060270008001227 
060270008001228 
060270008001229 
060270008001230 
060270008001231 
060270008001232 
060270008001233 
060270008001234 
060270008001235 
060270008001236 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 033



060270008001237 
060270008001238 
060270008001239 
060270008001240 
060270008001241 
060270008001242 
060270008001243 
060270008001244 
060270008001245 
060270008001246 
060270008001247 
060270008001248 
060270008001249 
060270008001250 
060270008001251 
060270008001252 
060270008001253 
060270008001254 
060270008001255 
060270008001256 
060270008001257 
060270008001258 
060270008001259 
060270008001260 
060270008001261 
060270008001262 
060270008001263 
060270008001264 
060270008001265 
060270008001266 
060270008001267 
060270008001268 
060270008001269 
060270008001270 
060270008001271 
060270008001272 
060270008001273 
060270008001274 
060270008001275 
060270008001276 
060270008001277 
060270008001278 
060270008001279 
060270008001280 
060270008001281 
060270008001282 
060270008001283 
060270008001284 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 034



060270008001285 
060270008001286 
060270008001287 
060270008001288 
060270008001289 
060270008001290 
060270008001291 
060270008001292 
060270008001293 
060270008001294 
060270008001295 
060270008001296 
060270008001297 
060270008001298 
060270008001299 
060270008001300 
060270008001301 
060270008001302 
060270008001303 
060270008001304 
060270008001305 
060270008001306 
060270008001307 
060270008001308 
060270008001309 
060270008001310 
060270008001311 
060270008001312 
060270008001313 
060270008001314 
060270008001315 
060270008001316 
060270008001317 
060270008001318 
060270008001319 
060270008001320 
060270008001321 
060270008001322 
060270008001323 
060270008001324 
060270008001325 
060270008001326 
060270008001327 
060270008001328 
060270008001329 
060270008001330 
060270008001331 
060270008001332 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 035



060270008001333 
060270008001334 
060270008001335 
060270008001336 
060270008001337 
060270008001338 
060270008001339 
060270008001340 
060270008001341 
060270008001342 
060270008001343 
060270008001344 
060270008001345 
060270008001346 
060270008001347 
060270008001348 
060270008001349 
060270008001350 
060270008001351 
060270008001352 
060270008001353 
060270008002000 
060270008002001 
060270008002002 
060270008002003 
060270008002004 
060270008002005 
060270008002006 
060270008002007 
060270008002008 
060270008002009 
060270008002010 
060270008002011 
060270008002012 
060270008002013 
060270008002014 
060270008002015 
060270008002016 
060270008002017 
060270008002018 
060270008002019 
060270008002020 
060270008002021 
060270008002022 
060270008002023 
060270008002024 
060270008002025 
060270008002026 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 036



060270008002027 
060270008002028 
060270008002029 
060270008002030 
060270008002031 
060270008002032 
060270008002033 
060270008002034 
060270008002035 
060270008002036 
060270008002037 
060270008002038 
060270008002039 
060270008002040 
060270008002041 
060270008002042 
060270008002043 
060270008002044 
060270008002045 
060270008002046 
060270008002047 
060270008002048 
060270008002049 
060270008002050 
060270008002051 
060270008002052 
060270008002053 
060270008002054 
060270008002055 
060270008002056 
060270008002057 
060270008002058 
060270008002059 
060270008002060 
060270008002061 
060270008002062 
060270008002063 
060270008002064 
060270008002065 
060270008002066 
060270008002067 
060270008002068 
060270008002069 
060270008002070 
060270008002071 
060270008002072 
060270008002073 
060270008002074 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 037



060270008002075 
060270008002076 
060270008002077 
060270008002078 
060270008002079 
060270008002080 
060270008002081 
060270008002082 
060270008002083 
060270008002084 
060270008002085 
060270008002086 
060270008002087 
060270008002088 
060270008002089 
060270008002090 
060270008002091 
060270008002092 
060270008002093 
060270008002094 
060270008002095 
060270008002096 
060270008002097 
060270008002098 
060270008002099 
060270008002100 
060270008002101 
060270008002102 
060270008002103 
060270008002104 
060270008002105 
060270008002106 
060270008002107 
060270008002108 
060270008002109 
060270008002110 
060270008002111 
060270008002112 
060270008002113 
060270008002114 
060270008002115 
060270008002116 
060270008002117 
060270008002118 
060270008002119 
060270008002120 
060270008002121 
060270008002122 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 038



060270008002123 
060270008002124 
060270008002125 
060270008002126 
060270008002127 
060270008002128 
060270008002129 
060270008002130 
060270008002131 
060270008002132 
060270008002133 
060270008002134 
060270008002135 
060270008002136 
060270008002137 
060270008002138 
060270008002139 
060270008002140 
060270008002141 
060270008002142 
060270008002143 
060270008002144 
060270008002145 
060270008002146 
060270008002147 
060270008002148 
060270008002149 
060270008002150 
060270008002151 
060270008002152 
060270008002153 
060270008002154 
060270008002155 
060270008002156 
060270008002157 
060270008002158 
060270008002159 
060270008002160 
060270008002161 
060270008002162 
060270008002163 
060270008002164 
060270008002165 
060270008002166 
060270008002167 
060270008002168 
060270008002169 
060270008002170 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 039



060270008002171 
060270008002172 
060270008002173 
060270008002174 
060270008002175 
060270008002176 
060270008002177 
060270008002178 
060270008002179 
060270008002180 
060270008002181 
060270008002182 
060270008002183 
060270008002184 
060270008002185 
060270008002186 
060270008002187 
060270008002188 
060270008002189 
060270008002190 
060270008002191 
060270008002192 
060270008002193 
060270008002194 
060270008002195 
060270008002196 
060270008002197 
060270008002198 
060270008002199 
060270008002200 
060270008002201 
060270008002202 
060270008002203 
060270008002204 
060270008002205 
060270008002206 
060270008002207 
060270008002208 
060270008002209 
060270008002210 
060270008002211 
060270008002212 
060270008002213 
060270008002214 
060270008002215 
060270008002216 
060270008002217 
060270008002218 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 040



060270008002219 
060270008002220 
060270008002221 
060270008002222 
060270008002223 
060270008002224 
060270008002225 
060270008002226 
060270008002227 
060270008002228 
060270008002229 
060270008002230 
060270008002231 
060270008002232 
060270008002233 
060270008002234 
060270008002235 
060270008002236 
060270008002237 
060270008002238 
060270008002239 
060270008002240 
060270008002241 
060270008002242 
060270008002243 
060270008002244 
060270008002245 
060270008002246 
060270008002247 
060270008002248 
060270008002249 
060270008002250 
060270008002251 
060270008002252 
060270008002253 
060270008002254 
060270008002255 
060270008002256 
060270008002257 
060270008002258 
060270008002259 
060270008002260 
060270008002261 
060270008002262 
060270008002263 
060270008002264 
060270008002265 
060270008002266 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 041



060270008002267 
060270008002268 
060270008002269 
060270008002270 
060270008002271 
060270008002272 
060270008002273 
060270008002274 
060270008002275 
060270008002276 
060270008002277 
060270008002278 
060270008002279 
060270008002280 
060270008002281 
060270008002282 
060270008002283 
060270008002284 
060270008002285 
060270008002286 
060270008002287 
060270008002288 
060270008002289 
060270008002290 
060270008002291 
060270008002292 
060270008002293 
060270008002294 
060270008002295 
060270008002296 
060270008002297 
060270008002298 
060270008002299 
060270008002300 
060270008002301 
060270008002302 
060270008002303 
060270008002304 
060270008002305 
060270008002306 
060270008002307 
060270008002308 
060270008002309 
060270008002310 
060270008002311 
060270008002312 
060270008002313 
060270008002314 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 042



060270008002315 
060270008002316 
060270008002317 
060270008002318 
060270008002319 
060270008002320 
060270008002321 
060270008002322 
060270008002323 
060270008002324 
060270008002325 
060270008002326 
060270008002327 
060270008002328 
060270008002329 
060270008002330 
060270008002331 
060270008002332 
060270008002333 
060270008002334 
060270008002335 
060270008002336 
060270008002337 
060270008002338 
060270008002339 
060270008002340 
060270008002341 
060270008002342 
060270008002343 
060270008002344 
060270008002345 
060270008002346 
060270008002347 
060270008002348 
060270008002349 
060270008002350 
060270008002351 
060270008002352 
060270008002353 
060270008002354 
060270008002355 
060270008002356 
060270008002357 
060270008002358 
060270008002359 
060270008002360 
060270008002361 
060270008002362 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 043



060270008002363 
060270008002364 
060270008002365 
060270008002366 
060270008002367 
060270008002368 
060270008002369 
060270008002370 
060270008002371 
060270008002372 
060270008002373 
060270008002374 
060270008002375 
060270008002376 
060270008002377 
060270008002378 
060270008002379 
060270008002380 
060270008002381 
060270008002382 
060270008002383 
060270008002384 
060270008002385 
060270008002386 
060270008002387 
060270008002388 
060270008002389 
060270008002390 
060270008002391 
060270008002392 
060270008002393 
060270008002394 
060270008002395 
060270008002396 
060270008002397 
060270008002398 
060270008002399 
060270008002400 
060270008002401 
060270008002402 
060270008002403 
060270008002404 
060270008002405 
060270008002406 
060270008002407 
060270008002408 
060270008002409 
060270008002410 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 044



060270008002411 
060270008002412 
060270008002413 
060270008002414 
060270008002415 
060270008002416 
060270008002417 
060270008002418 
060270008002419 
060270008002420 
060270008002421 
060270008002422 
060270008002423 
060270008002424 
060270008002425 
060270008002426 
060270008002427 
060270008002428 
060270008002429 
060270008002430 
060270008002431 
060270008002432 
060270008002433 
060270008002434 
060270008002435 
060270008002436 
060270008002437 
060270008002438 
060270008002439 
060270008002440 
060270008002441 
060270008002442 
060270008002443 
060270008002444 
060270008002445 
060270008002446 
060270008002447 
060270008002448 
060270008002449 
060270008002450 
060270008002451 
060270008002452 
060270008002453 
060270008002454 
060270008002455 
060270008002456 
060270008002457 
060270008002458 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 045



060270008002459 
060270008002460 
060270008002461 
060270008002462 
060270008002463 
060270008002464 
060270008002465 
060270008002466 
060270008002467 
060270008002468 
060270008002469 
060270008002470 
060270008002471 
060270008002472 
060270008002473 
060270008002474 
060270008002475 
060270008002476 
060270008002477 
060270008002478 
060270008002479 
060270008002480 
060270008002481 
060270008002482 
060270008002483 
060270008002484 
060270008002485 
060270008002486 
060270008002487 
060270008002488 
060270008002489 
060270008002490 
060270008002491 
060270008002492 
060270008002493 
060270008002494 
060270008002495 
060270008002496 
060270008002497 
060270008002498 
060270008002499 
060270008002500 
060270008002501 
060270008002502 
060270008002503 
060270008002504 
060270008002505 
060270008002506 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 046



060270008002507 
060270008002508 
060270008002509 
060270008002510 
060270008002511 
060270008002512 
060270008002513 
060270008002514 
060270008002515 
060270008002516 
060270008002517 
060270008002518 
060270008002519 
060270008002520 
060270008002521 
060270008002522 
060270008002523 
060270008002524 
060270008002525 
060270008002526 
060270008002527 
060270008002528 
060270008002529 
060270008002530 
060270008002531 
060270008002532 
060270008002533 
060270008002534 
060270008002535 
060270008002536 
060270008002537 
060270008002538 
060270008002539 
060270008002540 
060270008002541 
060270008002542 
060270008002543 
060270008002544 
060270008002545 
060270008002546 
060270008002547 
060270008002548 
060270008002549 
060270008002550 
060270008002551 
060270008002552 
060270008002553 
060270008002554 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 047



060270008002555 
060270008002556 
060270008002557 
060270008002558 
060270008002559 
060270008002560 
060270008002561 
060270008002562 
060270008002563 
060270008002564 
060270008002565 
060270008002566 
060270008002567 
060270008002568 
060270008002569 
060270008002570 
060270008002571 
060270008002572 
060270008002573 
060270008002574 
060270008002575 
060270008002576 
060270008002577 
060270008002578 
060270008002579 
060270008002580 
060270008002581 
060270008002582 
060270008002583 
060270008002584 
060270008002585 
060270008002586 
060270008002587 
060270008002588 
060270008002589 
060270008002590 
060270008002591 
060270008002592 
060270008002593 
060270008002594 
060270008003000 
060270008003001 
060270008003002 
060270008003003 
060270008003004 
060270008003005 
060270008003006 
060270008003007 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 048



060270008003008 
060270008003009 
060270008003010 
060270008003011 
060270008003012 
060270008003013 
060270008003014 
060270008003015 
060270008003016 
060270008003017 
060270008003018 
060270008003019 
060270008003020 
060270008003021 
060270008003022 
060270008003023 
060270008003024 
060270008003025 
060270008003026 
060270008003027 
060270008003028 
060270008003029 
060270008003030 
060270008003031 
060270008003032 
060270008003033 
060270008003034 
060270008003035 
060270008003036 
060270008003037 
060270008003038 
060270008003039 
060270008003040 
060270008003041 
060270008003042 
060270008003043 
060270008003044 
060270008003045 
060270008003046 
060270008003047 
060270008003048 
060270008003049 
060270008003050 
060270008003051 
060270008003052 
060270008003053 
060270008003054 
060270008003055 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 049



060270008003056 
060270008003057 
060270008003058 
060270008003059 
060270008004000 
060270008004001 
060270008004002 
060270008004003 
060270008004004 
060270008004005 
060270008004006 
060270008004007 
060270008004008 
060270008004009 
060270008004010 
060270008004011 
060270008004012 
060270008004013 
060270008004014 
060270008004015 
060270008004016 
060270008004017 
060270008004018 
060270008004019 
060270008004020 
060270008004021 
060270008004022 
060270008004023 
060270008004024 
060270008004025 
060270008004026 
060270008004027 
060270008004028 
060270008004029 
060270008004030 
060270008004031 
060270008004032 
060270008004033 
060270008004034 
060270008004035 
060270008004036 
060270008004037 
060270008004038 
060270008004039 
060270008004040 
060270008004041 
060270008004042 
060270008004043 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 050



060270008004044 
060270008004045 
060270008004046 
060270008004047 
060270008004048 
060270008004049 
060270008004050 
060270008004051 
060270008004052 
060270008004053 
060270008004054 
060270008004055 
060270008004056 
060270008004057 
060270008004058 
060270008004059 
060270008004060 
060270008004061 
060270008004062 
060270008004063 
060270008004064 
060270008004065 
060270008004066 
060270008004067 
060270008004068 
060270008004069 
060270008004070 
060270008004071 
060270008004072 
060270008004073 
060270008004074 
060270008004075 
060270008004076 
060270008004077 
060270008004078 
060270008004079 
060270008004080 
060270008004081 
060270008004082 
060270008004083 
060270008004084 
060270008004085 
060270008004086 
060270008004087 
060270008004088 
060270008004089 
060270008004090 
060270008004091 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 051



060270008004092 
060270008004093 
060270008004094 
060270008004095 
060270008004096 
060270008004097 
060270008004098 
060270008004099 
060270008004100 
 

Option 4  
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 052



District 1 
060270001001027 
060270001001028 
060270001001029 
060270001001030 
060270001001031 
060270001001032 
060270001001033 
060270001001034 
060270001001035 
060270001001036 
060270001001037 
060270001001039 
060270001001040 
060270001001041 
060270001001042 
060270001001043 
060270001001044 
060270001001045 
060270001001046 
060270001001047 
060270001001048 
060270001001049 
060270001001062 
060270001001063 
060270001001064 
060270001001065 
060270001001066 
060270001001067 
060270001001068 
060270001001069 
060270001001070 
060270001001071 
060270001001072 
060270001001073 
060270001001074 
060270001001075 
060270001001076 
060270001001077 
060270001001078 
060270001001079 
060270001001080 
060270001001081 
060270001001082 
060270001001083 
060270001001084 
060270001001085 
060270001001086 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 001



060270001001087 
060270001001088 
060270001001089 
060270001001090 
060270001001091 
060270001001092 
060270001001093 
060270001001094 
060270001001095 
060270001001096 
060270001001097 
060270001001099 
060270001001100 
060270001001101 
060270001001102 
060270001001103 
060270001001104 
060270001001105 
060270001001106 
060270001001107 
060270001001108 
060270001001109 
060270001001112 
060270001001113 
060270001001114 
060270001001115 
060270001001116 
060270001001121 
060270001001122 
060270001001123 
060270001001152 
060270001001156 
060270001002030 
060270001002031 
060270001002032 
060270001002033 
060270001002034 
060270001002035 
060270001002036 
060270001002037 
060270001002040 
060270001002041 
060270001002042 
060270001002043 
060270001002044 
060270001002048 
060270001002049 
060270001002050 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 002



060270002001185 
060270002002000 
060270002002001 
060270002002002 
060270002002003 
060270002002004 
060270002002005 
060270002002006 
060270002002007 
060270002002008 
060270002002009 
060270002002010 
060270002002011 
060270002002012 
060270002002013 
060270002002014 
060270002002015 
060270002002016 
060270002002017 
060270002002020 
060270002002021 
060270002002022 
060270002002023 
060270002002024 
060270002002025 
060270002002026 
060270002002027 
060270002002033 
060270002002036 
060270002002037 
060270002002038 
060270003002002 
060270003002003 
060270003002004 
060270003002005 
060270003002006 
060270003002007 
060270003002008 
060270003002009 
060270004002002 
060270004002009 
060270004002010 
060270004002042 
060270004002053 
060270004002054 
060270004002055 
060270004002057 
060270004002058 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 003



060270004002060 
060270004003004 
 
District 2 
060270001001098 
060270001001110 
060270001001111 
060270004002000 
060270004002001 
060270004002003 
060270004002004 
060270004002005 
060270004002006 
060270004002007 
060270004002008 
060270004002011 
060270004002012 
060270004002013 
060270004002014 
060270004002015 
060270004002016 
060270004002017 
060270004002018 
060270004002019 
060270004002020 
060270004002021 
060270004002022 
060270004002023 
060270004002024 
060270004002025 
060270004002026 
060270004002027 
060270004002028 
060270004002029 
060270004002030 
060270004002031 
060270004002032 
060270004002033 
060270004002034 
060270004002035 
060270004002036 
060270004002037 
060270004002038 
060270004002039 
060270004002040 
060270004002041 
060270004002043 
060270004002044 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 004



060270004002045 
060270004002046 
060270004002047 
060270004002048 
060270004002049 
060270004002050 
060270004002051 
060270004002052 
060270004002056 
060270004002059 
060270004003000 
060270004003001 
060270004003002 
060270004003003 
060270004003005 
060270004003006 
060270004003007 
060270004003008 
060270004003009 
060270004003010 
060270004003011 
060270004003012 
060270004003013 
060270004003014 
060270004003015 
060270004003016 
060270004003017 
060270004003018 
060270004003019 
060270004003020 
060270004003021 
060270004003022 
060270004003023 
060270004003024 
060270004003025 
060270004003026 
060270004003027 
060270004003028 
060270004003029 
060270004003030 
060270004003031 
060270004003032 
060270004003033 
060270004003034 
060270004003035 
060270004003036 
060270004003037 
060270004003038 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 005



060270004003039 
060270004003040 
060270004003041 
060270004004000 
060270004004001 
060270004004002 
060270004004003 
060270004004004 
060270004004005 
060270004004006 
060270004004007 
060270004004008 
060270004004009 
060270004004010 
060270004004011 
060270004004012 
060270004004013 
 
District 3 
060270001001000 
060270001001001 
060270001001002 
060270001001003 
060270001001004 
060270001001005 
060270001001006 
060270001001007 
060270001001008 
060270001001009 
060270001001010 
060270001001011 
060270001001012 
060270001001013 
060270001001014 
060270001001015 
060270001001016 
060270001001017 
060270001001018 
060270001001019 
060270001001020 
060270001001021 
060270001001022 
060270001001024 
060270001001026 
060270001001038 
060270001001154 
060270001001155 
060270001001157 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 006



060270001001158 
060270001001159 
060270001002000 
060270001002001 
060270001002002 
060270001002003 
060270001002004 
060270001002005 
060270001002006 
060270001002007 
060270001002008 
060270001002009 
060270001002010 
060270001002011 
060270001002012 
060270001002013 
060270001002014 
060270001002015 
060270001002016 
060270001002017 
060270001002018 
060270001002019 
060270001002020 
060270001002021 
060270001002022 
060270001002023 
060270001002024 
060270001002025 
060270001002026 
060270001002027 
060270001002028 
060270001002029 
060270001002038 
060270001002039 
060270001002045 
060270001002046 
060270001002047 
060270002001000 
060270002001001 
060270002001002 
060270002001003 
060270002001004 
060270002001005 
060270002001006 
060270002001007 
060270002001008 
060270002001009 
060270002001010 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 007



060270002001011 
060270002001012 
060270002001013 
060270002001014 
060270002001015 
060270002001016 
060270002001017 
060270002001018 
060270002001019 
060270002001020 
060270002001021 
060270002001022 
060270002001023 
060270002001024 
060270002001025 
060270002001026 
060270002001027 
060270002001028 
060270002001029 
060270002001030 
060270002001032 
060270002001033 
060270002001034 
060270002001035 
060270002001036 
060270002001039 
060270002001078 
060270002001100 
060270002001101 
060270002001102 
060270002001103 
060270002001104 
060270002001123 
060270002001124 
060270002001193 
060270002001194 
060270002001195 
060270002001201 
060270003002000 
060270003002001 
060270004001000 
060270004001001 
060270004001002 
060270004001003 
060270004001004 
060270004001005 
060270004001006 
060270004001007 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 008



060270004001008 
060270004001009 
060270004001010 
060270004001011 
060270004001012 
060270004001013 
060270004001014 
060270004001015 
060270004001016 
060270004001017 
060270004001018 
060270004001019 
060270004001020 
060270004001021 
060270004001022 
060270004001023 
060270004001024 
060270004001025 
060270004001026 
060270005001000 
060270005001001 
060270005001002 
060270005001003 
060270005001004 
060270005001005 
060270005001006 
060270005001007 
060270005001008 
060270005001009 
060270005001010 
060270005001011 
060270005001012 
060270005001013 
060270005001014 
060270005001015 
060270005001016 
060270005001017 
060270005001018 
060270005001019 
060270005001020 
060270005001021 
060270005001022 
060270005001023 
060270005001024 
060270005001025 
060270005001026 
060270005001027 
060270005001028 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 009



060270005001029 
060270005001030 
060270005001031 
060270005001032 
060270005001033 
060270005001034 
060270005001035 
060270005001036 
060270005001037 
060270005001038 
060270005001039 
060270005001040 
060270005001041 
060270005001042 
060270005001043 
060270005001044 
060270005001045 
060270005001046 
060270005001047 
060270005001048 
060270005001049 
060270005001050 
060270005001051 
060270005001052 
060270005001053 
060270005001054 
060270005001055 
060270005001056 
060270005001057 
060270005001058 
060270005001059 
060270005001060 
060270005001061 
060270005001062 
060270005001063 
060270005001064 
060270005001065 
060270005001066 
060270005001067 
060270005001068 
060270005001069 
060270005001070 
060270005001071 
060270005001072 
060270005001073 
060270005001074 
060270005001075 
060270005001076 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 010



060270005001077 
060270005001078 
060270005001079 
060270005001080 
060270005001081 
060270005001083 
060270005001084 
060270005001085 
060270005001086 
060270005001087 
060270005001088 
060270005001089 
060270005001090 
060270005001091 
060270005001092 
060270005001093 
060270005001094 
060270005001095 
060270005001096 
060270005001097 
060270005001098 
060270005001099 
060270005001100 
060270005001101 
060270005001102 
060270005001103 
060270005001104 
060270005001105 
060270005001106 
060270005001108 
060270005001109 
060270005001111 
060270005001112 
060270005001113 
060270005001114 
060270005001115 
060270005001123 
060270005001124 
060270005001128 
060270005001129 
060270005001130 
060270005001131 
060270005001187 
060270005001188 
060270005001191 
060270005001192 
060270005001198 
060270005001215 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 011



060270005001217 
060270005001218 
060270005001219 
060270005001224 
060270005001243 
060270005001244 
060270005001259 
060270005001260 
060270005001261 
060270005001262 
060270005001263 
060270005001264 
060270005001265 
060270005001266 
060270005001289 
060270005001374 
060270005001375 
060270005001376 
060270005001377 
060270005001378 
060270005001379 
060270005001380 
060270005001381 
060270005001382 
060270005001383 
060270005001384 
060270005001385 
060270005001386 
060270005001387 
060270005001389 
060270005001390 
060270005001391 
060270005001392 
060270005001393 
060270005001397 
060270005001398 
060270005001399 
060270005001400 
060270005001401 
060270005001402 
060270005001403 
060270005001404 
060270005001406 
060270005001407 
060270005001408 
060270005001409 
060270005001410 
060270005001411 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 012



060270005001412 
060270005001413 
060270005001414 
060270005001427 
060270005001428 
060270005001429 
060270005001430 
060270005001450 
060270005001451 
060270005001455 
060270005001456 
060270005001457 
060270005001478 
060270005001483 
060270005001484 
060270005001485 
060270005001486 
060270005001487 
060270005001488 
060270005001489 
060270005001490 
060270005001491 
060270005001492 
060270005001493 
060270005001494 
060270005001495 
060270005001496 
060270005001497 
060270005001498 
060270005001499 
060270005001500 
060270005001501 
060270005001502 
060270005001503 
060270005001504 
060270005001505 
060270005001506 
060270005001507 
060270005001508 
060270005001509 
060270005001510 
060270005001511 
060270005001512 
060270005002066 
060270005002068 
060270005002069 
060270005002070 
060270005002071 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 013



060270005002072 
060270005002073 
060270005002074 
060270005002081 
060270005002082 
060270005002083 
060270005002084 
060270005002085 
060270005002086 
060270005002087 
060270005002088 
060270005002089 
060270005002090 
060270005002091 
060270005002093 
060270005002094 
060270008001000 
060270008001001 
060270008001002 
060270008001003 
060270008001004 
060270008001005 
060270008001006 
060270008001007 
060270008001008 
060270008001009 
060270008001010 
060270008001011 
060270008001012 
060270008001013 
060270008001014 
060270008001015 
060270008001016 
060270008001017 
060270008001020 
060270008001022 
060270008001023 
060270008001024 
060270008001025 
060270008001026 
060270008001028 
060270008001033 
060270008001036 
060270008001043 
060270008001045 
060270008001046 
060270008001058 
060270008001059 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 014



060270008001060 
060270008001061 
060270008001062 
060270008001063 
060270008001064 
060270008001066 
060270008001067 
060270008001068 
060270008001069 
060270008001070 
060270008001074 
060270008001076 
060270008001077 
060270008001079 
060270008001083 
060270008001084 
060270008001085 
060270008001086 
060270008001087 
060270008001088 
060270008001090 
060270008001091 
060270008001118 
060270008001119 
060270008001123 
060270008001344 
060270008001353 
060270008003016 
060270008003017 
060270008003019 
060270008003020 
060270008003021 
060270008003058 
060270008004070 
060270008004071 
060270008004072 
060270008004074 
060270008004075 
060270008004076 
060270008004077 
060270008004078 
060270008004079 
 
District 4 
060270001001023 
060270001001025 
060270001001050 
060270001001051 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 015



060270001001052 
060270001001053 
060270001001054 
060270001001055 
060270001001056 
060270001001057 
060270001001058 
060270001001059 
060270001001060 
060270001001061 
060270001001117 
060270001001118 
060270001001119 
060270001001120 
060270001001124 
060270001001125 
060270001001126 
060270001001127 
060270001001128 
060270001001129 
060270001001130 
060270001001131 
060270001001132 
060270001001133 
060270001001134 
060270001001135 
060270001001136 
060270001001137 
060270001001138 
060270001001139 
060270001001140 
060270001001141 
060270001001142 
060270001001143 
060270001001144 
060270001001145 
060270001001146 
060270001001147 
060270001001148 
060270001001149 
060270001001150 
060270001001151 
060270001001153 
060270001001160 
060270002001030 
060270002001031 
060270002001037 
060270002001038 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 016



060270002001040 
060270002001041 
060270002001042 
060270002001043 
060270002001044 
060270002001045 
060270002001046 
060270002001047 
060270002001048 
060270002001049 
060270002001050 
060270002001051 
060270002001052 
060270002001053 
060270002001054 
060270002001055 
060270002001056 
060270002001057 
060270002001058 
060270002001059 
060270002001060 
060270002001061 
060270002001062 
060270002001063 
060270002001064 
060270002001065 
060270002001066 
060270002001067 
060270002001068 
060270002001069 
060270002001070 
060270002001071 
060270002001072 
060270002001073 
060270002001074 
060270002001075 
060270002001076 
060270002001077 
060270002001079 
060270002001080 
060270002001081 
060270002001082 
060270002001083 
060270002001084 
060270002001085 
060270002001086 
060270002001087 
060270002001088 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 017



060270002001089 
060270002001090 
060270002001091 
060270002001092 
060270002001093 
060270002001094 
060270002001095 
060270002001096 
060270002001097 
060270002001098 
060270002001099 
060270002001100 
060270002001105 
060270002001106 
060270002001107 
060270002001108 
060270002001109 
060270002001110 
060270002001111 
060270002001112 
060270002001113 
060270002001114 
060270002001115 
060270002001116 
060270002001117 
060270002001118 
060270002001119 
060270002001120 
060270002001121 
060270002001122 
060270002001125 
060270002001126 
060270002001127 
060270002001128 
060270002001129 
060270002001130 
060270002001131 
060270002001132 
060270002001133 
060270002001134 
060270002001135 
060270002001136 
060270002001137 
060270002001138 
060270002001139 
060270002001140 
060270002001141 
060270002001142 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 018



060270002001143 
060270002001144 
060270002001145 
060270002001146 
060270002001147 
060270002001148 
060270002001149 
060270002001150 
060270002001151 
060270002001152 
060270002001153 
060270002001154 
060270002001155 
060270002001156 
060270002001157 
060270002001158 
060270002001159 
060270002001160 
060270002001161 
060270002001162 
060270002001163 
060270002001164 
060270002001165 
060270002001166 
060270002001167 
060270002001168 
060270002001169 
060270002001170 
060270002001171 
060270002001172 
060270002001173 
060270002001174 
060270002001175 
060270002001176 
060270002001177 
060270002001178 
060270002001179 
060270002001180 
060270002001181 
060270002001182 
060270002001183 
060270002001184 
060270002001186 
060270002001187 
060270002001188 
060270002001189 
060270002001190 
060270002001191 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 019



060270002001192 
060270002001196 
060270002001197 
060270002001198 
060270002001199 
060270002001200 
060270002001202 
060270002001203 
060270002001204 
060270002001205 
060270002002018 
060270002002019 
060270002002028 
060270002002029 
060270002002030 
060270002002031 
060270002002032 
060270002002034 
060270002002035 
060270002002039 
060270002002040 
060270002002041 
060270002002042 
060270002002043 
060270002002044 
060270002002045 
060270002002046 
060270002002047 
060270002002048 
060270002002049 
060270002002050 
060270002002051 
060270002002052 
060270002002053 
060270002002054 
060270002002055 
060270002002056 
060270002002057 
060270002002058 
060270002002059 
060270002002060 
060270002002061 
060270002002062 
060270002002063 
060270002002064 
060270002002065 
060270002002066 
060270002002067 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 020



060270002002068 
060270002002069 
060270002002070 
060270002002071 
060270002002072 
060270002002073 
060270002002074 
060270002002075 
060270002002076 
060270002002077 
060270002002078 
060270002002079 
060270002002080 
060270002002081 
060270002002082 
060270002002083 
060270002002084 
060270002002085 
060270002002086 
060270002002087 
060270002002088 
060270002002089 
060270002002090 
060270002002091 
060270002002092 
060270002002093 
060270002002094 
060270002002095 
060270002002096 
060270002002097 
060270002002098 
060270002002099 
060270002002100 
060270002002101 
060270002002102 
060270002002103 
060270002002104 
060270002002105 
060270002002106 
060270002002107 
060270002002108 
060270002002109 
060270002002110 
060270002002111 
060270002002112 
060270002002113 
060270002002114 
060270002002115 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 021



060270002002116 
060270002002117 
060270002002118 
060270002002119 
060270002002120 
060270002002121 
060270002002122 
060270002002123 
060270002002125 
060270002002126 
060270003001000 
060270003001001 
060270003001002 
060270003001003 
060270003001004 
060270003001005 
060270003001006 
060270003001007 
060270003001008 
060270003001009 
060270003001010 
060270003001011 
060270003001012 
060270003001013 
060270003001014 
060270003001015 
060270003001016 
060270003001017 
060270003001018 
060270003001019 
060270003001020 
060270003001021 
060270003001022 
060270003001023 
060270003001024 
060270003001025 
060270003001026 
060270003001027 
060270003001028 
060270003001029 
060270003001030 
060270005001082 
060270005001115 
060270005001116 
060270005001117 
060270005001118 
060270005001119 
060270005001125 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 022



060270005001126 
060270005001127 
060270005001133 
060270005001136 
060270005001137 
060270005001138 
060270005001139 
060270005001144 
060270005001145 
060270005001146 
060270005001167 
060270005001477 
060270005001480 
060270005001481 
060270005001482 
060270005001483 
060270005002000 
060270005002001 
060270005002002 
060270005002003 
060270005002004 
060270005002005 
060270005002006 
060270005002007 
060270005002008 
060270005002009 
060270005002010 
060270005002011 
060270005002012 
060270005002013 
060270005002014 
060270005002015 
060270005002016 
060270005002017 
060270005002018 
060270005002019 
060270005002020 
060270005002021 
060270005002022 
060270005002023 
060270005002024 
060270005002025 
060270005002026 
060270005002027 
060270005002028 
060270005002029 
060270005002030 
060270005002031 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 023



060270005002032 
060270005002033 
060270005002034 
060270005002035 
060270005002036 
060270005002037 
060270005002038 
060270005002039 
060270005002040 
060270005002041 
060270005002042 
060270005002043 
060270005002044 
060270005002045 
060270005002046 
060270005002047 
060270005002048 
060270005002049 
060270005002050 
060270005002051 
060270005002052 
060270005002053 
060270005002054 
060270005002055 
060270005002056 
060270005002057 
060270005002058 
060270005002059 
060270005002060 
060270005002061 
060270005002062 
060270005002063 
060270005002064 
060270005002065 
060270005002067 
060270005002075 
060270005002076 
060270005002077 
060270005002078 
060270005002079 
060270005002080 
060270005002092 
 
District 5 
060270002002124 
060270005001107 
060270005001110 
060270005001120 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 024



060270005001121 
060270005001122 
060270005001132 
060270005001134 
060270005001135 
060270005001140 
060270005001141 
060270005001142 
060270005001143 
060270005001147 
060270005001148 
060270005001149 
060270005001150 
060270005001151 
060270005001152 
060270005001153 
060270005001154 
060270005001155 
060270005001156 
060270005001157 
060270005001158 
060270005001159 
060270005001160 
060270005001161 
060270005001162 
060270005001163 
060270005001164 
060270005001165 
060270005001166 
060270005001168 
060270005001169 
060270005001170 
060270005001171 
060270005001172 
060270005001173 
060270005001174 
060270005001175 
060270005001176 
060270005001177 
060270005001178 
060270005001179 
060270005001180 
060270005001181 
060270005001182 
060270005001183 
060270005001184 
060270005001185 
060270005001186 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 025



060270005001189 
060270005001190 
060270005001193 
060270005001194 
060270005001195 
060270005001196 
060270005001197 
060270005001199 
060270005001200 
060270005001201 
060270005001202 
060270005001203 
060270005001204 
060270005001205 
060270005001206 
060270005001207 
060270005001208 
060270005001209 
060270005001210 
060270005001211 
060270005001212 
060270005001213 
060270005001214 
060270005001216 
060270005001220 
060270005001221 
060270005001222 
060270005001223 
060270005001225 
060270005001226 
060270005001227 
060270005001228 
060270005001229 
060270005001230 
060270005001231 
060270005001232 
060270005001233 
060270005001234 
060270005001235 
060270005001236 
060270005001237 
060270005001238 
060270005001239 
060270005001240 
060270005001241 
060270005001242 
060270005001245 
060270005001246 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 026



060270005001247 
060270005001248 
060270005001249 
060270005001250 
060270005001251 
060270005001252 
060270005001253 
060270005001254 
060270005001255 
060270005001256 
060270005001257 
060270005001258 
060270005001267 
060270005001268 
060270005001269 
060270005001270 
060270005001271 
060270005001272 
060270005001273 
060270005001274 
060270005001275 
060270005001276 
060270005001277 
060270005001278 
060270005001279 
060270005001280 
060270005001281 
060270005001282 
060270005001283 
060270005001284 
060270005001285 
060270005001286 
060270005001287 
060270005001288 
060270005001290 
060270005001291 
060270005001292 
060270005001293 
060270005001294 
060270005001295 
060270005001296 
060270005001297 
060270005001298 
060270005001299 
060270005001300 
060270005001301 
060270005001302 
060270005001303 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 027



060270005001304 
060270005001305 
060270005001306 
060270005001307 
060270005001308 
060270005001309 
060270005001310 
060270005001311 
060270005001312 
060270005001313 
060270005001314 
060270005001315 
060270005001316 
060270005001317 
060270005001318 
060270005001319 
060270005001320 
060270005001321 
060270005001322 
060270005001323 
060270005001324 
060270005001325 
060270005001326 
060270005001327 
060270005001328 
060270005001329 
060270005001330 
060270005001331 
060270005001332 
060270005001333 
060270005001334 
060270005001335 
060270005001336 
060270005001337 
060270005001338 
060270005001339 
060270005001340 
060270005001341 
060270005001342 
060270005001343 
060270005001344 
060270005001345 
060270005001346 
060270005001347 
060270005001348 
060270005001349 
060270005001350 
060270005001351 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 028



060270005001352 
060270005001353 
060270005001354 
060270005001355 
060270005001356 
060270005001357 
060270005001358 
060270005001359 
060270005001360 
060270005001361 
060270005001362 
060270005001363 
060270005001364 
060270005001365 
060270005001366 
060270005001367 
060270005001368 
060270005001369 
060270005001370 
060270005001371 
060270005001372 
060270005001373 
060270005001388 
060270005001394 
060270005001395 
060270005001396 
060270005001405 
060270005001415 
060270005001416 
060270005001417 
060270005001418 
060270005001419 
060270005001420 
060270005001421 
060270005001422 
060270005001423 
060270005001424 
060270005001425 
060270005001426 
060270005001431 
060270005001432 
060270005001433 
060270005001434 
060270005001435 
060270005001436 
060270005001437 
060270005001438 
060270005001439 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 029



060270005001440 
060270005001441 
060270005001442 
060270005001443 
060270005001444 
060270005001445 
060270005001446 
060270005001447 
060270005001448 
060270005001449 
060270005001452 
060270005001453 
060270005001454 
060270005001458 
060270005001459 
060270005001460 
060270005001461 
060270005001462 
060270005001463 
060270005001464 
060270005001465 
060270005001466 
060270005001467 
060270005001468 
060270005001469 
060270005001470 
060270005001471 
060270005001472 
060270005001473 
060270005001474 
060270005001475 
060270005001476 
060270005001479 
060270008001018 
060270008001019 
060270008001021 
060270008001027 
060270008001029 
060270008001030 
060270008001031 
060270008001032 
060270008001033 
060270008001034 
060270008001035 
060270008001037 
060270008001038 
060270008001039 
060270008001040 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 030



060270008001041 
060270008001042 
060270008001044 
060270008001047 
060270008001048 
060270008001049 
060270008001050 
060270008001051 
060270008001052 
060270008001053 
060270008001054 
060270008001055 
060270008001056 
060270008001057 
060270008001065 
060270008001071 
060270008001072 
060270008001073 
060270008001075 
060270008001078 
060270008001080 
060270008001081 
060270008001082 
060270008001089 
060270008001092 
060270008001093 
060270008001094 
060270008001095 
060270008001096 
060270008001097 
060270008001098 
060270008001099 
060270008001100 
060270008001101 
060270008001102 
060270008001103 
060270008001104 
060270008001105 
060270008001106 
060270008001107 
060270008001108 
060270008001109 
060270008001110 
060270008001111 
060270008001112 
060270008001113 
060270008001114 
060270008001115 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 031



060270008001116 
060270008001117 
060270008001120 
060270008001121 
060270008001122 
060270008001124 
060270008001125 
060270008001126 
060270008001127 
060270008001128 
060270008001129 
060270008001130 
060270008001131 
060270008001132 
060270008001133 
060270008001134 
060270008001135 
060270008001136 
060270008001137 
060270008001138 
060270008001139 
060270008001140 
060270008001141 
060270008001142 
060270008001143 
060270008001144 
060270008001145 
060270008001146 
060270008001147 
060270008001148 
060270008001149 
060270008001150 
060270008001151 
060270008001152 
060270008001153 
060270008001154 
060270008001155 
060270008001156 
060270008001157 
060270008001158 
060270008001159 
060270008001160 
060270008001161 
060270008001162 
060270008001163 
060270008001164 
060270008001165 
060270008001166 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 032



060270008001167 
060270008001168 
060270008001169 
060270008001170 
060270008001171 
060270008001172 
060270008001173 
060270008001174 
060270008001175 
060270008001176 
060270008001177 
060270008001178 
060270008001179 
060270008001180 
060270008001181 
060270008001182 
060270008001183 
060270008001184 
060270008001185 
060270008001186 
060270008001187 
060270008001188 
060270008001189 
060270008001190 
060270008001191 
060270008001192 
060270008001193 
060270008001194 
060270008001195 
060270008001196 
060270008001197 
060270008001198 
060270008001199 
060270008001200 
060270008001201 
060270008001202 
060270008001203 
060270008001204 
060270008001205 
060270008001206 
060270008001207 
060270008001208 
060270008001209 
060270008001210 
060270008001211 
060270008001212 
060270008001213 
060270008001214 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 033



060270008001215 
060270008001216 
060270008001217 
060270008001218 
060270008001219 
060270008001220 
060270008001221 
060270008001222 
060270008001223 
060270008001224 
060270008001225 
060270008001226 
060270008001227 
060270008001228 
060270008001229 
060270008001230 
060270008001231 
060270008001232 
060270008001233 
060270008001234 
060270008001235 
060270008001236 
060270008001237 
060270008001238 
060270008001239 
060270008001240 
060270008001241 
060270008001242 
060270008001243 
060270008001244 
060270008001245 
060270008001246 
060270008001247 
060270008001248 
060270008001249 
060270008001250 
060270008001251 
060270008001252 
060270008001253 
060270008001254 
060270008001255 
060270008001256 
060270008001257 
060270008001258 
060270008001259 
060270008001260 
060270008001261 
060270008001262 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 034



060270008001263 
060270008001264 
060270008001265 
060270008001266 
060270008001267 
060270008001268 
060270008001269 
060270008001270 
060270008001271 
060270008001272 
060270008001273 
060270008001274 
060270008001275 
060270008001276 
060270008001277 
060270008001278 
060270008001279 
060270008001280 
060270008001281 
060270008001282 
060270008001283 
060270008001284 
060270008001285 
060270008001286 
060270008001287 
060270008001288 
060270008001289 
060270008001290 
060270008001291 
060270008001292 
060270008001293 
060270008001294 
060270008001295 
060270008001296 
060270008001297 
060270008001298 
060270008001299 
060270008001300 
060270008001301 
060270008001302 
060270008001303 
060270008001304 
060270008001305 
060270008001306 
060270008001307 
060270008001308 
060270008001309 
060270008001310 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 035



060270008001311 
060270008001312 
060270008001313 
060270008001314 
060270008001315 
060270008001316 
060270008001317 
060270008001318 
060270008001319 
060270008001320 
060270008001321 
060270008001322 
060270008001323 
060270008001324 
060270008001325 
060270008001326 
060270008001327 
060270008001328 
060270008001329 
060270008001330 
060270008001331 
060270008001332 
060270008001333 
060270008001334 
060270008001335 
060270008001336 
060270008001337 
060270008001338 
060270008001339 
060270008001340 
060270008001341 
060270008001342 
060270008001343 
060270008001345 
060270008001346 
060270008001347 
060270008001348 
060270008001349 
060270008001350 
060270008001351 
060270008001352 
060270008002000 
060270008002001 
060270008002002 
060270008002003 
060270008002004 
060270008002005 
060270008002006 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 036



060270008002007 
060270008002008 
060270008002009 
060270008002010 
060270008002011 
060270008002012 
060270008002013 
060270008002014 
060270008002015 
060270008002016 
060270008002017 
060270008002018 
060270008002019 
060270008002020 
060270008002021 
060270008002022 
060270008002023 
060270008002024 
060270008002025 
060270008002026 
060270008002027 
060270008002028 
060270008002029 
060270008002030 
060270008002031 
060270008002032 
060270008002033 
060270008002034 
060270008002035 
060270008002036 
060270008002037 
060270008002038 
060270008002039 
060270008002040 
060270008002041 
060270008002042 
060270008002043 
060270008002044 
060270008002045 
060270008002046 
060270008002047 
060270008002048 
060270008002049 
060270008002050 
060270008002051 
060270008002052 
060270008002053 
060270008002054 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 037



060270008002055 
060270008002056 
060270008002057 
060270008002058 
060270008002059 
060270008002060 
060270008002061 
060270008002062 
060270008002063 
060270008002064 
060270008002065 
060270008002066 
060270008002067 
060270008002068 
060270008002069 
060270008002070 
060270008002071 
060270008002072 
060270008002073 
060270008002074 
060270008002075 
060270008002076 
060270008002077 
060270008002078 
060270008002079 
060270008002080 
060270008002081 
060270008002082 
060270008002083 
060270008002084 
060270008002085 
060270008002086 
060270008002087 
060270008002088 
060270008002089 
060270008002090 
060270008002091 
060270008002092 
060270008002093 
060270008002094 
060270008002095 
060270008002096 
060270008002097 
060270008002098 
060270008002099 
060270008002100 
060270008002101 
060270008002102 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 038



060270008002103 
060270008002104 
060270008002105 
060270008002106 
060270008002107 
060270008002108 
060270008002109 
060270008002110 
060270008002111 
060270008002112 
060270008002113 
060270008002114 
060270008002115 
060270008002116 
060270008002117 
060270008002118 
060270008002119 
060270008002120 
060270008002121 
060270008002122 
060270008002123 
060270008002124 
060270008002125 
060270008002126 
060270008002127 
060270008002128 
060270008002129 
060270008002130 
060270008002131 
060270008002132 
060270008002133 
060270008002134 
060270008002135 
060270008002136 
060270008002137 
060270008002138 
060270008002139 
060270008002140 
060270008002141 
060270008002142 
060270008002143 
060270008002144 
060270008002145 
060270008002146 
060270008002147 
060270008002148 
060270008002149 
060270008002150 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 039



060270008002151 
060270008002152 
060270008002153 
060270008002154 
060270008002155 
060270008002156 
060270008002157 
060270008002158 
060270008002159 
060270008002160 
060270008002161 
060270008002162 
060270008002163 
060270008002164 
060270008002165 
060270008002166 
060270008002167 
060270008002168 
060270008002169 
060270008002170 
060270008002171 
060270008002172 
060270008002173 
060270008002174 
060270008002175 
060270008002176 
060270008002177 
060270008002178 
060270008002179 
060270008002180 
060270008002181 
060270008002182 
060270008002183 
060270008002184 
060270008002185 
060270008002186 
060270008002187 
060270008002188 
060270008002189 
060270008002190 
060270008002191 
060270008002192 
060270008002193 
060270008002194 
060270008002195 
060270008002196 
060270008002197 
060270008002198 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 040



060270008002199 
060270008002200 
060270008002201 
060270008002202 
060270008002203 
060270008002204 
060270008002205 
060270008002206 
060270008002207 
060270008002208 
060270008002209 
060270008002210 
060270008002211 
060270008002212 
060270008002213 
060270008002214 
060270008002215 
060270008002216 
060270008002217 
060270008002218 
060270008002219 
060270008002220 
060270008002221 
060270008002222 
060270008002223 
060270008002224 
060270008002225 
060270008002226 
060270008002227 
060270008002228 
060270008002229 
060270008002230 
060270008002231 
060270008002232 
060270008002233 
060270008002234 
060270008002235 
060270008002236 
060270008002237 
060270008002238 
060270008002239 
060270008002240 
060270008002241 
060270008002242 
060270008002243 
060270008002244 
060270008002245 
060270008002246 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 041



060270008002247 
060270008002248 
060270008002249 
060270008002250 
060270008002251 
060270008002252 
060270008002253 
060270008002254 
060270008002255 
060270008002256 
060270008002257 
060270008002258 
060270008002259 
060270008002260 
060270008002261 
060270008002262 
060270008002263 
060270008002264 
060270008002265 
060270008002266 
060270008002267 
060270008002268 
060270008002269 
060270008002270 
060270008002271 
060270008002272 
060270008002273 
060270008002274 
060270008002275 
060270008002276 
060270008002277 
060270008002278 
060270008002279 
060270008002280 
060270008002281 
060270008002282 
060270008002283 
060270008002284 
060270008002285 
060270008002286 
060270008002287 
060270008002288 
060270008002289 
060270008002290 
060270008002291 
060270008002292 
060270008002293 
060270008002294 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 042



060270008002295 
060270008002296 
060270008002297 
060270008002298 
060270008002299 
060270008002300 
060270008002301 
060270008002302 
060270008002303 
060270008002304 
060270008002305 
060270008002306 
060270008002307 
060270008002308 
060270008002309 
060270008002310 
060270008002311 
060270008002312 
060270008002313 
060270008002314 
060270008002315 
060270008002316 
060270008002317 
060270008002318 
060270008002319 
060270008002320 
060270008002321 
060270008002322 
060270008002323 
060270008002324 
060270008002325 
060270008002326 
060270008002327 
060270008002328 
060270008002329 
060270008002330 
060270008002331 
060270008002332 
060270008002333 
060270008002334 
060270008002335 
060270008002336 
060270008002337 
060270008002338 
060270008002339 
060270008002340 
060270008002341 
060270008002342 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 043



060270008002343 
060270008002344 
060270008002345 
060270008002346 
060270008002347 
060270008002348 
060270008002349 
060270008002350 
060270008002351 
060270008002352 
060270008002353 
060270008002354 
060270008002355 
060270008002356 
060270008002357 
060270008002358 
060270008002359 
060270008002360 
060270008002361 
060270008002362 
060270008002363 
060270008002364 
060270008002365 
060270008002366 
060270008002367 
060270008002368 
060270008002369 
060270008002370 
060270008002371 
060270008002372 
060270008002373 
060270008002374 
060270008002375 
060270008002376 
060270008002377 
060270008002378 
060270008002379 
060270008002380 
060270008002381 
060270008002382 
060270008002383 
060270008002384 
060270008002385 
060270008002386 
060270008002387 
060270008002388 
060270008002389 
060270008002390 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 044



060270008002391 
060270008002392 
060270008002393 
060270008002394 
060270008002395 
060270008002396 
060270008002397 
060270008002398 
060270008002399 
060270008002400 
060270008002401 
060270008002402 
060270008002403 
060270008002404 
060270008002405 
060270008002406 
060270008002407 
060270008002408 
060270008002409 
060270008002410 
060270008002411 
060270008002412 
060270008002413 
060270008002414 
060270008002415 
060270008002416 
060270008002417 
060270008002418 
060270008002419 
060270008002420 
060270008002421 
060270008002422 
060270008002423 
060270008002424 
060270008002425 
060270008002426 
060270008002427 
060270008002428 
060270008002429 
060270008002430 
060270008002431 
060270008002432 
060270008002433 
060270008002434 
060270008002435 
060270008002436 
060270008002437 
060270008002438 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 045



060270008002439 
060270008002440 
060270008002441 
060270008002442 
060270008002443 
060270008002444 
060270008002445 
060270008002446 
060270008002447 
060270008002448 
060270008002449 
060270008002450 
060270008002451 
060270008002452 
060270008002453 
060270008002454 
060270008002455 
060270008002456 
060270008002457 
060270008002458 
060270008002459 
060270008002460 
060270008002461 
060270008002462 
060270008002463 
060270008002464 
060270008002465 
060270008002466 
060270008002467 
060270008002468 
060270008002469 
060270008002470 
060270008002471 
060270008002472 
060270008002473 
060270008002474 
060270008002475 
060270008002476 
060270008002477 
060270008002478 
060270008002479 
060270008002480 
060270008002481 
060270008002482 
060270008002483 
060270008002484 
060270008002485 
060270008002486 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 046



060270008002487 
060270008002488 
060270008002489 
060270008002490 
060270008002491 
060270008002492 
060270008002493 
060270008002494 
060270008002495 
060270008002496 
060270008002497 
060270008002498 
060270008002499 
060270008002500 
060270008002501 
060270008002502 
060270008002503 
060270008002504 
060270008002505 
060270008002506 
060270008002507 
060270008002508 
060270008002509 
060270008002510 
060270008002511 
060270008002512 
060270008002513 
060270008002514 
060270008002515 
060270008002516 
060270008002517 
060270008002518 
060270008002519 
060270008002520 
060270008002521 
060270008002522 
060270008002523 
060270008002524 
060270008002525 
060270008002526 
060270008002527 
060270008002528 
060270008002529 
060270008002530 
060270008002531 
060270008002532 
060270008002533 
060270008002534 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 047



060270008002535 
060270008002536 
060270008002537 
060270008002538 
060270008002539 
060270008002540 
060270008002541 
060270008002542 
060270008002543 
060270008002544 
060270008002545 
060270008002546 
060270008002547 
060270008002548 
060270008002549 
060270008002550 
060270008002551 
060270008002552 
060270008002553 
060270008002554 
060270008002555 
060270008002556 
060270008002557 
060270008002558 
060270008002559 
060270008002560 
060270008002561 
060270008002562 
060270008002563 
060270008002564 
060270008002565 
060270008002566 
060270008002567 
060270008002568 
060270008002569 
060270008002570 
060270008002571 
060270008002572 
060270008002573 
060270008002574 
060270008002575 
060270008002576 
060270008002577 
060270008002578 
060270008002579 
060270008002580 
060270008002581 
060270008002582 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 048



060270008002583 
060270008002584 
060270008002585 
060270008002586 
060270008002587 
060270008002588 
060270008002589 
060270008002590 
060270008002591 
060270008002592 
060270008002593 
060270008002594 
060270008003000 
060270008003001 
060270008003002 
060270008003003 
060270008003004 
060270008003005 
060270008003006 
060270008003007 
060270008003008 
060270008003009 
060270008003010 
060270008003011 
060270008003012 
060270008003013 
060270008003014 
060270008003015 
060270008003018 
060270008003022 
060270008003023 
060270008003024 
060270008003025 
060270008003026 
060270008003027 
060270008003028 
060270008003029 
060270008003030 
060270008003031 
060270008003032 
060270008003033 
060270008003034 
060270008003035 
060270008003036 
060270008003037 
060270008003038 
060270008003039 
060270008003040 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 049



060270008003041 
060270008003042 
060270008003043 
060270008003044 
060270008003045 
060270008003046 
060270008003047 
060270008003048 
060270008003049 
060270008003050 
060270008003051 
060270008003052 
060270008003053 
060270008003054 
060270008003055 
060270008003056 
060270008003057 
060270008003059 
060270008004000 
060270008004001 
060270008004002 
060270008004003 
060270008004004 
060270008004005 
060270008004006 
060270008004007 
060270008004008 
060270008004009 
060270008004010 
060270008004011 
060270008004012 
060270008004013 
060270008004014 
060270008004015 
060270008004016 
060270008004017 
060270008004018 
060270008004019 
060270008004020 
060270008004021 
060270008004022 
060270008004023 
060270008004024 
060270008004025 
060270008004026 
060270008004027 
060270008004028 
060270008004029 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 050



060270008004030 
060270008004031 
060270008004032 
060270008004033 
060270008004034 
060270008004035 
060270008004036 
060270008004037 
060270008004038 
060270008004039 
060270008004040 
060270008004041 
060270008004042 
060270008004043 
060270008004044 
060270008004045 
060270008004046 
060270008004047 
060270008004048 
060270008004049 
060270008004050 
060270008004051 
060270008004052 
060270008004053 
060270008004054 
060270008004055 
060270008004056 
060270008004057 
060270008004058 
060270008004059 
060270008004060 
060270008004061 
060270008004062 
060270008004063 
060270008004064 
060270008004065 
060270008004066 
060270008004067 
060270008004068 
060270008004069 
060270008004073 
060270008004080 
060270008004081 
060270008004082 
060270008004083 
060270008004084 
060270008004085 
060270008004086 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 051



060270008004087 
060270008004088 
060270008004089 
060270008004090 
060270008004091 
060270008004092 
060270008004093 
060270008004094 
060270008004095 
060270008004096 
060270008004097 
060270008004098 
060270008004099 
060270008004100 
 

Option 5 
GEOID20s for all census blocks in each district - p. 052



District 1 
060270001001068 
060270001001069 
060270001001070 
060270001001071 
060270001001072 
060270001001073 
060270001001074 
060270001001075 
060270001001076 
060270001001077 
060270001001078 
060270001001079 
060270001001080 
060270001001081 
060270001001082 
060270001001083 
060270001001084 
060270001001085 
060270001001086 
060270001001087 
060270001001113 
060270001001114 
060270001002026 
060270001002034 
060270001002035 
060270001002036 
060270001002037 
060270001002038 
060270001002039 
060270001002040 
060270001002041 
060270001002042 
060270001002043 
060270001002044 
060270001002049 
060270001002050 
060270002002013 
060270003001000 
060270003001007 
060270003001009 
060270003001010 
060270003001011 
060270003001012 
060270003001013 
060270003001016 
060270003001017 
060270003001018 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 001



060270003001019 
060270003001020 
060270003001022 
060270003001023 
060270003001024 
060270003001025 
060270003001026 
060270003001027 
060270003001028 
060270003001029 
060270003001030 
060270004001000 
060270004001001 
060270004001002 
060270004002002 
060270004002009 
 
District 2 
060270001001097 
060270001001098 
060270001001102 
060270001001110 
060270001001111 
060270004002000 
060270004002001 
060270004002003 
060270004002004 
060270004002005 
060270004002006 
060270004002007 
060270004002008 
060270004002011 
060270004002012 
060270004002013 
060270004002014 
060270004002015 
060270004002016 
060270004002017 
060270004002018 
060270004002019 
060270004002020 
060270004002021 
060270004002022 
060270004002024 
060270004002025 
060270004002026 
060270004002027 
060270004002028 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 002



060270004002029 
060270004002030 
060270004002031 
060270004002032 
060270004002033 
060270004002034 
060270004002035 
060270004002036 
060270004002037 
060270004002038 
060270004002039 
060270004002040 
060270004002041 
060270004002043 
060270004002044 
060270004002045 
060270004002046 
060270004002047 
060270004002048 
060270004002049 
060270004002050 
060270004002051 
060270004002052 
060270004002053 
060270004002054 
060270004002056 
060270004002059 
060270004003000 
060270004003001 
060270004003002 
060270004003003 
060270004003004 
060270004003005 
060270004003006 
060270004003007 
060270004003008 
060270004003009 
060270004003010 
060270004003011 
060270004003012 
060270004003013 
060270004003014 
060270004003015 
060270004003016 
060270004003017 
060270004003018 
060270004003019 
060270004003020 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 003



060270004003021 
060270004003022 
060270004003023 
060270004003024 
060270004003025 
060270004003026 
060270004003027 
060270004003028 
060270004003029 
060270004003030 
060270004003031 
060270004003032 
060270004003033 
060270004003034 
060270004003035 
060270004003036 
060270004003037 
060270004003038 
060270004003039 
060270004003040 
060270004003041 
060270004004000 
060270004004001 
060270004004002 
060270004004003 
060270004004004 
060270004004005 
060270004004006 
060270004004007 
060270004004008 
060270004004009 
060270004004010 
060270004004011 
060270004004012 
060270004004013 
 
District 3 
060270001001000 
060270001001001 
060270001001002 
060270001001003 
060270001001004 
060270001001005 
060270001001006 
060270001001007 
060270001001008 
060270001001009 
060270001001010 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 004



060270001001011 
060270001001012 
060270001001013 
060270001001014 
060270001001015 
060270001001016 
060270001001017 
060270001001018 
060270001001019 
060270001001020 
060270001001021 
060270001001022 
060270001001023 
060270001001024 
060270001001025 
060270001001026 
060270001001027 
060270001001028 
060270001001029 
060270001001030 
060270001001031 
060270001001032 
060270001001033 
060270001001034 
060270001001035 
060270001001036 
060270001001037 
060270001001038 
060270001001039 
060270001001040 
060270001001041 
060270001001042 
060270001001043 
060270001001044 
060270001001045 
060270001001046 
060270001001047 
060270001001048 
060270001001049 
060270001001050 
060270001001051 
060270001001052 
060270001001053 
060270001001054 
060270001001055 
060270001001056 
060270001001057 
060270001001058 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 005



060270001001059 
060270001001060 
060270001001061 
060270001001062 
060270001001063 
060270001001064 
060270001001065 
060270001001066 
060270001001067 
060270001001088 
060270001001089 
060270001001090 
060270001001091 
060270001001092 
060270001001093 
060270001001094 
060270001001095 
060270001001096 
060270001001099 
060270001001100 
060270001001101 
060270001001103 
060270001001104 
060270001001105 
060270001001106 
060270001001107 
060270001001108 
060270001001109 
060270001001112 
060270001001115 
060270001001116 
060270001001117 
060270001001118 
060270001001119 
060270001001120 
060270001001121 
060270001001122 
060270001001123 
060270001001124 
060270001001125 
060270001001126 
060270001001127 
060270001001128 
060270001001129 
060270001001130 
060270001001131 
060270001001132 
060270001001133 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 006



060270001001134 
060270001001135 
060270001001136 
060270001001137 
060270001001138 
060270001001139 
060270001001140 
060270001001141 
060270001001142 
060270001001143 
060270001001144 
060270001001145 
060270001001146 
060270001001147 
060270001001148 
060270001001149 
060270001001150 
060270001001151 
060270001001152 
060270001001153 
060270001001154 
060270001001155 
060270001001156 
060270001001157 
060270001001158 
060270001001159 
060270001002000 
060270001002001 
060270001002002 
060270001002003 
060270001002004 
060270001002005 
060270001002006 
060270001002007 
060270001002008 
060270001002009 
060270001002010 
060270001002011 
060270001002012 
060270001002013 
060270001002014 
060270001002015 
060270001002016 
060270001002017 
060270001002018 
060270001002019 
060270001002028 
060270001002029 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 007



060270001002030 
060270001002031 
060270001002032 
060270001002033 
060270001002048 
060270002001000 
060270002001001 
060270002001002 
060270002001003 
060270002001004 
060270002001005 
060270002001006 
060270002001007 
060270002001008 
060270002001009 
060270002001010 
060270002001011 
060270002001012 
060270002001013 
060270002001014 
060270002001015 
060270002001016 
060270002001017 
060270002001018 
060270002001020 
060270002001021 
060270002001022 
060270002001023 
060270002001024 
060270002001025 
060270002001101 
060270002001102 
060270002001103 
060270002001104 
060270002001109 
060270002001110 
060270002001124 
060270002001193 
060270002001194 
060270002001195 
060270002002000 
060270002002001 
060270002002021 
060270002002022 
060270002002029 
060270002002030 
060270002002031 
060270002002032 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 008



060270002002033 
060270002002081 
060270002002082 
060270002002083 
060270002002098 
060270002002099 
060270002002100 
060270003002000 
060270004001003 
060270004001004 
060270004001005 
060270004001006 
060270004001007 
060270004001008 
060270004001009 
060270004001010 
060270004001011 
060270004001012 
060270004001013 
060270004001014 
060270004001015 
060270004001016 
060270004001017 
060270004001018 
060270004001019 
060270004001020 
060270004001021 
060270004001022 
060270004001023 
060270004001024 
060270004001025 
060270004001026 
060270004002010 
060270004002023 
060270004002042 
060270004002055 
060270004002057 
060270004002058 
060270004002060 
060270005001000 
060270005001001 
060270005001002 
060270005001003 
060270005001004 
060270005001005 
060270005001006 
060270005001007 
060270005001008 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 009



060270005001009 
060270005001010 
060270005001011 
060270005001012 
060270005001013 
060270005001014 
060270005001015 
060270005001016 
060270005001017 
060270005001018 
060270005001019 
060270005001020 
060270005001021 
060270005001022 
060270005001023 
060270005001024 
060270005001025 
060270005001026 
060270005001027 
060270005001028 
060270005001029 
060270005001030 
060270005001031 
060270005001032 
060270005001033 
060270005001034 
060270005001035 
060270005001036 
060270005001037 
060270005001038 
060270005001039 
060270005001040 
060270005001041 
060270005001042 
060270005001043 
060270005001044 
060270005001045 
060270005001046 
060270005001047 
060270005001048 
060270005001049 
060270005001050 
060270005001051 
060270005001052 
060270005001053 
060270005001054 
060270005001055 
060270005001056 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 010



060270005001057 
060270005001058 
060270005001059 
060270005001060 
060270005001061 
060270005001062 
060270005001063 
060270005001064 
060270005001065 
060270005001066 
060270005001067 
060270005001068 
060270005001069 
060270005001070 
060270005001071 
060270005001072 
060270005001073 
060270005001074 
060270005001075 
060270005001076 
060270005001077 
060270005001078 
060270005001079 
060270005001080 
060270005001081 
060270005001082 
060270005001083 
060270005001084 
060270005001085 
060270005001086 
060270005001087 
060270005001088 
060270005001089 
060270005001090 
060270005001091 
060270005001092 
060270005001094 
060270005001095 
060270005001098 
060270005001099 
060270005001100 
060270005001101 
060270005001102 
060270005001103 
060270005001112 
060270005001113 
060270005001114 
060270005001115 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 011



060270005001116 
060270005001117 
060270005001118 
060270005001119 
060270005001123 
060270005001124 
060270005001127 
060270005001128 
060270005001129 
060270005001130 
060270005001215 
060270005001217 
060270005001218 
060270005001219 
060270005001223 
060270005001224 
060270005001225 
060270005001243 
060270005001244 
060270005001259 
060270005001260 
060270005001261 
060270005001262 
060270005001263 
060270005001264 
060270005001265 
060270005001289 
060270005001362 
060270005001365 
060270005001371 
060270005001372 
060270005001373 
060270005001374 
060270005001375 
060270005001376 
060270005001377 
060270005001378 
060270005001379 
060270005001380 
060270005001381 
060270005001382 
060270005001383 
060270005001384 
060270005001385 
060270005001386 
060270005001387 
060270005001388 
060270005001389 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 012



060270005001390 
060270005001391 
060270005001392 
060270005001393 
060270005001394 
060270005001395 
060270005001396 
060270005001397 
060270005001398 
060270005001399 
060270005001400 
060270005001401 
060270005001402 
060270005001403 
060270005001404 
060270005001405 
060270005001406 
060270005001407 
060270005001408 
060270005001409 
060270005001410 
060270005001411 
060270005001412 
060270005001413 
060270005001414 
060270005001415 
060270005001416 
060270005001417 
060270005001418 
060270005001419 
060270005001420 
060270005001421 
060270005001422 
060270005001423 
060270005001424 
060270005001425 
060270005001427 
060270005001428 
060270005001429 
060270005001430 
060270005001431 
060270005001432 
060270005001433 
060270005001437 
060270005001438 
060270005001441 
060270005001442 
060270005001443 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 013



060270005001444 
060270005001445 
060270005001446 
060270005001450 
060270005001454 
060270005001455 
060270005001456 
060270005001457 
060270005001477 
060270005001478 
060270005001483 
060270005001484 
060270005001485 
060270005001486 
060270005001487 
060270005001488 
060270005001489 
060270005001490 
060270005001491 
060270005001492 
060270005001493 
060270005001494 
060270005001495 
060270005001496 
060270005001497 
060270005001498 
060270005001499 
060270005001500 
060270005001501 
060270005001502 
060270005001503 
060270005001505 
060270005001506 
060270005001507 
060270005001508 
060270005001509 
060270005001510 
060270005001511 
060270005001512 
060270005002066 
060270005002067 
060270005002068 
060270005002069 
060270005002070 
060270005002071 
060270005002072 
060270005002073 
060270005002074 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 014



060270005002081 
060270005002082 
060270005002083 
060270005002084 
060270005002085 
060270005002086 
060270005002087 
060270005002088 
060270005002089 
060270005002090 
060270005002091 
060270005002093 
060270005002094 
060270008001000 
060270008001001 
060270008001002 
060270008001003 
060270008001004 
060270008001005 
060270008001008 
060270008001009 
060270008001010 
060270008001011 
060270008001012 
060270008001013 
060270008001014 
060270008001025 
060270008001026 
060270008001028 
060270008001029 
060270008001033 
060270008001036 
060270008001043 
060270008001045 
060270008001046 
060270008001058 
060270008001059 
060270008001060 
060270008001061 
060270008001062 
060270008001063 
060270008001064 
060270008001066 
060270008001067 
060270008001068 
060270008001069 
060270008001070 
060270008001074 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 015



060270008001076 
060270008001079 
060270008001083 
060270008001084 
060270008001085 
060270008001086 
060270008001087 
060270008001088 
060270008001116 
060270008001117 
060270008001118 
060270008001119 
060270008001123 
060270008001132 
060270008001133 
060270008001134 
060270008001344 
060270008001353 
060270008002006 
060270008002007 
060270008002013 
060270008002014 
060270008002016 
060270008002066 
060270008002067 
060270008003000 
060270008003001 
060270008003002 
060270008003003 
060270008003005 
060270008003006 
060270008003007 
060270008003008 
060270008003009 
060270008003011 
060270008003012 
060270008003013 
060270008003015 
060270008003016 
060270008003017 
060270008003018 
060270008003019 
060270008003020 
060270008003021 
060270008003057 
060270008003058 
060270008004006 
060270008004032 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 016



060270008004034 
060270008004065 
060270008004066 
060270008004067 
060270008004068 
060270008004069 
060270008004070 
060270008004071 
060270008004072 
060270008004073 
060270008004074 
060270008004075 
060270008004076 
060270008004077 
060270008004078 
060270008004079 
060270008004083 
060270008004089 
 
District 4 
060270001001135 
060270001001160 
060270001002020 
060270001002021 
060270001002022 
060270001002023 
060270001002024 
060270001002025 
060270001002027 
060270001002045 
060270001002046 
060270001002047 
060270002001019 
060270002001026 
060270002001027 
060270002001028 
060270002001029 
060270002001030 
060270002001031 
060270002001032 
060270002001033 
060270002001034 
060270002001035 
060270002001036 
060270002001037 
060270002001038 
060270002001039 
060270002001040 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 017



060270002001041 
060270002001042 
060270002001043 
060270002001044 
060270002001045 
060270002001046 
060270002001047 
060270002001048 
060270002001049 
060270002001050 
060270002001051 
060270002001052 
060270002001053 
060270002001054 
060270002001055 
060270002001056 
060270002001057 
060270002001058 
060270002001059 
060270002001060 
060270002001061 
060270002001062 
060270002001063 
060270002001064 
060270002001065 
060270002001066 
060270002001067 
060270002001068 
060270002001069 
060270002001070 
060270002001071 
060270002001072 
060270002001073 
060270002001074 
060270002001075 
060270002001076 
060270002001077 
060270002001078 
060270002001079 
060270002001080 
060270002001081 
060270002001082 
060270002001083 
060270002001084 
060270002001085 
060270002001086 
060270002001087 
060270002001088 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 018



060270002001089 
060270002001090 
060270002001091 
060270002001092 
060270002001093 
060270002001094 
060270002001095 
060270002001096 
060270002001097 
060270002001098 
060270002001099 
060270002001100 
060270002001105 
060270002001106 
060270002001107 
060270002001108 
060270002001111 
060270002001112 
060270002001113 
060270002001114 
060270002001115 
060270002001116 
060270002001117 
060270002001118 
060270002001119 
060270002001120 
060270002001121 
060270002001122 
060270002001123 
060270002001125 
060270002001126 
060270002001127 
060270002001128 
060270002001129 
060270002001130 
060270002001131 
060270002001132 
060270002001133 
060270002001134 
060270002001135 
060270002001136 
060270002001137 
060270002001138 
060270002001139 
060270002001140 
060270002001141 
060270002001142 
060270002001143 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 019



060270002001144 
060270002001145 
060270002001146 
060270002001147 
060270002001148 
060270002001149 
060270002001150 
060270002001151 
060270002001152 
060270002001153 
060270002001154 
060270002001155 
060270002001156 
060270002001157 
060270002001158 
060270002001164 
060270002001166 
060270002001167 
060270002001168 
060270002001169 
060270002001170 
060270002001171 
060270002001185 
060270002001201 
060270002002002 
060270002002003 
060270002002004 
060270002002005 
060270002002006 
060270002002007 
060270002002008 
060270002002009 
060270002002010 
060270002002011 
060270002002012 
060270002002014 
060270002002015 
060270002002016 
060270002002017 
060270002002018 
060270002002019 
060270002002020 
060270002002023 
060270002002024 
060270002002025 
060270002002026 
060270002002027 
060270002002028 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 020



060270002002034 
060270002002035 
060270002002036 
060270002002037 
060270002002038 
060270002002039 
060270002002040 
060270002002041 
060270002002042 
060270002002043 
060270002002044 
060270002002045 
060270002002046 
060270002002047 
060270002002048 
060270002002049 
060270002002050 
060270002002051 
060270002002052 
060270002002053 
060270002002054 
060270002002055 
060270002002056 
060270002002058 
060270002002059 
060270002002062 
060270002002063 
060270002002065 
060270002002067 
060270002002070 
060270002002073 
060270002002074 
060270002002075 
060270002002076 
060270002002077 
060270002002078 
060270002002079 
060270002002080 
060270002002084 
060270002002085 
060270002002086 
060270002002088 
060270002002089 
060270002002090 
060270002002091 
060270002002092 
060270002002093 
060270002002094 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 021



060270002002095 
060270002002096 
060270002002097 
060270002002101 
060270002002102 
060270002002103 
060270002002104 
060270002002105 
060270002002106 
060270002002107 
060270002002108 
060270002002109 
060270002002110 
060270002002111 
060270002002112 
060270002002113 
060270002002114 
060270002002115 
060270002002116 
060270002002117 
060270002002118 
060270002002121 
060270002002122 
060270002002123 
060270002002124 
060270002002125 
060270003001001 
060270003001002 
060270003001003 
060270003001004 
060270003001005 
060270003001006 
060270003001008 
060270003001014 
060270003001015 
060270003001021 
060270003002001 
060270003002002 
060270003002003 
060270003002004 
060270003002005 
060270003002006 
060270003002007 
060270003002008 
060270003002009 
060270005001125 
060270005001126 
060270005001133 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 022



060270005001136 
060270005001137 
060270005001138 
060270005001139 
060270005001144 
060270005001145 
060270005001146 
060270005001480 
060270005001481 
060270005001482 
060270005002000 
060270005002001 
060270005002002 
060270005002003 
060270005002004 
060270005002005 
060270005002006 
060270005002007 
060270005002008 
060270005002009 
060270005002010 
060270005002011 
060270005002012 
060270005002013 
060270005002014 
060270005002015 
060270005002016 
060270005002017 
060270005002018 
060270005002019 
060270005002020 
060270005002021 
060270005002022 
060270005002023 
060270005002024 
060270005002025 
060270005002026 
060270005002027 
060270005002028 
060270005002029 
060270005002030 
060270005002031 
060270005002032 
060270005002033 
060270005002034 
060270005002035 
060270005002036 
060270005002037 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 023



060270005002038 
060270005002039 
060270005002040 
060270005002041 
060270005002042 
060270005002043 
060270005002044 
060270005002045 
060270005002046 
060270005002047 
060270005002048 
060270005002049 
060270005002050 
060270005002051 
060270005002052 
060270005002053 
060270005002054 
060270005002055 
060270005002056 
060270005002057 
060270005002058 
060270005002059 
060270005002060 
060270005002061 
060270005002062 
060270005002063 
060270005002064 
060270005002065 
060270005002075 
060270005002076 
060270005002077 
060270005002078 
060270005002079 
060270005002080 
060270005002092 
 
District 5 
060270002001159 
060270002001160 
060270002001161 
060270002001162 
060270002001163 
060270002001165 
060270002001172 
060270002001173 
060270002001174 
060270002001175 
060270002001176 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 024



060270002001177 
060270002001178 
060270002001179 
060270002001180 
060270002001181 
060270002001182 
060270002001183 
060270002001184 
060270002001186 
060270002001187 
060270002001188 
060270002001189 
060270002001190 
060270002001191 
060270002001192 
060270002001196 
060270002001197 
060270002001198 
060270002001199 
060270002001200 
060270002001202 
060270002001203 
060270002001204 
060270002001205 
060270002002057 
060270002002060 
060270002002061 
060270002002064 
060270002002066 
060270002002068 
060270002002069 
060270002002071 
060270002002072 
060270002002087 
060270002002119 
060270002002120 
060270002002126 
060270005001093 
060270005001096 
060270005001097 
060270005001104 
060270005001105 
060270005001106 
060270005001107 
060270005001108 
060270005001109 
060270005001110 
060270005001111 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 025



060270005001120 
060270005001121 
060270005001122 
060270005001131 
060270005001132 
060270005001134 
060270005001135 
060270005001140 
060270005001141 
060270005001142 
060270005001143 
060270005001147 
060270005001148 
060270005001149 
060270005001150 
060270005001151 
060270005001152 
060270005001153 
060270005001154 
060270005001155 
060270005001156 
060270005001157 
060270005001158 
060270005001159 
060270005001160 
060270005001161 
060270005001162 
060270005001163 
060270005001164 
060270005001165 
060270005001166 
060270005001167 
060270005001168 
060270005001169 
060270005001170 
060270005001171 
060270005001172 
060270005001173 
060270005001174 
060270005001175 
060270005001176 
060270005001177 
060270005001178 
060270005001179 
060270005001180 
060270005001181 
060270005001182 
060270005001183 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 026



060270005001184 
060270005001185 
060270005001186 
060270005001187 
060270005001188 
060270005001189 
060270005001190 
060270005001191 
060270005001192 
060270005001193 
060270005001194 
060270005001195 
060270005001196 
060270005001197 
060270005001198 
060270005001199 
060270005001200 
060270005001201 
060270005001202 
060270005001203 
060270005001204 
060270005001205 
060270005001206 
060270005001207 
060270005001208 
060270005001209 
060270005001210 
060270005001211 
060270005001212 
060270005001213 
060270005001214 
060270005001216 
060270005001220 
060270005001221 
060270005001222 
060270005001226 
060270005001227 
060270005001228 
060270005001229 
060270005001230 
060270005001231 
060270005001232 
060270005001233 
060270005001234 
060270005001235 
060270005001236 
060270005001237 
060270005001238 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 027



060270005001239 
060270005001240 
060270005001241 
060270005001242 
060270005001245 
060270005001246 
060270005001247 
060270005001248 
060270005001249 
060270005001250 
060270005001251 
060270005001252 
060270005001253 
060270005001254 
060270005001255 
060270005001256 
060270005001257 
060270005001258 
060270005001266 
060270005001267 
060270005001268 
060270005001269 
060270005001270 
060270005001271 
060270005001272 
060270005001273 
060270005001274 
060270005001275 
060270005001276 
060270005001277 
060270005001278 
060270005001279 
060270005001280 
060270005001281 
060270005001282 
060270005001283 
060270005001284 
060270005001285 
060270005001286 
060270005001287 
060270005001288 
060270005001290 
060270005001291 
060270005001292 
060270005001293 
060270005001294 
060270005001295 
060270005001296 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 028



060270005001297 
060270005001298 
060270005001299 
060270005001300 
060270005001301 
060270005001302 
060270005001303 
060270005001304 
060270005001305 
060270005001306 
060270005001307 
060270005001308 
060270005001309 
060270005001310 
060270005001311 
060270005001312 
060270005001313 
060270005001314 
060270005001315 
060270005001316 
060270005001317 
060270005001318 
060270005001319 
060270005001320 
060270005001321 
060270005001322 
060270005001323 
060270005001324 
060270005001325 
060270005001326 
060270005001327 
060270005001328 
060270005001329 
060270005001330 
060270005001331 
060270005001332 
060270005001333 
060270005001334 
060270005001335 
060270005001336 
060270005001337 
060270005001338 
060270005001339 
060270005001340 
060270005001341 
060270005001342 
060270005001343 
060270005001344 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 029



060270005001345 
060270005001346 
060270005001347 
060270005001348 
060270005001349 
060270005001350 
060270005001351 
060270005001352 
060270005001353 
060270005001354 
060270005001355 
060270005001356 
060270005001357 
060270005001358 
060270005001359 
060270005001360 
060270005001361 
060270005001363 
060270005001364 
060270005001366 
060270005001367 
060270005001368 
060270005001369 
060270005001370 
060270005001426 
060270005001434 
060270005001435 
060270005001436 
060270005001439 
060270005001440 
060270005001447 
060270005001448 
060270005001449 
060270005001451 
060270005001452 
060270005001453 
060270005001458 
060270005001459 
060270005001460 
060270005001461 
060270005001462 
060270005001463 
060270005001464 
060270005001465 
060270005001466 
060270005001467 
060270005001468 
060270005001469 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 030



060270005001470 
060270005001471 
060270005001472 
060270005001473 
060270005001474 
060270005001475 
060270005001476 
060270005001479 
060270005001504 
060270008001006 
060270008001007 
060270008001015 
060270008001016 
060270008001017 
060270008001018 
060270008001019 
060270008001020 
060270008001021 
060270008001022 
060270008001023 
060270008001024 
060270008001027 
060270008001030 
060270008001031 
060270008001032 
060270008001034 
060270008001035 
060270008001037 
060270008001038 
060270008001039 
060270008001040 
060270008001041 
060270008001042 
060270008001044 
060270008001047 
060270008001048 
060270008001049 
060270008001050 
060270008001051 
060270008001052 
060270008001053 
060270008001054 
060270008001055 
060270008001056 
060270008001057 
060270008001065 
060270008001071 
060270008001072 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 031



060270008001073 
060270008001075 
060270008001077 
060270008001078 
060270008001080 
060270008001081 
060270008001082 
060270008001089 
060270008001090 
060270008001091 
060270008001092 
060270008001093 
060270008001094 
060270008001095 
060270008001096 
060270008001097 
060270008001098 
060270008001099 
060270008001100 
060270008001101 
060270008001102 
060270008001103 
060270008001104 
060270008001105 
060270008001106 
060270008001107 
060270008001108 
060270008001109 
060270008001110 
060270008001111 
060270008001112 
060270008001113 
060270008001114 
060270008001115 
060270008001120 
060270008001121 
060270008001122 
060270008001124 
060270008001125 
060270008001126 
060270008001127 
060270008001128 
060270008001129 
060270008001130 
060270008001131 
060270008001135 
060270008001136 
060270008001137 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 032



060270008001138 
060270008001139 
060270008001140 
060270008001141 
060270008001142 
060270008001143 
060270008001144 
060270008001145 
060270008001146 
060270008001147 
060270008001148 
060270008001149 
060270008001150 
060270008001151 
060270008001152 
060270008001153 
060270008001154 
060270008001155 
060270008001156 
060270008001157 
060270008001158 
060270008001159 
060270008001160 
060270008001161 
060270008001162 
060270008001163 
060270008001164 
060270008001165 
060270008001166 
060270008001167 
060270008001168 
060270008001169 
060270008001170 
060270008001171 
060270008001172 
060270008001173 
060270008001174 
060270008001175 
060270008001176 
060270008001177 
060270008001178 
060270008001179 
060270008001180 
060270008001181 
060270008001182 
060270008001183 
060270008001184 
060270008001185 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 033



060270008001186 
060270008001187 
060270008001188 
060270008001189 
060270008001190 
060270008001191 
060270008001192 
060270008001193 
060270008001194 
060270008001195 
060270008001196 
060270008001197 
060270008001198 
060270008001199 
060270008001200 
060270008001201 
060270008001202 
060270008001203 
060270008001204 
060270008001205 
060270008001206 
060270008001207 
060270008001208 
060270008001209 
060270008001210 
060270008001211 
060270008001212 
060270008001213 
060270008001214 
060270008001215 
060270008001216 
060270008001217 
060270008001218 
060270008001219 
060270008001220 
060270008001221 
060270008001222 
060270008001223 
060270008001224 
060270008001225 
060270008001226 
060270008001227 
060270008001228 
060270008001229 
060270008001230 
060270008001231 
060270008001232 
060270008001233 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 034



060270008001234 
060270008001235 
060270008001236 
060270008001237 
060270008001238 
060270008001239 
060270008001240 
060270008001241 
060270008001242 
060270008001243 
060270008001244 
060270008001245 
060270008001246 
060270008001247 
060270008001248 
060270008001249 
060270008001250 
060270008001251 
060270008001252 
060270008001253 
060270008001254 
060270008001255 
060270008001256 
060270008001257 
060270008001258 
060270008001259 
060270008001260 
060270008001261 
060270008001262 
060270008001263 
060270008001264 
060270008001265 
060270008001266 
060270008001267 
060270008001268 
060270008001269 
060270008001270 
060270008001271 
060270008001272 
060270008001273 
060270008001274 
060270008001275 
060270008001276 
060270008001277 
060270008001278 
060270008001279 
060270008001280 
060270008001281 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 035



060270008001282 
060270008001283 
060270008001284 
060270008001285 
060270008001286 
060270008001287 
060270008001288 
060270008001289 
060270008001290 
060270008001291 
060270008001292 
060270008001293 
060270008001294 
060270008001295 
060270008001296 
060270008001297 
060270008001298 
060270008001299 
060270008001300 
060270008001301 
060270008001302 
060270008001303 
060270008001304 
060270008001305 
060270008001306 
060270008001307 
060270008001308 
060270008001309 
060270008001310 
060270008001311 
060270008001312 
060270008001313 
060270008001314 
060270008001315 
060270008001316 
060270008001317 
060270008001318 
060270008001319 
060270008001320 
060270008001321 
060270008001322 
060270008001323 
060270008001324 
060270008001325 
060270008001326 
060270008001327 
060270008001328 
060270008001329 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 036



060270008001330 
060270008001331 
060270008001332 
060270008001333 
060270008001334 
060270008001335 
060270008001336 
060270008001337 
060270008001338 
060270008001339 
060270008001340 
060270008001341 
060270008001342 
060270008001343 
060270008001345 
060270008001346 
060270008001347 
060270008001348 
060270008001349 
060270008001350 
060270008001351 
060270008001352 
060270008002000 
060270008002001 
060270008002002 
060270008002003 
060270008002004 
060270008002005 
060270008002008 
060270008002009 
060270008002010 
060270008002011 
060270008002012 
060270008002015 
060270008002017 
060270008002018 
060270008002019 
060270008002020 
060270008002021 
060270008002022 
060270008002023 
060270008002024 
060270008002025 
060270008002026 
060270008002027 
060270008002028 
060270008002029 
060270008002030 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 037



060270008002031 
060270008002032 
060270008002033 
060270008002034 
060270008002035 
060270008002036 
060270008002037 
060270008002038 
060270008002039 
060270008002040 
060270008002041 
060270008002042 
060270008002043 
060270008002044 
060270008002045 
060270008002046 
060270008002047 
060270008002048 
060270008002049 
060270008002050 
060270008002051 
060270008002052 
060270008002053 
060270008002054 
060270008002055 
060270008002056 
060270008002057 
060270008002058 
060270008002059 
060270008002060 
060270008002061 
060270008002062 
060270008002063 
060270008002064 
060270008002065 
060270008002068 
060270008002069 
060270008002070 
060270008002071 
060270008002072 
060270008002073 
060270008002074 
060270008002075 
060270008002076 
060270008002077 
060270008002078 
060270008002079 
060270008002080 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 038



060270008002081 
060270008002082 
060270008002083 
060270008002084 
060270008002085 
060270008002086 
060270008002087 
060270008002088 
060270008002089 
060270008002090 
060270008002091 
060270008002092 
060270008002093 
060270008002094 
060270008002095 
060270008002096 
060270008002097 
060270008002098 
060270008002099 
060270008002100 
060270008002101 
060270008002102 
060270008002103 
060270008002104 
060270008002105 
060270008002106 
060270008002107 
060270008002108 
060270008002109 
060270008002110 
060270008002111 
060270008002112 
060270008002113 
060270008002114 
060270008002115 
060270008002116 
060270008002117 
060270008002118 
060270008002119 
060270008002120 
060270008002121 
060270008002122 
060270008002123 
060270008002124 
060270008002125 
060270008002126 
060270008002127 
060270008002128 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 039



060270008002129 
060270008002130 
060270008002131 
060270008002132 
060270008002133 
060270008002134 
060270008002135 
060270008002136 
060270008002137 
060270008002138 
060270008002139 
060270008002140 
060270008002141 
060270008002142 
060270008002143 
060270008002144 
060270008002145 
060270008002146 
060270008002147 
060270008002148 
060270008002149 
060270008002150 
060270008002151 
060270008002152 
060270008002153 
060270008002154 
060270008002155 
060270008002156 
060270008002157 
060270008002158 
060270008002159 
060270008002160 
060270008002161 
060270008002162 
060270008002163 
060270008002164 
060270008002165 
060270008002166 
060270008002167 
060270008002168 
060270008002169 
060270008002170 
060270008002171 
060270008002172 
060270008002173 
060270008002174 
060270008002175 
060270008002176 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 040



060270008002177 
060270008002178 
060270008002179 
060270008002180 
060270008002181 
060270008002182 
060270008002183 
060270008002184 
060270008002185 
060270008002186 
060270008002187 
060270008002188 
060270008002189 
060270008002190 
060270008002191 
060270008002192 
060270008002193 
060270008002194 
060270008002195 
060270008002196 
060270008002197 
060270008002198 
060270008002199 
060270008002200 
060270008002201 
060270008002202 
060270008002203 
060270008002204 
060270008002205 
060270008002206 
060270008002207 
060270008002208 
060270008002209 
060270008002210 
060270008002211 
060270008002212 
060270008002213 
060270008002214 
060270008002215 
060270008002216 
060270008002217 
060270008002218 
060270008002219 
060270008002220 
060270008002221 
060270008002222 
060270008002223 
060270008002224 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 041



060270008002225 
060270008002226 
060270008002227 
060270008002228 
060270008002229 
060270008002230 
060270008002231 
060270008002232 
060270008002233 
060270008002234 
060270008002235 
060270008002236 
060270008002237 
060270008002238 
060270008002239 
060270008002240 
060270008002241 
060270008002242 
060270008002243 
060270008002244 
060270008002245 
060270008002246 
060270008002247 
060270008002248 
060270008002249 
060270008002250 
060270008002251 
060270008002252 
060270008002253 
060270008002254 
060270008002255 
060270008002256 
060270008002257 
060270008002258 
060270008002259 
060270008002260 
060270008002261 
060270008002262 
060270008002263 
060270008002264 
060270008002265 
060270008002266 
060270008002267 
060270008002268 
060270008002269 
060270008002270 
060270008002271 
060270008002272 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 042



060270008002273 
060270008002274 
060270008002275 
060270008002276 
060270008002277 
060270008002278 
060270008002279 
060270008002280 
060270008002281 
060270008002282 
060270008002283 
060270008002284 
060270008002285 
060270008002286 
060270008002287 
060270008002288 
060270008002289 
060270008002290 
060270008002291 
060270008002292 
060270008002293 
060270008002294 
060270008002295 
060270008002296 
060270008002297 
060270008002298 
060270008002299 
060270008002300 
060270008002301 
060270008002302 
060270008002303 
060270008002304 
060270008002305 
060270008002306 
060270008002307 
060270008002308 
060270008002309 
060270008002310 
060270008002311 
060270008002312 
060270008002313 
060270008002314 
060270008002315 
060270008002316 
060270008002317 
060270008002318 
060270008002319 
060270008002320 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 043



060270008002321 
060270008002322 
060270008002323 
060270008002324 
060270008002325 
060270008002326 
060270008002327 
060270008002328 
060270008002329 
060270008002330 
060270008002331 
060270008002332 
060270008002333 
060270008002334 
060270008002335 
060270008002336 
060270008002337 
060270008002338 
060270008002339 
060270008002340 
060270008002341 
060270008002342 
060270008002343 
060270008002344 
060270008002345 
060270008002346 
060270008002347 
060270008002348 
060270008002349 
060270008002350 
060270008002351 
060270008002352 
060270008002353 
060270008002354 
060270008002355 
060270008002356 
060270008002357 
060270008002358 
060270008002359 
060270008002360 
060270008002361 
060270008002362 
060270008002363 
060270008002364 
060270008002365 
060270008002366 
060270008002367 
060270008002368 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 044



060270008002369 
060270008002370 
060270008002371 
060270008002372 
060270008002373 
060270008002374 
060270008002375 
060270008002376 
060270008002377 
060270008002378 
060270008002379 
060270008002380 
060270008002381 
060270008002382 
060270008002383 
060270008002384 
060270008002385 
060270008002386 
060270008002387 
060270008002388 
060270008002389 
060270008002390 
060270008002391 
060270008002392 
060270008002393 
060270008002394 
060270008002395 
060270008002396 
060270008002397 
060270008002398 
060270008002399 
060270008002400 
060270008002401 
060270008002402 
060270008002403 
060270008002404 
060270008002405 
060270008002406 
060270008002407 
060270008002408 
060270008002409 
060270008002410 
060270008002411 
060270008002412 
060270008002413 
060270008002414 
060270008002415 
060270008002416 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 045



060270008002417 
060270008002418 
060270008002419 
060270008002420 
060270008002421 
060270008002422 
060270008002423 
060270008002424 
060270008002425 
060270008002426 
060270008002427 
060270008002428 
060270008002429 
060270008002430 
060270008002431 
060270008002432 
060270008002433 
060270008002434 
060270008002435 
060270008002436 
060270008002437 
060270008002438 
060270008002439 
060270008002440 
060270008002441 
060270008002442 
060270008002443 
060270008002444 
060270008002445 
060270008002446 
060270008002447 
060270008002448 
060270008002449 
060270008002450 
060270008002451 
060270008002452 
060270008002453 
060270008002454 
060270008002455 
060270008002456 
060270008002457 
060270008002458 
060270008002459 
060270008002460 
060270008002461 
060270008002462 
060270008002463 
060270008002464 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 046



060270008002465 
060270008002466 
060270008002467 
060270008002468 
060270008002469 
060270008002470 
060270008002471 
060270008002472 
060270008002473 
060270008002474 
060270008002475 
060270008002476 
060270008002477 
060270008002478 
060270008002479 
060270008002480 
060270008002481 
060270008002482 
060270008002483 
060270008002484 
060270008002485 
060270008002486 
060270008002487 
060270008002488 
060270008002489 
060270008002490 
060270008002491 
060270008002492 
060270008002493 
060270008002494 
060270008002495 
060270008002496 
060270008002497 
060270008002498 
060270008002499 
060270008002500 
060270008002501 
060270008002502 
060270008002503 
060270008002504 
060270008002505 
060270008002506 
060270008002507 
060270008002508 
060270008002509 
060270008002510 
060270008002511 
060270008002512 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 047



060270008002513 
060270008002514 
060270008002515 
060270008002516 
060270008002517 
060270008002518 
060270008002519 
060270008002520 
060270008002521 
060270008002522 
060270008002523 
060270008002524 
060270008002525 
060270008002526 
060270008002527 
060270008002528 
060270008002529 
060270008002530 
060270008002531 
060270008002532 
060270008002533 
060270008002534 
060270008002535 
060270008002536 
060270008002537 
060270008002538 
060270008002539 
060270008002540 
060270008002541 
060270008002542 
060270008002543 
060270008002544 
060270008002545 
060270008002546 
060270008002547 
060270008002548 
060270008002549 
060270008002550 
060270008002551 
060270008002552 
060270008002553 
060270008002554 
060270008002555 
060270008002556 
060270008002557 
060270008002558 
060270008002559 
060270008002560 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 048



060270008002561 
060270008002562 
060270008002563 
060270008002564 
060270008002565 
060270008002566 
060270008002567 
060270008002568 
060270008002569 
060270008002570 
060270008002571 
060270008002572 
060270008002573 
060270008002574 
060270008002575 
060270008002576 
060270008002577 
060270008002578 
060270008002579 
060270008002580 
060270008002581 
060270008002582 
060270008002583 
060270008002584 
060270008002585 
060270008002586 
060270008002587 
060270008002588 
060270008002589 
060270008002590 
060270008002591 
060270008002592 
060270008002593 
060270008002594 
060270008003004 
060270008003010 
060270008003014 
060270008003022 
060270008003023 
060270008003024 
060270008003025 
060270008003026 
060270008003027 
060270008003028 
060270008003029 
060270008003030 
060270008003031 
060270008003032 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 049



060270008003033 
060270008003034 
060270008003035 
060270008003036 
060270008003037 
060270008003038 
060270008003039 
060270008003040 
060270008003041 
060270008003042 
060270008003043 
060270008003044 
060270008003045 
060270008003046 
060270008003047 
060270008003048 
060270008003049 
060270008003050 
060270008003051 
060270008003052 
060270008003053 
060270008003054 
060270008003055 
060270008003056 
060270008003059 
060270008004000 
060270008004001 
060270008004002 
060270008004003 
060270008004004 
060270008004005 
060270008004007 
060270008004008 
060270008004009 
060270008004010 
060270008004011 
060270008004012 
060270008004013 
060270008004014 
060270008004015 
060270008004016 
060270008004017 
060270008004018 
060270008004019 
060270008004020 
060270008004021 
060270008004022 
060270008004023 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 050



060270008004024 
060270008004025 
060270008004026 
060270008004027 
060270008004028 
060270008004029 
060270008004030 
060270008004031 
060270008004033 
060270008004035 
060270008004036 
060270008004037 
060270008004038 
060270008004039 
060270008004040 
060270008004041 
060270008004042 
060270008004043 
060270008004044 
060270008004045 
060270008004046 
060270008004047 
060270008004048 
060270008004049 
060270008004050 
060270008004051 
060270008004052 
060270008004053 
060270008004054 
060270008004055 
060270008004056 
060270008004057 
060270008004058 
060270008004059 
060270008004060 
060270008004061 
060270008004062 
060270008004063 
060270008004064 
060270008004080 
060270008004081 
060270008004082 
060270008004084 
060270008004085 
060270008004086 
060270008004087 
060270008004088 
060270008004090 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 051



060270008004091 
060270008004092 
060270008004093 
060270008004094 
060270008004095 
060270008004096 
060270008004097 
060270008004098 
060270008004099 
060270008004100 
 

Option 6  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 052



District 1 
060270001001067 
060270001001068 
060270001001069 
060270001001070 
060270001001071 
060270001001072 
060270001001073 
060270001001074 
060270001001075 
060270001001076 
060270001001077 
060270001001078 
060270001001079 
060270001001080 
060270001001081 
060270001001082 
060270001001083 
060270001001084 
060270001001085 
060270001001086 
060270001001087 
060270001001112 
060270001001113 
060270001001114 
060270001002024 
060270001002025 
060270001002026 
060270001002027 
060270001002030 
060270001002031 
060270001002032 
060270001002034 
060270001002035 
060270001002036 
060270001002037 
060270001002038 
060270001002039 
060270001002040 
060270001002041 
060270001002042 
060270001002043 
060270001002044 
060270001002047 
060270001002048 
060270001002049 
060270001002050 
060270002001044 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 001



060270002001045 
060270002001050 
060270002001053 
060270002001062 
060270002001068 
060270002001114 
060270002001131 
060270002001132 
060270002001135 
060270002001136 
060270002001137 
060270002001138 
060270002001140 
060270002001141 
060270002001142 
060270002001143 
060270002001144 
060270002001145 
060270002001146 
060270002001147 
060270002001148 
060270002001152 
060270002001153 
060270002001154 
060270002001155 
060270002001156 
060270002001157 
060270002001158 
060270002001159 
060270002001160 
060270002001161 
060270002001162 
060270002001163 
060270002001164 
060270002001165 
060270002001166 
060270002001167 
060270002001168 
060270002001169 
060270002001170 
060270002001171 
060270002001172 
060270002001173 
060270002001174 
060270002001175 
060270002001176 
060270002001177 
060270002001178 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 002



060270002001179 
060270002001180 
060270002001181 
060270002001182 
060270002001183 
060270002001184 
060270002001186 
060270002001187 
060270002001188 
060270002001189 
060270002001190 
060270002001191 
060270002001192 
060270002001196 
060270002001197 
060270002001198 
060270002001199 
060270002001200 
060270002001202 
060270002001203 
060270002001204 
060270002001205 
060270002002006 
060270002002007 
060270002002008 
060270002002009 
060270002002010 
060270002002011 
060270002002012 
060270002002013 
060270002002014 
060270002002017 
060270002002018 
060270002002019 
060270002002028 
060270002002038 
060270002002039 
060270002002040 
060270002002041 
060270002002042 
060270002002043 
060270002002044 
060270002002045 
060270002002046 
060270002002048 
060270002002049 
060270002002050 
060270002002051 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 003



060270002002052 
060270002002053 
060270002002054 
060270002002055 
060270002002056 
060270002002057 
060270002002058 
060270002002059 
060270002002060 
060270002002061 
060270002002062 
060270002002063 
060270002002064 
060270002002065 
060270002002066 
060270002002067 
060270002002068 
060270002002069 
060270002002070 
060270002002071 
060270002002072 
060270002002073 
060270002002074 
060270002002084 
060270002002119 
060270002002120 
060270002002121 
060270002002126 
060270003001001 
060270003001002 
060270003001003 
060270003001004 
060270003001014 
060270003001015 
060270003001017 
060270003001018 
060270003001019 
060270003001020 
060270003001021 
060270003001022 
060270003001023 
060270003001024 
060270003001025 
060270003001026 
060270003001027 
060270003001028 
060270003001029 
060270003002006 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 004



060270004001000 
060270004001001 
060270004001002 
060270004002002 
060270008001001 
 
District 2 
060270001001098 
060270001001110 
060270001001111 
060270004002000 
060270004002001 
060270004002003 
060270004002004 
060270004002005 
060270004002006 
060270004002007 
060270004002008 
060270004002011 
060270004002012 
060270004002013 
060270004002014 
060270004002015 
060270004002016 
060270004002017 
060270004002018 
060270004002019 
060270004002020 
060270004002021 
060270004002022 
060270004002023 
060270004002024 
060270004002025 
060270004002026 
060270004002027 
060270004002028 
060270004002029 
060270004002030 
060270004002031 
060270004002032 
060270004002033 
060270004002034 
060270004002035 
060270004002036 
060270004002037 
060270004002038 
060270004002039 
060270004002040 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 005



060270004002041 
060270004002043 
060270004002044 
060270004002045 
060270004002046 
060270004002047 
060270004002048 
060270004002049 
060270004002050 
060270004002051 
060270004002052 
060270004002056 
060270004002059 
060270004003000 
060270004003001 
060270004003002 
060270004003003 
060270004003005 
060270004003006 
060270004003007 
060270004003008 
060270004003009 
060270004003010 
060270004003011 
060270004003012 
060270004003013 
060270004003014 
060270004003015 
060270004003016 
060270004003017 
060270004003018 
060270004003019 
060270004003020 
060270004003021 
060270004003022 
060270004003023 
060270004003024 
060270004003025 
060270004003026 
060270004003027 
060270004003028 
060270004003029 
060270004003030 
060270004003031 
060270004003032 
060270004003033 
060270004003034 
060270004003035 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 006



060270004003036 
060270004003037 
060270004003038 
060270004003039 
060270004003040 
060270004003041 
060270004004000 
060270004004001 
060270004004002 
060270004004003 
060270004004004 
060270004004005 
060270004004006 
060270004004007 
060270004004008 
060270004004009 
060270004004010 
060270004004011 
060270004004012 
060270004004013 
 
District 3 
060270002001185 
060270003001000 
060270003001005 
060270003001006 
060270003001007 
060270003001008 
060270003001009 
060270003001010 
060270003001011 
060270003001012 
060270003001013 
060270003001016 
060270003001030 
060270003002001 
060270003002002 
060270003002003 
060270003002004 
060270003002005 
060270004001003 
060270004001004 
060270004001005 
060270004001006 
060270004001007 
060270004001008 
060270004001009 
060270004001010 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 007



060270004001011 
060270004001012 
060270004001013 
060270004001014 
060270004001015 
060270004001016 
060270004001017 
060270004001018 
060270004001019 
060270004001020 
060270004001021 
060270004001022 
060270004001023 
060270004001024 
060270004001025 
060270004001026 
060270004002009 
060270004002010 
060270004002023 
 
District 4 
060270001001000 
060270001001001 
060270001001002 
060270001001003 
060270001001004 
060270001001005 
060270001001006 
060270001001007 
060270001001008 
060270001001009 
060270001001010 
060270001001011 
060270001001012 
060270001001013 
060270001001014 
060270001001015 
060270001001016 
060270001001017 
060270001001018 
060270001001019 
060270001001020 
060270001001021 
060270001001022 
060270001001023 
060270001001024 
060270001001025 
060270001001026 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 008



060270001001027 
060270001001028 
060270001001029 
060270001001030 
060270001001031 
060270001001032 
060270001001033 
060270001001034 
060270001001035 
060270001001036 
060270001001037 
060270001001038 
060270001001039 
060270001001040 
060270001001041 
060270001001042 
060270001001043 
060270001001044 
060270001001045 
060270001001046 
060270001001047 
060270001001048 
060270001001049 
060270001001050 
060270001001051 
060270001001052 
060270001001053 
060270001001054 
060270001001055 
060270001001056 
060270001001057 
060270001001058 
060270001001059 
060270001001060 
060270001001061 
060270001001062 
060270001001063 
060270001001064 
060270001001065 
060270001001066 
060270001001088 
060270001001089 
060270001001090 
060270001001091 
060270001001092 
060270001001093 
060270001001094 
060270001001095 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 009



060270001001096 
060270001001097 
060270001001099 
060270001001100 
060270001001101 
060270001001102 
060270001001103 
060270001001104 
060270001001105 
060270001001106 
060270001001107 
060270001001108 
060270001001109 
060270001001115 
060270001001116 
060270001001117 
060270001001118 
060270001001119 
060270001001120 
060270001001121 
060270001001122 
060270001001123 
060270001001124 
060270001001125 
060270001001126 
060270001001127 
060270001001128 
060270001001129 
060270001001130 
060270001001131 
060270001001132 
060270001001133 
060270001001134 
060270001001135 
060270001001136 
060270001001137 
060270001001138 
060270001001139 
060270001001140 
060270001001141 
060270001001142 
060270001001143 
060270001001144 
060270001001145 
060270001001146 
060270001001147 
060270001001148 
060270001001149 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 010



060270001001150 
060270001001151 
060270001001152 
060270001001153 
060270001001154 
060270001001155 
060270001001156 
060270001001157 
060270001001158 
060270001001159 
060270001001160 
060270001002000 
060270001002001 
060270001002002 
060270001002003 
060270001002004 
060270001002005 
060270001002006 
060270001002007 
060270001002008 
060270001002009 
060270001002010 
060270001002011 
060270001002012 
060270001002013 
060270001002014 
060270001002015 
060270001002016 
060270001002017 
060270001002018 
060270001002019 
060270001002020 
060270001002021 
060270001002022 
060270001002023 
060270001002028 
060270001002029 
060270001002033 
060270001002045 
060270001002046 
060270002001000 
060270002001001 
060270002001002 
060270002001003 
060270002001004 
060270002001005 
060270002001006 
060270002001007 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 011



060270002001008 
060270002001009 
060270002001010 
060270002001011 
060270002001012 
060270002001013 
060270002001014 
060270002001015 
060270002001016 
060270002001017 
060270002001018 
060270002001019 
060270002001020 
060270002001021 
060270002001022 
060270002001023 
060270002001024 
060270002001025 
060270002001026 
060270002001027 
060270002001028 
060270002001029 
060270002001030 
060270002001031 
060270002001032 
060270002001033 
060270002001034 
060270002001035 
060270002001036 
060270002001037 
060270002001038 
060270002001039 
060270002001040 
060270002001041 
060270002001042 
060270002001043 
060270002001046 
060270002001047 
060270002001048 
060270002001049 
060270002001051 
060270002001052 
060270002001054 
060270002001055 
060270002001056 
060270002001057 
060270002001058 
060270002001059 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 012



060270002001060 
060270002001061 
060270002001063 
060270002001064 
060270002001065 
060270002001066 
060270002001067 
060270002001069 
060270002001070 
060270002001071 
060270002001072 
060270002001073 
060270002001074 
060270002001075 
060270002001076 
060270002001077 
060270002001078 
060270002001079 
060270002001080 
060270002001081 
060270002001082 
060270002001083 
060270002001084 
060270002001085 
060270002001086 
060270002001087 
060270002001088 
060270002001089 
060270002001090 
060270002001091 
060270002001092 
060270002001093 
060270002001094 
060270002001095 
060270002001096 
060270002001097 
060270002001098 
060270002001099 
060270002001100 
060270002001101 
060270002001102 
060270002001103 
060270002001104 
060270002001105 
060270002001106 
060270002001107 
060270002001108 
060270002001109 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 013



060270002001110 
060270002001111 
060270002001112 
060270002001113 
060270002001115 
060270002001116 
060270002001117 
060270002001118 
060270002001119 
060270002001120 
060270002001121 
060270002001122 
060270002001123 
060270002001124 
060270002001125 
060270002001126 
060270002001127 
060270002001128 
060270002001129 
060270002001130 
060270002001133 
060270002001134 
060270002001139 
060270002001149 
060270002001150 
060270002001151 
060270002001193 
060270002001194 
060270002001195 
060270002001201 
060270002002000 
060270002002001 
060270002002002 
060270002002003 
060270002002004 
060270002002005 
060270002002015 
060270002002016 
060270002002020 
060270002002021 
060270002002022 
060270002002023 
060270002002024 
060270002002025 
060270002002026 
060270002002027 
060270002002029 
060270002002030 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 014



060270002002031 
060270002002032 
060270002002033 
060270002002034 
060270002002035 
060270002002036 
060270002002037 
060270002002047 
060270002002075 
060270002002076 
060270002002077 
060270002002078 
060270002002079 
060270002002080 
060270002002081 
060270002002082 
060270002002083 
060270002002085 
060270002002086 
060270002002087 
060270002002088 
060270002002089 
060270002002090 
060270002002091 
060270002002092 
060270002002093 
060270002002094 
060270002002095 
060270002002096 
060270002002097 
060270002002098 
060270002002099 
060270002002100 
060270002002101 
060270002002102 
060270002002103 
060270002002104 
060270002002105 
060270002002106 
060270002002107 
060270002002108 
060270002002109 
060270002002110 
060270002002111 
060270002002112 
060270002002113 
060270002002114 
060270002002115 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 015



060270002002116 
060270002002117 
060270002002118 
060270002002122 
060270002002123 
060270002002124 
060270002002125 
060270003002000 
060270003002007 
060270003002008 
060270003002009 
060270004002042 
060270004002053 
060270004002054 
060270004002055 
060270004002057 
060270004002058 
060270004002060 
060270004003004 
060270005001000 
060270005001001 
060270005001002 
060270005001003 
060270005001004 
060270005001005 
060270005001006 
060270005001007 
060270005001008 
060270005001009 
060270005001010 
060270005001011 
060270005001012 
060270005001013 
060270005001014 
060270005001015 
060270005001016 
060270005001017 
060270005001018 
060270005001019 
060270005001020 
060270005001021 
060270005001022 
060270005001023 
060270005001024 
060270005001025 
060270005001026 
060270005001027 
060270005001028 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 016



060270005001029 
060270005001030 
060270005001031 
060270005001032 
060270005001033 
060270005001034 
060270005001035 
060270005001036 
060270005001037 
060270005001038 
060270005001039 
060270005001040 
060270005001041 
060270005001042 
060270005001043 
060270005001044 
060270005001045 
060270005001046 
060270005001047 
060270005001048 
060270005001049 
060270005001051 
060270005001052 
060270005001053 
060270005001054 
060270005001055 
060270005001056 
060270005001057 
060270005001058 
060270005001059 
060270005001060 
060270005001061 
060270005001062 
060270005001063 
060270005001064 
060270005001065 
060270005001066 
060270005001067 
060270005001068 
060270005001069 
060270005001070 
060270005001071 
060270005001072 
060270005001073 
060270005001074 
060270005001075 
060270005001076 
060270005001077 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 017



060270005001078 
060270005001079 
060270005001080 
060270005001081 
060270005001082 
060270005001083 
060270005001084 
060270005001085 
060270005001086 
060270005001087 
060270005001088 
060270005001089 
060270005001090 
060270005001091 
060270005001092 
060270005001093 
060270005001094 
060270005001095 
060270005001096 
060270005001097 
060270005001098 
060270005001101 
060270005001102 
060270005001103 
060270005001104 
060270005001105 
060270005001106 
060270005001107 
060270005001108 
060270005001109 
060270005001110 
060270005001111 
060270005001112 
060270005001113 
060270005001114 
060270005001115 
060270005001116 
060270005001117 
060270005001118 
060270005001119 
060270005001120 
060270005001121 
060270005001122 
060270005001123 
060270005001124 
060270005001125 
060270005001126 
060270005001127 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 018



060270005001128 
060270005001129 
060270005001130 
060270005001131 
060270005001132 
060270005001133 
060270005001134 
060270005001135 
060270005001136 
060270005001137 
060270005001138 
060270005001139 
060270005001140 
060270005001141 
060270005001142 
060270005001143 
060270005001144 
060270005001145 
060270005001146 
060270005001147 
060270005001148 
060270005001149 
060270005001150 
060270005001151 
060270005001152 
060270005001153 
060270005001154 
060270005001155 
060270005001156 
060270005001157 
060270005001158 
060270005001159 
060270005001160 
060270005001161 
060270005001162 
060270005001163 
060270005001164 
060270005001165 
060270005001166 
060270005001167 
060270005001168 
060270005001169 
060270005001170 
060270005001171 
060270005001172 
060270005001173 
060270005001174 
060270005001175 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 019



060270005001176 
060270005001177 
060270005001178 
060270005001179 
060270005001180 
060270005001181 
060270005001182 
060270005001183 
060270005001184 
060270005001185 
060270005001186 
060270005001187 
060270005001188 
060270005001189 
060270005001190 
060270005001191 
060270005001192 
060270005001193 
060270005001194 
060270005001195 
060270005001196 
060270005001197 
060270005001198 
060270005001199 
060270005001200 
060270005001201 
060270005001202 
060270005001203 
060270005001204 
060270005001205 
060270005001206 
060270005001207 
060270005001208 
060270005001209 
060270005001210 
060270005001211 
060270005001212 
060270005001213 
060270005001214 
060270005001215 
060270005001216 
060270005001220 
060270005001221 
060270005001222 
060270005001248 
060270005001249 
060270005001250 
060270005001251 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 020



060270005001252 
060270005001255 
060270005001256 
060270005001257 
060270005001258 
060270005001268 
060270005001269 
060270005001270 
060270005001375 
060270005001376 
060270005001377 
060270005001378 
060270005001462 
060270005001463 
060270005001464 
060270005001465 
060270005001466 
060270005001468 
060270005001469 
060270005001470 
060270005001471 
060270005001472 
060270005001473 
060270005001474 
060270005001475 
060270005001476 
060270005001477 
060270005001478 
060270005001479 
060270005001480 
060270005001481 
060270005001482 
060270005001483 
060270005001484 
060270005001485 
060270005001486 
060270005001487 
060270005001488 
060270005001489 
060270005001490 
060270005001491 
060270005001492 
060270005001493 
060270005001494 
060270005001495 
060270005001496 
060270005001497 
060270005001498 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 021



060270005001499 
060270005001500 
060270005001501 
060270005001502 
060270005001503 
060270005001504 
060270005001505 
060270005001506 
060270005001507 
060270005001508 
060270005001509 
060270005001510 
060270005001511 
060270005001512 
060270005002000 
060270005002001 
060270005002002 
060270005002003 
060270005002004 
060270005002005 
060270005002006 
060270005002007 
060270005002008 
060270005002009 
060270005002010 
060270005002011 
060270005002012 
060270005002013 
060270005002014 
060270005002015 
060270005002016 
060270005002017 
060270005002018 
060270005002019 
060270005002020 
060270005002021 
060270005002022 
060270005002023 
060270005002024 
060270005002025 
060270005002026 
060270005002027 
060270005002028 
060270005002029 
060270005002030 
060270005002031 
060270005002032 
060270005002033 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 022



060270005002034 
060270005002035 
060270005002036 
060270005002037 
060270005002038 
060270005002039 
060270005002040 
060270005002041 
060270005002042 
060270005002043 
060270005002044 
060270005002045 
060270005002046 
060270005002047 
060270005002048 
060270005002049 
060270005002050 
060270005002051 
060270005002052 
060270005002053 
060270005002054 
060270005002055 
060270005002056 
060270005002057 
060270005002058 
060270005002059 
060270005002060 
060270005002061 
060270005002062 
060270005002063 
060270005002064 
060270005002065 
060270005002066 
060270005002067 
060270005002068 
060270005002069 
060270005002070 
060270005002071 
060270005002072 
060270005002073 
060270005002074 
060270005002075 
060270005002076 
060270005002077 
060270005002078 
060270005002079 
060270005002080 
060270005002081 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 023



060270005002082 
060270005002083 
060270005002084 
060270005002085 
060270005002086 
060270005002087 
060270005002088 
060270005002089 
060270005002090 
060270005002091 
060270005002092 
060270005002093 
060270005002094 
 
District 5 
060270005001050 
060270005001099 
060270005001100 
060270005001217 
060270005001218 
060270005001219 
060270005001223 
060270005001224 
060270005001225 
060270005001226 
060270005001227 
060270005001228 
060270005001229 
060270005001230 
060270005001231 
060270005001232 
060270005001233 
060270005001234 
060270005001235 
060270005001236 
060270005001237 
060270005001238 
060270005001239 
060270005001240 
060270005001241 
060270005001242 
060270005001243 
060270005001244 
060270005001245 
060270005001246 
060270005001247 
060270005001253 
060270005001254 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 024



060270005001259 
060270005001260 
060270005001261 
060270005001262 
060270005001263 
060270005001264 
060270005001265 
060270005001266 
060270005001267 
060270005001271 
060270005001272 
060270005001273 
060270005001274 
060270005001275 
060270005001276 
060270005001277 
060270005001278 
060270005001279 
060270005001280 
060270005001281 
060270005001282 
060270005001283 
060270005001284 
060270005001285 
060270005001286 
060270005001287 
060270005001288 
060270005001289 
060270005001290 
060270005001291 
060270005001292 
060270005001293 
060270005001294 
060270005001295 
060270005001296 
060270005001297 
060270005001298 
060270005001299 
060270005001300 
060270005001301 
060270005001302 
060270005001303 
060270005001304 
060270005001305 
060270005001306 
060270005001307 
060270005001308 
060270005001309 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 025



060270005001310 
060270005001311 
060270005001312 
060270005001313 
060270005001314 
060270005001315 
060270005001316 
060270005001317 
060270005001318 
060270005001319 
060270005001320 
060270005001321 
060270005001322 
060270005001323 
060270005001324 
060270005001325 
060270005001326 
060270005001327 
060270005001328 
060270005001329 
060270005001330 
060270005001331 
060270005001332 
060270005001333 
060270005001334 
060270005001335 
060270005001336 
060270005001337 
060270005001338 
060270005001339 
060270005001340 
060270005001341 
060270005001342 
060270005001343 
060270005001344 
060270005001345 
060270005001346 
060270005001347 
060270005001348 
060270005001349 
060270005001350 
060270005001351 
060270005001352 
060270005001353 
060270005001354 
060270005001355 
060270005001356 
060270005001357 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 026



060270005001358 
060270005001359 
060270005001360 
060270005001361 
060270005001362 
060270005001363 
060270005001364 
060270005001365 
060270005001366 
060270005001367 
060270005001368 
060270005001369 
060270005001370 
060270005001371 
060270005001372 
060270005001373 
060270005001374 
060270005001379 
060270005001380 
060270005001381 
060270005001382 
060270005001383 
060270005001384 
060270005001385 
060270005001386 
060270005001387 
060270005001388 
060270005001389 
060270005001390 
060270005001391 
060270005001392 
060270005001393 
060270005001394 
060270005001395 
060270005001396 
060270005001397 
060270005001398 
060270005001399 
060270005001400 
060270005001401 
060270005001402 
060270005001403 
060270005001404 
060270005001405 
060270005001406 
060270005001407 
060270005001408 
060270005001409 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 027



060270005001410 
060270005001411 
060270005001412 
060270005001413 
060270005001414 
060270005001415 
060270005001416 
060270005001417 
060270005001418 
060270005001419 
060270005001420 
060270005001421 
060270005001422 
060270005001423 
060270005001424 
060270005001425 
060270005001426 
060270005001427 
060270005001428 
060270005001429 
060270005001430 
060270005001431 
060270005001432 
060270005001433 
060270005001434 
060270005001435 
060270005001436 
060270005001437 
060270005001438 
060270005001439 
060270005001440 
060270005001441 
060270005001442 
060270005001443 
060270005001444 
060270005001445 
060270005001446 
060270005001447 
060270005001448 
060270005001449 
060270005001450 
060270005001451 
060270005001452 
060270005001453 
060270005001454 
060270005001455 
060270005001456 
060270005001457 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 028



060270005001458 
060270005001459 
060270005001460 
060270005001461 
060270005001467 
060270008001000 
060270008001002 
060270008001003 
060270008001004 
060270008001005 
060270008001006 
060270008001007 
060270008001008 
060270008001009 
060270008001010 
060270008001011 
060270008001012 
060270008001013 
060270008001014 
060270008001015 
060270008001016 
060270008001017 
060270008001018 
060270008001019 
060270008001020 
060270008001021 
060270008001022 
060270008001023 
060270008001024 
060270008001025 
060270008001026 
060270008001027 
060270008001028 
060270008001029 
060270008001030 
060270008001031 
060270008001032 
060270008001033 
060270008001034 
060270008001035 
060270008001036 
060270008001037 
060270008001038 
060270008001039 
060270008001040 
060270008001041 
060270008001042 
060270008001043 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 029



060270008001044 
060270008001045 
060270008001046 
060270008001047 
060270008001048 
060270008001049 
060270008001050 
060270008001051 
060270008001052 
060270008001053 
060270008001054 
060270008001055 
060270008001056 
060270008001057 
060270008001058 
060270008001059 
060270008001060 
060270008001061 
060270008001062 
060270008001063 
060270008001064 
060270008001065 
060270008001066 
060270008001067 
060270008001068 
060270008001069 
060270008001070 
060270008001071 
060270008001072 
060270008001073 
060270008001074 
060270008001075 
060270008001076 
060270008001077 
060270008001078 
060270008001079 
060270008001080 
060270008001081 
060270008001082 
060270008001083 
060270008001084 
060270008001085 
060270008001086 
060270008001087 
060270008001088 
060270008001089 
060270008001090 
060270008001091 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 030



060270008001092 
060270008001093 
060270008001094 
060270008001095 
060270008001096 
060270008001097 
060270008001098 
060270008001099 
060270008001100 
060270008001101 
060270008001102 
060270008001103 
060270008001104 
060270008001105 
060270008001106 
060270008001107 
060270008001108 
060270008001109 
060270008001110 
060270008001111 
060270008001112 
060270008001113 
060270008001114 
060270008001115 
060270008001116 
060270008001117 
060270008001118 
060270008001119 
060270008001120 
060270008001121 
060270008001122 
060270008001123 
060270008001124 
060270008001125 
060270008001126 
060270008001127 
060270008001128 
060270008001129 
060270008001130 
060270008001131 
060270008001132 
060270008001133 
060270008001134 
060270008001135 
060270008001136 
060270008001137 
060270008001138 
060270008001139 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 031



060270008001140 
060270008001141 
060270008001142 
060270008001143 
060270008001144 
060270008001145 
060270008001146 
060270008001147 
060270008001148 
060270008001149 
060270008001150 
060270008001151 
060270008001152 
060270008001153 
060270008001154 
060270008001155 
060270008001156 
060270008001157 
060270008001158 
060270008001159 
060270008001160 
060270008001161 
060270008001162 
060270008001163 
060270008001164 
060270008001165 
060270008001166 
060270008001167 
060270008001168 
060270008001169 
060270008001170 
060270008001171 
060270008001172 
060270008001173 
060270008001174 
060270008001175 
060270008001176 
060270008001177 
060270008001178 
060270008001179 
060270008001180 
060270008001181 
060270008001182 
060270008001183 
060270008001184 
060270008001185 
060270008001186 
060270008001187 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 032



060270008001188 
060270008001189 
060270008001190 
060270008001191 
060270008001192 
060270008001193 
060270008001194 
060270008001195 
060270008001196 
060270008001197 
060270008001198 
060270008001199 
060270008001200 
060270008001201 
060270008001202 
060270008001203 
060270008001204 
060270008001205 
060270008001206 
060270008001207 
060270008001208 
060270008001209 
060270008001210 
060270008001211 
060270008001212 
060270008001213 
060270008001214 
060270008001215 
060270008001216 
060270008001217 
060270008001218 
060270008001219 
060270008001220 
060270008001221 
060270008001222 
060270008001223 
060270008001224 
060270008001225 
060270008001226 
060270008001227 
060270008001228 
060270008001229 
060270008001230 
060270008001231 
060270008001232 
060270008001233 
060270008001234 
060270008001235 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 033



060270008001236 
060270008001237 
060270008001238 
060270008001239 
060270008001240 
060270008001241 
060270008001242 
060270008001243 
060270008001244 
060270008001245 
060270008001246 
060270008001247 
060270008001248 
060270008001249 
060270008001250 
060270008001251 
060270008001252 
060270008001253 
060270008001254 
060270008001255 
060270008001256 
060270008001257 
060270008001258 
060270008001259 
060270008001260 
060270008001261 
060270008001262 
060270008001263 
060270008001264 
060270008001265 
060270008001266 
060270008001267 
060270008001268 
060270008001269 
060270008001270 
060270008001271 
060270008001272 
060270008001273 
060270008001274 
060270008001275 
060270008001276 
060270008001277 
060270008001278 
060270008001279 
060270008001280 
060270008001281 
060270008001282 
060270008001283 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 034



060270008001284 
060270008001285 
060270008001286 
060270008001287 
060270008001288 
060270008001289 
060270008001290 
060270008001291 
060270008001292 
060270008001293 
060270008001294 
060270008001295 
060270008001296 
060270008001297 
060270008001298 
060270008001299 
060270008001300 
060270008001301 
060270008001302 
060270008001303 
060270008001304 
060270008001305 
060270008001306 
060270008001307 
060270008001308 
060270008001309 
060270008001310 
060270008001311 
060270008001312 
060270008001313 
060270008001314 
060270008001315 
060270008001316 
060270008001317 
060270008001318 
060270008001319 
060270008001320 
060270008001321 
060270008001322 
060270008001323 
060270008001324 
060270008001325 
060270008001326 
060270008001327 
060270008001328 
060270008001329 
060270008001330 
060270008001331 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 035



060270008001332 
060270008001333 
060270008001334 
060270008001335 
060270008001336 
060270008001337 
060270008001338 
060270008001339 
060270008001340 
060270008001341 
060270008001342 
060270008001343 
060270008001344 
060270008001345 
060270008001346 
060270008001347 
060270008001348 
060270008001349 
060270008001350 
060270008001351 
060270008001352 
060270008001353 
060270008002000 
060270008002001 
060270008002002 
060270008002003 
060270008002004 
060270008002005 
060270008002006 
060270008002007 
060270008002008 
060270008002009 
060270008002010 
060270008002011 
060270008002012 
060270008002013 
060270008002014 
060270008002015 
060270008002016 
060270008002017 
060270008002018 
060270008002019 
060270008002020 
060270008002021 
060270008002022 
060270008002023 
060270008002024 
060270008002025 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 036



060270008002026 
060270008002027 
060270008002028 
060270008002029 
060270008002030 
060270008002031 
060270008002032 
060270008002033 
060270008002034 
060270008002035 
060270008002036 
060270008002037 
060270008002038 
060270008002039 
060270008002040 
060270008002041 
060270008002042 
060270008002043 
060270008002044 
060270008002045 
060270008002046 
060270008002047 
060270008002048 
060270008002049 
060270008002050 
060270008002051 
060270008002052 
060270008002053 
060270008002054 
060270008002055 
060270008002056 
060270008002057 
060270008002058 
060270008002059 
060270008002060 
060270008002061 
060270008002062 
060270008002063 
060270008002064 
060270008002065 
060270008002066 
060270008002067 
060270008002068 
060270008002069 
060270008002070 
060270008002071 
060270008002072 
060270008002073 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 037



060270008002074 
060270008002075 
060270008002076 
060270008002077 
060270008002078 
060270008002079 
060270008002080 
060270008002081 
060270008002082 
060270008002083 
060270008002084 
060270008002085 
060270008002086 
060270008002087 
060270008002088 
060270008002089 
060270008002090 
060270008002091 
060270008002092 
060270008002093 
060270008002094 
060270008002095 
060270008002096 
060270008002097 
060270008002098 
060270008002099 
060270008002100 
060270008002101 
060270008002102 
060270008002103 
060270008002104 
060270008002105 
060270008002106 
060270008002107 
060270008002108 
060270008002109 
060270008002110 
060270008002111 
060270008002112 
060270008002113 
060270008002114 
060270008002115 
060270008002116 
060270008002117 
060270008002118 
060270008002119 
060270008002120 
060270008002121 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 038



060270008002122 
060270008002123 
060270008002124 
060270008002125 
060270008002126 
060270008002127 
060270008002128 
060270008002129 
060270008002130 
060270008002131 
060270008002132 
060270008002133 
060270008002134 
060270008002135 
060270008002136 
060270008002137 
060270008002138 
060270008002139 
060270008002140 
060270008002141 
060270008002142 
060270008002143 
060270008002144 
060270008002145 
060270008002146 
060270008002147 
060270008002148 
060270008002149 
060270008002150 
060270008002151 
060270008002152 
060270008002153 
060270008002154 
060270008002155 
060270008002156 
060270008002157 
060270008002158 
060270008002159 
060270008002160 
060270008002161 
060270008002162 
060270008002163 
060270008002164 
060270008002165 
060270008002166 
060270008002167 
060270008002168 
060270008002169 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 039



060270008002170 
060270008002171 
060270008002172 
060270008002173 
060270008002174 
060270008002175 
060270008002176 
060270008002177 
060270008002178 
060270008002179 
060270008002180 
060270008002181 
060270008002182 
060270008002183 
060270008002184 
060270008002185 
060270008002186 
060270008002187 
060270008002188 
060270008002189 
060270008002190 
060270008002191 
060270008002192 
060270008002193 
060270008002194 
060270008002195 
060270008002196 
060270008002197 
060270008002198 
060270008002199 
060270008002200 
060270008002201 
060270008002202 
060270008002203 
060270008002204 
060270008002205 
060270008002206 
060270008002207 
060270008002208 
060270008002209 
060270008002210 
060270008002211 
060270008002212 
060270008002213 
060270008002214 
060270008002215 
060270008002216 
060270008002217 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 040



060270008002218 
060270008002219 
060270008002220 
060270008002221 
060270008002222 
060270008002223 
060270008002224 
060270008002225 
060270008002226 
060270008002227 
060270008002228 
060270008002229 
060270008002230 
060270008002231 
060270008002232 
060270008002233 
060270008002234 
060270008002235 
060270008002236 
060270008002237 
060270008002238 
060270008002239 
060270008002240 
060270008002241 
060270008002242 
060270008002243 
060270008002244 
060270008002245 
060270008002246 
060270008002247 
060270008002248 
060270008002249 
060270008002250 
060270008002251 
060270008002252 
060270008002253 
060270008002254 
060270008002255 
060270008002256 
060270008002257 
060270008002258 
060270008002259 
060270008002260 
060270008002261 
060270008002262 
060270008002263 
060270008002264 
060270008002265 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 041



060270008002266 
060270008002267 
060270008002268 
060270008002269 
060270008002270 
060270008002271 
060270008002272 
060270008002273 
060270008002274 
060270008002275 
060270008002276 
060270008002277 
060270008002278 
060270008002279 
060270008002280 
060270008002281 
060270008002282 
060270008002283 
060270008002284 
060270008002285 
060270008002286 
060270008002287 
060270008002288 
060270008002289 
060270008002290 
060270008002291 
060270008002292 
060270008002293 
060270008002294 
060270008002295 
060270008002296 
060270008002297 
060270008002298 
060270008002299 
060270008002300 
060270008002301 
060270008002302 
060270008002303 
060270008002304 
060270008002305 
060270008002306 
060270008002307 
060270008002308 
060270008002309 
060270008002310 
060270008002311 
060270008002312 
060270008002313 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 042



060270008002314 
060270008002315 
060270008002316 
060270008002317 
060270008002318 
060270008002319 
060270008002320 
060270008002321 
060270008002322 
060270008002323 
060270008002324 
060270008002325 
060270008002326 
060270008002327 
060270008002328 
060270008002329 
060270008002330 
060270008002331 
060270008002332 
060270008002333 
060270008002334 
060270008002335 
060270008002336 
060270008002337 
060270008002338 
060270008002339 
060270008002340 
060270008002341 
060270008002342 
060270008002343 
060270008002344 
060270008002345 
060270008002346 
060270008002347 
060270008002348 
060270008002349 
060270008002350 
060270008002351 
060270008002352 
060270008002353 
060270008002354 
060270008002355 
060270008002356 
060270008002357 
060270008002358 
060270008002359 
060270008002360 
060270008002361 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 043



060270008002362 
060270008002363 
060270008002364 
060270008002365 
060270008002366 
060270008002367 
060270008002368 
060270008002369 
060270008002370 
060270008002371 
060270008002372 
060270008002373 
060270008002374 
060270008002375 
060270008002376 
060270008002377 
060270008002378 
060270008002379 
060270008002380 
060270008002381 
060270008002382 
060270008002383 
060270008002384 
060270008002385 
060270008002386 
060270008002387 
060270008002388 
060270008002389 
060270008002390 
060270008002391 
060270008002392 
060270008002393 
060270008002394 
060270008002395 
060270008002396 
060270008002397 
060270008002398 
060270008002399 
060270008002400 
060270008002401 
060270008002402 
060270008002403 
060270008002404 
060270008002405 
060270008002406 
060270008002407 
060270008002408 
060270008002409 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 044



060270008002410 
060270008002411 
060270008002412 
060270008002413 
060270008002414 
060270008002415 
060270008002416 
060270008002417 
060270008002418 
060270008002419 
060270008002420 
060270008002421 
060270008002422 
060270008002423 
060270008002424 
060270008002425 
060270008002426 
060270008002427 
060270008002428 
060270008002429 
060270008002430 
060270008002431 
060270008002432 
060270008002433 
060270008002434 
060270008002435 
060270008002436 
060270008002437 
060270008002438 
060270008002439 
060270008002440 
060270008002441 
060270008002442 
060270008002443 
060270008002444 
060270008002445 
060270008002446 
060270008002447 
060270008002448 
060270008002449 
060270008002450 
060270008002451 
060270008002452 
060270008002453 
060270008002454 
060270008002455 
060270008002456 
060270008002457 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 045



060270008002458 
060270008002459 
060270008002460 
060270008002461 
060270008002462 
060270008002463 
060270008002464 
060270008002465 
060270008002466 
060270008002467 
060270008002468 
060270008002469 
060270008002470 
060270008002471 
060270008002472 
060270008002473 
060270008002474 
060270008002475 
060270008002476 
060270008002477 
060270008002478 
060270008002479 
060270008002480 
060270008002481 
060270008002482 
060270008002483 
060270008002484 
060270008002485 
060270008002486 
060270008002487 
060270008002488 
060270008002489 
060270008002490 
060270008002491 
060270008002492 
060270008002493 
060270008002494 
060270008002495 
060270008002496 
060270008002497 
060270008002498 
060270008002499 
060270008002500 
060270008002501 
060270008002502 
060270008002503 
060270008002504 
060270008002505 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 046



060270008002506 
060270008002507 
060270008002508 
060270008002509 
060270008002510 
060270008002511 
060270008002512 
060270008002513 
060270008002514 
060270008002515 
060270008002516 
060270008002517 
060270008002518 
060270008002519 
060270008002520 
060270008002521 
060270008002522 
060270008002523 
060270008002524 
060270008002525 
060270008002526 
060270008002527 
060270008002528 
060270008002529 
060270008002530 
060270008002531 
060270008002532 
060270008002533 
060270008002534 
060270008002535 
060270008002536 
060270008002537 
060270008002538 
060270008002539 
060270008002540 
060270008002541 
060270008002542 
060270008002543 
060270008002544 
060270008002545 
060270008002546 
060270008002547 
060270008002548 
060270008002549 
060270008002550 
060270008002551 
060270008002552 
060270008002553 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 047



060270008002554 
060270008002555 
060270008002556 
060270008002557 
060270008002558 
060270008002559 
060270008002560 
060270008002561 
060270008002562 
060270008002563 
060270008002564 
060270008002565 
060270008002566 
060270008002567 
060270008002568 
060270008002569 
060270008002570 
060270008002571 
060270008002572 
060270008002573 
060270008002574 
060270008002575 
060270008002576 
060270008002577 
060270008002578 
060270008002579 
060270008002580 
060270008002581 
060270008002582 
060270008002583 
060270008002584 
060270008002585 
060270008002586 
060270008002587 
060270008002588 
060270008002589 
060270008002590 
060270008002591 
060270008002592 
060270008002593 
060270008002594 
060270008003000 
060270008003001 
060270008003002 
060270008003003 
060270008003004 
060270008003005 
060270008003006 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 048



060270008003007 
060270008003008 
060270008003009 
060270008003010 
060270008003011 
060270008003012 
060270008003013 
060270008003014 
060270008003015 
060270008003016 
060270008003017 
060270008003018 
060270008003019 
060270008003020 
060270008003021 
060270008003022 
060270008003023 
060270008003024 
060270008003025 
060270008003026 
060270008003027 
060270008003028 
060270008003029 
060270008003030 
060270008003031 
060270008003032 
060270008003033 
060270008003034 
060270008003035 
060270008003036 
060270008003037 
060270008003038 
060270008003039 
060270008003040 
060270008003041 
060270008003042 
060270008003043 
060270008003044 
060270008003045 
060270008003046 
060270008003047 
060270008003048 
060270008003049 
060270008003050 
060270008003051 
060270008003052 
060270008003053 
060270008003054 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 049



060270008003055 
060270008003056 
060270008003057 
060270008003058 
060270008003059 
060270008004000 
060270008004001 
060270008004002 
060270008004003 
060270008004004 
060270008004005 
060270008004006 
060270008004007 
060270008004008 
060270008004009 
060270008004010 
060270008004011 
060270008004012 
060270008004013 
060270008004014 
060270008004015 
060270008004016 
060270008004017 
060270008004018 
060270008004019 
060270008004020 
060270008004021 
060270008004022 
060270008004023 
060270008004024 
060270008004025 
060270008004026 
060270008004027 
060270008004028 
060270008004029 
060270008004030 
060270008004031 
060270008004032 
060270008004033 
060270008004034 
060270008004035 
060270008004036 
060270008004037 
060270008004038 
060270008004039 
060270008004040 
060270008004041 
060270008004042 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 050



060270008004043 
060270008004044 
060270008004045 
060270008004046 
060270008004047 
060270008004048 
060270008004049 
060270008004050 
060270008004051 
060270008004052 
060270008004053 
060270008004054 
060270008004055 
060270008004056 
060270008004057 
060270008004058 
060270008004059 
060270008004060 
060270008004061 
060270008004062 
060270008004063 
060270008004064 
060270008004065 
060270008004066 
060270008004067 
060270008004068 
060270008004069 
060270008004070 
060270008004071 
060270008004072 
060270008004073 
060270008004074 
060270008004075 
060270008004076 
060270008004077 
060270008004078 
060270008004079 
060270008004080 
060270008004081 
060270008004082 
060270008004083 
060270008004084 
060270008004085 
060270008004086 
060270008004087 
060270008004088 
060270008004089 
060270008004090 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 051



060270008004091 
060270008004092 
060270008004093 
060270008004094 
060270008004095 
060270008004096 
060270008004097 
060270008004098 
060270008004099 
060270008004100 

Option 7  
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 052



District 1 
060270001001067 
060270001001068 
060270001001069 
060270001001070 
060270001001071 
060270001001072 
060270001001073 
060270001001074 
060270001001075 
060270001001076 
060270001001077 
060270001001078 
060270001001079 
060270001001080 
060270001001081 
060270001001082 
060270001001083 
060270001001084 
060270001001085 
060270001001086 
060270001001087 
060270001001112 
060270001001113 
060270001001114 
060270001002000 
060270001002001 
060270001002002 
060270001002003 
060270001002004 
060270001002005 
060270001002006 
060270001002007 
060270001002008 
060270001002009 
060270001002010 
060270001002011 
060270001002012 
060270001002013 
060270001002014 
060270001002015 
060270001002016 
060270001002017 
060270001002018 
060270001002019 
060270001002020 
060270001002021 
060270001002022 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 001



060270001002023 
060270001002024 
060270001002025 
060270001002026 
060270001002027 
060270001002028 
060270001002029 
060270001002030 
060270001002031 
060270001002032 
060270001002033 
060270001002034 
060270001002035 
060270001002036 
060270001002037 
060270001002038 
060270001002039 
060270001002040 
060270001002041 
060270001002042 
060270001002043 
060270001002044 
060270001002045 
060270001002046 
060270001002047 
060270001002048 
060270001002049 
060270001002050 
060270002001000 
060270002001001 
060270002001002 
060270002001003 
060270002001004 
060270002001005 
060270002001006 
060270002001007 
060270002001008 
060270002001009 
060270002001010 
060270002001011 
060270002001012 
060270002001013 
060270002001014 
060270002001015 
060270002001016 
060270002001017 
060270002001018 
060270002001019 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 002



060270002001020 
060270002001021 
060270002001022 
060270002001023 
060270002001024 
060270002001025 
060270002001026 
060270002001027 
060270002001028 
060270002001029 
060270002001030 
060270002001031 
060270002001032 
060270002001033 
060270002001034 
060270002001035 
060270002001036 
060270002001037 
060270002001038 
060270002001039 
060270002001040 
060270002001041 
060270002001042 
060270002001043 
060270002001044 
060270002001045 
060270002001046 
060270002001047 
060270002001048 
060270002001049 
060270002001050 
060270002001051 
060270002001052 
060270002001053 
060270002001054 
060270002001055 
060270002001056 
060270002001057 
060270002001058 
060270002001059 
060270002001060 
060270002001061 
060270002001062 
060270002001063 
060270002001064 
060270002001065 
060270002001066 
060270002001067 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 003



060270002001068 
060270002001069 
060270002001070 
060270002001071 
060270002001072 
060270002001073 
060270002001074 
060270002001075 
060270002001076 
060270002001077 
060270002001078 
060270002001079 
060270002001080 
060270002001081 
060270002001082 
060270002001083 
060270002001084 
060270002001085 
060270002001086 
060270002001087 
060270002001088 
060270002001089 
060270002001090 
060270002001091 
060270002001092 
060270002001093 
060270002001094 
060270002001095 
060270002001096 
060270002001097 
060270002001098 
060270002001099 
060270002001100 
060270002001101 
060270002001102 
060270002001103 
060270002001104 
060270002001105 
060270002001106 
060270002001107 
060270002001108 
060270002001109 
060270002001110 
060270002001111 
060270002001112 
060270002001113 
060270002001114 
060270002001115 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 004



060270002001116 
060270002001117 
060270002001118 
060270002001119 
060270002001120 
060270002001121 
060270002001122 
060270002001123 
060270002001124 
060270002001125 
060270002001126 
060270002001127 
060270002001128 
060270002001129 
060270002001130 
060270002001131 
060270002001132 
060270002001133 
060270002001134 
060270002001135 
060270002001136 
060270002001137 
060270002001138 
060270002001139 
060270002001140 
060270002001141 
060270002001142 
060270002001143 
060270002001144 
060270002001145 
060270002001146 
060270002001147 
060270002001148 
060270002001149 
060270002001150 
060270002001151 
060270002001152 
060270002001153 
060270002001154 
060270002001155 
060270002001156 
060270002001157 
060270002001158 
060270002001159 
060270002001160 
060270002001161 
060270002001162 
060270002001163 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 005



060270002001164 
060270002001165 
060270002001166 
060270002001167 
060270002001168 
060270002001169 
060270002001170 
060270002001171 
060270002001172 
060270002001173 
060270002001174 
060270002001175 
060270002001176 
060270002001177 
060270002001178 
060270002001179 
060270002001180 
060270002001181 
060270002001182 
060270002001183 
060270002001184 
060270002001186 
060270002001187 
060270002001188 
060270002001189 
060270002001190 
060270002001191 
060270002001192 
060270002001193 
060270002001194 
060270002001195 
060270002001196 
060270002001197 
060270002001198 
060270002001199 
060270002001200 
060270002001201 
060270002001202 
060270002001203 
060270002001204 
060270002001205 
060270002002006 
060270002002007 
060270002002008 
060270002002009 
060270002002010 
060270002002011 
060270002002012 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 006



060270002002013 
060270002002014 
060270002002017 
060270002002018 
060270002002019 
060270002002028 
060270002002038 
060270002002039 
060270002002040 
060270002002041 
060270002002042 
060270002002043 
060270002002044 
060270002002045 
060270002002046 
060270002002048 
060270002002049 
060270002002050 
060270002002051 
060270002002052 
060270002002053 
060270002002054 
060270002002055 
060270002002056 
060270002002057 
060270002002058 
060270002002059 
060270002002060 
060270002002061 
060270002002062 
060270002002063 
060270002002064 
060270002002065 
060270002002066 
060270002002067 
060270002002068 
060270002002069 
060270002002070 
060270002002071 
060270002002072 
060270002002073 
060270002002074 
060270002002084 
060270002002119 
060270002002120 
060270002002121 
060270002002126 
060270003001001 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 007



060270003001002 
060270003001003 
060270003001004 
060270003001014 
060270003001015 
060270004001000 
060270004001001 
060270004001002 
060270004002002 
 
District 2 
060270001001098 
060270001001110 
060270001001111 
060270004002000 
060270004002001 
060270004002003 
060270004002004 
060270004002005 
060270004002006 
060270004002007 
060270004002008 
060270004002011 
060270004002012 
060270004002013 
060270004002014 
060270004002015 
060270004002016 
060270004002017 
060270004002018 
060270004002019 
060270004002020 
060270004002021 
060270004002022 
060270004002024 
060270004002025 
060270004002026 
060270004002027 
060270004002028 
060270004002029 
060270004002030 
060270004002031 
060270004002032 
060270004002033 
060270004002034 
060270004002035 
060270004002036 
060270004002037 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 008



060270004002038 
060270004002039 
060270004002040 
060270004002041 
060270004002043 
060270004002044 
060270004002045 
060270004002046 
060270004002047 
060270004002048 
060270004002049 
060270004002050 
060270004002051 
060270004002052 
060270004002056 
060270004002059 
060270004003000 
060270004003001 
060270004003002 
060270004003003 
060270004003005 
060270004003006 
060270004003007 
060270004003008 
060270004003009 
060270004003010 
060270004003011 
060270004003012 
060270004003013 
060270004003014 
060270004003015 
060270004003016 
060270004003017 
060270004003018 
060270004003019 
060270004003020 
060270004003021 
060270004003022 
060270004003023 
060270004003024 
060270004003025 
060270004003026 
060270004003027 
060270004003028 
060270004003029 
060270004003030 
060270004003031 
060270004003032 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 009



060270004003033 
060270004003034 
060270004003035 
060270004003036 
060270004003037 
060270004003038 
060270004003039 
060270004003040 
060270004003041 
060270004004000 
060270004004001 
060270004004002 
060270004004003 
060270004004004 
060270004004005 
060270004004006 
060270004004007 
060270004004008 
060270004004009 
060270004004010 
060270004004011 
060270004004012 
060270004004013 
 
District 3 
060270002001185 
060270003001000 
060270003001005 
060270003001006 
060270003001007 
060270003001008 
060270003001009 
060270003001010 
060270003001011 
060270003001012 
060270003001013 
060270003001016 
060270003001030 
060270003002000 
060270003002001 
060270003002002 
060270003002003 
060270003002004 
060270003002005 
060270004001003 
060270004001004 
060270004001005 
060270004001006 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 010



060270004001007 
060270004001008 
060270004001009 
060270004001010 
060270004001011 
060270004001012 
060270004001013 
060270004001014 
060270004001015 
060270004001016 
060270004001017 
060270004001018 
060270004001019 
060270004001020 
060270004001021 
060270004001022 
060270004001023 
060270004001024 
060270004001025 
060270004001026 
060270004002009 
060270004002010 
060270004002023 
060270004002053 
060270004002054 
060270004002055 
060270004002057 
060270004002058 
060270004002060 
 
District 4 
060270001001000 
060270001001001 
060270001001002 
060270001001003 
060270001001004 
060270001001005 
060270001001006 
060270001001007 
060270001001008 
060270001001009 
060270001001010 
060270001001011 
060270001001012 
060270001001013 
060270001001014 
060270001001015 
060270001001016 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 011



060270001001017 
060270001001018 
060270001001019 
060270001001020 
060270001001021 
060270001001022 
060270001001023 
060270001001024 
060270001001025 
060270001001026 
060270001001027 
060270001001028 
060270001001029 
060270001001030 
060270001001031 
060270001001032 
060270001001033 
060270001001034 
060270001001035 
060270001001036 
060270001001037 
060270001001038 
060270001001039 
060270001001040 
060270001001041 
060270001001042 
060270001001043 
060270001001044 
060270001001045 
060270001001046 
060270001001047 
060270001001048 
060270001001049 
060270001001050 
060270001001051 
060270001001052 
060270001001053 
060270001001054 
060270001001055 
060270001001056 
060270001001057 
060270001001058 
060270001001059 
060270001001060 
060270001001061 
060270001001062 
060270001001063 
060270001001064 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 012



060270001001065 
060270001001066 
060270001001088 
060270001001089 
060270001001090 
060270001001091 
060270001001092 
060270001001093 
060270001001094 
060270001001095 
060270001001096 
060270001001097 
060270001001099 
060270001001100 
060270001001101 
060270001001102 
060270001001103 
060270001001104 
060270001001105 
060270001001106 
060270001001107 
060270001001108 
060270001001109 
060270001001115 
060270001001116 
060270001001117 
060270001001118 
060270001001119 
060270001001120 
060270001001121 
060270001001122 
060270001001123 
060270001001124 
060270001001125 
060270001001126 
060270001001127 
060270001001128 
060270001001129 
060270001001130 
060270001001131 
060270001001132 
060270001001133 
060270001001134 
060270001001135 
060270001001136 
060270001001137 
060270001001138 
060270001001139 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 013



060270001001140 
060270001001141 
060270001001142 
060270001001143 
060270001001144 
060270001001145 
060270001001146 
060270001001147 
060270001001148 
060270001001149 
060270001001150 
060270001001151 
060270001001152 
060270001001153 
060270001001154 
060270001001155 
060270001001156 
060270001001157 
060270001001158 
060270001001159 
060270001001160 
060270002002000 
060270002002001 
060270002002002 
060270002002003 
060270002002004 
060270002002005 
060270002002015 
060270002002016 
060270002002020 
060270002002021 
060270002002022 
060270002002023 
060270002002024 
060270002002025 
060270002002026 
060270002002027 
060270002002029 
060270002002030 
060270002002031 
060270002002032 
060270002002033 
060270002002034 
060270002002035 
060270002002036 
060270002002037 
060270002002047 
060270002002075 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 014



060270002002076 
060270002002077 
060270002002078 
060270002002079 
060270002002080 
060270002002081 
060270002002082 
060270002002083 
060270002002085 
060270002002086 
060270002002087 
060270002002088 
060270002002089 
060270002002090 
060270002002091 
060270002002092 
060270002002093 
060270002002094 
060270002002095 
060270002002096 
060270002002097 
060270002002098 
060270002002099 
060270002002100 
060270002002101 
060270002002102 
060270002002103 
060270002002104 
060270002002105 
060270002002106 
060270002002107 
060270002002108 
060270002002109 
060270002002110 
060270002002111 
060270002002112 
060270002002113 
060270002002114 
060270002002115 
060270002002116 
060270002002117 
060270002002118 
060270002002122 
060270002002123 
060270002002124 
060270002002125 
060270003001017 
060270003001018 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 015



060270003001019 
060270003001020 
060270003001021 
060270003001022 
060270003001023 
060270003001024 
060270003001025 
060270003001026 
060270003001027 
060270003001028 
060270003001029 
060270003002006 
060270003002007 
060270003002008 
060270003002009 
060270004002042 
060270004003004 
060270005001000 
060270005001001 
060270005001002 
060270005001003 
060270005001004 
060270005001005 
060270005001006 
060270005001007 
060270005001008 
060270005001009 
060270005001010 
060270005001011 
060270005001012 
060270005001013 
060270005001014 
060270005001015 
060270005001016 
060270005001017 
060270005001018 
060270005001019 
060270005001020 
060270005001021 
060270005001022 
060270005001023 
060270005001024 
060270005001025 
060270005001026 
060270005001027 
060270005001028 
060270005001029 
060270005001030 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 016



060270005001031 
060270005001032 
060270005001033 
060270005001034 
060270005001035 
060270005001036 
060270005001037 
060270005001038 
060270005001039 
060270005001040 
060270005001041 
060270005001042 
060270005001043 
060270005001044 
060270005001045 
060270005001046 
060270005001047 
060270005001048 
060270005001049 
060270005001051 
060270005001052 
060270005001053 
060270005001054 
060270005001055 
060270005001056 
060270005001057 
060270005001058 
060270005001059 
060270005001060 
060270005001061 
060270005001062 
060270005001063 
060270005001064 
060270005001065 
060270005001066 
060270005001067 
060270005001068 
060270005001069 
060270005001070 
060270005001071 
060270005001072 
060270005001073 
060270005001074 
060270005001075 
060270005001076 
060270005001077 
060270005001078 
060270005001079 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 017



060270005001080 
060270005001081 
060270005001082 
060270005001083 
060270005001084 
060270005001085 
060270005001086 
060270005001087 
060270005001088 
060270005001089 
060270005001090 
060270005001091 
060270005001092 
060270005001093 
060270005001094 
060270005001095 
060270005001096 
060270005001097 
060270005001098 
060270005001101 
060270005001102 
060270005001103 
060270005001104 
060270005001105 
060270005001106 
060270005001107 
060270005001108 
060270005001109 
060270005001110 
060270005001111 
060270005001112 
060270005001113 
060270005001114 
060270005001115 
060270005001116 
060270005001117 
060270005001118 
060270005001119 
060270005001120 
060270005001121 
060270005001122 
060270005001123 
060270005001124 
060270005001125 
060270005001126 
060270005001127 
060270005001128 
060270005001129 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 018



060270005001130 
060270005001131 
060270005001132 
060270005001133 
060270005001134 
060270005001135 
060270005001136 
060270005001137 
060270005001138 
060270005001139 
060270005001140 
060270005001141 
060270005001142 
060270005001143 
060270005001144 
060270005001145 
060270005001146 
060270005001147 
060270005001148 
060270005001149 
060270005001150 
060270005001151 
060270005001152 
060270005001153 
060270005001154 
060270005001155 
060270005001156 
060270005001157 
060270005001158 
060270005001159 
060270005001160 
060270005001161 
060270005001162 
060270005001163 
060270005001164 
060270005001165 
060270005001166 
060270005001167 
060270005001168 
060270005001169 
060270005001170 
060270005001171 
060270005001172 
060270005001173 
060270005001174 
060270005001175 
060270005001176 
060270005001177 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 019



060270005001178 
060270005001179 
060270005001180 
060270005001181 
060270005001182 
060270005001183 
060270005001184 
060270005001185 
060270005001186 
060270005001187 
060270005001188 
060270005001189 
060270005001190 
060270005001191 
060270005001192 
060270005001193 
060270005001194 
060270005001195 
060270005001196 
060270005001197 
060270005001198 
060270005001199 
060270005001200 
060270005001201 
060270005001202 
060270005001203 
060270005001204 
060270005001205 
060270005001206 
060270005001207 
060270005001208 
060270005001209 
060270005001210 
060270005001211 
060270005001212 
060270005001213 
060270005001214 
060270005001215 
060270005001216 
060270005001219 
060270005001220 
060270005001221 
060270005001222 
060270005001243 
060270005001244 
060270005001245 
060270005001246 
060270005001247 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 020



060270005001248 
060270005001249 
060270005001250 
060270005001251 
060270005001252 
060270005001253 
060270005001254 
060270005001255 
060270005001256 
060270005001257 
060270005001258 
060270005001259 
060270005001260 
060270005001261 
060270005001262 
060270005001263 
060270005001264 
060270005001265 
060270005001266 
060270005001267 
060270005001268 
060270005001269 
060270005001270 
060270005001273 
060270005001277 
060270005001289 
060270005001375 
060270005001376 
060270005001377 
060270005001378 
060270005001450 
060270005001451 
060270005001455 
060270005001456 
060270005001457 
060270005001462 
060270005001463 
060270005001464 
060270005001465 
060270005001466 
060270005001467 
060270005001468 
060270005001469 
060270005001470 
060270005001471 
060270005001472 
060270005001473 
060270005001474 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 021



060270005001475 
060270005001476 
060270005001477 
060270005001478 
060270005001479 
060270005001480 
060270005001481 
060270005001482 
060270005001483 
060270005001484 
060270005001485 
060270005001486 
060270005001487 
060270005001488 
060270005001489 
060270005001490 
060270005001491 
060270005001492 
060270005001493 
060270005001494 
060270005001495 
060270005001496 
060270005001497 
060270005001498 
060270005001499 
060270005001500 
060270005001501 
060270005001502 
060270005001503 
060270005001504 
060270005001505 
060270005001506 
060270005001507 
060270005001508 
060270005001509 
060270005001510 
060270005001511 
060270005001512 
060270005002000 
060270005002001 
060270005002002 
060270005002003 
060270005002004 
060270005002005 
060270005002006 
060270005002007 
060270005002008 
060270005002009 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 022



060270005002010 
060270005002011 
060270005002012 
060270005002013 
060270005002014 
060270005002015 
060270005002016 
060270005002017 
060270005002018 
060270005002019 
060270005002020 
060270005002021 
060270005002022 
060270005002023 
060270005002024 
060270005002025 
060270005002026 
060270005002027 
060270005002028 
060270005002029 
060270005002030 
060270005002031 
060270005002032 
060270005002033 
060270005002034 
060270005002035 
060270005002036 
060270005002037 
060270005002038 
060270005002039 
060270005002040 
060270005002041 
060270005002042 
060270005002043 
060270005002044 
060270005002045 
060270005002046 
060270005002047 
060270005002048 
060270005002049 
060270005002050 
060270005002051 
060270005002052 
060270005002053 
060270005002054 
060270005002055 
060270005002056 
060270005002057 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 023



060270005002058 
060270005002059 
060270005002060 
060270005002061 
060270005002062 
060270005002063 
060270005002064 
060270005002065 
060270005002066 
060270005002067 
060270005002068 
060270005002069 
060270005002070 
060270005002071 
060270005002072 
060270005002073 
060270005002074 
060270005002075 
060270005002076 
060270005002077 
060270005002078 
060270005002079 
060270005002080 
060270005002081 
060270005002082 
060270005002083 
060270005002084 
060270005002085 
060270005002086 
060270005002087 
060270005002088 
060270005002089 
060270005002090 
060270005002091 
060270005002092 
060270005002093 
060270005002094 
 
District 5 
060270005001050 
060270005001099 
060270005001100 
060270005001217 
060270005001218 
060270005001223 
060270005001224 
060270005001225 
060270005001226 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 024



060270005001227 
060270005001228 
060270005001229 
060270005001230 
060270005001231 
060270005001232 
060270005001233 
060270005001234 
060270005001235 
060270005001236 
060270005001237 
060270005001238 
060270005001239 
060270005001240 
060270005001241 
060270005001242 
060270005001271 
060270005001272 
060270005001274 
060270005001275 
060270005001276 
060270005001278 
060270005001279 
060270005001280 
060270005001281 
060270005001282 
060270005001283 
060270005001284 
060270005001285 
060270005001286 
060270005001287 
060270005001288 
060270005001290 
060270005001291 
060270005001292 
060270005001293 
060270005001294 
060270005001295 
060270005001296 
060270005001297 
060270005001298 
060270005001299 
060270005001300 
060270005001301 
060270005001302 
060270005001303 
060270005001304 
060270005001305 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 025



060270005001306 
060270005001307 
060270005001308 
060270005001309 
060270005001310 
060270005001311 
060270005001312 
060270005001313 
060270005001314 
060270005001315 
060270005001316 
060270005001317 
060270005001318 
060270005001319 
060270005001320 
060270005001321 
060270005001322 
060270005001323 
060270005001324 
060270005001325 
060270005001326 
060270005001327 
060270005001328 
060270005001329 
060270005001330 
060270005001331 
060270005001332 
060270005001333 
060270005001334 
060270005001335 
060270005001336 
060270005001337 
060270005001338 
060270005001339 
060270005001340 
060270005001341 
060270005001342 
060270005001343 
060270005001344 
060270005001345 
060270005001346 
060270005001347 
060270005001348 
060270005001349 
060270005001350 
060270005001351 
060270005001352 
060270005001353 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 026



060270005001354 
060270005001355 
060270005001356 
060270005001357 
060270005001358 
060270005001359 
060270005001360 
060270005001361 
060270005001362 
060270005001363 
060270005001364 
060270005001365 
060270005001366 
060270005001367 
060270005001368 
060270005001369 
060270005001370 
060270005001371 
060270005001372 
060270005001373 
060270005001374 
060270005001379 
060270005001380 
060270005001381 
060270005001382 
060270005001383 
060270005001384 
060270005001385 
060270005001386 
060270005001387 
060270005001388 
060270005001389 
060270005001390 
060270005001391 
060270005001392 
060270005001393 
060270005001394 
060270005001395 
060270005001396 
060270005001397 
060270005001398 
060270005001399 
060270005001400 
060270005001401 
060270005001402 
060270005001403 
060270005001404 
060270005001405 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 027



060270005001406 
060270005001407 
060270005001408 
060270005001409 
060270005001410 
060270005001411 
060270005001412 
060270005001413 
060270005001414 
060270005001415 
060270005001416 
060270005001417 
060270005001418 
060270005001419 
060270005001420 
060270005001421 
060270005001422 
060270005001423 
060270005001424 
060270005001425 
060270005001426 
060270005001427 
060270005001428 
060270005001429 
060270005001430 
060270005001431 
060270005001432 
060270005001433 
060270005001434 
060270005001435 
060270005001436 
060270005001437 
060270005001438 
060270005001439 
060270005001440 
060270005001441 
060270005001442 
060270005001443 
060270005001444 
060270005001445 
060270005001446 
060270005001447 
060270005001448 
060270005001449 
060270005001452 
060270005001453 
060270005001454 
060270005001458 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 028



060270005001459 
060270005001460 
060270005001461 
060270008001000 
060270008001001 
060270008001002 
060270008001003 
060270008001004 
060270008001005 
060270008001006 
060270008001007 
060270008001008 
060270008001009 
060270008001010 
060270008001011 
060270008001012 
060270008001013 
060270008001014 
060270008001015 
060270008001016 
060270008001017 
060270008001018 
060270008001019 
060270008001020 
060270008001021 
060270008001022 
060270008001023 
060270008001024 
060270008001025 
060270008001026 
060270008001027 
060270008001028 
060270008001029 
060270008001030 
060270008001031 
060270008001032 
060270008001033 
060270008001034 
060270008001035 
060270008001036 
060270008001037 
060270008001038 
060270008001039 
060270008001040 
060270008001041 
060270008001042 
060270008001043 
060270008001044 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 029



060270008001045 
060270008001046 
060270008001047 
060270008001048 
060270008001049 
060270008001050 
060270008001051 
060270008001052 
060270008001053 
060270008001054 
060270008001055 
060270008001056 
060270008001057 
060270008001058 
060270008001059 
060270008001060 
060270008001061 
060270008001062 
060270008001063 
060270008001064 
060270008001065 
060270008001066 
060270008001067 
060270008001068 
060270008001069 
060270008001070 
060270008001071 
060270008001072 
060270008001073 
060270008001074 
060270008001075 
060270008001076 
060270008001077 
060270008001078 
060270008001079 
060270008001080 
060270008001081 
060270008001082 
060270008001083 
060270008001084 
060270008001085 
060270008001086 
060270008001087 
060270008001088 
060270008001089 
060270008001090 
060270008001091 
060270008001092 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 030



060270008001093 
060270008001094 
060270008001095 
060270008001096 
060270008001097 
060270008001098 
060270008001099 
060270008001100 
060270008001101 
060270008001102 
060270008001103 
060270008001104 
060270008001105 
060270008001106 
060270008001107 
060270008001108 
060270008001109 
060270008001110 
060270008001111 
060270008001112 
060270008001113 
060270008001114 
060270008001115 
060270008001116 
060270008001117 
060270008001118 
060270008001119 
060270008001120 
060270008001121 
060270008001122 
060270008001123 
060270008001124 
060270008001125 
060270008001126 
060270008001127 
060270008001128 
060270008001129 
060270008001130 
060270008001131 
060270008001132 
060270008001133 
060270008001134 
060270008001135 
060270008001136 
060270008001137 
060270008001138 
060270008001139 
060270008001140 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 031



060270008001141 
060270008001142 
060270008001143 
060270008001144 
060270008001145 
060270008001146 
060270008001147 
060270008001148 
060270008001149 
060270008001150 
060270008001151 
060270008001152 
060270008001153 
060270008001154 
060270008001155 
060270008001156 
060270008001157 
060270008001158 
060270008001159 
060270008001160 
060270008001161 
060270008001162 
060270008001163 
060270008001164 
060270008001165 
060270008001166 
060270008001167 
060270008001168 
060270008001169 
060270008001170 
060270008001171 
060270008001172 
060270008001173 
060270008001174 
060270008001175 
060270008001176 
060270008001177 
060270008001178 
060270008001179 
060270008001180 
060270008001181 
060270008001182 
060270008001183 
060270008001184 
060270008001185 
060270008001186 
060270008001187 
060270008001188 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 032



060270008001189 
060270008001190 
060270008001191 
060270008001192 
060270008001193 
060270008001194 
060270008001195 
060270008001196 
060270008001197 
060270008001198 
060270008001199 
060270008001200 
060270008001201 
060270008001202 
060270008001203 
060270008001204 
060270008001205 
060270008001206 
060270008001207 
060270008001208 
060270008001209 
060270008001210 
060270008001211 
060270008001212 
060270008001213 
060270008001214 
060270008001215 
060270008001216 
060270008001217 
060270008001218 
060270008001219 
060270008001220 
060270008001221 
060270008001222 
060270008001223 
060270008001224 
060270008001225 
060270008001226 
060270008001227 
060270008001228 
060270008001229 
060270008001230 
060270008001231 
060270008001232 
060270008001233 
060270008001234 
060270008001235 
060270008001236 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 033



060270008001237 
060270008001238 
060270008001239 
060270008001240 
060270008001241 
060270008001242 
060270008001243 
060270008001244 
060270008001245 
060270008001246 
060270008001247 
060270008001248 
060270008001249 
060270008001250 
060270008001251 
060270008001252 
060270008001253 
060270008001254 
060270008001255 
060270008001256 
060270008001257 
060270008001258 
060270008001259 
060270008001260 
060270008001261 
060270008001262 
060270008001263 
060270008001264 
060270008001265 
060270008001266 
060270008001267 
060270008001268 
060270008001269 
060270008001270 
060270008001271 
060270008001272 
060270008001273 
060270008001274 
060270008001275 
060270008001276 
060270008001277 
060270008001278 
060270008001279 
060270008001280 
060270008001281 
060270008001282 
060270008001283 
060270008001284 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 034



060270008001285 
060270008001286 
060270008001287 
060270008001288 
060270008001289 
060270008001290 
060270008001291 
060270008001292 
060270008001293 
060270008001294 
060270008001295 
060270008001296 
060270008001297 
060270008001298 
060270008001299 
060270008001300 
060270008001301 
060270008001302 
060270008001303 
060270008001304 
060270008001305 
060270008001306 
060270008001307 
060270008001308 
060270008001309 
060270008001310 
060270008001311 
060270008001312 
060270008001313 
060270008001314 
060270008001315 
060270008001316 
060270008001317 
060270008001318 
060270008001319 
060270008001320 
060270008001321 
060270008001322 
060270008001323 
060270008001324 
060270008001325 
060270008001326 
060270008001327 
060270008001328 
060270008001329 
060270008001330 
060270008001331 
060270008001332 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 035



060270008001333 
060270008001334 
060270008001335 
060270008001336 
060270008001337 
060270008001338 
060270008001339 
060270008001340 
060270008001341 
060270008001342 
060270008001343 
060270008001344 
060270008001345 
060270008001346 
060270008001347 
060270008001348 
060270008001349 
060270008001350 
060270008001351 
060270008001352 
060270008001353 
060270008002000 
060270008002001 
060270008002002 
060270008002003 
060270008002004 
060270008002005 
060270008002006 
060270008002007 
060270008002008 
060270008002009 
060270008002010 
060270008002011 
060270008002012 
060270008002013 
060270008002014 
060270008002015 
060270008002016 
060270008002017 
060270008002018 
060270008002019 
060270008002020 
060270008002021 
060270008002022 
060270008002023 
060270008002024 
060270008002025 
060270008002026 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 036



060270008002027 
060270008002028 
060270008002029 
060270008002030 
060270008002031 
060270008002032 
060270008002033 
060270008002034 
060270008002035 
060270008002036 
060270008002037 
060270008002038 
060270008002039 
060270008002040 
060270008002041 
060270008002042 
060270008002043 
060270008002044 
060270008002045 
060270008002046 
060270008002047 
060270008002048 
060270008002049 
060270008002050 
060270008002051 
060270008002052 
060270008002053 
060270008002054 
060270008002055 
060270008002056 
060270008002057 
060270008002058 
060270008002059 
060270008002060 
060270008002061 
060270008002062 
060270008002063 
060270008002064 
060270008002065 
060270008002066 
060270008002067 
060270008002068 
060270008002069 
060270008002070 
060270008002071 
060270008002072 
060270008002073 
060270008002074 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 037



060270008002075 
060270008002076 
060270008002077 
060270008002078 
060270008002079 
060270008002080 
060270008002081 
060270008002082 
060270008002083 
060270008002084 
060270008002085 
060270008002086 
060270008002087 
060270008002088 
060270008002089 
060270008002090 
060270008002091 
060270008002092 
060270008002093 
060270008002094 
060270008002095 
060270008002096 
060270008002097 
060270008002098 
060270008002099 
060270008002100 
060270008002101 
060270008002102 
060270008002103 
060270008002104 
060270008002105 
060270008002106 
060270008002107 
060270008002108 
060270008002109 
060270008002110 
060270008002111 
060270008002112 
060270008002113 
060270008002114 
060270008002115 
060270008002116 
060270008002117 
060270008002118 
060270008002119 
060270008002120 
060270008002121 
060270008002122 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 038



060270008002123 
060270008002124 
060270008002125 
060270008002126 
060270008002127 
060270008002128 
060270008002129 
060270008002130 
060270008002131 
060270008002132 
060270008002133 
060270008002134 
060270008002135 
060270008002136 
060270008002137 
060270008002138 
060270008002139 
060270008002140 
060270008002141 
060270008002142 
060270008002143 
060270008002144 
060270008002145 
060270008002146 
060270008002147 
060270008002148 
060270008002149 
060270008002150 
060270008002151 
060270008002152 
060270008002153 
060270008002154 
060270008002155 
060270008002156 
060270008002157 
060270008002158 
060270008002159 
060270008002160 
060270008002161 
060270008002162 
060270008002163 
060270008002164 
060270008002165 
060270008002166 
060270008002167 
060270008002168 
060270008002169 
060270008002170 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 039



060270008002171 
060270008002172 
060270008002173 
060270008002174 
060270008002175 
060270008002176 
060270008002177 
060270008002178 
060270008002179 
060270008002180 
060270008002181 
060270008002182 
060270008002183 
060270008002184 
060270008002185 
060270008002186 
060270008002187 
060270008002188 
060270008002189 
060270008002190 
060270008002191 
060270008002192 
060270008002193 
060270008002194 
060270008002195 
060270008002196 
060270008002197 
060270008002198 
060270008002199 
060270008002200 
060270008002201 
060270008002202 
060270008002203 
060270008002204 
060270008002205 
060270008002206 
060270008002207 
060270008002208 
060270008002209 
060270008002210 
060270008002211 
060270008002212 
060270008002213 
060270008002214 
060270008002215 
060270008002216 
060270008002217 
060270008002218 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 040



060270008002219 
060270008002220 
060270008002221 
060270008002222 
060270008002223 
060270008002224 
060270008002225 
060270008002226 
060270008002227 
060270008002228 
060270008002229 
060270008002230 
060270008002231 
060270008002232 
060270008002233 
060270008002234 
060270008002235 
060270008002236 
060270008002237 
060270008002238 
060270008002239 
060270008002240 
060270008002241 
060270008002242 
060270008002243 
060270008002244 
060270008002245 
060270008002246 
060270008002247 
060270008002248 
060270008002249 
060270008002250 
060270008002251 
060270008002252 
060270008002253 
060270008002254 
060270008002255 
060270008002256 
060270008002257 
060270008002258 
060270008002259 
060270008002260 
060270008002261 
060270008002262 
060270008002263 
060270008002264 
060270008002265 
060270008002266 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 041



060270008002267 
060270008002268 
060270008002269 
060270008002270 
060270008002271 
060270008002272 
060270008002273 
060270008002274 
060270008002275 
060270008002276 
060270008002277 
060270008002278 
060270008002279 
060270008002280 
060270008002281 
060270008002282 
060270008002283 
060270008002284 
060270008002285 
060270008002286 
060270008002287 
060270008002288 
060270008002289 
060270008002290 
060270008002291 
060270008002292 
060270008002293 
060270008002294 
060270008002295 
060270008002296 
060270008002297 
060270008002298 
060270008002299 
060270008002300 
060270008002301 
060270008002302 
060270008002303 
060270008002304 
060270008002305 
060270008002306 
060270008002307 
060270008002308 
060270008002309 
060270008002310 
060270008002311 
060270008002312 
060270008002313 
060270008002314 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 042



060270008002315 
060270008002316 
060270008002317 
060270008002318 
060270008002319 
060270008002320 
060270008002321 
060270008002322 
060270008002323 
060270008002324 
060270008002325 
060270008002326 
060270008002327 
060270008002328 
060270008002329 
060270008002330 
060270008002331 
060270008002332 
060270008002333 
060270008002334 
060270008002335 
060270008002336 
060270008002337 
060270008002338 
060270008002339 
060270008002340 
060270008002341 
060270008002342 
060270008002343 
060270008002344 
060270008002345 
060270008002346 
060270008002347 
060270008002348 
060270008002349 
060270008002350 
060270008002351 
060270008002352 
060270008002353 
060270008002354 
060270008002355 
060270008002356 
060270008002357 
060270008002358 
060270008002359 
060270008002360 
060270008002361 
060270008002362 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 043



060270008002363 
060270008002364 
060270008002365 
060270008002366 
060270008002367 
060270008002368 
060270008002369 
060270008002370 
060270008002371 
060270008002372 
060270008002373 
060270008002374 
060270008002375 
060270008002376 
060270008002377 
060270008002378 
060270008002379 
060270008002380 
060270008002381 
060270008002382 
060270008002383 
060270008002384 
060270008002385 
060270008002386 
060270008002387 
060270008002388 
060270008002389 
060270008002390 
060270008002391 
060270008002392 
060270008002393 
060270008002394 
060270008002395 
060270008002396 
060270008002397 
060270008002398 
060270008002399 
060270008002400 
060270008002401 
060270008002402 
060270008002403 
060270008002404 
060270008002405 
060270008002406 
060270008002407 
060270008002408 
060270008002409 
060270008002410 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 044



060270008002411 
060270008002412 
060270008002413 
060270008002414 
060270008002415 
060270008002416 
060270008002417 
060270008002418 
060270008002419 
060270008002420 
060270008002421 
060270008002422 
060270008002423 
060270008002424 
060270008002425 
060270008002426 
060270008002427 
060270008002428 
060270008002429 
060270008002430 
060270008002431 
060270008002432 
060270008002433 
060270008002434 
060270008002435 
060270008002436 
060270008002437 
060270008002438 
060270008002439 
060270008002440 
060270008002441 
060270008002442 
060270008002443 
060270008002444 
060270008002445 
060270008002446 
060270008002447 
060270008002448 
060270008002449 
060270008002450 
060270008002451 
060270008002452 
060270008002453 
060270008002454 
060270008002455 
060270008002456 
060270008002457 
060270008002458 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 045



060270008002459 
060270008002460 
060270008002461 
060270008002462 
060270008002463 
060270008002464 
060270008002465 
060270008002466 
060270008002467 
060270008002468 
060270008002469 
060270008002470 
060270008002471 
060270008002472 
060270008002473 
060270008002474 
060270008002475 
060270008002476 
060270008002477 
060270008002478 
060270008002479 
060270008002480 
060270008002481 
060270008002482 
060270008002483 
060270008002484 
060270008002485 
060270008002486 
060270008002487 
060270008002488 
060270008002489 
060270008002490 
060270008002491 
060270008002492 
060270008002493 
060270008002494 
060270008002495 
060270008002496 
060270008002497 
060270008002498 
060270008002499 
060270008002500 
060270008002501 
060270008002502 
060270008002503 
060270008002504 
060270008002505 
060270008002506 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 046



060270008002507 
060270008002508 
060270008002509 
060270008002510 
060270008002511 
060270008002512 
060270008002513 
060270008002514 
060270008002515 
060270008002516 
060270008002517 
060270008002518 
060270008002519 
060270008002520 
060270008002521 
060270008002522 
060270008002523 
060270008002524 
060270008002525 
060270008002526 
060270008002527 
060270008002528 
060270008002529 
060270008002530 
060270008002531 
060270008002532 
060270008002533 
060270008002534 
060270008002535 
060270008002536 
060270008002537 
060270008002538 
060270008002539 
060270008002540 
060270008002541 
060270008002542 
060270008002543 
060270008002544 
060270008002545 
060270008002546 
060270008002547 
060270008002548 
060270008002549 
060270008002550 
060270008002551 
060270008002552 
060270008002553 
060270008002554 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 047



060270008002555 
060270008002556 
060270008002557 
060270008002558 
060270008002559 
060270008002560 
060270008002561 
060270008002562 
060270008002563 
060270008002564 
060270008002565 
060270008002566 
060270008002567 
060270008002568 
060270008002569 
060270008002570 
060270008002571 
060270008002572 
060270008002573 
060270008002574 
060270008002575 
060270008002576 
060270008002577 
060270008002578 
060270008002579 
060270008002580 
060270008002581 
060270008002582 
060270008002583 
060270008002584 
060270008002585 
060270008002586 
060270008002587 
060270008002588 
060270008002589 
060270008002590 
060270008002591 
060270008002592 
060270008002593 
060270008002594 
060270008003000 
060270008003001 
060270008003002 
060270008003003 
060270008003004 
060270008003005 
060270008003006 
060270008003007 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 048



060270008003008 
060270008003009 
060270008003010 
060270008003011 
060270008003012 
060270008003013 
060270008003014 
060270008003015 
060270008003016 
060270008003017 
060270008003018 
060270008003019 
060270008003020 
060270008003021 
060270008003022 
060270008003023 
060270008003024 
060270008003025 
060270008003026 
060270008003027 
060270008003028 
060270008003029 
060270008003030 
060270008003031 
060270008003032 
060270008003033 
060270008003034 
060270008003035 
060270008003036 
060270008003037 
060270008003038 
060270008003039 
060270008003040 
060270008003041 
060270008003042 
060270008003043 
060270008003044 
060270008003045 
060270008003046 
060270008003047 
060270008003048 
060270008003049 
060270008003050 
060270008003051 
060270008003052 
060270008003053 
060270008003054 
060270008003055 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 049



060270008003056 
060270008003057 
060270008003058 
060270008003059 
060270008004000 
060270008004001 
060270008004002 
060270008004003 
060270008004004 
060270008004005 
060270008004006 
060270008004007 
060270008004008 
060270008004009 
060270008004010 
060270008004011 
060270008004012 
060270008004013 
060270008004014 
060270008004015 
060270008004016 
060270008004017 
060270008004018 
060270008004019 
060270008004020 
060270008004021 
060270008004022 
060270008004023 
060270008004024 
060270008004025 
060270008004026 
060270008004027 
060270008004028 
060270008004029 
060270008004030 
060270008004031 
060270008004032 
060270008004033 
060270008004034 
060270008004035 
060270008004036 
060270008004037 
060270008004038 
060270008004039 
060270008004040 
060270008004041 
060270008004042 
060270008004043 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 050



060270008004044 
060270008004045 
060270008004046 
060270008004047 
060270008004048 
060270008004049 
060270008004050 
060270008004051 
060270008004052 
060270008004053 
060270008004054 
060270008004055 
060270008004056 
060270008004057 
060270008004058 
060270008004059 
060270008004060 
060270008004061 
060270008004062 
060270008004063 
060270008004064 
060270008004065 
060270008004066 
060270008004067 
060270008004068 
060270008004069 
060270008004070 
060270008004071 
060270008004072 
060270008004073 
060270008004074 
060270008004075 
060270008004076 
060270008004077 
060270008004078 
060270008004079 
060270008004080 
060270008004081 
060270008004082 
060270008004083 
060270008004084 
060270008004085 
060270008004086 
060270008004087 
060270008004088 
060270008004089 
060270008004090 
060270008004091 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 051



060270008004092 
060270008004093 
060270008004094 
060270008004095 
060270008004096 
060270008004097 
060270008004098 
060270008004099 
060270008004100 
 

Option 8a 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 052



District 1 
060270001001067 
060270001001068 
060270001001069 
060270001001070 
060270001001071 
060270001001072 
060270001001073 
060270001001074 
060270001001075 
060270001001076 
060270001001077 
060270001001078 
060270001001079 
060270001001080 
060270001001081 
060270001001082 
060270001001083 
060270001001084 
060270001001085 
060270001001086 
060270001001087 
060270001001112 
060270001001113 
060270001001114 
060270001002000 
060270001002001 
060270001002002 
060270001002003 
060270001002004 
060270001002005 
060270001002006 
060270001002007 
060270001002008 
060270001002009 
060270001002010 
060270001002011 
060270001002012 
060270001002013 
060270001002014 
060270001002015 
060270001002016 
060270001002017 
060270001002018 
060270001002019 
060270001002020 
060270001002021 
060270001002022 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 001



060270001002023 
060270001002024 
060270001002025 
060270001002026 
060270001002027 
060270001002028 
060270001002029 
060270001002030 
060270001002031 
060270001002032 
060270001002033 
060270001002034 
060270001002035 
060270001002036 
060270001002037 
060270001002038 
060270001002039 
060270001002040 
060270001002041 
060270001002042 
060270001002043 
060270001002044 
060270001002045 
060270001002046 
060270001002047 
060270001002048 
060270001002049 
060270001002050 
060270002001000 
060270002001001 
060270002001002 
060270002001003 
060270002001004 
060270002001005 
060270002001006 
060270002001007 
060270002001008 
060270002001009 
060270002001010 
060270002001011 
060270002001012 
060270002001013 
060270002001014 
060270002001015 
060270002001016 
060270002001017 
060270002001018 
060270002001019 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 002



060270002001020 
060270002001021 
060270002001022 
060270002001023 
060270002001024 
060270002001025 
060270002001026 
060270002001027 
060270002001028 
060270002001029 
060270002001030 
060270002001031 
060270002001032 
060270002001033 
060270002001034 
060270002001035 
060270002001036 
060270002001037 
060270002001038 
060270002001039 
060270002001040 
060270002001041 
060270002001042 
060270002001043 
060270002001044 
060270002001045 
060270002001046 
060270002001047 
060270002001048 
060270002001049 
060270002001050 
060270002001051 
060270002001052 
060270002001053 
060270002001054 
060270002001055 
060270002001056 
060270002001057 
060270002001058 
060270002001059 
060270002001060 
060270002001061 
060270002001062 
060270002001063 
060270002001064 
060270002001065 
060270002001066 
060270002001067 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 003



060270002001068 
060270002001069 
060270002001070 
060270002001071 
060270002001072 
060270002001073 
060270002001074 
060270002001075 
060270002001076 
060270002001077 
060270002001078 
060270002001079 
060270002001080 
060270002001081 
060270002001082 
060270002001083 
060270002001084 
060270002001085 
060270002001086 
060270002001087 
060270002001088 
060270002001089 
060270002001090 
060270002001091 
060270002001092 
060270002001093 
060270002001094 
060270002001095 
060270002001096 
060270002001097 
060270002001098 
060270002001099 
060270002001100 
060270002001101 
060270002001102 
060270002001103 
060270002001104 
060270002001105 
060270002001106 
060270002001107 
060270002001108 
060270002001109 
060270002001110 
060270002001111 
060270002001112 
060270002001113 
060270002001114 
060270002001115 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 004



060270002001116 
060270002001117 
060270002001118 
060270002001119 
060270002001120 
060270002001121 
060270002001122 
060270002001123 
060270002001124 
060270002001125 
060270002001126 
060270002001127 
060270002001128 
060270002001129 
060270002001130 
060270002001131 
060270002001132 
060270002001133 
060270002001134 
060270002001135 
060270002001136 
060270002001137 
060270002001138 
060270002001139 
060270002001140 
060270002001141 
060270002001142 
060270002001143 
060270002001144 
060270002001145 
060270002001146 
060270002001147 
060270002001148 
060270002001149 
060270002001150 
060270002001151 
060270002001152 
060270002001153 
060270002001154 
060270002001155 
060270002001156 
060270002001157 
060270002001158 
060270002001159 
060270002001160 
060270002001161 
060270002001162 
060270002001163 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 005



060270002001164 
060270002001165 
060270002001166 
060270002001167 
060270002001168 
060270002001169 
060270002001170 
060270002001171 
060270002001172 
060270002001173 
060270002001174 
060270002001175 
060270002001176 
060270002001177 
060270002001178 
060270002001179 
060270002001180 
060270002001181 
060270002001182 
060270002001183 
060270002001184 
060270002001186 
060270002001187 
060270002001188 
060270002001189 
060270002001190 
060270002001191 
060270002001192 
060270002001193 
060270002001194 
060270002001195 
060270002001196 
060270002001197 
060270002001198 
060270002001199 
060270002001200 
060270002001201 
060270002001202 
060270002001203 
060270002001204 
060270002001205 
060270002002006 
060270002002007 
060270002002008 
060270002002009 
060270002002010 
060270002002011 
060270002002012 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 006



060270002002013 
060270002002014 
060270002002017 
060270002002018 
060270002002019 
060270002002028 
060270002002038 
060270002002039 
060270002002040 
060270002002041 
060270002002042 
060270002002043 
060270002002044 
060270002002045 
060270002002046 
060270002002048 
060270002002049 
060270002002050 
060270002002051 
060270002002052 
060270002002053 
060270002002054 
060270002002055 
060270002002056 
060270002002057 
060270002002058 
060270002002059 
060270002002060 
060270002002061 
060270002002062 
060270002002063 
060270002002064 
060270002002065 
060270002002066 
060270002002067 
060270002002068 
060270002002069 
060270002002070 
060270002002071 
060270002002072 
060270002002073 
060270002002074 
060270002002084 
060270002002119 
060270002002120 
060270002002121 
060270002002126 
060270003001001 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 007



060270003001002 
060270003001003 
060270003001004 
060270003001014 
060270003001015 
060270003002006 
060270004001000 
060270004001001 
060270004001002 
060270004002002 
 
District 2 
060270001001098 
060270001001110 
060270001001111 
060270004002000 
060270004002001 
060270004002003 
060270004002004 
060270004002005 
060270004002006 
060270004002007 
060270004002008 
060270004002011 
060270004002012 
060270004002013 
060270004002014 
060270004002015 
060270004002016 
060270004002017 
060270004002018 
060270004002019 
060270004002020 
060270004002021 
060270004002022 
060270004002024 
060270004002025 
060270004002026 
060270004002027 
060270004002028 
060270004002029 
060270004002030 
060270004002031 
060270004002032 
060270004002033 
060270004002034 
060270004002035 
060270004002036 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 008



060270004002037 
060270004002038 
060270004002039 
060270004002040 
060270004002041 
060270004002043 
060270004002044 
060270004002045 
060270004002046 
060270004002047 
060270004002048 
060270004002049 
060270004002050 
060270004002051 
060270004002052 
060270004002056 
060270004002059 
060270004003000 
060270004003001 
060270004003002 
060270004003003 
060270004003005 
060270004003006 
060270004003007 
060270004003008 
060270004003009 
060270004003010 
060270004003011 
060270004003012 
060270004003013 
060270004003014 
060270004003015 
060270004003016 
060270004003017 
060270004003018 
060270004003019 
060270004003020 
060270004003021 
060270004003022 
060270004003023 
060270004003024 
060270004003025 
060270004003026 
060270004003027 
060270004003028 
060270004003029 
060270004003030 
060270004003031 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 009



060270004003032 
060270004003033 
060270004003034 
060270004003035 
060270004003036 
060270004003037 
060270004003038 
060270004003039 
060270004003040 
060270004003041 
060270004004000 
060270004004001 
060270004004002 
060270004004003 
060270004004004 
060270004004005 
060270004004006 
060270004004007 
060270004004008 
060270004004009 
060270004004010 
060270004004011 
060270004004012 
060270004004013 
 
District 3 
060270002001185 
060270003001000 
060270003001005 
060270003001006 
060270003001007 
060270003001008 
060270003001009 
060270003001010 
060270003001011 
060270003001012 
060270003001013 
060270003001016 
060270003001017 
060270003001018 
060270003001019 
060270003001020 
060270003001021 
060270003001022 
060270003001023 
060270003001024 
060270003001025 
060270003001026 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 010



060270003001027 
060270003001028 
060270003001029 
060270003001030 
060270003002000 
060270003002001 
060270004001003 
060270004001004 
060270004001005 
060270004001006 
060270004001007 
060270004001008 
060270004001009 
060270004001010 
060270004001011 
060270004001012 
060270004001013 
060270004001014 
060270004001015 
060270004001016 
060270004001017 
060270004001018 
060270004001019 
060270004001020 
060270004001021 
060270004001022 
060270004001023 
060270004001024 
060270004001025 
060270004001026 
060270004002009 
060270004002010 
060270004002023 
060270004002053 
060270004002054 
060270004002055 
060270004002057 
060270004002058 
060270004002060 
 
District 4 
060270001001000 
060270001001001 
060270001001002 
060270001001003 
060270001001004 
060270001001005 
060270001001006 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 011



060270001001007 
060270001001008 
060270001001009 
060270001001010 
060270001001011 
060270001001012 
060270001001013 
060270001001014 
060270001001015 
060270001001016 
060270001001017 
060270001001018 
060270001001019 
060270001001020 
060270001001021 
060270001001022 
060270001001023 
060270001001024 
060270001001025 
060270001001026 
060270001001027 
060270001001028 
060270001001029 
060270001001030 
060270001001031 
060270001001032 
060270001001033 
060270001001034 
060270001001035 
060270001001036 
060270001001037 
060270001001038 
060270001001039 
060270001001040 
060270001001041 
060270001001042 
060270001001043 
060270001001044 
060270001001045 
060270001001046 
060270001001047 
060270001001048 
060270001001049 
060270001001050 
060270001001051 
060270001001052 
060270001001053 
060270001001054 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 012



060270001001055 
060270001001056 
060270001001057 
060270001001058 
060270001001059 
060270001001060 
060270001001061 
060270001001062 
060270001001063 
060270001001064 
060270001001065 
060270001001066 
060270001001088 
060270001001089 
060270001001090 
060270001001091 
060270001001092 
060270001001093 
060270001001094 
060270001001095 
060270001001096 
060270001001097 
060270001001099 
060270001001100 
060270001001101 
060270001001102 
060270001001103 
060270001001104 
060270001001105 
060270001001106 
060270001001107 
060270001001108 
060270001001109 
060270001001115 
060270001001116 
060270001001117 
060270001001118 
060270001001119 
060270001001120 
060270001001121 
060270001001122 
060270001001123 
060270001001124 
060270001001125 
060270001001126 
060270001001127 
060270001001128 
060270001001129 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 013



060270001001130 
060270001001131 
060270001001132 
060270001001133 
060270001001134 
060270001001135 
060270001001136 
060270001001137 
060270001001138 
060270001001139 
060270001001140 
060270001001141 
060270001001142 
060270001001143 
060270001001144 
060270001001145 
060270001001146 
060270001001147 
060270001001148 
060270001001149 
060270001001150 
060270001001151 
060270001001152 
060270001001153 
060270001001154 
060270001001155 
060270001001156 
060270001001157 
060270001001158 
060270001001159 
060270001001160 
060270002002000 
060270002002001 
060270002002002 
060270002002003 
060270002002004 
060270002002005 
060270002002015 
060270002002016 
060270002002020 
060270002002021 
060270002002022 
060270002002023 
060270002002024 
060270002002025 
060270002002026 
060270002002027 
060270002002029 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 014



060270002002030 
060270002002031 
060270002002032 
060270002002033 
060270002002034 
060270002002035 
060270002002036 
060270002002037 
060270002002047 
060270002002075 
060270002002076 
060270002002077 
060270002002078 
060270002002079 
060270002002080 
060270002002081 
060270002002082 
060270002002083 
060270002002085 
060270002002086 
060270002002087 
060270002002088 
060270002002089 
060270002002090 
060270002002091 
060270002002092 
060270002002093 
060270002002094 
060270002002095 
060270002002096 
060270002002097 
060270002002098 
060270002002099 
060270002002100 
060270002002101 
060270002002102 
060270002002103 
060270002002104 
060270002002105 
060270002002106 
060270002002107 
060270002002108 
060270002002109 
060270002002110 
060270002002111 
060270002002112 
060270002002113 
060270002002114 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 015



060270002002115 
060270002002116 
060270002002117 
060270002002118 
060270002002122 
060270002002123 
060270002002124 
060270002002125 
060270003002002 
060270003002003 
060270003002004 
060270003002005 
060270003002007 
060270003002008 
060270003002009 
060270004002042 
060270004003004 
060270005001000 
060270005001001 
060270005001002 
060270005001003 
060270005001004 
060270005001005 
060270005001006 
060270005001007 
060270005001008 
060270005001009 
060270005001010 
060270005001011 
060270005001012 
060270005001013 
060270005001014 
060270005001015 
060270005001016 
060270005001017 
060270005001018 
060270005001019 
060270005001020 
060270005001021 
060270005001022 
060270005001023 
060270005001024 
060270005001025 
060270005001026 
060270005001027 
060270005001028 
060270005001029 
060270005001030 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 016



060270005001031 
060270005001032 
060270005001033 
060270005001034 
060270005001035 
060270005001036 
060270005001037 
060270005001038 
060270005001039 
060270005001040 
060270005001041 
060270005001042 
060270005001043 
060270005001044 
060270005001045 
060270005001046 
060270005001047 
060270005001048 
060270005001049 
060270005001051 
060270005001052 
060270005001053 
060270005001054 
060270005001055 
060270005001056 
060270005001057 
060270005001058 
060270005001059 
060270005001060 
060270005001061 
060270005001062 
060270005001063 
060270005001064 
060270005001065 
060270005001066 
060270005001067 
060270005001068 
060270005001069 
060270005001070 
060270005001071 
060270005001072 
060270005001073 
060270005001074 
060270005001075 
060270005001076 
060270005001077 
060270005001078 
060270005001079 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 017



060270005001080 
060270005001081 
060270005001082 
060270005001083 
060270005001084 
060270005001085 
060270005001086 
060270005001087 
060270005001088 
060270005001089 
060270005001090 
060270005001091 
060270005001092 
060270005001093 
060270005001094 
060270005001095 
060270005001096 
060270005001097 
060270005001098 
060270005001101 
060270005001102 
060270005001103 
060270005001104 
060270005001105 
060270005001106 
060270005001107 
060270005001108 
060270005001109 
060270005001110 
060270005001111 
060270005001112 
060270005001113 
060270005001114 
060270005001115 
060270005001116 
060270005001117 
060270005001118 
060270005001119 
060270005001120 
060270005001121 
060270005001122 
060270005001123 
060270005001124 
060270005001125 
060270005001126 
060270005001127 
060270005001128 
060270005001129 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 018



060270005001130 
060270005001131 
060270005001132 
060270005001133 
060270005001134 
060270005001135 
060270005001136 
060270005001137 
060270005001138 
060270005001139 
060270005001140 
060270005001141 
060270005001142 
060270005001143 
060270005001144 
060270005001145 
060270005001146 
060270005001147 
060270005001148 
060270005001149 
060270005001150 
060270005001151 
060270005001152 
060270005001153 
060270005001154 
060270005001155 
060270005001156 
060270005001157 
060270005001158 
060270005001159 
060270005001160 
060270005001161 
060270005001162 
060270005001163 
060270005001164 
060270005001165 
060270005001166 
060270005001167 
060270005001168 
060270005001169 
060270005001170 
060270005001171 
060270005001172 
060270005001173 
060270005001174 
060270005001175 
060270005001176 
060270005001177 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 019



060270005001178 
060270005001179 
060270005001180 
060270005001181 
060270005001182 
060270005001183 
060270005001184 
060270005001185 
060270005001186 
060270005001187 
060270005001188 
060270005001189 
060270005001190 
060270005001191 
060270005001192 
060270005001193 
060270005001194 
060270005001195 
060270005001196 
060270005001197 
060270005001198 
060270005001199 
060270005001200 
060270005001201 
060270005001202 
060270005001203 
060270005001204 
060270005001205 
060270005001206 
060270005001207 
060270005001208 
060270005001209 
060270005001210 
060270005001211 
060270005001212 
060270005001213 
060270005001214 
060270005001215 
060270005001216 
060270005001219 
060270005001220 
060270005001221 
060270005001222 
060270005001243 
060270005001244 
060270005001245 
060270005001246 
060270005001247 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 020



060270005001248 
060270005001249 
060270005001250 
060270005001251 
060270005001252 
060270005001253 
060270005001254 
060270005001255 
060270005001256 
060270005001257 
060270005001258 
060270005001259 
060270005001260 
060270005001261 
060270005001262 
060270005001263 
060270005001264 
060270005001265 
060270005001266 
060270005001267 
060270005001268 
060270005001269 
060270005001270 
060270005001273 
060270005001277 
060270005001289 
060270005001375 
060270005001376 
060270005001377 
060270005001378 
060270005001450 
060270005001451 
060270005001455 
060270005001456 
060270005001457 
060270005001462 
060270005001463 
060270005001464 
060270005001465 
060270005001466 
060270005001467 
060270005001468 
060270005001469 
060270005001470 
060270005001471 
060270005001472 
060270005001473 
060270005001474 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 021



060270005001475 
060270005001476 
060270005001477 
060270005001478 
060270005001479 
060270005001480 
060270005001481 
060270005001482 
060270005001483 
060270005001484 
060270005001485 
060270005001486 
060270005001487 
060270005001488 
060270005001489 
060270005001490 
060270005001491 
060270005001492 
060270005001493 
060270005001494 
060270005001495 
060270005001496 
060270005001497 
060270005001498 
060270005001499 
060270005001500 
060270005001501 
060270005001502 
060270005001503 
060270005001504 
060270005001505 
060270005001506 
060270005001507 
060270005001508 
060270005001509 
060270005001510 
060270005001511 
060270005001512 
060270005002000 
060270005002001 
060270005002002 
060270005002003 
060270005002004 
060270005002005 
060270005002006 
060270005002007 
060270005002008 
060270005002009 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 022



060270005002010 
060270005002011 
060270005002012 
060270005002013 
060270005002014 
060270005002015 
060270005002016 
060270005002017 
060270005002018 
060270005002019 
060270005002020 
060270005002021 
060270005002022 
060270005002023 
060270005002024 
060270005002025 
060270005002026 
060270005002027 
060270005002028 
060270005002029 
060270005002030 
060270005002031 
060270005002032 
060270005002033 
060270005002034 
060270005002035 
060270005002036 
060270005002037 
060270005002038 
060270005002039 
060270005002040 
060270005002041 
060270005002042 
060270005002043 
060270005002044 
060270005002045 
060270005002046 
060270005002047 
060270005002048 
060270005002049 
060270005002050 
060270005002051 
060270005002052 
060270005002053 
060270005002054 
060270005002055 
060270005002056 
060270005002057 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 023



060270005002058 
060270005002059 
060270005002060 
060270005002061 
060270005002062 
060270005002063 
060270005002064 
060270005002065 
060270005002066 
060270005002067 
060270005002068 
060270005002069 
060270005002070 
060270005002071 
060270005002072 
060270005002073 
060270005002074 
060270005002075 
060270005002076 
060270005002077 
060270005002078 
060270005002079 
060270005002080 
060270005002081 
060270005002082 
060270005002083 
060270005002084 
060270005002085 
060270005002086 
060270005002087 
060270005002088 
060270005002089 
060270005002090 
060270005002091 
060270005002092 
060270005002093 
060270005002094 
 
District 5 
060270005001050 
060270005001099 
060270005001100 
060270005001217 
060270005001218 
060270005001223 
060270005001224 
060270005001225 
060270005001226 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 024



060270005001227 
060270005001228 
060270005001229 
060270005001230 
060270005001231 
060270005001232 
060270005001233 
060270005001234 
060270005001235 
060270005001236 
060270005001237 
060270005001238 
060270005001239 
060270005001240 
060270005001241 
060270005001242 
060270005001271 
060270005001272 
060270005001274 
060270005001275 
060270005001276 
060270005001278 
060270005001279 
060270005001280 
060270005001281 
060270005001282 
060270005001283 
060270005001284 
060270005001285 
060270005001286 
060270005001287 
060270005001288 
060270005001290 
060270005001291 
060270005001292 
060270005001293 
060270005001294 
060270005001295 
060270005001296 
060270005001297 
060270005001298 
060270005001299 
060270005001300 
060270005001301 
060270005001302 
060270005001303 
060270005001304 
060270005001305 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 025



060270005001306 
060270005001307 
060270005001308 
060270005001309 
060270005001310 
060270005001311 
060270005001312 
060270005001313 
060270005001314 
060270005001315 
060270005001316 
060270005001317 
060270005001318 
060270005001319 
060270005001320 
060270005001321 
060270005001322 
060270005001323 
060270005001324 
060270005001325 
060270005001326 
060270005001327 
060270005001328 
060270005001329 
060270005001330 
060270005001331 
060270005001332 
060270005001333 
060270005001334 
060270005001335 
060270005001336 
060270005001337 
060270005001338 
060270005001339 
060270005001340 
060270005001341 
060270005001342 
060270005001343 
060270005001344 
060270005001345 
060270005001346 
060270005001347 
060270005001348 
060270005001349 
060270005001350 
060270005001351 
060270005001352 
060270005001353 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 026



060270005001354 
060270005001355 
060270005001356 
060270005001357 
060270005001358 
060270005001359 
060270005001360 
060270005001361 
060270005001362 
060270005001363 
060270005001364 
060270005001365 
060270005001366 
060270005001367 
060270005001368 
060270005001369 
060270005001370 
060270005001371 
060270005001372 
060270005001373 
060270005001374 
060270005001379 
060270005001380 
060270005001381 
060270005001382 
060270005001383 
060270005001384 
060270005001385 
060270005001386 
060270005001387 
060270005001388 
060270005001389 
060270005001390 
060270005001391 
060270005001392 
060270005001393 
060270005001394 
060270005001395 
060270005001396 
060270005001397 
060270005001398 
060270005001399 
060270005001400 
060270005001401 
060270005001402 
060270005001403 
060270005001404 
060270005001405 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 027



060270005001406 
060270005001407 
060270005001408 
060270005001409 
060270005001410 
060270005001411 
060270005001412 
060270005001413 
060270005001414 
060270005001415 
060270005001416 
060270005001417 
060270005001418 
060270005001419 
060270005001420 
060270005001421 
060270005001422 
060270005001423 
060270005001424 
060270005001425 
060270005001426 
060270005001427 
060270005001428 
060270005001429 
060270005001430 
060270005001431 
060270005001432 
060270005001433 
060270005001434 
060270005001435 
060270005001436 
060270005001437 
060270005001438 
060270005001439 
060270005001440 
060270005001441 
060270005001442 
060270005001443 
060270005001444 
060270005001445 
060270005001446 
060270005001447 
060270005001448 
060270005001449 
060270005001452 
060270005001453 
060270005001454 
060270005001458 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 028



060270005001459 
060270005001460 
060270005001461 
060270008001000 
060270008001001 
060270008001002 
060270008001003 
060270008001004 
060270008001005 
060270008001006 
060270008001007 
060270008001008 
060270008001009 
060270008001010 
060270008001011 
060270008001012 
060270008001013 
060270008001014 
060270008001015 
060270008001016 
060270008001017 
060270008001018 
060270008001019 
060270008001020 
060270008001021 
060270008001022 
060270008001023 
060270008001024 
060270008001025 
060270008001026 
060270008001027 
060270008001028 
060270008001029 
060270008001030 
060270008001031 
060270008001032 
060270008001033 
060270008001034 
060270008001035 
060270008001036 
060270008001037 
060270008001038 
060270008001039 
060270008001040 
060270008001041 
060270008001042 
060270008001043 
060270008001044 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 029



060270008001045 
060270008001046 
060270008001047 
060270008001048 
060270008001049 
060270008001050 
060270008001051 
060270008001052 
060270008001053 
060270008001054 
060270008001055 
060270008001056 
060270008001057 
060270008001058 
060270008001059 
060270008001060 
060270008001061 
060270008001062 
060270008001063 
060270008001064 
060270008001065 
060270008001066 
060270008001067 
060270008001068 
060270008001069 
060270008001070 
060270008001071 
060270008001072 
060270008001073 
060270008001074 
060270008001075 
060270008001076 
060270008001077 
060270008001078 
060270008001079 
060270008001080 
060270008001081 
060270008001082 
060270008001083 
060270008001084 
060270008001085 
060270008001086 
060270008001087 
060270008001088 
060270008001089 
060270008001090 
060270008001091 
060270008001092 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 030



060270008001093 
060270008001094 
060270008001095 
060270008001096 
060270008001097 
060270008001098 
060270008001099 
060270008001100 
060270008001101 
060270008001102 
060270008001103 
060270008001104 
060270008001105 
060270008001106 
060270008001107 
060270008001108 
060270008001109 
060270008001110 
060270008001111 
060270008001112 
060270008001113 
060270008001114 
060270008001115 
060270008001116 
060270008001117 
060270008001118 
060270008001119 
060270008001120 
060270008001121 
060270008001122 
060270008001123 
060270008001124 
060270008001125 
060270008001126 
060270008001127 
060270008001128 
060270008001129 
060270008001130 
060270008001131 
060270008001132 
060270008001133 
060270008001134 
060270008001135 
060270008001136 
060270008001137 
060270008001138 
060270008001139 
060270008001140 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 031



060270008001141 
060270008001142 
060270008001143 
060270008001144 
060270008001145 
060270008001146 
060270008001147 
060270008001148 
060270008001149 
060270008001150 
060270008001151 
060270008001152 
060270008001153 
060270008001154 
060270008001155 
060270008001156 
060270008001157 
060270008001158 
060270008001159 
060270008001160 
060270008001161 
060270008001162 
060270008001163 
060270008001164 
060270008001165 
060270008001166 
060270008001167 
060270008001168 
060270008001169 
060270008001170 
060270008001171 
060270008001172 
060270008001173 
060270008001174 
060270008001175 
060270008001176 
060270008001177 
060270008001178 
060270008001179 
060270008001180 
060270008001181 
060270008001182 
060270008001183 
060270008001184 
060270008001185 
060270008001186 
060270008001187 
060270008001188 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 032



060270008001189 
060270008001190 
060270008001191 
060270008001192 
060270008001193 
060270008001194 
060270008001195 
060270008001196 
060270008001197 
060270008001198 
060270008001199 
060270008001200 
060270008001201 
060270008001202 
060270008001203 
060270008001204 
060270008001205 
060270008001206 
060270008001207 
060270008001208 
060270008001209 
060270008001210 
060270008001211 
060270008001212 
060270008001213 
060270008001214 
060270008001215 
060270008001216 
060270008001217 
060270008001218 
060270008001219 
060270008001220 
060270008001221 
060270008001222 
060270008001223 
060270008001224 
060270008001225 
060270008001226 
060270008001227 
060270008001228 
060270008001229 
060270008001230 
060270008001231 
060270008001232 
060270008001233 
060270008001234 
060270008001235 
060270008001236 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 033



060270008001237 
060270008001238 
060270008001239 
060270008001240 
060270008001241 
060270008001242 
060270008001243 
060270008001244 
060270008001245 
060270008001246 
060270008001247 
060270008001248 
060270008001249 
060270008001250 
060270008001251 
060270008001252 
060270008001253 
060270008001254 
060270008001255 
060270008001256 
060270008001257 
060270008001258 
060270008001259 
060270008001260 
060270008001261 
060270008001262 
060270008001263 
060270008001264 
060270008001265 
060270008001266 
060270008001267 
060270008001268 
060270008001269 
060270008001270 
060270008001271 
060270008001272 
060270008001273 
060270008001274 
060270008001275 
060270008001276 
060270008001277 
060270008001278 
060270008001279 
060270008001280 
060270008001281 
060270008001282 
060270008001283 
060270008001284 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 034



060270008001285 
060270008001286 
060270008001287 
060270008001288 
060270008001289 
060270008001290 
060270008001291 
060270008001292 
060270008001293 
060270008001294 
060270008001295 
060270008001296 
060270008001297 
060270008001298 
060270008001299 
060270008001300 
060270008001301 
060270008001302 
060270008001303 
060270008001304 
060270008001305 
060270008001306 
060270008001307 
060270008001308 
060270008001309 
060270008001310 
060270008001311 
060270008001312 
060270008001313 
060270008001314 
060270008001315 
060270008001316 
060270008001317 
060270008001318 
060270008001319 
060270008001320 
060270008001321 
060270008001322 
060270008001323 
060270008001324 
060270008001325 
060270008001326 
060270008001327 
060270008001328 
060270008001329 
060270008001330 
060270008001331 
060270008001332 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 035



060270008001333 
060270008001334 
060270008001335 
060270008001336 
060270008001337 
060270008001338 
060270008001339 
060270008001340 
060270008001341 
060270008001342 
060270008001343 
060270008001344 
060270008001345 
060270008001346 
060270008001347 
060270008001348 
060270008001349 
060270008001350 
060270008001351 
060270008001352 
060270008001353 
060270008002000 
060270008002001 
060270008002002 
060270008002003 
060270008002004 
060270008002005 
060270008002006 
060270008002007 
060270008002008 
060270008002009 
060270008002010 
060270008002011 
060270008002012 
060270008002013 
060270008002014 
060270008002015 
060270008002016 
060270008002017 
060270008002018 
060270008002019 
060270008002020 
060270008002021 
060270008002022 
060270008002023 
060270008002024 
060270008002025 
060270008002026 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 036



060270008002027 
060270008002028 
060270008002029 
060270008002030 
060270008002031 
060270008002032 
060270008002033 
060270008002034 
060270008002035 
060270008002036 
060270008002037 
060270008002038 
060270008002039 
060270008002040 
060270008002041 
060270008002042 
060270008002043 
060270008002044 
060270008002045 
060270008002046 
060270008002047 
060270008002048 
060270008002049 
060270008002050 
060270008002051 
060270008002052 
060270008002053 
060270008002054 
060270008002055 
060270008002056 
060270008002057 
060270008002058 
060270008002059 
060270008002060 
060270008002061 
060270008002062 
060270008002063 
060270008002064 
060270008002065 
060270008002066 
060270008002067 
060270008002068 
060270008002069 
060270008002070 
060270008002071 
060270008002072 
060270008002073 
060270008002074 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 037



060270008002075 
060270008002076 
060270008002077 
060270008002078 
060270008002079 
060270008002080 
060270008002081 
060270008002082 
060270008002083 
060270008002084 
060270008002085 
060270008002086 
060270008002087 
060270008002088 
060270008002089 
060270008002090 
060270008002091 
060270008002092 
060270008002093 
060270008002094 
060270008002095 
060270008002096 
060270008002097 
060270008002098 
060270008002099 
060270008002100 
060270008002101 
060270008002102 
060270008002103 
060270008002104 
060270008002105 
060270008002106 
060270008002107 
060270008002108 
060270008002109 
060270008002110 
060270008002111 
060270008002112 
060270008002113 
060270008002114 
060270008002115 
060270008002116 
060270008002117 
060270008002118 
060270008002119 
060270008002120 
060270008002121 
060270008002122 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 038



060270008002123 
060270008002124 
060270008002125 
060270008002126 
060270008002127 
060270008002128 
060270008002129 
060270008002130 
060270008002131 
060270008002132 
060270008002133 
060270008002134 
060270008002135 
060270008002136 
060270008002137 
060270008002138 
060270008002139 
060270008002140 
060270008002141 
060270008002142 
060270008002143 
060270008002144 
060270008002145 
060270008002146 
060270008002147 
060270008002148 
060270008002149 
060270008002150 
060270008002151 
060270008002152 
060270008002153 
060270008002154 
060270008002155 
060270008002156 
060270008002157 
060270008002158 
060270008002159 
060270008002160 
060270008002161 
060270008002162 
060270008002163 
060270008002164 
060270008002165 
060270008002166 
060270008002167 
060270008002168 
060270008002169 
060270008002170 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 039



060270008002171 
060270008002172 
060270008002173 
060270008002174 
060270008002175 
060270008002176 
060270008002177 
060270008002178 
060270008002179 
060270008002180 
060270008002181 
060270008002182 
060270008002183 
060270008002184 
060270008002185 
060270008002186 
060270008002187 
060270008002188 
060270008002189 
060270008002190 
060270008002191 
060270008002192 
060270008002193 
060270008002194 
060270008002195 
060270008002196 
060270008002197 
060270008002198 
060270008002199 
060270008002200 
060270008002201 
060270008002202 
060270008002203 
060270008002204 
060270008002205 
060270008002206 
060270008002207 
060270008002208 
060270008002209 
060270008002210 
060270008002211 
060270008002212 
060270008002213 
060270008002214 
060270008002215 
060270008002216 
060270008002217 
060270008002218 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 040



060270008002219 
060270008002220 
060270008002221 
060270008002222 
060270008002223 
060270008002224 
060270008002225 
060270008002226 
060270008002227 
060270008002228 
060270008002229 
060270008002230 
060270008002231 
060270008002232 
060270008002233 
060270008002234 
060270008002235 
060270008002236 
060270008002237 
060270008002238 
060270008002239 
060270008002240 
060270008002241 
060270008002242 
060270008002243 
060270008002244 
060270008002245 
060270008002246 
060270008002247 
060270008002248 
060270008002249 
060270008002250 
060270008002251 
060270008002252 
060270008002253 
060270008002254 
060270008002255 
060270008002256 
060270008002257 
060270008002258 
060270008002259 
060270008002260 
060270008002261 
060270008002262 
060270008002263 
060270008002264 
060270008002265 
060270008002266 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 041



060270008002267 
060270008002268 
060270008002269 
060270008002270 
060270008002271 
060270008002272 
060270008002273 
060270008002274 
060270008002275 
060270008002276 
060270008002277 
060270008002278 
060270008002279 
060270008002280 
060270008002281 
060270008002282 
060270008002283 
060270008002284 
060270008002285 
060270008002286 
060270008002287 
060270008002288 
060270008002289 
060270008002290 
060270008002291 
060270008002292 
060270008002293 
060270008002294 
060270008002295 
060270008002296 
060270008002297 
060270008002298 
060270008002299 
060270008002300 
060270008002301 
060270008002302 
060270008002303 
060270008002304 
060270008002305 
060270008002306 
060270008002307 
060270008002308 
060270008002309 
060270008002310 
060270008002311 
060270008002312 
060270008002313 
060270008002314 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 042



060270008002315 
060270008002316 
060270008002317 
060270008002318 
060270008002319 
060270008002320 
060270008002321 
060270008002322 
060270008002323 
060270008002324 
060270008002325 
060270008002326 
060270008002327 
060270008002328 
060270008002329 
060270008002330 
060270008002331 
060270008002332 
060270008002333 
060270008002334 
060270008002335 
060270008002336 
060270008002337 
060270008002338 
060270008002339 
060270008002340 
060270008002341 
060270008002342 
060270008002343 
060270008002344 
060270008002345 
060270008002346 
060270008002347 
060270008002348 
060270008002349 
060270008002350 
060270008002351 
060270008002352 
060270008002353 
060270008002354 
060270008002355 
060270008002356 
060270008002357 
060270008002358 
060270008002359 
060270008002360 
060270008002361 
060270008002362 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 043



060270008002363 
060270008002364 
060270008002365 
060270008002366 
060270008002367 
060270008002368 
060270008002369 
060270008002370 
060270008002371 
060270008002372 
060270008002373 
060270008002374 
060270008002375 
060270008002376 
060270008002377 
060270008002378 
060270008002379 
060270008002380 
060270008002381 
060270008002382 
060270008002383 
060270008002384 
060270008002385 
060270008002386 
060270008002387 
060270008002388 
060270008002389 
060270008002390 
060270008002391 
060270008002392 
060270008002393 
060270008002394 
060270008002395 
060270008002396 
060270008002397 
060270008002398 
060270008002399 
060270008002400 
060270008002401 
060270008002402 
060270008002403 
060270008002404 
060270008002405 
060270008002406 
060270008002407 
060270008002408 
060270008002409 
060270008002410 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 044



060270008002411 
060270008002412 
060270008002413 
060270008002414 
060270008002415 
060270008002416 
060270008002417 
060270008002418 
060270008002419 
060270008002420 
060270008002421 
060270008002422 
060270008002423 
060270008002424 
060270008002425 
060270008002426 
060270008002427 
060270008002428 
060270008002429 
060270008002430 
060270008002431 
060270008002432 
060270008002433 
060270008002434 
060270008002435 
060270008002436 
060270008002437 
060270008002438 
060270008002439 
060270008002440 
060270008002441 
060270008002442 
060270008002443 
060270008002444 
060270008002445 
060270008002446 
060270008002447 
060270008002448 
060270008002449 
060270008002450 
060270008002451 
060270008002452 
060270008002453 
060270008002454 
060270008002455 
060270008002456 
060270008002457 
060270008002458 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 045



060270008002459 
060270008002460 
060270008002461 
060270008002462 
060270008002463 
060270008002464 
060270008002465 
060270008002466 
060270008002467 
060270008002468 
060270008002469 
060270008002470 
060270008002471 
060270008002472 
060270008002473 
060270008002474 
060270008002475 
060270008002476 
060270008002477 
060270008002478 
060270008002479 
060270008002480 
060270008002481 
060270008002482 
060270008002483 
060270008002484 
060270008002485 
060270008002486 
060270008002487 
060270008002488 
060270008002489 
060270008002490 
060270008002491 
060270008002492 
060270008002493 
060270008002494 
060270008002495 
060270008002496 
060270008002497 
060270008002498 
060270008002499 
060270008002500 
060270008002501 
060270008002502 
060270008002503 
060270008002504 
060270008002505 
060270008002506 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 046



060270008002507 
060270008002508 
060270008002509 
060270008002510 
060270008002511 
060270008002512 
060270008002513 
060270008002514 
060270008002515 
060270008002516 
060270008002517 
060270008002518 
060270008002519 
060270008002520 
060270008002521 
060270008002522 
060270008002523 
060270008002524 
060270008002525 
060270008002526 
060270008002527 
060270008002528 
060270008002529 
060270008002530 
060270008002531 
060270008002532 
060270008002533 
060270008002534 
060270008002535 
060270008002536 
060270008002537 
060270008002538 
060270008002539 
060270008002540 
060270008002541 
060270008002542 
060270008002543 
060270008002544 
060270008002545 
060270008002546 
060270008002547 
060270008002548 
060270008002549 
060270008002550 
060270008002551 
060270008002552 
060270008002553 
060270008002554 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 047



060270008002555 
060270008002556 
060270008002557 
060270008002558 
060270008002559 
060270008002560 
060270008002561 
060270008002562 
060270008002563 
060270008002564 
060270008002565 
060270008002566 
060270008002567 
060270008002568 
060270008002569 
060270008002570 
060270008002571 
060270008002572 
060270008002573 
060270008002574 
060270008002575 
060270008002576 
060270008002577 
060270008002578 
060270008002579 
060270008002580 
060270008002581 
060270008002582 
060270008002583 
060270008002584 
060270008002585 
060270008002586 
060270008002587 
060270008002588 
060270008002589 
060270008002590 
060270008002591 
060270008002592 
060270008002593 
060270008002594 
060270008003000 
060270008003001 
060270008003002 
060270008003003 
060270008003004 
060270008003005 
060270008003006 
060270008003007 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 048



060270008003008 
060270008003009 
060270008003010 
060270008003011 
060270008003012 
060270008003013 
060270008003014 
060270008003015 
060270008003016 
060270008003017 
060270008003018 
060270008003019 
060270008003020 
060270008003021 
060270008003022 
060270008003023 
060270008003024 
060270008003025 
060270008003026 
060270008003027 
060270008003028 
060270008003029 
060270008003030 
060270008003031 
060270008003032 
060270008003033 
060270008003034 
060270008003035 
060270008003036 
060270008003037 
060270008003038 
060270008003039 
060270008003040 
060270008003041 
060270008003042 
060270008003043 
060270008003044 
060270008003045 
060270008003046 
060270008003047 
060270008003048 
060270008003049 
060270008003050 
060270008003051 
060270008003052 
060270008003053 
060270008003054 
060270008003055 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 049



060270008003056 
060270008003057 
060270008003058 
060270008003059 
060270008004000 
060270008004001 
060270008004002 
060270008004003 
060270008004004 
060270008004005 
060270008004006 
060270008004007 
060270008004008 
060270008004009 
060270008004010 
060270008004011 
060270008004012 
060270008004013 
060270008004014 
060270008004015 
060270008004016 
060270008004017 
060270008004018 
060270008004019 
060270008004020 
060270008004021 
060270008004022 
060270008004023 
060270008004024 
060270008004025 
060270008004026 
060270008004027 
060270008004028 
060270008004029 
060270008004030 
060270008004031 
060270008004032 
060270008004033 
060270008004034 
060270008004035 
060270008004036 
060270008004037 
060270008004038 
060270008004039 
060270008004040 
060270008004041 
060270008004042 
060270008004043 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 050



060270008004044 
060270008004045 
060270008004046 
060270008004047 
060270008004048 
060270008004049 
060270008004050 
060270008004051 
060270008004052 
060270008004053 
060270008004054 
060270008004055 
060270008004056 
060270008004057 
060270008004058 
060270008004059 
060270008004060 
060270008004061 
060270008004062 
060270008004063 
060270008004064 
060270008004065 
060270008004066 
060270008004067 
060270008004068 
060270008004069 
060270008004070 
060270008004071 
060270008004072 
060270008004073 
060270008004074 
060270008004075 
060270008004076 
060270008004077 
060270008004078 
060270008004079 
060270008004080 
060270008004081 
060270008004082 
060270008004083 
060270008004084 
060270008004085 
060270008004086 
060270008004087 
060270008004088 
060270008004089 
060270008004090 
060270008004091 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 051



060270008004092 
060270008004093 
060270008004094 
060270008004095 
060270008004096 
060270008004097 
060270008004098 
060270008004099 
060270008004100 
 

Option 8b 
GEOID20s for all census blocks for each district - p. 052



Board of Equalization AGENDA                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         December 14, 2021 

 

County of Inyo 
Board of Equalization 

Board of Supervisors Room 

County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 

Independence, California 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 14, 2021 
  

   

1:00 p.m. 1. MINUTE APPROVAL – Request approval of the minutes of the Board of Equalization meeting 
of December 7, 2021. 
 

 2. OATHS – The Assistant Clerk of the Board will administer oaths to all parties planning to 
provide testimony during today’s proceedings, as well as anyone who will give evidence during 
the assessment appeal hearing. 

 

 3. ASSESSMENT APPEAL HEARING to consider Assessment Appeal No. 2020-10, concerning 
Assessor Parcel No. 5530100380, submitted by Alpine Signs. 
 

 4.  ASSESSMENT APPEAL HEARING to consider Assessment Appeal No. 2021-03, concerning 
Assessor Parcel No. 0082800000, submitted by Gary Elrod. 
 

 5. ADJOURN 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom signed 
Assembly Bill 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency that suspends certain requirements 
of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, and the 
Board will be conducting its meetings online. 

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. 
Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to access the videoconference. 
Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following generic, non-functioning address to 
gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers:  (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 
215-8782; (929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. 

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are 

limited to three minutes. Written public comment, limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant 
Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments 
will be made a part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to 
comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Equalization MINUTES                                                                                                                   1                                                                                                               December 7, 2021  

County of Inyo
Board of EQUALIZATION

December 7, 2021

The Board of Equalization of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 1:23 p.m., on 
Tuesday, December 7, 2021, in the Board of Supervisors Room, at the County Administrative Center, in Independence, 
with the following Board Members present via teleconference: Supervisor Jeff Griffiths, presiding, Dan Totheroh, Rick 
Pucci, Jennifer Roeser, and Matt Kingsley. Also present: County Administrator Clint Quilter, County Counsel John 
Vallejo, Deputy County Counsel Grace Chuchla, and Assistant Clerk of the Board Darcy Ellis.

Election of Officers Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to elect Supervisor Griffiths the 
Chairperson of the Board of Equalization for Calendar Year 2021. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, 
with Supervisor Pucci absent at the time of the vote.

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to elect Supervisor Totheroh the 
Vice Chairperson of the Board of Equalization for Calendar Year 2021. Motion carried unanimously.

Approval of 
Minutes

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve the minutes of the 
Board of Equalization meeting of December 15, 2020. Motion carried unanimously.

Oaths The Assistant Clerk of the Board administered oaths to Ms. Allison Krohn, Auditor-Appraiser with the 
Assessor’s Office; and Mr. Mark Stevens, appellant.

Assessment 
Appeal Hearing – 
No. 2020-07 
Denied

County Counsel John Vallejo read aloud Assessment Appeal No. 2020-07, concerning Assessor 
Parcel No. 023-210-0802, submitted by Mark Stevens. Mr. Stevens then stated his case (he had 
separately provided an emailed statement that was distributed to the Board) for a 19% discount on his 
2020 assessment. He explained that due to a gate closure, he was unable to access the property in 
question or receive services from the County from March through June, 2020. On behalf of the 
Assessor’s Office, Deputy County Counsel Grace Chuchla presented the Assessor’s case. She 
explained that property taxes are not based on services, and the Assessor’s Office does not have the 
authority to grant a reduced assessment due to access restrictions caused by COVID-19. The Chair 
closed the evidentiary portion of the hearing. Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by 
Supervisor Roeser to deny Assessment Appeal No. 2020-07. Motion carried unanimously.

Adjournment The Chairperson adjourned the Board of Equalization meeting at 1:41 p.m.

__________________________________
Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Equalization

Attest:   L E S L I E  L .  C H A P M A N
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d

       
  by:       _____________________________________
                           Darcy Ellis, Assistant



BOE-3b5-AH (P1) REV oS (01"15)

ASS ESS M E NT APP EAL APP LICATION
This form contains all of the requests for information
that are required for filing an application for changed
assessment. Failure to complete this application may
result in rejection of the application and/or denial of the
appeal. Applicants should be prepared to submit additional
information if requested by the assessor or at the time of
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessary may result in the
continuance of the hearing or denial of the appeal. Do not
attach hearing evidence to this application,

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION . PLEASE PRINT
NAME OF (LAST, MIDDLE INIT]AL), OR

MAILING

crry

t\
2. CONTACT
NAME OF AGENT, ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE

COMPANY NAME

rctA 3q J*ore

Mail to: lnyo County Clerk of the Board
County Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N
lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) 878-0373

EMAIL

fNce r

oR P O. BOn

(p...-
ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT if applicable - (REPRESENTATION lS OPTTONAL)

c'-[ r/e5r Ciu/'1

rcoA q _a-

C)
omP o.

bD 0r*r

\

\ AQ-
CONTACT PERSON IF OTHER ABOVE

'S PARCEL NUMBER

8 t

S of- hi rI,"0

PROPERTY TYPE

I StNGLE-FAMILY i CONDOMINIUM TOWNHOUSE / DUPLEX

FAX TELEPHONE

ACCOUNT NUMBER TAX NUMBER (if applicable)

DOING AS 6\,ic IA

o-[ i^0 Ji S. cdY/'\

$qg..ttto

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY

\s

3. PROPERTY ID

n Yes E No ls this ProPertY single-family dwelling that is occupied as the principal place of residence by the owner?

af

C,A

n uu lrt-rRllt ILY/APARTMENTS:

! covvrncAl/tNDUsrRrAL

n BUSTNESS PERSONAL

4. VALUE

LAND

IMPROVEMENTS/STRUCTURES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERTY (see

MINERAL RIGHTS

TREES & VINES

OTHER

OF UNITS

N AGRICULTURAL

n ulruurRcruRED HoME

N WATER CMFT N AIRCRAFT

N VACANTLAND

n otngn,

RY INTEREST

/FIXTURES

C. APPEALS BOARD USE ONLY

{3

;i "{

APPLICATION NUMBER: On

0- l

%rr5
ZIP CODE TELEPHONE

-5r')
TERNATE TELEPHONE

(,%o clzo

fvro- t
F/RS?i

.{_

STATE

CA
ztPIoDE
qB rr\ DAYTIME TETEPHONE

(1l,o) ffi3'S?8l,vtAl)

Ihe person named in Secfion 2
enter ln

I RutnonzATroN ATTAcHED
(or attached to this appticafion . see instructions) unless the agent is a licensed Ga lifornia

section, or a spouse, child, parent, registered domestic partner, or the person affected' If

is hereby authorized fo act as my agent in this application, and may inspect assessor's records,

AGENT
Thefollowing information must be

as indicated in the
rb a busrness entity, the of the business.an officer or authorizedauthorlzation must be

tion and othervvise seffre issues relating to this applicatlon.
DATE
of Z-2"-nxryly TITLE

Se c.
OFFICER, OR

NUMBER (if

0 30t

A. VALUE ON ROLL B. APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE

-g-4.aor:
?, rt3? €--

:ns)

.C

2.Ll-00 -*r 75t
,TAL t

PENALTIES (amount or percent)

DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BOE-305-AH (P2) REV.08 (01-15)

5. TypE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED ff Cnecx only one. see instructio ns for filing periods

Ei*,O'|-OR ASSESSMENT * VALUE AS OF JANUARY 1 OF THE CURRENT YEAR

I suPPIevENTALASSESSMENT
*DATE OF NOTICE: ROLLYEAR:

N NOII- CHANGE f] ESCAPE ASSESSMENT tr CALAMITY REASSESSMENT ! PENALTYASSESSMENT

*DATE OF NOTICE:
**ROLL YEAR:

*Musl altach coPY of notlce or bill, where applicable **Each roll a

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL (FACTS)

lf vou are uncertain of which item to check' please check "l

iri" iu".ont that I rely upon to support requested changes

See rnstrucflo ns hefore completing lhis section'

oTHER"andprovideabriefexplanationofyourreasonsforfilingthisapplication.
in value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE' -iK;r;""ror,, 
roll value exceeds the market value as of January 1 of the current year,

B. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP

[ '1 . No change in ownership occurred on the date of
is incorrect.

! 2. Base year value for the change in ownership establish

C. NEW CONSTRUCTION

[ 1. No new construction occurred on the date of 

-'

n 2. Base year value for the completed new construction established on the date of

[ 3. Value of construction in progress on January '1 is incorrect'

D. CALAMITY REASSESSMENT

fJAssessor'sreducedvalueisincorrectforpropertydamagedbymisfortuneorcalamity.
E. BUSINESS 

'ERSoNAL 
pRopERTY/FlxruRES. Assessor's value of personal property and/or fixtures exceeds market value' I

n 1. All personal property/fixtures'

n2.onlyaportionofthepersonalproperty/fixtures.Attachdescriptionofthoseitems.
F. PENALWASSESSMENT

I Penalty assessment is not justified'

G. CLASS IF ICATION/ALLOCAT I ON

[ 1. Classification of property is incorrect'

[ 2. Allocation of value oi property is incorrect (e.g., between land and. improvements).

H' APPEAL AFTER AN AUDIT' Must include 0","'iption of each propefty, issues being appealed, and your opinion of value'

n 1. Amount of escape assessment is incorrect'

n 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at the location is incorrect'

ed on the date of

is incorrect,

I. OTHER

I Explanation (attach sheet if necessary)

oF FACTS ( s per.-- )7. WryZfEN FINDINGS

B nre requested. Are not requested.

L THIS,APPL

WYes
ICATION IS DESIGNATED AS A CLAIM FOR REFUND See insfructions'

Rn-I*-l %
$ \os

lo

I.LL)nNo t

s5"" ft*+ AA'A " A(.v-
1-

{o AI P,^n
St VJ

CERTIFICATION

declare) under PenaltY of Periury under the laws of ffre Sfafe of California that the foregoing and all information hereon, including any

I certify (or
correct, and comqlete to fhe best of mY knowledge and betief and that I am (1) the owner of the

accompanYing sfafenienfs or documents, is true, that pro7erly -"The APPIicant')' (2) an

propettv or the person affected (i. e., a Person having a direct economic interest in the paymenf of laxes on

agent authorized by the aPPlicant under item 2 of this aPPlica tion, ar (3) an aftorneY licensed to Practice law in the Sfafe of California, State Bar

Number who has been by the applicant and has been authorized bY that Person to file this aPPlication.

SIGNATURE (UEe -L*U)2D

NAME (Please Print)
CI

1)
FILING STATUS (IDENTIFY

d K*,* ! nerur

SIGNEDapplication)odginal slgnature

I coneoRere oFFlcER oR DESIGNATED EMPLoYEE

I REGIsTERED DoMESTIc PARTNER I cHtlo I eenrrur I eeRsoruRrrscreo



1

2

3

4

5

5

1

B

9

10

11

I2

13

I4

15

76

T1

1B

I9

20

27

))

,?

24

25

26

t1

2B

DECLARATION OF' SERVICE

I am employed in the County of Inyo, I am over the age of 18 years and I am not a party to the
within entitled action. My business address is P.O. Box No Independenceo CA 93526.

On October 6,2021,1 served the foregoing document(s) described as follows:

LETTER NOTIFYING TAXPAYER/AUTHORIZED AGENT OF' TAX ASSESSMENT APPEAL
HEARING; HEARING DATB CONFIRMATION NOTICE

on the following parties in said action, as shown below,

ALPINE SIGNS DBA OFFICIAL 395 STORB
C/O JOE AND CARYN TODD
P.O. BOX 1017

BrsHoP, cA 93515

by the following means:

t I (By Mail) I personally deposited said envelope(s) with the United States Postal Service at
Independence, California, with first class postage thereon fully prepaid.

txl (By Mail) I deposited such envelope(s) in the rnail at Independence, California. I am readily
familiar with the County's practice whereby the mail, after being placed in a designated area, is
given the appropriate first class postage and is deposited with the United States Postal Service on
that same day.

tl (By Certified Mail) I personally deposited said envelope(s) with the United States Postal Service at
Independence, Califomia, with first class postage thereon fully prepaid.

t I (By e-mail) to all e-mail addresses on the Service List attached.

tl (By Personal Service) I caused such envelope(s) to be delivered personally to the office(s) of
addressee(s).

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true
and correct.

DATED: tolwlat
Assistant Clerk

Inyo County of Equalization



COUXTY OF INYO
P. O. BOX N o INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526

TELEPHoNE (760) 878-0373
e-mail : dellis@inyocounty.us

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
DAN TOTHEROH
JEFF GRIFFITHS

RICK PUCC]
JENNIFER ROESER
MATT KINGSLEY

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
(llcrk o/ the lloard

HL Camwo $IERRA
DARCY ELLIS

Assist0nt (llcrk o/ thc Roard

October 6,2021

Alpine Signs dba Official 395 Store
c/o Joe and Caryn Todd
P.O. Box 1017
Bishop, CA 93515

Re: Assessor Parcel No. 5530100380

Dear Mr. and Mrs. Todd,

Please be advised that your application appealing the assessed valuation ofthe above referenced property has been set to
be heard by the Inyo County Board of Equalization at l:00 p.m. Tuesday, December 14, 2021, in the Board of
Supervisors Room, located at the County Administrative Center at224 N. Edwards, Independence, Califontia.

Due to COVID, the Board Chambers are closed to the public; however, all rneetings are accessible to the public via
Zoom athttps:llzoom.uslil868254181 or by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; QaQ 248-7799; (253)
215-8782; (929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799 (webinar ID: 868 254).lf guidelines with regard to access

to Board meetings change, you will be notified prior to your hearing.

At the date and time set forth above you must appear personally at the hearing or be represented by an agent who shall
be thoroughly familiar with the facts pertaining to the matter before the Board. Any person, other than an attomey at

law, purpofting to act as an agent for you shall, prior to the hearing, file with the Clerk written authority, signed by you,
to represent you at the hearing. An appearance by an officer or an employee of a corporate applicant or by a relative
mentioned by Board of Equalization Rr"rle 320 requires no written authorization. Failure to appear, persorrally or by an

authorized agent, may result in your application being denied. If you are unable to attend the hearing as scheduled your
application may be continued by the Board upon your showing of good cause. Good cause may be established only by a
written statement signed by the applicant, or his authorized agent, setting forth the facts and circumstances explaining
the inability to appear at the scheduled hearing. Such written declaration must be received by the Board of Equalization
prior to the date and time of the scheduled hearing.

Denial of an application for lack of appearance of the applicant or his agent rnay be reconsidered when the applicant
fumishes evidence of good cause for the failure to appear or to make a tirnely request for postponement and files a
written request for reconsideration within a period not to exceed 60 days from the date of mailing of the notification of
the denial due to lack ofappearance.

Applicable law requires that you be provided notification of the following:

1. The Board of Equalization is required to find taxable value of the property in question from the evidence presented
at the hearing.

2. The Board of Equalization can raise as well as lower or confirm the assessment being appealed.
3. The application for a reduction in the assessment of a portion of an improved real property, or a portion of

installations which are partially real property and partially personal property, may result in an increase in the

BOARD OF EQIJALIZATION



unprotested assessment of the other portion or portions of the property which increase will ffiet, in whole or in
part, any reduction in the protest assessment.

Neither the Assessor, Clerk of the Board of Equalization, members of the Board of Equalization, nor the Board's legal

staff can provide you with legal advice or representation concerning this matter. Questions concerning the Inyo County
Assessor's valuation of the property in question can be directed to the County Assessor by contacting hirn at P.O. Box J,

Independence, CA 93526, or by telephone at (760) 878-0302. The Application for Changed Assessment will be

provided to the Board of Equalization, without attachmenls. You should be prepared to provide your evidence,
including any evidence or explanations you attached to the Application, to the Board at the hearing.

Please note that Inyo County charges $160 per parcel for written findings of fact. Findings may be requested at any

time prior to the beginning of your hearing and the fees for this service should be paid before the hearing, but in any

case, prior to the end of your hearing. However, if you withdraw your request for findings of facts by the end of the
hearing, any fees paid will be refunded by the clerk. Your request, if not designated on the appeal application, can be

made in a separate written request to the clerk, or orally on record just prior to the start of your hearing.

Requests for continuances or other correspondence to the Board of Equalization should be addressed to: Clerk of the
Board of Equalization, County of Inyo, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526; or dellis@inyocountv.us. The Clerk
can be contacted at(760)878-0373.

Included with this corespondence is a Hearing Date Confirmation Notice, which must be returned to the address listed

in the above paragraph not less than 21 days prior to the indicated hearing date.

Darcy Ellis,
Assistant Clerk of the Board

de
xc: David Stottlemyre, County Assessor

Marshall Rudolph, County Counsel

S



BOE-305-CN REV. 01 (09-10)

HEARING DATE CONFIRMATION NOTICE

This confirmation notice must be returned not less
than 21 days prior to the indicated hearing date.
Mail or fax to the Clerk of the Board at fhe address
shown.

COLINTY OF INYO
BOARD OF

EQUALTZATION
l).O Drawcr N- Indcpe tirletrcc- CA i)li2(r

(76fJ) 878-(13?3

tlcll isilrinvocount)' us

HEARING DATE AND TIME- APPLICATION NUMBER(S)

HEARING LOCATION

PARCEL OR ASSESSMENT NUIVBER(S)

- SEVERALAPPLICATIONS IViAY BE SET FOR HEARING AT THE SAME TIME, AND EACH WLL BE CONSIDERED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE IN THE ORDER LISTED ON THE AGENDA.

[f Cnecf one of the boxes below.

I will be present on the scheduled hearing date.

Please bring 8 copies of any evidence you wish to present to the AssessmentAppeals Board

T I request my right to a onetime postponement of my hearing to another hearing date. To schedule your hearing for a future date,
please contact the Clerk of the Board at ( 760 ) 878 - 0373

I understand that if this is not my first postponement request, I must appear at the scheduled hearing to request another postponement
and give reasonable cause to the appeals board. lt is the sole discretion of the board to grant ordeny this request. lf denied, I must
be prepared to proceed with the hearing as scheduled.

lf you are requesting a postponement and the date of the currently scheduled hearing is within 120 days of the expiration of the
two-year limitations period set by Revenue and Taxation Code section 1604(c), the Clerk will provide you with a waiver (form BOE-
305-W) to indefinitely extend and toll the period in which your appeal is to be heard and decided.

I wish to withdraw my application. Withdrawals are final and will conclude any further action on the appeal. (Your attendance at the
hearing is not required.)

I understand that my withdrawal may only be granted if the assessor has not provided me with a written notice of an intention to
recommend an increase in the assessed value of the property. Additionally, the county Board can decide to review an assessment

even though the Assessor and applicant may have agreed to withdraw the appeal.

I have signed a stipulation with the assessor's office. (Your attendance at the hearing is not required.)

ln order to ensure proper scheduling of assessment appeals hearings, you must complete and return this form not less than 21

days priorto the date of your hearing. Failure to return this confirmation notice may result in your case being removed from the
agenda on the scheduled date. Failure to appear at the scheduled hearing by you or an authorized representative may result in
your application being abandoned and denied for lack of appearance unless you have requested a postponement.

CERTIFICATION

I certify under penalty of perjury that I am the owner, or person authorized to sign on behalf of the owner, of the
a bov e ref e ren c ed p ro p e rty,

SIGNATURE DATE

PRINT NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNER TITLE

COMPANY NAI\4E EI\iIAILADDRESS

n owNER ! AGENT ! ATToRNEY n spousE n REGTSTERED DorvrEsTrc PARTNER ! cHil-o ! PARENT n PERSoN AFFECTED

! coneoRnre oFFtcER oR DESTcNATED EMpLoyEE! cnltroRrutnnrroRNEy srATE BAR NUMBER



$i;rte fioard *f Hqualizatia*
BOE-3o'AH (P1) REV 08 (01-15)

ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION
This form contains all of the requests for information
that are required for filing an application for changed
assessment. Failure to complete this application may
result in rejection of the application and/or denial of the
appeal. Applicants should be prepared to submit additional
information if requested by the assessor or at the time of
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessary may result in the
continuance of the hearing or denial of the appeal. Do not
attach hearing evidence to this application.

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION - PRINT
NAME T MIDDLE TRUSI NAME

f,S:TNld g* HLJ${ Tt'
{:=flg3*3S

fiffimfi SFtt Jffi xtrt-I3
tr{}.t.HHi5IF*I$tfiS *f; *$hqr

d+t ne+
MAILING ADDRESS OF APPLICANT ORP BOX)

cc 34
CITY

NO FAX

2. CONTACT INFORMATION .AGENI ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT if appticabte - (REPRESENTATTON tS OPTIONAL)
OF FIRST MIDDLE

€t^
NAI/E t LAC

PERSON IF OTHER'THAN (LASI; FIRST MIDDLE

ol

o

NUMBER: Clerk Use Only

t-

w ZIP CODE

P?3a TELEPHONE

MAILING ADDRESS (SIREEIADDRFSS OR P O. BOX)

CITY

3. PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

n Yes !(No ls this property a single{amily dwelling that is ocoupied as the principal ptace of residence by the owner?

ENTERAPPLICABLE NUMBER FROM YOUR NONCEffAX BILL
ASSESSOR'S NUMBER

FAX

FEE NUMBER

DOING BUSINESS AS (DBA), if appropriate

o€z o o
ACCOUNT NUMBER TAX BILL NUMBER

OR LOCATION

ho cR.errn €T.
PROPERTY TYPE

n S|NGLE-FAMILY / CONDOM|NtUM i TowNt-tousE / DUPLEX

[] tvtUlrt-rnrurLynpARTMENTS: NO. OF UNTTS .-
T COIT,IIVENCIRUINDUSTRIAL

I euslruess pERsoNAL pRopERTy/FtxruRES

4. VALUE A. VALUE 
'JI.I 

ROLL

LAND

IMPROVEMENTS/STRUCTU RES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERTY (see instructions)

MINERAL RIGHTS

TREES & VINES

OTHER

TOTAL

PENALTIES (amount or

B, APPI-ICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE C, APPEALS BOARD USE ONLY

f,l RoRrculrunRl

fl vnNurnc-ruRED HoME

[] werrncnnrr
ft,oruen:

Ll possrssoRy TNTEREST

tr vncnur uruo

l_l ATRCRAFT

eR

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC INSPECTION

{tcsirJe # tf iii Fr rrpr$ a i\:;^i ss-slil f n i A ;rpr,*ls

STATE ZIP CODE DAYTIME TELEPHONE() ALTERNATE TELEPI-IONE()
OFRIZATION AGENT AUTHORIZATION ATTAGHED

The mustinformation befollowing attached thistocompleted (or seeapplication theunlessinstructions) ts ,icensedagent Californiaas indicated thein Ceftification aorsection, child,spouse, parent, dornesticregisteted theor affected.pariner, person thetf
a,s busriness theentity, agent's mustauthorization be dn orofficersigned by authorized theofemployee busrness.

fhe INnamedperson 2Secfro, ,sabove authorized actto asherehy n thismy agent andapplication, may assessor'sinspect records,
INenter and lssuesseftte thisto

SIGNAIURE OF APPLICANT, OFFICER, OR AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEE TITLE DATE

ASSESSMEI.II NUIlIBER

, joo ooo/ <o-/97
o
o

oo

July 2015



$iate Boarcl of [qualiznticn

BOE-305-AH (P2) REV 08 (01-15)

5. TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED d Cnecn only one. See instructions for fiting periods

n nEcumn ASsEssMENT - vALUE As oF JANUARy 1 oF THE CuRRENT YEAR

$.sueeleHr E NTAL ASSEss ME NT
.DATEoFNoICE: Z -17. L0z-l RoLLyEAR: 2070

! nouCHANGE ! EscApEAssEssMENT n cALAMTTyREASsEssMENT ! peuRIwRSSESsMENT
-DATE OF NOTICE: --ROLL YEAR
*Must aftach copy of notice or hill, where applicable **Each roll year requires a separate application

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL (FACTS) See instructions beforc completing flls secfion.
lf you are uncertain of which item lo check, please check "1. OTHER" and provide a brief explanation of your reasons for filing this application.
The reasons that I rely upon to support requested changes in value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE

I The assessor's roll value exceeds the market value as of January 1 of the current year.

B. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP

! 1. No change in ownership occurred on the date of

[ 2. Base year value for the change in ownership established on the date of _ is incorrect.

C. NEW CONSTRUCTION

[1.Nonewconstructionoccurredonthedateof-.
! 2. Base year value for the completed new construction established on the date of is incorrect.

[ 3. Value of construction in progress on January 1 is incorrect.

D. CALAMITY REASSESSMENT

! Assessor's reduced value is incorrect for property damaged by misfortune or calamity.

E. BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FIXTURES. Assessor's value of personal property and/or fixtures exceeds market value.

ff . ntt'personal property/fixtures.

! 2. Onty a portion of the personal property/fixtures. Attach description of those items.

F. PENALryASSESSMENT

n Penalty assessment is not justified.

G, CLASS I FICATION/ALLOCATION

! 1. Classification of property is incorrect.

! 2. Allocation of value of property is incorrect (e.9., between land and improvements).
H. APPEAL AFTER AN AUDIT. Must include description of each property, issues being appealed, and your opinion of value.

n 1. Amount of escape assessment is inconect.

n 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at the location is i

n (attach sheet if necessary)

FTNDTNGS OF FACTS t $_ per_ )t4 r t4r*
Are requested fl Are not requested.

7 rr^
€

THrS APPLTCATTO

n Yes fl"
N lS DESIGNATED AS A CLAIM FOR REFUND See rnsfructions.

CERTIFICATION

I ceftify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing and atl information hereon, including any
accompanying statements or documents, is true, conect, and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief and that I am (1) the owner of the
propefty or the person affected (i.e., a person having a direct economic interest in the payment of taxes on that propefty -"The Appticant'), (2) an
agent authoized by the applicant under item 2 of this application, or (3) an aftorney licensed to practice law in the State of Catifornia, State Bar
Number _, who has retained the applicant and has been authorized by that person to file this application.

SIGNATURE (Uso Original

NAME (Please Print)

2l zozl
G R R E.LKO

FILING STATUS (IDENTIFY RELATIONSHIP TO APPLICANT NAIVED IN SECTION 1)

J.A

M Xdwruen Inoerur !nrronNev !seouse nREGTsTEREDDoMEsTceARTNER Icurro !enneNr !erRsotnrrecreol-/ n conpoRnrE oFFrcER oR DEstcNATED EMpLoyEE

g Resrsicxf r*f Ilrotrte rtglAssess*re nt Appeclfs July 211 15

lpffift:a"t SIGNEDAEICITY, STATE) .*"'/?;n o A/



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

8

9

10

11

I2

13

74

15

I6

I1

1B

I9

20

27

zz

ZJ

24

25

26

)'7

2B

DECLARATION OF SERVICE

I am employed in the County of Inyo, I am over the age of 18 years and I am not a party to the
within entitled action. My business address is P.O. Box N, Independence, CA 93526.

On October 6,2021,1 served the foregoing document(s) described as follows:

LETTER NOTIF'YING TAXPAYER/AUTHORIZED AGENT OF TAX ASSESSMENT APPEAL
HEARING; HEARING DATE CONF.IRMATION NOTICE

on the following parties in said action, as shown below,

GARY ELROD
501 KETCHUM CT.
RENO, NV 89511

by the following means:

t I (By Mail) I personally deposited said envelope(s) with the United States Postal Service at
Independence, California, with first class postage thereon fully prepaid.

lxl (By Mail) I deposited such envelope(s) in the rnail at Independenceo Califomia. I am readily
farniliar with the County's practice whereby the mail, after being placed in a designated area, is
given the appropriate first class postage and is deposited with the United States Postal Service on
that same day.

tl (By Certified Mail) I personally deposited said envelope(s) with the United States Postal Service at
Independence, California, with first class postage thereon fully prepaid.

t I (By e-mail) to all e-mail addresses on the Service List attached

tl (By Personal Service) I caused such envelope(s) to be delivered personally to the office(s) of
addressee(s).

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true
and correct.

DArED: rc f Otola-t
Clerk

Inyo County Equalization



BOARD OF EQTJALIZATION
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. BOX N o INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93s26

TELEPH0NE (7 60) 87 8-0373
e-mail : dellis@inyocounty. us

MEMBERS oF THE BoARD
DAN TOTHEROH
.IEFF GRIFFITHS

RICK PUCCI
JENNIFER ROESER
MATT KINGSI,EY

LESLIE L, CHAPMAN
Olcrk o.l thc lloard

DARCY ELLIS

fiL cananqo STHRRA
A.ssistant (llerk ol thc Boaxl

October 6,2021

Gary Elrod
501 Ketchum Ct.
Reno, NV 8951 1

Re: Assessor Parcel No. 0082800000

Dear Mr. Elrod,

Please be advised that your application appealing the assessed valuation ofthe above referenced property has been set to
be heard by the Inyo County Board of Equalization at 1:00 p.m. Tuesday, December 14, 2021, in the Board of
Supervisors Room, located at the County Administrative Center at224 N. Edwards, Independence, California.

Due to COVID, the Board Chambers are closed to the public; however, all rneetings are accessible to the public via
Zoom atl'fttps:llzoon.uslil86825478l or by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; QaQ 2a8-7799; (253)
215-8782; (929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799 (webinar ID: 868 254).lf guidelines with regard to access

to Board meetings change, you will be notified prior to your hearing.

At the date and time set forth above you must appear personally at the hearing or be represented by an agent who shall
be thoroughly familiar with the facts pertaining to the matter before the Board. Any person, other than an attorney at
law, purporting to act as an agent for you shall, prior to the hearing, file with the Clerk written authority, signed by you,
to represent you at the hearing. An appearance by an officer or an employee of a corporate applicant or by a relative
mentioned by Board of Equalization Rule 320 requires no written authorization. Failure to appear, personally or by an

authorized agent, may result in your application being denied. If you are unable to attend the hearing as scheduled your
application may be continued by the Board upon your showing of good cause. Good cause may be established only by a
written statement signed by the applicant, or his authorized agerft, setting forth the facts and circumstances explaining
the inability to appear at the schedr.rled hearing. Such written declaration must be received by the Board of Equalization
prior to the date and time of the scheduled hearing.

Denial of an application for lack of appearance of the applicant or his agent rnay be reconsidered when the applicant
furnishes evidence of good cause for the failure to appear or to make a tirnely request for postponelnent and files a
written request for reconsideration within a period notto exceed 60 days from the date of mailing of the notification of
the denial due to lack ofappearance.

Applicable law requires that you be provided notification of the following:

1. The Board of Equalization is required to find taxable value of the property in questionfrom the evidence presented
at the hearing.

2. The Board of Equalization can raise as well as lower or confirm the assessment being appealed.
3. The application for a reduction in the assessment of a portion of an improved real property, or a portion of

installations which are partially real property and partially personal property, may result in an increase in the

unprotested assessment of the other portion or portions of the property which increase will offiet, in whole or in
part, any reduction in the protest assessmenL



Neither the Assessor, Clerk of the Board of Equalization, members of the Board of Equalization, nor the Board's legal
staff can provide you with legal advice or representation concerning this matter. Questions concerning the Inyo County
Assessor's valuation of the property in question can be directed to the County Assessor by contacting him at P.O. Box J,

Independence, CA 93526, or by telephone at (760) 878-0302. The Application for Changed Assessment will be
provided to the Board of Equalization, without attachmenfs. You should be prepared to provide your evidence,
including any evidence or explanations you attached to the Application, to the Board at the hearing.

Please note that Inyo County charges $160 per parcel for written findings of fact. Findings may be requested at any

time prior to the beginning of your hearing and the fees for this service should be paid before the hearing, but in any
case, prior to the end of your hearing. However, if you withdraw your request for findings of facts by the end of the
hearing, any fees paid will be refunded by the clerk. Your request, if not designated on the appeal application, can be

made in a separate written request to the clerk, or orally on record just prior to the start of your hearing.

Requests for continuances or other correspondence to the Board of Equalization should be addressed to: Clerk of the
Board of Equalization, County of Inyo, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526; or dellis@inyocounty.us. The Clerk
can be contacted at(760) 878-0373.

Included with this correspondence is a Hearing Date Confirmation Notice, which must be returned to the address listed
in the above paragraph not less than 21 days prior to the indicated hearing date.

Sincerely,

Darcy Ellis,
Assistant Clerk of the Board

de
xc: David Stottlemyre, County Assessor

Marshall Rudolph, County Counsel



BOE-305-CN REV 01 (09-10)

HEARING DATE CONFIRMATION NOTICE

This confirmation notice must be returned not less
than 21 days prior to the indicated hearing date.
Mail or fax to the Clerk of the Board at the address
shown.

COLINTY OF INYO
BOARD OF

EQIJALIZATIONI
l'.0 Dral'cr N. Indcperrderrcc. f-'A 9-]i2(r

(76(J) 878-037:l
tle I I isii)i rrl,ocountl'. us

HEARING DATEANDTIME- APPLICATION NUMBER(S)

HEARING LOCATION

PARCEL OR ASSESSMENI NUIVIBER(S) APPLICANT

- SEVERALAPPLICATIONS IVIAY BE SET FOR HEARING AT THE SAIVIE TIME, AND EACH WLL BE CONSIDERED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE IN THE ORDER LISIED ON THE AGENDA.

[f Cnecr one of the boxes belou

f-l I will be present on the scheduled hearing date.L]

Please bring 8 copies of any evidence you wish to presentto theAssessmentAppeals Board.

I request my right to a one-time postponement of my hearing to another hearing date. To schedule your hearing for a future date,
please contact the Clerk of the Board at ( 760 ) 878 - 0373

I understand that if this is not my first postponement request, I must appear at the scheduled hearing to request another postponement
and give reasonable cause to the appeals board. lt is the sole discretion of the board to grant or deny this request. lf denied, I must
be prepared to proceed with the hearing as scheduled.

lf you are requesting a postponement and the date of the currently scheduled hearing is within 120 days of the expiration of the

two-year limitations period set by Revenue and Taxation Code section 1604(c), the Clerk will provide you with a waiver (form BOE-

305-W) to indefinitely extend and toll the period in which your appeal is to be heard and decided.

I wish to withdraw my application. Withdrawals are final and will conclude any further action on the appeal. (Your attendance at the
hearing is not required.)

I understand that my withdrawal may only be granted if the assessor has not provided me with a written notice of an intention to
recommend an increase in the assessed value of the property. Additionally, the county Board can decide to review an assessment
even though the Assessor and applicant may have agreed to withdraw the appeal.

! t trave signed a stipulation with the assessor's office. (Your attendance at the hearing is not required.)

ln order to ensure proper scheduling of assessment appeals hearings, you must complete and return this form not less than 2'l
days prior to the date of your hearing. Failure to return this confirmation notice may result in your case being removed from the
agenda on the scheduled date. Failure to appear at the scheduled hearing by you or an authorized representative may result in
your application being abandoned and denied for lack of appearance unless you have requested a postponement.

CERTIFICATION

I certify under penalty of perjury that I am the owner, or person authorized to sign on behalf of the owner, of the
) bove refe ren ced p ro pefty.

SIGNATURE DATE

PRINT NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNER TITLE

COMPANY NAME EMAILADDRESS

n owNER !ncerur !ATToRNEY n spousE ! REGTSTERED DoMESTTC PARTNER n cHrLD ! PARENT n PERSoNAFFEoTED

! coRpoRATE oFFrcER oR DESTcNATED EMpLoyEE! cRlrronnrnnrroRNEy srArE BAR NUMBER


	 Call to Order
	1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)
	3. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	4. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new Sheriff's Office
	5. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	6. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Assistant County Counsel Contract


	 Consent Agenda
	7. Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the contr
	Agenda Request Form
	Erik Endler Contract Amendment 2
	Erick Endler Contract Amendment 1
	Erick Endler Original Contract

	8. Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contr
	Agenda Request Form
	Wasef Contract Amendment No. 1
	Wasef Contract - Original

	9. Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC Amendment No. 2
	Agenda Request Form
	NPA Contract Amendment No. 2
	NPA Contract Amendment No. 1
	NPA Contract

	10. Request Board review the proposed Fiscal Year 2021
	Agenda Request Form
	FY 2021 EMPG Governing Body Resolution (GBR) 
	GBR - Addendum Letter 2021
	FY 2021 FMFW - FACE Sheet

	11. Request Board: A) declare Pitney Bowes of Pittsbur
	Agenda Request Form
	Pitney Bowes Lease Agreement

	12. Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 th
	Agenda Request Form
	AB 361 Public Meeting Recommendations from Public Health Officer

	13. Request Board approve the Use License Agreement be
	Agenda Request Form
	BIH Terminal layout-UA Lease Exhibit

	14. Request Board authorize a correction to Amendment 
	Agenda Request Form
	LSC Transportation Consultants Contract Amendment 2 (Corrected)
	LSC Transportation Consultants Contract
	LSC Transportation Consultants Contract Amendment 1

	15. Request Board review the proposed Federal Fiscal Y
	Agenda Request Form
	FY 2021 HSGP Governing Body Resolution (GBR) 2021- and Addendum to GBR
	GBR - Addendum Letter 2021
	FACE Sheet 2021


	 Departmental
	16. Request Board: A) conduct a workshop with members 
	Agenda Request Form
	Regional Fire Safe Council Board Letter 2021.10.26

	17. Request Board hear a presentation regarding the Am
	Agenda Request Form

	18. Request Board waive further reading of  proposed O
	Agenda Request Form
	Airport Parking Ordinance
	Ordinance 1167

	19. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-55, titl
	Agenda Request Form
	Tecopa Cemetery District Resolution


	 Timed Items
	20. 11:05 a.m. - County Counsel - Request Board: A) co
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution Adopting Final Maps
	Exhibit A - All Maps
	Exhibit B - all GEOID20s

	21. 1 p.m. - Board of Equalization - The Board will re
	December 14, 2021 Board of Equalization Agenda
	December 7, 2021 Board of Equalization Minutes
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-10 (Alpine Signs)
	Board of Equalization Hearing Notice  (Alpine Signs)
	Assessment Appeal Application 2021-03 (Gary Elrod)
	Board of Equalization Hearing Notice (Gary Elrod)


	 Comment
	22. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Member and Staff Reports



